
salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 1





























salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 2



























salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
--

salazad
Typewritten Text
26

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 4







AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Michael Long/854 4850; Marvin Brice/854 
9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language: Approve proclamation declaring March 2013, 
Purchasing month in Travis County. 
 

Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Each year in March, the 
National Institute of Governmental Purchasing (NIGP) sponsors a nation-
wide Purchasing Month, a time during which professional purchasers are 
honored for the work they do within their respective governing bodies. As a 
result, local NIGP chapters initiate proclamations to be signed by a variety 
of governing bodies. The proclamations designate March as a “Purchasing 
Month”. 

The local NIGP chapter, The Texas Association of Public Purchasers, is 
obtaining such proclamations from the State of Texas governor as well as 
the City of Austin mayor. The proclamations will designate March, 2013, as 
Purchasing Month in the State of Texas and the City of Austin, respectively. 
Such proclamations have been approved for each of the past several 
years. 

Request the Commissioners Court consider signing the attached 
proclamation to designate March, 2013, as Purchasing Month in Travis 
County, and recognize the valuable and hard work of the Travis County 
Purchasing Office. 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 5

salazad
Typewritten Text



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

Travis County Proclamation – Public Purchasing Month 

 

Whereas, the National Institute of Governmental Purchasing (NIGP) has declared 

March, 2013, to be Purchasing Month nation-wide; and  

 

Whereas, the public purchasing and materials management profession works to 

build better business and government; and 

 

Whereas, the employees of the Travis County Purchasing, Inventory Management, 

and HUB Office staff dedicate themselves to fair and responsible purchasing 

practices; and 

 

Whereas, these staff members are committed to performing at the highest level of 

their profession to efficiently utilize precious tax dollars for the benefit of Travis 

County taxpayers; and 

 

Whereas, these staff members contribute to the city, county and state’s economic 

success while upholding the laws of the Great State of Texas and adhering to a 

business code of ethics; and  

 

Whereas, these staff members encourage and sponsor activities to promote 

education and certification in purchasing; and 

 

Whereas, these staff members dutifully fulfill an obligation to extend opportunities 

to all members of the business community by engaging in fair and inclusive 

purchasing practices; and 

 

Whereas, these staff members are dedicated to the inclusion of women and 

minority owned businesses in the procurement process, while promoting and 

fostering public confidence in the integrity of the process; 

 

Now, therefore, let it be known that we, the members of the Travis County 

Commissioners Court, hereby proclaim March, 2013, as Public Purchasing Month 

in the County of Travis. 

 

In witness whereof, we have hereunto set our hands and affixed the official seal of 

the County of Travis on this      day of    

 , 2013.  
 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, approximately 6 million Texans (23% of the population) had no health insurance in 2011, the highest 

uninsured rate of any State in the Nation; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2010, 29 million Americans were underinsured, meaning they have health insurance, but their out-

of-pocket medical expenses exceeded 10% of their income, among those below 200% of the Federal 
poverty level their out-of-pocket medical expenses exceeded 5% of income, or the per person 
deductible for the insurance plan exceeded 5% of income; 

 
WHEREAS, according to the United States Census Bureau’s American Community Survey, 209,348 residents in 

Travis County were uninsured in 2011; 
 
WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would potentially ensure that 1.5 million more Texans, including 55,676 Travis 

County residents, would be added to the insured population by 2017; could provide more alternatives 
to the uninsured and underinsured populations;  

 
WHEREAS, Medicaid already helps approximately 2.7 million Texas children, but covers only about 945,000 adults 

(primarily seniors and the disabled).  In Texas, 13.2% of children (0-18) and 30.9% of adults (18-64) 
were uninsured in 2011, and in Travis County 10.6% of children and 25.0% of adults were uninsured; 

 
WHEREAS, obtaining health insurance coverage for uninsured adults is one of the best things we can do to ensure 

the economic stability and future of Texas families; encouraging health insurance, free and low cost 
clinics and charitable giving are all ways we can help the uninsured and underinsured; 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Government will hopefully cover the entire cost of expanding Medicaid for the first three 

years, will hopefully pay no less than 90% of the total thereafter, and from 2014-2017 expansion will 
hopefully bring $24 billion in Federal revenue to Texas for just $1.3 billion in State investment 
spending; 

 
WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would hopefully add $224.1 million in annual Medicaid funds to Travis County;  
 
WHEREAS, each dollar spent expanding Medicaid in Texas would result in a $1.29 increase in State revenue, a 51 

cent increase in local government revenue, and a savings to local governments of $1.21 for 
investments in spending for uncompensated care; 

 
WHEREAS, preventive care will become available for newly eligible Medicaid participants who access medical 

services, saving both money and lives; and  
 
WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid will significantly reduce the current $1.8 billion in annual private hospital charity 

care costs, which are traditionally passed on to customers with health insurance, thus translating to 
better premium value for Texans with private health insurance by lowering costs for everyone. More 
Medicaid funding could be utilized to supplement Central Health encouraging greater access to clinics. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT FINDS THAT 
MEDICAID EXPANSION IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF COUNTY TAXPAYERS AND STRONGLY 
ENCOURAGES THE GOVERNOR AND STATE LEGISLATURE TO FIND A WAY FOR PARTICIPATE IN THE 
EXPANSION OF MEDICAID COVERAGE TO ALL NEWLY ELIGIBLE TEXAS RESIDENTS IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE PATIENT PROTECTION AND AFFORDABLE CARE ACT OF 2010. MORE 
FUNDING FOR CENTRAL HEALTH CLINICS, AND OTHER PRIVATE CLINICS TO PROVIDE A BROADER 
SAFETY NET FOR THE MEDICAL NEEDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY RESIDENTS. 
 
WHEREAS FURTHER, WE APPEAL TO THOSE MORE FINANCIALLY ABLE RESIDENTS OF TRAVIS COUNTY 
TO STEP UP THEIR CHARITABLE GIVING TO THE NONPROFITS IN TRAVIS COUNTY THAT ARE FILLING 
THE MEDICAL GAPS FOR OUR UNINSURED AND UNDERINSURED. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013. 
 

__________________________________ 



SAMUEL T. BISCOE 
TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 

_____________________________    ______________________________  
RON DAVIS    SARAH ECKHARDT  
COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 1    COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 2  
 
_____________________________    ______________________________  
GERALD DAUGHERTY    MARGARET GÓMEZ  
COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 3    COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 4 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, approximately 6 million Texans (23% of the population) had no health insurance in 2011, the highest 

uninsured rate of any State in the Nation; 
 
WHEREAS, in 2010, 29 million Americans were underinsured, meaning they have health insurance, but their out-

of-pocket medical expenses exceeded 10% of their income, among those below 200% of the Federal 
poverty level their out-of-pocket medical expenses exceeded 5% of income, or the per person 
deductible for the insurance plan exceeded 5% of income; 

 
WHEREAS, according to the United States Census Bureau’s American Community Survey, 209,348 residents in 

Travis County were uninsured in 2011; 
 
WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid could provide more alternatives to the uninsured and underinsured populations;  
 
WHEREAS, Medicaid already helps approximately 2.7 million Texas children, but covers only about 945,000 adults 

(primarily seniors and the disabled).  In Texas, 13.2% of children (0-18) and 30.9% of adults (18-64) 
were uninsured in 2011, and in Travis County 10.6% of children and 25.0% of adults were uninsured; 

 
WHEREAS, encouraging health insurance, free and low cost clinics and charitable giving are all ways we can help 

the uninsured and underinsured; 
 
WHEREAS, the Federal Government will hopefully cover the entire cost of expanding Medicaid for the first three 

years, will hopefully pay no less than 90% of the total thereafter, and from 2014-2017 expansion will 
hopefully bring $24 billion in Federal revenue to Texas for just $1.3 billion in State spending; 

 
WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would hopefully add $224.1 million in annual Medicaid funds to Travis County;  
 
WHEREAS, each dollar spent expanding Medicaid in Texas would result in a $1.29 increase in State revenue, a 51 

cent increase in local government revenue, and a savings to local governments of $1.21 in spending 
for uncompensated care; 

 
WHEREAS, preventive care will become available for newly eligible Medicaid participants who access medical 

services, saving both money and lives; and  
 
WHEREAS, more Medicaid funding could be utilized to supplement Central Health, encouraging greater access to 

clinics; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT FINDS THAT 
MEDICAID EXPANSION IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF COUNTY TAXPAYERS AND STRONGLY 
ENCOURAGES THE GOVERNOR AND STATE LEGISLATURE TO FIND A WAY FOR MORE FUNDING FOR 
CENTRAL HEALTH CLINICS, AND OTHER PRIVATE CLINICS TO PROVIDE A BROADER SAFETY NET FOR 
THE MEDICAL NEEDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY RESIDENTS. 
  
WHEREAS FURTHER, WE APPEAL TO THOSE MORE FINANCIALLY ABLE RESIDENTS OF TRAVIS COUNTY 
TO STEP UP THEIR CHARITABLE GIVING TO THE NONPROFITS IN TRAVIS COUNTY THAT ARE FILLING 
THE MEDICAL GAPS FOR OUR UNINSURED AND UNDERINSURED. 
 
ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2013. 
 

__________________________________ 
SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE 
_____________________________    ______________________________  
RON DAVIS    SARAH ECKHARDT  
COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 1    COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 2  
 
_____________________________    ______________________________  
GERALD DAUGHERTY    MARGARET GÓMEZ  
COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 3    COMMISSIONER PRECINCT 4 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:    February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar, 854-9555 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:    Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
APPROVE PROCLAMATION HONORING LAW ENFORCEMENT AND 
CORRECTIONS OFFICERS WHO DIED OR WERE INJURED IN THE 
LINE OF DUTY. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
None. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, The National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial, 
indicates “on average, one law enforcement officer is killed in the 
line of duty somewhere in the United States every 53 hours”; 

WHEREAS, Texas leads the nation in fallen and injured officers 
each year, and each death or injury affects many more family 
members, friends, co-workers and communities;   

WHEREAS, The physical, emotional and financial impact of 
fallen or injured officers fall upon people of all ages and abilities, 
and of all economic, racial and social backgrounds;  

WHEREAS, It is widely known that heroes are the people who 
do what has to be done regardless of the consequences; 

WHEREAS, “Heroes Behind the Badge” is a documentary which 
provides an opportunity to educate all people about the honor and 
distinction of men and women who become law enforcement and 
correction officers, and the work they perform for our communities;  

WHEREAS, The documentary was created and produced by Mr. 
William Efurth, and it showcases the lives of 7 officers (4 fallen, 3 
survivors) and provides a real-life observation of law enforcement 
life, the decisions made daily and the impact of those decisions; 

WHEREAS, A private screening of “Heroes Behind the Badge” 
will be held at the State Capitol on February 28, 2013, from 5:00 
PM to 8:00; and  

WHEREAS, As it is written in John 15:13, (New International 
Version) Greater love has no one than this, that he lay down his life 
for others. 

 

 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT WE, THE MEMBERS 
OF THE TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT, DO HEREBY 
PROCLAIM FEBRUARY 26, 2013 AS  

                  “HEROES BEHIND THE BADGE DAY” 

IN TRAVIS COUNTY, AND ASK ALL RESIDENTS OF TRAVIS 
COUNTY TO JOIN US IN  SALUTING THE MEN AN WOMEN WHO 
DEDICATE THEIR LIVES TO A CAUSE MUCH BIGGER THAN 
THEMSELVES. 

 

________________________                                    
SAMUEL T. BISCOE                                 
Travis County Judge  

 

_______________________                                _______________________ 
RON DAVIS          SARAH ECKHARDT 
Commissioner, Pct. 1                                    Commissioner, Pct. 2 

 

_______________________                                _______________________ 
GERALD DAUGHERTY                                 MARGARET GOMEZ 
Commissioner, Pct. 3                                   Commissioner, Pct. 4    

                     

 

  

 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 8







salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 9





































salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 10









JRI Grant Flowchart 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  

BJA Arnold 

CEPP 
 

CJP/JPS 
Auditor 

Purchasing 
 

 

Foundation 
Community 

 

CJP/JPS 
BJA Rules 
Arnold Rules 
CEPP Rules 
 
TC/Contract 
CEPP (Theirs) 
Arnold (Theirs) 
FC (TC) 

$$$ 

Reporting 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date:  February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Walch 46663; Marvin Brice 49765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Approve Contract No. 4400001243, 
Communication By Hand for interpreter services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

This agreement provides properly qualified and legally certified sign 
language interpreter services for youth identified and referred by the Travis 
county Juvenile Probation Department.  All services will be provided in 
accordance with the Code of Professional Conduct from the Registry of 
Interpreters for the Deaf and the Board of Evaluation for Interpreters. 

Section 4.10 of the contract states: Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE 
ANN. § 262  et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this 
Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the County Purchasing Act 
because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional 
services.   

 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $2,897.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 
 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: As-Needed Contract   

Contract Type:  Professional Service 

Contract Period:  February 26, 2013 – September 30, 2013 

                                       (auto-renewal) 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 11



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 

  Funding Account(s):   Cost Center 1450180001; Product Code: 
8211200; GL# 511850 

  Comments:  Contract is As-Needed 

 

 

 
 
 



4400001243

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
AGREEMENT/CONTRACT

BETWEEN

TRAVIS COUNTY

AND

COMMUNICATION BY HAND

FOR

INTERPRETER SERVICES

CONTRACT NO. 4400001243

OF

Page 1 of 24



4400001243

Travis County Purchasing Office

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0 Definitions 3
2.0 Term 4
3.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 4
4.0 Compensation, Billing and Payment 7
5.0 Records, Confidentiality and Access 9
6.0 Amendments/Modifications 9
7.0 Other Provisions 10

Approvals 15

Attachments

Attachment A — Scope of Services & Performance Measures 16
Attachment B — Fee Schedule 17
Attachment C — Insurance Requirements 19
Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including 22

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons 23
Attachment E — Certification regarding Debarment 25

Page 2 of 24



4400001243

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF TRAVIS §

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR INTERPRETING SERVICES

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the following parties: Travis County, Texas, (the
“COUNTY”) and Communication by Hand, (the “CONTRACTOR”).

‘WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to obtain the services of a qualified interpreter to provide interpreter services
for Travis County youth and clients identified and referred by Travis County, for Travis County and;

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the professional ability and expertise, and any necessary professional
degrees, licenses, and certifications to provide these services;

NOW, THEREFORE, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR agree as follows:

1.0 DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement,

1.1 “Commissioners Court” means the Travis County Commissioners Court.

1.2 “Purchasing Agent” means Travis County Purchasing Agent Cyd V. Grimes or her successor.

1.3 “County Auditor” means Travis County Auditor Nicki Riley or her successor.

1.4 “Parties” mean Travis County and Communication by Hand.

1.5 “Is doing business” and “has done business” mean:

1.5.1 paying or receiving in any calendar year any money or valuable thing which is worth
more than $250 in the aggregate in exchange for personal services or for the purchase of any
property or property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or,

1.5.2 loaning or receiving a loan of money; or goods or otherwise creating or having in
existence any legal obligation or debt with a value of more than $250 in the aggregate in a
calendar year;

1.5.3 but does not include

1.5.3.1 any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a
posted, published, or marked price available to the public,

1.5.3.2 any fmancial services product sold to a Key Contracting Person for personal,
family or household purposes in accordance with pricing guidelines applicable to
similarly situated individuals with similar risks as determined by Contractor in the
ordinary course of its business; and

Page 3 of 24



4400001243

1.5.3.3 a transaction for a financial service or insurance coverage made on behalf of
Contractor if Contractor is a national or multinational corporation by an agent, employee
or other representative of Contractor who does not know and is not in a position that he or
she should have known about the Contract.

1. 6 “Key Contracting Person” means any person or business listed in Exhibit 1 to the Affidavits
attached to this contract and marked as Attachment D.

1.7 “DIRECTOR” means the Chief Juvenile Probation Officer of Travis County Juvenile Probation
Department or her designee.

2.0 TERM

2.1 Initial Term. The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence upon complete execution by
all parties and shall continue through September 30, 2013, unless sooner terminated as provided herein.

2.2 Renewal Term(s). Subject to continued funding by the Commissioners Court, this Agreement
shall thereafter automatically renew on October 1 of each year for succeeding terms of one year unless
sooner terminated by either party as provided herein.

2.3 Termination. Either party may terminate this Contract at any time by giving the other party
written notice of such termination at least thirty (30) days before the effective date of the termination.

3.0 CONTRACTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 Scope of Services. CONTRACTOR shall perform, iti a timely manner, the services and activities
described in the Scope of Services set forth as Attachment A to this Agreement, which is expressly
incorporated herein and made a part hereof.

3.2 Ethical Standards. CONTRACTOR shall perform all services and exercise all discretionary
powers in a manner consistent with applicable canons of professional ethics and his best professional
judgment.

3.3 Subcontracting. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, CONTRACTOR is
prohibited from hiring or subcontracting with any other person to perform any of the
CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this Agreement.

3.4 Civil Rights/ADA Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services and activities
pursuant to this Agreement in compliance with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Public Law 93-1122, Section 504, and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act of 1990, Public Law 101-336 {S.933].

3.5 Legal Compliance. CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state, county, and city laws,
rules, regulations and ordinances applicable to the provision of the services described herein and the
performance of all obligations undertaken pursuant to this Agreement.

Page 4 of 24



4400001243

3.6 Pyment of Property Taxes. CONTRACTOR warrants that CONTRACTOR is not currently
delinquent in payment of property taxes to the Travis County Tax Assessor Collector.

3.7 Insurance Requirements CONTRACTOR shall comply with the insurance requirements set out in
Attachment C, “Insurance Requirements”, which is incorporated herein by reference and made a part
hereof.

3.8 Federal Funds. CONTRACTOR warrants that no Federal appropriated funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of CONTRACTOR, to any person for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

3.9 Communications. CONTRACTOR may communicate all requests for direction and factual
infonnation relating to services performed pursuant to this Agreement to the DIRECTOR and may rely
on all factual information supplied by the DIRECTOR in response to these requests. However
DIRECTOR shall not serve as the agent of County or the Commissioners Court or any elected official of
County for any other purpose than conveying factual information.

3.10 CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges that, in entering into this Agreement, COUNTY has
relied on the representations of CONTRACTOR about the persons who will be performing the services
and their qualifications and that any other person except staff must be approved by COMMISSIONERS
COURT before providing services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR warrants that all work done
will be done by the employees or members of CONTRACTOR that are presented as performing the
services in CONTRACTOR’S proposal.

3.11 Professional Licensure/Certification. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all necessary licenses
and certifications related to the Counseling services being provided hereunder. In the event licensure or
certification expires, is revoked, suspended, probated, or is canceled, CONTRACTOR shall inform
COUNTY of such event within five (5) working days.

3.12 Duty to Report. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that suspected or alleged cases of child abuse or
exploitation or neglect of clients served under this Agreement are immediately reported to the Director
and to the appropriate authorities as required by law and in conformity with the procedures detailed in
Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that its employees, interns,
volunteers, subcontractors, agents, and consultants are properly trained in the reporting requirements and
procedures of Chapter 261 of the Texas Family Code.

3.13 Standard of Care. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, CONTRACTOR
shall perform all services and responsibilities required of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement using
at least that standard of care which a reasonably prudent licensed counselor in Travis County, Texas
would use in similar circumstances. CONTRACTOR warrants the duties within this Agreement shall be
performed in a good and workmanlike manner. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to relieve
CONTRACTOR of this duty.

Page 5 of 24



4400001243

3.14 Duty to Disclose Infonnation. CONTRACTOR has an affirmative duty under this Agreement to
promptly ascertain and disclose in sufficient detail all of the following information to Director:

3.14.1 Any and all licensure complaints and any corrective action required by any of
CONTRACTOR’S licensing authorities or funding entities.

3.14.2 Any arrest of any employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or consultant of
CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR.

3.14.3 Any finding of “Reason to Believe” by a state regulatory agency in a child abuse, neglect
and exploitation investigation where an employee, intern, volunteer, subcontractor, agent and/or
consultant of CONTRACTOR, or CONTRACTOR was the alleged or designated perpetrator.

3.15 Disqualifying Criminal History

3.15.1 CONTRACTOR agrees to provide documentation to DIRECTOR that a criminal
background check on every employee, intern volunteer or agent whose duties in connection with
this Agreement include direct access to youth referred under this Agreement. To comply with
this requirement, a criminal background check shall include a fingerprint-based criminal history
search of criminal information databases maintained by the Federal Bureau of Investigation and
by the State of Texas and shall have been conducted within two years prior to assignment of
services under this Agreement.

3.15.2 CONTRACTOR shall not assign or allow any employee, intern, volunteer, agent,
including employees and volunteers of its subcontractors, to provide services to youth referred
under this Agreement whose criminal background check reflects a disqualifying criminal history.
To comply with this requirement, a disqualifying criminal history includes: any felony
conviction or deferred adjudication within the past ten (10) years; any jailable misdemeanor
conviction or deferred adjudication within the past five (5) years; any current felony orjailable
misdemeanor deferred adjudication, probation or parole; or the requirement to register as a sex
offender.

3.16 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion from
Participation in Contracts Exceeding $100,000.00

The Contractor certifies, by entering into this Contract, that neither it nor its principals are
debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency. The Contractor shall
include this certification requirement in all subcontracts to this contract that exceed $100,000.00.
*Form is provided as Attachment E*

3.17 CONTRACTOR certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Agreement is not
ineligible to receive the state funds or specified grant or payment under Section 231.006 of the Texas
Family Code and acknowledges that this Agreement may be terminated and payment withheld if this
certification is inaccurate.

Page 6 of 24



4400001243

3.18 Financial Reporting. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY copies ofprofit and
loss statements, annual fmancial statements, audit reports, and other fmancial records and reports that
may be requested by COUNTY. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct onsite review of
CONTRACTOR’ S financial records and source documents.

3.19 CONTRACTOR is hereby notified that state funds may be used to pay for services rendered to
Travis County Juvenile Probation. For this reason, CONTRACTOR shall account separately for the
receipt and expenditure of all funds received as payment under this Agreement, and shall adhere to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) in the accounting, reporting and auditing of such
funds. Contractor agrees to provide County an independent financial audit of all state funds received
under this Contract at least once a year. The audit shall be prepared in accordance with Generally
Accepted Auditing Standards and any other audit requirements of County or TJJD.

3.20 Monitoring. COUNTY shall have the right to conduct periodic financial and programmatic
monitoring of CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR agrees to cooperate fully with COUNTY’S monitoring
activities.

4.0 COMPENSATION. BiLLING A1D PAYMENT

4.1 Fees. For and in consideration of the satisfactory performance by CONTRACTOR of the
services described in Attachment A, Scope of Services, and CONTRACTOR’s compliance with the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR in accordance with the
Fee Schedule which is attached hereto as Attachment B and made a part hereof.

4.1.1 Not to exceed amount: N/A-As needed Basis
4.1.2 Additional Fees: None.

4.2 Satisfactory Completion of Services. COUNTY shall not be responsible for the costs of any
services under this Agreement that are not performed to COUNTY’S satisfaction and given COUNTY’ S
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. COUNTY’S obligation to make any payment to
CONTRACTOR is dependent upon completion of the services invoiced in a timely, good and
professional manner and at a standard acceptable in CONTRACTOR’ S profession.

4.3 Timely Payment. The COUNTY shall pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days after the
receipt of a complete and correct invoice by the COUNTY Department. Accrual and payment of
interest on overdue payments shall be governed by Chapter 2251 of the Texas Government Code.

4.4 Invoicing. CONTRACTOR shall submit invoicing to COUNTY on a monthly basis and each
invoice shall contain the name of each client served by CONTRACTOR, the type and date of service
provided by CONTRACTOR, the total hours of service provided by CONTRACTOR, the fee assessed
for each service provided by CONTRACTOR and the total amount of payment requested for each client.
Each invoice submitted by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY shall be signed by CONTRACTOR. Original
invoices shall be sent to:

Financial Services
2515 South Congress Avenue.

Austin, Texas 78704.

Page 7 of 24



4400001243

4.5 Overpayment. CONTRACTOR shall refund to COUNTY any money which has been paid to
CONTRACTOR by COUNTY, which COUNTY determines has resulted in overpayment to
CONTRACTOR. Such refund shall be made by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY within thirty (30) days
after the refund is requested by COUNTY. If COUNTY enters into any subsequent Agreement with
CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR fails to refund any money owed to COUNTY within thirty (30)
days of request, COUNTY may offset the difference against the next advance or payment payable to
CONTRACTOR.

4.6 Taxpayer Identification. CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with an Internal Revenue
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification that is completed in
compliance with the Internal Revenue Code, its rules and regulations, and a statement of entity status in
a form satisfactory to the County Auditor before any Agreement funds are payable.

4.7 Delinquent Property Taxes. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if the
CONTRACTOR is delinquent in the payment of property taxes at the time of invoicing, the
CONTRACTOR hereby assigns any payments to be made for services rendered hereunder to the Travis
County Tax Assessor-Collector for the payment of said delinquent taxes.

4.8 Disbursements to Persons with Outstanding Debt.

4.8.1 In accordance with Section 154.045 of the Local Government Code, If notice of
indebtedness has been filed with the County Auditor or County Treasurer evidencing the
indebtedness of CONTRACTOR to the State, the COUNTY or a salary fund, a warrant may not
be drawn on a COUNTY fund in favor of the CONTRACTOR, or an agent or assignee of
CONTRACTOR until:

4.8.1.1 the County Treasurer notifies CONTRACTOR in writing that the debt is
outstanding; and
4.8.1.2 the debt is paid.

4.8.2 “Debt” includes delinquent taxes, fines, fees, and indebtedness arising from written
agreements with the COUNTY.

4.8.3 COUNTY may apply any funds COUNTY owes CONTRACTOR to the outstanding
balance of debt for which notice is made under section 4.8.1.1 above, if the notice includes a
statement that the amount owed by the COUNTY to CONTRACTOR may be applied to reduce
the outstanding debt.

4.9 Period of Services. COUNTY shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by
CONTRACTOR before or after the term of this Agreement.

4.10 Exemption from County Purchasing Act. Pursuant to TEX. LOC. GOV’T. CODE ANN. § 262
q., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Agreement is exempt from the requirements of the

County Purchasing Act because it is a contract for the purchase of personal or professional services.

4.11 Funding Out. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if, during budget planning and
adoption, Commissioners Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for the following fiscal year of

Page 8 of 24



4400001243

COUNTY, COUNTY may terminate this Contract after giving CONTRACTOR 20 days written notice
that this Contract is terminated due to the failure to fund it.

4.12 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that COUNTY is under no obligation to refer any
client to CONTRACTOR for services under this Agreement and this Agreement shall not be so
construed.

5.0 RECORDS CONFIDENTIALITY AND ACCESS

5.1 Confidentiality. CONTRACTOR shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records
and other information relating to services provided under this Agreement in accordance with the
applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations, and applicable professional ethical
standards. This provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of COUNTY access to client
information. Upon authorization from COUNTY to render client ifies anonymous, CONTRACTOR
agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct COUNTY’S monitoring
and evaluation duties in any way.

5.2 Records Maintenance. CONTRACTOR shall create, maintain, and retain, and shall make
reasonably available to COUNTY, all necessary and appropriate records, information, and
documentation (including all accounting records) relating to services provided under the terms of this
Agreement for a period of three (3) years after the provision of the services, or until any litigation
concerning any of the services has been satisfactorily resolved, whichever occurs later. CONTRACTOR
shall provide copies of such records to COUNTY upon written request to CONTRACTOR at a cost
mutually agreed to by COUNTY and CONTRACTOR

5. 3 Access to Records. COUNTY or its duly authorized representatives shall have access to any and
all records, information and documentation of CONTRACTOR, which are directly pertinent to the
services to be performed under this Agreement for the purposes of making audits, examinations,
excerpts, and transcriptions. CONTRACTOR shall maintain the records, information, and
documentation in a readily available state and location, reasonably accessible to COUNTY or their
authorized representatives.

5.4 Right to Contractual Material. AU work products produced under this Agreement including
programming, reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any responses, inquiries,
correspondence, and related material submitted by CONTRACTOR ffl become property of the
COUNTY.

6.0 AMENDMENTS I MODIFICATIONS

6.1 General. Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Agreement, any change to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachments to it shall be in writing and signed by each party. IT IS
ACKNOWLEDGED BY CONTRACTOR THAT NO OFFICER, AGENT, EMPLOYEE OR
REPRESENTATIVE OF COUNTY HAS ANY AUTHORITY TO CHANGE THE TERMS OF THIS
AGREEMENT OR ANY ATTACHMENTS TO IT UNLESS EXPRESSLY GRANTED THAT
AUTHORITY BY COMMISSIONERS COURT.

6.2 Requests for Changes. CONTRACTOR shall submit all requests for changes to the terms of this
Agreement or any attachment to it to the Director with a copy to the Purchasing.

Page 9 of 24



4400001243

6.3 Purchasing Agent Authority. Contractor understands and agrees that the Purchasing Agent has
certain authority to approve an Amendment subject to applicable law (specifically the County
Purchasing Act, TEX. LOC. GOV’T CODE, Chapter 262, and other applicable law) and County policy,
as approved by the Commissioners Court. Within that authority, the Purchasing Agent may approve
Amendment requests under this Contract. The Purchasing Agent will advise Contractor as to such
authority upon submission of a request for Amendment; at any time, the Purchasing Agent may submit
any request to the Commissioners Court for approval, regardless of the authority of the Purchasing
Agent to sign the Amendment.

7.0 OTHER PROVISIONS:

7.1 INDEMNIFICATION. CONTRACTOR AGREES TO AND SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD
HARMLESS COUNTY, ITS OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES, FROM AND AGAINST
ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, NEGLIGENCE, CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS,
AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT
COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY TO OR DEATH OF ANY PERSON, FOR ANY
ACT OR OMISSION BY CONTRACTOR, OR FOR DAMAGE TO ANY PROPERTY, ARJSING
OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE WORK DONE BY CONTRACTOR UNDER THIS
CONTRACT.

7.2 Copyrights, Patents & Licenses. CONTRACTOR represents and warrants that (i) all applicable
copyrights, patents, licenses, and other proprietary or intellectual property rights which may exist on
materials used in this Agreement have been adhered to and (ii) the COUNTY shall not be liable for any
infringement of those rights and any rights granted to the COUNTY shall apply for the duration of this
Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY, its officers, agents, and employees from all
claims, losses, damages, causes of action, and liability of every kind including expenses of litigation,
court costs and attorney fees for damages to any person or property arising in connection with any
alleged or actual infringement of existing patents, licenses, or copyrights applicable to materials used in
this Agreement.

7.3 Claims Notification. If any claim, or other action, including proceedings before an
administrative agency, is made or brought by any person, firm, corporation, or other entity against
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY in relation to the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall
give written notice to COUNTY of the claim or other action within three (3) working clays after being
notified of it or the threat of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that
made or threatened to make a claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or
proceeding; the basis of the claim, action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any,
where the claim, action or proceeding was instituted; and the name or names of any person against
whom this claim is being made or threatened. This written notice shall be given in the manner provided
herein. Except as otherwise directed, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to COUNTY copies of all pertinent
papers received by CONTRACTOR with respect to these claims or actions.

7.4 Suspension. If CONTRACTOR fails to comply with any provision herein, COUNTY may,
upon written notification to CONTRACTOR, suspend this Agreement in whole or in part and withhold
further payments to CONTRACTOR, until CONTRACTOR is in compliance with the terms of this
Agreement or Agreement is terminated as provided herein.

Page 10 of 24



4400001243

7.5 Non-Waiver of Default

7.5.1 No payment, act or omission by COUNTY may constitute or be construed as a waiver of
any breach or default of CONTRACTOR which then exists or may subsequently exist.

7.5.2 All rights of COUNTY under this Agreement are specifically reserved and any payment,
act or omission shall not impair or prejudice any remedy or right to COUNTY under it. Any
right or remedy in this Agreement shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy
under this Agreement or under any law nor shall any action taken in the exercise of any right or
remedy be deemed a waiver of any other rights or remedies.

7.6 Forfeiture of Contract If CONTRACTOR has done business with a Key Contracting Person
during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this Agreement or does business
with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this Agreement and prior to
the full performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall forfeit all benefits of this Agreement and
COUNTY shall retain all performance by CONTRACTOR and recover all considerations, or the value
of all consideration, paid to CONTRACTOR pursuant to this Agreement, provided, however, that this
section may be waived by Commissioners Court pursuant to Section 3(g) of the Travis County Ethics
Policy.

7.7 Entire Agreement

7.7.1 Entire Agreement. All written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement
related to the subject matter of this Agreement that were made prior to the execution of this
Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Agreement or in the policies
and procedures approved by Commissioners Court for County. Any prior agreements, promises,
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this document are of no force and effect.

7.7.2 Attachments. The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a
part of this Agreement, and constitute promised performances by CONTRACTOR in accordance
with all the provisions of this Agreement.

7.7.2.1 Attachment A — Scope of Services
7.7.2.2 Attachment B — Fee Schedule
7.7.2.3 Attachment C — Insurance Requirements
7.7.2.4 Attachment D — Ethics Affidavit including:

Exhibit 1 - List of Key Contracting Persons
7.7.2.5 Attachment E —Certification Regarding

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion for Covered Contracts

7.8 Notices:

7.8.1 Written Notice. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement by
one party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been given
immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the party to whom
the notice is given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail,
postage prepaid, by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the
party at the address herein specified.

Page 11 of 24



4400001243

7.8.2 County Address. The address of County for all purposes under this Agreement shall be:

Cyd Grimes, C.P.M. CPPO (or her successor)
Travis County Purchasing Agent
P. 0. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required):

Estela Medina (or her successor)
Chief Juvenile Probation Officer
Travis County Juvenile Probation Department
P.O. Box 1748
Austin, Texas 78767

7.8.3 Contractor Address. The address of CONTRACTOR for all purposes under this
Agreement and for all notices hereunder shall be:

Communication by Hand
P.O. Box 9064
Austin, Texas 78766

(512) 467-1917

7.9 Change of Address. Each party may change the address for notice to it by giving written notice
of the change in compliance with Section 7.8. Any change in the address shall be reported within fifteen
(15) days of the change.

7.10 Authority: The DIRECTOR or her designee will act on behalf of COUNTY with respect to the
work to be performed under this Agreement. The DIRECTOR shall have complete authority to interpret
and define in writing COUNTY’S policies and decisions with respect to CONTRACTOR’S services.
The DIRECTOR may designate representatives to transmit instructions and receive information.

7.11 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent. When the CONTRACTOR and/or
COUNTY have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this COUNTY, the
CONTRACTOR or COUNTY shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the
Purchasing Agent with written notice of the dispute. Such notice shall contain a specific written
description of the issues involved as well as the CONTRACTOR’ s requested resolution of the dispute
and any other relevant information which CONTRACTOR desires to include. As of the receipt of such
notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the COUNTY representative in any
further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described dispute. Unless
otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at
this stage not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is may be considered void. If the CONTRACTOR
does not agree with any document, notice or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the
Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the Contractor must submit a written notice to the
Purchasing Agent with a copy to the Director within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the document,
notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in detail. The Purchasing Agent will

Page 12 of24



4400001243

issue a written notice of the fmal resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of
receipt of the initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent. If this fmal resolution does not
resolve the dispute to the Contractor’s satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to
the Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent. The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of
such response to the Director. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days
after receipt of the unsatisfactory fmal resolution. Contractor then has the right to be heard by
Commissioners Court and the Purchasing Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the
Commissioners Court agenda.

7.12 Mediation. If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to
paragraph 7.11, Contractor shall notify the Travis County Management representing this contract, and, if
mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties
agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, or another mediation group as chosen by
County and approved by Contractor, as the provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX.
CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023. Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of
the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a fmal and binding resolution of the dispute. All
communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described in TEX. CIV.
PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the
confidentiality.

7.13 Cooperation and Coordination. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate and coordinate with COUNTY
staff and other contractors as reasonable and necessary and as required by the DIRECTOR.

7.14 Independent Contractor. The parties expressly acknowledge and agree that CONTRACTOR is an
independent contractor, operating solely in that capacity, and assumes all of the rights, obligations and
liabilities applicable to him as an independent contractor. CONTRACTOR shall not be considered an
employee of COUNTY, or gain any rights against COUNTY pursuant to the COUNTY’S personnel
policies.

7.15 Governing Law. The validity of this agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as
the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

7.15.1 Severability. Any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or article of this Agreement
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective shall not impair,
invalidate, or nullify the remainder of this Agreement, but the effect thereof shall be limited to
the clause, sentence, provision, paragraph or article so held to be invalid, illegal, or ineffective.

7.15.2 Law and Venue. All obligations under this Agreement shall be performable in Travis
County, Texas. Venue for any litigation concerning this Agreement shall be in the City of
Austin, Travis County.

7.15.3 Assignment. No party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Agreement
without the prior written approval of the other party. It is acknowledged by CONTRACTOR that
no officer, agent, employee or representative of COUNTY has any authority to assign any part of
this Agreement unless expressly granted that authority by Commissioners Court.

Page 13 of 24



4400001243

7.16 Binding Contract. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, this Agreement shall
be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the COUNTY and the CONTRACTOR and their respective
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns. Neither the COUNTY nor the CONTRACTOR may
assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in or obligations under this Agreement without the written consent
of the other party hereto.

7.17 Performance of Other Services. As a part of this Agreement, it is understood that
CONTRACTOR is free to provide services outside this Agreement as it sees fit at those times which
CONTRACTOR is not obligated to COUNTY. It is also understood that COUNTY is free to have more
than one contractor providing the type of services included in this Agreement.

7.18 Survival. Conditions and covenants of this Agreement which by their terms are performable
after the termination, expiration, or end of this Agreement shall survive such termination, expiration, or
end and remain fully performable.

7.19 Interpretational Guidelines

7.19.1 Computation of Time. When any period of time is stated in this Agreement, the time
shall be computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period. If the last day of
any period falls on a Saturday, Sunday or a day that COUNTY has declared a holiday for its
employees, these days shall be omitted from the computation.

7.19.2 Number and Gender. Words of any gender in this Agreement shall be construed to
include any other gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other
unless the context in the Agreement clearly requires otherwise.

7.19.3 Headings. The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Agreement
have been included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or
subsection and are not to be used in construing this Agreement.

7.20 Conflict of Interest Ouestionnaire: If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code,
the Consultant shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk,
Elections Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, Texas 78751. The Consultant shall update this
Questionnaire by September 1 of each year for the duration of this Contract, as required by Chapter 176
of the Local Government Code. In addition, if any statement on a submitted Questionnaire becomes
incomplete or inaccurate, the Consultant shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Consultant should
note that the law requires the County to provide access to a filed Questionnaire on the official Travis
County Internet website

7.21 The person or persons signing this Agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, or representing
themselves as signing this agreement on behalf of CONTRACTOR, do hereby warrant and guarantee
that he, she or they have been duly authorized by CONTRACTOR to sign this Agreement on behalf of
CONTRACTOR and to bind CONTRACTOR validly and legally to all terms, performances, and
provisions in this Agreement.

Pagel4of24



4400001243

DUPLICATE ORIGINALS

This Agreement will be executed in duplicate originals and be effective when executed by both parties.

by Han4.tt C’ Travis County

_____________________________

By: Samuel T. Biscoe
Travis County Judge

Date:

Approved as to Legal Form By:
Assistant County Attorney

Approved by Purchasing:
Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO Purchasing Agent

By: )A4 ,{A t,Otcf
Name and Title Printed)

Date:

Page 15 of 24



4400001243

ATTACHMENT A
Scope of Services

CONTRACTOR, Communications By Hand, shall provide Interpreter Services for youth identified and referred
by the Travis County Juvenile Probation Department, hereinafter “Department”, as described below:

1. Youth will be identified and referred to CONTRACTOR by the Department

2. CONTRACTOR will provide properly qualified and legal certified sign language interpreters.

3. CONTRACTOR will communicate with the Department’s designee regarding the appointment, times,
expected length of services and location where the eservices will take place, for the duration of the case.

4. CONTRACTOR will maintain confidentiality of any and all juvenile-related issues, files and records of the
case.

5. CONTRACTOR will participate in case-related meetings at the billable rate.

6. CONTRACTOR will invoice the Department on a monthly basis, using a form approved by the Department
for services provided under the Scope of Services.

7. The Department will pay CONTRACTOR within thirty (30) days of receiving a complete and correct invoice
from CONTRACTOR for the services provided.

8. CONTRACTOR agrees that interpreters providing services under this Scope of Services must subscribe to
the Code of professional Conduct from the Registry of Interpreters for the Deaf and the Board of Evaluation for
Interpreters.

Page 16 of24



4400001243

ATTACHMENT B
FEE SCHEDULE

Terms, Rates & Policies

“DAY” Mon-Fri 7am-7pm urgent or scheduled: $55 r

“EVENING” Mon-Fri 7pm-Midnight (pre-scheduled): $701

“WKEND” Saturday & Sunday 7am-Mid (pre-scheduled): $701

3rdshfl” Sunday thru Saturday Mid —7a (prescheduled): $82.

“BEEPER requests” (urgent, after-hour requests)
SatlSun 24hrs & Mon-Fri 5pm-8a $78/i

“HOLIDAY” (scheduled or urgent): $78 $82 hr (3 shift)

1. 2 hour minimum: Interpreters bill for their services based on a 2 hour minimum. This includes an hour of interpreting
services + an hour of administrative time (See #2 below). This is an industry standard. After the 2 hour minimum, services
are calculated to the next half hour increment.

2. Administrative/Travel time: “Admin” or travel time is billed at the scheduled rate for no more than one hour total, unless
the assignment requires travel out of the AustinlTravis County area upon which extra travel time will be allowed to the
interpreter. San Antonio, Luling. Waco & Giddings 1 .5hrs ea way. Bastrop. Lockhart. Killeen, Snuthville, Lampasas. Marble
Falls & San Marcos lb travel ea way. Georgetown, Leander, Hutto, Kyle & Buda 45mm travel each way.

3. Cancellations: When less than 24hrs (business hours) notice of cancellation is given, the scheduled & committed time/2hr
mm (whichever is greater) will be billed in full. THIS APPLIES TO CANCELLATIONS FOR ANY REASON — whether the
Deaf calls to cancel/reschedule or it is due to an office reason. Cancellations received during business hours (Mon-Fri 8a-5p)
with more than 24hrs notice will not be billed. This is an industry standard

4. Beeper cancellations: All beeper calls that are canceled while the interpreter is in route to an urgent /emergency request will
be billed at the 2 hour minimum “beeper” rate. Calls canceled before the interpreter is in route will not be billed.

5. No shows: If your representative or the deaf consumer fails to appear for the assignment, the full scheduled time or the 21w
minimum (whichever is greater), will be billed at the scheduled rate.

6. Team interpreters: To prevent a career ending injury, most assignments lasting over 1 hour will require 2 interpreters. The
interpreters will switch every 20-30 minutes and provide backup to each other. The parties involved shall mutually determine
the need for a team of 2 or more interpreters. If mutual agreement cannot be made concerning the number of interpreters
needed, no services will be provided. RATE ABOVE IS PER INTERPRETER. This, too, is an industry standard.

7. Beeper/Emergency Services: Medical, legal or communication needs that cannot wait for the next business day
(unscheduled assignments Monday — Friday 5p-8a & 24hours Saturday & Sunday & Holidays) will be billed at “beeper”
rates.

8. Holidays: All Travis County observed holidays will be billed at holiday rates.
9. This Term Sheet will govern our dealings until superceded by a more current Term Sheet or otherwise agreed by both ofus in

a writing we both have signed. Your booking an interpreter though CbH is your agreement to the provisions of this Term
Sheet.

Page 17 of24



4400001243

ATTACUMENT C
INSURANCE REOUIREMENTS

Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have,
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards. Depending on
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate
insurance options shall be imposed as follows:

I. General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors’ Insurance.

The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(sl performing services or activities
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the
duration of the Contract.

B. Insurance shall be written by companies licensed in the State of Texas with an A.M. Best rating
of B+ Vifi or higher.

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required msurance shall be in force as
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier. A copy of the Certificate of
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.

D. Certificates of Insurance shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent within ten (10) working days of execution of the contract by both
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first. The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis
County contract number and all endorsements by number.

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall be
considered primary for all claims.

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy.

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of
policies and endorsements.

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during y term of the Contract and
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded.

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during y term of this
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.
Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention. All deductibles and
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance.

Page 18 of 24



4400001243

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s).

II. Specific Requirements

The following requirements (ll.A - ll.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s):

A. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance

1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers’
Compensation Act.

2. Employers’ Liability limits are:

$500,000 bodily injury each accident
$500,000 bodily injury by disease
$500,000 policy limit

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin:

a Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601)

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance

1. Minimum limit:
$500,000” per occurrence for coverage A and B with a
$1,000,000 policy aggregate

2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows:
a. Blanket contractual liability for this Contract
b. Independent Contractor Coverage

3. The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

4. a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010)

* Supplement Insurance Requirement If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided, the
required limits shall be:

$ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a
$ 2,000,000 policy aggregate

Page 19 of24



4400001243

C. Business Automobile Liability Insurancet

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence
2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County

a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A)
b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A)
c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B)

t Alternative Insurance Requirement
IfNO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to

and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of
$ 1 00,000/$300,000/$50,000

may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance

D. Professional Liability/E & 0 Insurance

1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3 ,000,000
aggregate to cover injury to a child while the child is in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and
to cover negligent acts, sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services
under this Contract.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first. Coverage shall include a three (3)
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated. Certificate of
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of
coverage and the extended reporting dates.

3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance shall
provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their
insurance policy.

E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance

1. If an advance against Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the Contract Funds allocated in the
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances.

2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date
services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires
or is terminated. Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and contain both
the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date.

Page 20 of 24



4400001243

ATTACHMENT])
ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF TEXAS
COUNTY OF TRAVIS

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT

Date: ‘J4j3
Name of Affiant: De((4’1O1tJ1Aerfrt
Title of Affiant: ñtATh e P’
Business Name of Propent: CII t’Pl t4)’1 ic€An’M i1t2
County of Proponent: V”
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true:

1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.

2. Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.

3. Affiant can read the English language.

4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit asExhibit “1”.

5. Affiant has personally read Exhibit ‘1’ to this Af vit.

6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contrac g per on o E i it “with whom Proponent is doing business or has done
the 365 day period immedi before affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the

i’i
Address 775

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by kAJ4I AJ.QA4 , 2O

___

Notary Public, State of___________

Typed or printed name ofnota
My commission expires: t( tC

IRENE H. GOOD
Notary Pubhc. State of Texas

My Commission Expires
January 11,2017

Page 21 of24



4400001243

EXUIBIT 1
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS

October 9 2012

CURRENT
Name of Individual Name of Business

Position Held Holding Office/Position Individual is Associated

County Judge Samuel T. Biscoe
County Judge (Spouse) Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe
Executive Assistant Cheryl Brown
Executive Assistant Melissa Velasquez
Executive Assistant Josie Z. Zavala
Executive Assistant Cheryl Aker
Commissioner, Precinct 1 Ron Davis
Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) Annie Davis Seton Hospital
Executive Assistant Deone Withite
Executive Assistant Felicitas Chavez
Commissioner, Precinct 2 Sarah Eckhardt
Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) Kurt Sauer Daffer McDaniel, LLP
Executive Assistant Loretta Farb
Executive Assistant Joe Hon
Executive Assistant Peter Einhorn
Commissioner, Precinct 3 Karen Huber
Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) Leonard Huber Retired
Executive Assistant Garry Brown
Executive Assistant Julie Wheeler*
Executive Assistant Jacob Cottingham
Commissioner, Precinct 4 Margaret Gomez
Executive Assistant Edith Moreida
Executive Assistant Norma Guerra
County Treasurer Dolores Ortega-Carter
County Auditor Nicki Riley*
County Executive, Administrative Vacant
County Executive, Planning & Budget Leslie Browder*
County Executive, Emergency Services Danny Hobby
County Executive, Health/Human Services Sherri E. Fleming
County Executive, TNR Steven M. Manilla, P.E.*
County Executive, Justice & Public Safety Roger Jefferies
Director, Facilities Management Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E.
Interim Chief Information Officer Tanya Acevedo
Interim Chief Information Officer Rod Brown
Interim Chief Information Officer Walter Lagrone
Director, Records Mgment & Communications Steven Broberg
Travis County Attorney David Escami11,
First Assistant County Attorney 1.Steve Capefl
Executive Assistant, County Attorney James Co1linj\
Director, Land Use Division ‘!Tom Nuckols Wj
Attorney, Land Use Division , Julie Joe
Attorney, Land Use Division Christopher Gilmore
Director, Transactions Division John Hille
Attorney, Transactions Division Vacant
Attomey, Transactions Division Daniel Bradford
Attorney, Transactions Division Mary Etta Gerhardt
Attorney, Transactions Division Barbara Wilson
Attorney, Transactions Division Jim Connolly
Attorney, Transactions Division Tenley Aldredge

Page 22 of 24



4400001243

Director, Health Services Division Beth Devery
Attorney, Health Services Division Prema Gregerson
Purchasing Agent Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO
Assistant Purchasing Agent Marvin Brice, CPPB
Assistant Purchasing Agent Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV CW Bruner, CTP
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lee Perry
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jason Walker
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Richard Villareal
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Patrick Strittmatter*
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Scoff Wilson, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Loren Breland, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV John E. Pena, CTPM
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Rosalinda Garcia
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Shannon Pleasant, CTPM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III David Walch
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Michael Long, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Nancy Barchus, CPPB
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM*
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Vacant
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Jayne Rybak, CTP*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II L. Wade Laursen*
Purchasing Agent Assistant II Sam Francis*
HUB Coordinator Sylvia Lopez
HUB Specialist Betty Chapa
HUB Specialist Jerome Guerrero
Purchasing Business Analyst Scott Worthington
Purchasing Business Analyst Jennifer Francis

FORMER EMPLOYEES

Name of Individual
Position Held Holding Office/Position Date of Expiration
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV Diana Gonzalez 12/16/12
Purchasing Agent Assistant III Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M 03/14/13
Attorney, Transactions Division Tamara Armstrong 03/30/13
Executive Assistant Lori Duarte 06/15/13
Chief Information Officer Joe Harlow 07/31/13
County Auditor Susan Spataro, CPA 08/31/13
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P 09/26/13

a’i;’. ‘t

N,

*
- Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year.

—
. —a

‘c-- (Øt!( ‘Ji- A1-

Page23of24 -..,



4400001243

ATTACHMENT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR
COVERED CONTRACTS

Federal Executive Order 12549 requires Travis County to screen each covered potential contractor to determine whether each has a nght to obtain a
contract in accordance with federal regulations on debarment, suspension, ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion. Each covered contractor must also
screen each of its covered subcontractors.

In this certification ‘contractor refers to both contractor and subcontractor; contract” refers to both contract and subcontract.

By signing and submitting this certification, the contractor/potential contractor accepts the following terms:

1. The certification herein below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this contract was entered into. If it is
later determined that the potential contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal government or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

2. The potential contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which this certification is submitted if at any time the potential
contractor learns that the certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

3. The words “covered contract,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “participant,” “person,” “principle,” “proposal,” and “voluntanly
excluded,” as used in this certification have meanings based upon materials in the Definitions and Coverage sections of federal rules
implementing Executive Order 12549.

4. The potential contractor agrees by submitting this certification that, should the proposed covered contract be entered into, it shall not knowingly
enter into any subcontract with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by a federal department or agency, and/or Travis County, as applicable.

Do you have or do you anticipate having subcontractors under this proposed contract? _YES NO

5. The potential contractor further agrees by submitting this certification that it will include this certification titled “Certification Regarding
Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion for Covered Contracts “without modification, in all covered subcontracts”; and
in solicitations for all covered subcontracts.

6. A contractor may rely upon a certification of a potential subcontractor that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntanly excluded from
the covered contract, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A contractor must at a minimum, obtain certifications from its covered
subcontractors upon each subcontract’s initiation and upon each renewal.

7. Nothing contained in all the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the
certification required by this certification document. The knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

8. Except for contracts authorized under paragraph4 of these terms, if a contractor in a covered contract knowingly enters into a covered
subcontract with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to
other remedies available to the federal government, any federal agency and/or Travis County may pursue available remedies, including
suspension and/or debarment.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION FOR COVERED
CONTRACTS

Indicate e appropriate box which statement applies to the covered contractor/potential contractor:

The contractor/potential contractor certifies, by submission of this certification, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred,
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this contract by any federal department or
agency, the State of Texas, or Travis County.

The contractor/potential contractor is unable to certifS’ to one or more of the tenns in this certification. In this instance, the
contractor/potential contractor must attach an explanation for each of the above terms to which he is unable to make certification. Attach the
explanation(s) to this certification.

Name of Contractor Vendor I.D. or Social Security No.

_____________

__i k I g
2itft3

Signature of Authorized Representative Date Printed/Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Page 24 of 24

















AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: C.W. Bruner, 854-9760 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  Approve twelve-month extension (Modification 
No. 25) to Contract No. 4400000009 (HTE Contract No. 02T00215OJ), 
Milliman USA, Inc., for actuarial services for the Travis County self-
funded plan. 
  

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

The contract is for actuarial services for the County self-funded plan.  
The contractor assesses the County’s experience in the self-funded 
plans for the Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) and the Choice 
EPO (EPO).  The Commissioners Court approved the award of this 
contract on June 18, 2002. 

 This Modification No. 25 will approve the hourly rate set forth in 
Attachment F of the contract and will extend the contract for an 
additional twelve months, from April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014. 

 Contract Modification Information: 

Modification Amount: $80,000.00(Estimate) 

Modification Type: Bilateral   

Modification Period: April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014 
 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart # / Funds Reservation #: N/A 

  Funding Account(s):  

  Comments: Funding is processed at the time of requirement. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 12



Human Resources Management Department

1010 Lavaca #200 • P.O.Box1748 • Austin, Texas 78767 • (512) 854-9626/ FAX(512) 854-3128

November 5, 2012

Department:

MEMORANDUM

C.W Bruner, Purchasing

John Rabb Benefit Manger1 gft $
Cindy Purinton- Benefit Administrator- transition
Shannon Steele Benefit Administrator

Human Resources Management Department

Re: FY13 Milliman USA Actuarial Renewal

Contract #: 02T002150J- Actuarial Services for Self Funded Plan

Actuarial services for the Travis County Self Funded Plan have been
performed satisfactorily by Milliman USA for the last contract period.
It is the recommendation of Benefit Staff to extend this contract for a
subsequent contract period from April 1, 2013 to March 31, 2014.
This is a Professional Services contract and has been deemed
exempt from the County Purchasing Act.

To:

From:

Funding #111 006 8956 511 180



The following are the current staff and rates for Milliman for
Travis County.

Consultant Title Rate
Allen, James Analyst $150
Attaway, Tom Senior Actuary $245
Bauerlein, John Principal $365
Berger, Corey Senior Actuary $245
Brace, Gary Principal $365
Choi, Jason ctuary $200
Davis, Zach ssociate Actuary $150
Dong, Hailey ssociate Actuary $150
Esslinger, Ryan nalyst $150
Flaks, Joe Associate Actuary $150
Fritzer, Jackie Analyst $150
Hayes, David Senior Actuary $245
Heintzelman, Joe ssociate Actuary $150
Janke, Emily ctuary $200
Killian, Rachel Senior Actuary $245
Large, Andy Actuary $200
Leyton, Liz \nalyst $150
Lorenz, Amanda \nalyst $150
Mone, Bob Senior Actuary $245
Myers, Liz Senior Actuary $245
Reinstein, Josh Actuary $200
Sanders, Sabrena \dmin Support $ 80
Santmyer, Dan Senior Actuary $245
Sgrosso, Greg kssociate Actuary $150
St. John, Kathy dmin Support $ 80
Stone, Patrick \nalyst $150
Swenson, Ryan Senior Actuary $245
Tate, Bob Senior Actuary $245
Troupe, Dayne \nalyst $150
Troupe, Tanya \nalyst $150
Weiner, Adrienne Analyst $150
White, Courtney Principal $365
WiNe, Todd Associate Actuary $150
Wittmann, Sondra Associate Actuary $150
Wolf, Kory nalyst $150
Yip, David nalyst $150

Kathy Swanson
Health Practice Manager/Office Manager
945 E. Paces Ferry Rd. NE
Suite 2500
Atlanta, GA 30326-1362
Direct + 1 404 254 6755
Fax + 1 404 237 6984
kathy.swansonmilliman.com



MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT NUMBER: 02T00215OJ, Actuarial Services                                    PAGE 1 OF 2 PAGES 

                                                                                 (SAP Contract # 4400000009) 
 
ISSUED BY: 
 

PURCHASING OFFICE 

700 Lavaca Street 

8
th

 Floor 

AUSTIN, TX 78701 

 
PURCHASING AGENT ASST:   

 

C.W. Bruner 

TEL. NO:   (512) 854-9760 

FAX NO:   (512) 854-4211 

 
DATE PREPARED: 

 

February 14, 2013 

 
ISSUED TO:                       1000002741 

Milliman, Inc.  

Attn: Mr. John Bauerlein  

3424 Peachtree Road NE, Suite 1900 

Atlanta, GA 30326-1123 

MODIFICATION NO.: 

 

25 

EXECUTED DATE OF 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT: 

 

June 18, 2002 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TERM DATES: April 1, 2002 through March 31, 2003 CURRENT CONTRACT TERM DATES:  April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014 
 
FOR TRAVIS COUNTY INTERNAL USE ONLY: Original Contract Amount: $25,000 (NTE)  Current Modified Amount:  $80,000.00 (Estimate) 

 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGES:  Except as provided herein, all terms, conditions, and provisions of the document referenced above as 

heretofore modified, remain unchanged and in full force and effect.  

 

1.0  By this modification, County exercises its annual option under subsection 2.21 to extend this contract for an additional contract 

period of one year commencing on April 1, 2013 and ending on March 31, 2014. 

 

2.0  The following is added to Section 5.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT between 5.275 and 5.28: 

 

5.276 In consideration of full performance of the services and activities referred to in 3.0 and 4.0 of this contract as stated before this 

modification and performed during and after this option period, County shall pay Contractor based on the time incurred to provide services at 

the fees stated in the Attachment F attached to Modification No. 24. The fees and expenses to be incurred during this additional contract year 

ending March 31, 2014 are estimated to be $80,000. 

 

3.0  The following is added to Section 5.0 INVOICING AND PAYMENT between 5.285 and 5.3: 

 

5.286 In consideration of full performance of the specific services and activities referred to in Paragraph 2.0 of Modification No. 2 and 

the general provisions in 3.0 and 4.0 of this contract as stated before this modification and performed during and after this option period, 

County shall pay Contractor based on the time incurred to provide services at the fees stated in the Attachment F attached to Modification 

No. 24. The fees and expenses to be incurred during this additional contract year ending March 31, 2014 are estimated to be $80,000. 

4.0  All terms and conditions related to the services remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

 

5.0  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

5.1  The changes in this modification are effective April 1, 2013 

 

 
Note to Vendor:  

[ X ] Complete and execute (sign) your portion of the signature block section below for all copies and return all signed copies to Travis County. 

[   ] DO NOT execute and return to Travis County.  Retain for your records. 
 
 

LEGAL BUSINESS NAME:        

 

     BY:            
          SIGNATURE 

 

     BY:            
          PRINT NAME 

 

TITLE:            

            ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AGENT 

□ DBA 

□ CORPORATION 

□ OTHER 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      CYD V. GRIMES, C.P.M., TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING AGENT  

 

 
DATE: 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

BY:            

      SAMUEL T. BISCOE, TRAVIS COUNTY JUDGE  
 

 
DATE: 



MODIFICATION NO. 24 OF CONTRACT NO. 02T00215OJ      PAGE 2 OF 2 PAGES 

 
Attachment F 

Current Staff and Applicable Rates for Milliman, Inc. 

 

Staff may change during the year. Not all of the staff listed below will provide services to Travis County. 

 

  Consultant Title Rate 

  Allen, James Analyst $150 

  Attaway, Tom Senior Actuary $245 

  Bauerlein, John Principal $365 

  Berger, Corey Senior Actuary $245 

  Brace, Gary Principal $365 

  Choi, Jason Actuary $200 

  Davis, Zach Associate Actuary $150 

  Dong, Hailey Associate Actuary $150 

  Esslinger, Ryan Analyst $150 

  Flaks, Joe Associate Actuary $150 

  Fritzer, Jackie Analyst $150 

  Hayes, David Senior Actuary $245 

  Heintzelman, Joe Associate Actuary $150 

  Janke, Emily Actuary $200 

  Killian, Rachel Senior Actuary $245 

  Large, Andy Actuary $200 

  Leyton, Liz Analyst $150 

  Lorenz, Amanda Analyst $150 

  Mone, Bob Senior Actuary $245 

  Myers, Liz Senior Actuary $245 

  Reinstein, Josh Actuary $200 

  Sanders, Sabrena Admin Support $  80 

  Santmyer, Dan Senior Actuary $245 

  Sgrosso, Greg Associate Actuary $150 

  St. John, Kathy Admin Support $  80 

  Stone, Patrick Analyst $150 

  Swenson, Ryan Senior Actuary $245 

  Tate, Bob Senior Actuary $245 

  Troupe, Dayne Analyst $150 

  Troupe, Tanya Analyst $150 

  Weiner, Adrienne Analyst $150 

  White, Courtney Principal $365 

  Wille, Todd Associate Actuary $150 

  Wittmann, Sondra Associate Actuary $150 

  Wolf, Kory Analyst $150 

  Yip, David Analyst $150 

      

 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2012 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Jason G. Walker/44562; Marvin Brice, 
CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and take appropriate action regarding a 
request to approve a contract with Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 
funded with Community Block Grant funds available through HUD. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes. 

 The Owner Occupied Home Rehabilitation program is to improve the 
quality of housing stock in the CDBG area for low to moderate income 
owner occupied houses.  Funded through this program are minor home 
repair services for low and moderate income homeowners in the 
unincorporated areas of Travis County and the Village of Webberville in 
order to move these homes towards Housing Quality Standards.  
Potential improvements include, but are not limited to: foundation repair, 
roofing, flooring, electrical, plumbing, accessibility modifications, 
connection of houses to long-term viable sources of water, 
weatherization, noise attenuation, septic tank repairs/installation, and 
other related engineering or designs for improvements.     

 A 0% interest, forgivable 5 year loan up to $24,999 with no required 
annual or monthly payments is available, where the deferred loan is 
forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each year of home ownership.  
This program is to be administered by Travis County Health and Human 
Services (HHS) through a contractual relationship with the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) as funded by a 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG). 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 13



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 It is estimated that this program will assist approximately 41 households, 
for an estimated $1,068,000.00, however, that number could be higher 
or lower at project end.     

 On October 26, 2012 the RFS was released, and on November 27, 2012 
2 (two) proposals were received in response to the solicitation.   

 Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. will be the single point of contact where 
they will receive and review program applications, prepare scopes of 
work, bid out construction, and facilitate warranty issues.  Client files for 
all applicants will all be maintained by Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. 
In addition, Meals and Wheels and More, Inc. will provide marketing 
services for the program along with website materials, and assist with 
environmental work as needed.   

 HHS is recommending a contract award to Meals on Wheels and More, 
Inc. for a not-to-exceed amount of $1,068,000.00, and Purchasing 
concurs with HHS’s recommenation.  In an effort to assist HHS in putting 
the County on track for timeliness of expended funds, at the time of 
submitting this agenda request pacakage, the original contracts are not 
included, as they are currently with Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. for 
review and signature, as well as the Funds Reservation for this contract 
has not been entered into SAP, but is anticipated to be entered by 
Febrauary 20, 2013.  Should the signed originals not be returned to the 
County, nor a Funds Reservation entered into SAP in time for this 
requested meeting date, this item will need to be postponed.   

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last N/A months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $1,068,000.00     

Contract Type: Professional Services   

Contract Period: Through February 28, 2014. 

  
 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    

Modification Type:     

Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

Solicitations Sent: 23  Responses Received: 2  

HUB Information: Vendor is not a HUB  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 Special Contract Considerations:   

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 

  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been notified. 

  Comments:  N/A 

 

 Funding Information: 
  Shopping Cart/Funds Reservation in SAP: TBD 

  Fund Center(s): TBD 

  Comments:  





 

 

2

 

homes towards Housing Quality Standards. The program seeks to improve the energy 
efficiency, physical living conditions, and/or safety in owner-occupied homes. A 0% 
interest, forgivable five-year loan up to $24,999, with no required annual or monthly 
payments, is available. The deferred loan is forgiven at a pro-rata rate of 20% for each 
year of home ownership. Examples of potential improvements include, but are not 
limited to: foundation repair, roofing, flooring, electrical, plumbing, accessibility 
modifications, connection of houses to long-term viable sources of water (not part of a 
stand-alone infrastructure project), weatherization, noise attenuation, septic tank repairs 
and installation, and related engineering or design for improvements. These funds are 
targeted toward homeowners at or below 80% MFI in the CDBG service area.  
 
A Request for Services (RFS) was released on October 26, 2012 with a response date 
of November 27, 2012. Several agencies were provided information about this 
opportunity in addition to the RFS being posted on Bidsync. Five non-profit agencies 
and two contractors attended the pre-proposal conference on November 7, 2012, and 
two proposals were received in response to the County’s RFS. 
 
A four-member review committee convened on December 3, 2012 to review the 
proposal received in response to the County’s RFS. The committee recommended that 
negotiations begin with the highest scorer, and on January 3, 2013, the Department 
sent its recommendation to the Purchasing Office to move forward with negotiations 
with the highest scorer. 
 
Meals on Wheels and More, Inc. will be the single point of contact for the program, and 
will receive and review program applications, prepare scopes of work and bid out 
construction, facilitate warranty issues, and maintain client files for all applicants. 
Additionally, they will provide marketing, website materials, and assist with 
environmental work, as needed. Due to the amount of assistance per household, it is 
estimated that $1,068,000 will assist approximately 41 households; however, that 
number may be higher or lower at project end depending upon actual costs. 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the contract to Meals and Wheels and More, Inc. to 
administer Travis County’s CDBG Owner Occupied Homebuyer Assistance Program 
totaling $1,068,000. They are a highly qualified organization which has successfully 
implemented and completed these types of programs.   
 
Issues and Opportunities: 
 
Approval of the contract includes approval of the Specifications and Standards included 
in Attachment D of the contract which the County provides as part of the program. 
These standards and specifications provide guidance to the non-profit on construction 
standards.     
 
All funds are anticipated to be expended by February 2014, with 50% expended by 
September 30, 2013, which would putt the County on track for timely spending of funds.   



 

 

3

 

 
This project may generate program income in the future, which will allow the County to 
provide additional resources in support of affordable housing.   
 
Fiscal Impact and Source of Funding: 
 
$1,068,000 of funding is to be awarded from several program years. No matching 
General Funds are required. 
  
Fund Reservation Number:  To be provided by February 20, 2013 
 
 
  
Cc:   Nicki Riley, Travis County Auditor 
 Patti Smith, Chief Assistant County Auditor 
 Janice Cohoon, Financial Analyst Travis County Auditor 
 Mary Etta Gerhardt, Assistant County Attorney 
 Christopher Gilmore, Assistant County Attorney 
 Marvin G. Brice, CPPB, Assistant Purchasing Agent, Travis County Purchasing Office  

Jason Walker, Purchasing Agent Assistant, Travis County Purchasing Office 
 Diana Ramirez, Analyst, Planning and Budget Office 
 Kendra Tolliver, TCHHS/VS, Finance Accountant  
 Christy Moffett, CDBG Planning Project Manager 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Scott Wilson/854-1182 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 
 
Agenda Language:  Approve Contract Award for IBM Maintenance, 
Software Subscription, New Equipment and Upgrades, Support Line 
Services and On-Site Consulting Services, Contract NO. 4400001359, to 
the Sole Bidder, Mark III Systems, Inc. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments:  Purchasing concurs 
with department and recommends approval of requested action. This 
procurement action meets the compliance requirements as outlined by 
the statutes.  This contract will provide new IBM equipment and 
upgrades, software subscription and on-site consulting services, along 
with hardware and software maintenance. 
 
On October 26, 2012, RFP NO. 1210-005-SW was issued through 
BidSync for IBM Maintenance, Software Subscription, New Equipment 
and Upgrades, Support Line Services and On-Site Consulting Services. 
One response was received on November 12, 2012.  After evaluating 
the solicitation, Information Technology Services (ITS) recommends 
awarding a contract to the sole bidder, Mark III Systems, Inc. 
 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $1,394,236 has 
been spent against this contract. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: Estimated Requirements, as needed basis     

Contract Type: Annual   

Contract Period: February 26, 2013 through February 25, 2014 

(with four (4) one-year renewal options) 

   

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 14



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 Solicitation-Related Information: 

Solicitations Sent: 37  Responses Received: 1  

HUB Information: N/A  % HUB Subcontractor: N/A  

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: Shopping Carts will be entered as needed 

  Funding Account(s):  

  Comments: 



Weighted 

Factor Raw Score Total Score

1.
CRITERION ONE: Quality of Proposer Credentials:                                                              

30% 5 1.50

Performance History, References, Market Standing and Options Offered

2. CRITERION TWO: Cost 30% 5 1.50
Total Package Cost
Per Hour Rate of Proposer's and Manufacturer's Technical Resources, Hardware, Software and Maintenance Discount %

3. CRITERION THREE: Completeness of Proposal Relative to Requirements: 15% 4.5 0.68
Part I – General Requirements
Part II – Section A-Specific Requirements
Part II – Section B-Technical Requirements
Part II – Section C-Required Maintenance Items

4. CRITERION FOUR: Methodology 15% 4.5 0.68

Completion Process
Quality Assurance Process
Delivery Schedule
Company Stability

5. CRITERION FOUR: Customer Support 10% 5 0.50

Parts Availability
Maintenance Ability
Warranty Provisions - Period and Coverage
Contract Terms and Conditions

TOTAL SCORE 100% 4.85

Evaluation Instructions: Each factor above is worth up to 5 points, whole numbers only.  Evaluate each 

proposal against the criteria and assign points (1-5) for each factor, based on the following scale:

5 - Excellent 
4 - Very Good 
3 - Average / acceptable 
2 - Fair 
1 - Poor 
(e.g. 35% x 4 = 1.4)

 

Signature                                                        Date

Evaluation Matrix for RFP # 1210-005-SW IBM Maintenance, Software Subscription, New Equipment & Upgrades, Support Line Servcies & On-Site Consulting Services 

Criteria

Mark III Systems







ID # 8114 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 854-1181 / 
Marvin Brice, CPPB 854-9765 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Biscoe 

Agenda Language:  Consider and Take Appropriate Action to Approve 
and Ratify Interlocal Agreement No. 4400001362, Austin Travis County 
Integral Care, Child Therapist Services. 
 

 Purchasing Recommendation and Comments 
 
Travis County HHS & VS is requesting approval and ratification of the 
Child Therapeutic Services Interlocal Agreement with Austin Travis 
County Integral Care (ATCIC). This agreement is a sub-contract to fund 
a Child Therapist position at ATCIC as part of the Parenting in Recovery 
(PIR) grant program.  
 
The PIR project provides a flexible, comprehensive continuum of 
services for families in the child welfare system as a result of 
methamphetamine or other substance dependence. The primary 
objective of the project is to keep families together while the parents 
receive an individualized set of interventions and supports that promote 
sustained recovery and independent functioning. The not to exceed 
amount for this agreement is $60,845.00 for the period February 1, 2013 
through September 29, 2013. 
 
Due to the program needs of the grant project; the expectations to 
comply with the grant submission requirements; and the availability of a 
qualified applicant for the position, services were initiated on February 1, 
2013 with an expectation that the contract would be fully executed and 
approved by end of February 2013. Therefore the contract includes 
specific ratification language to allow for services to begin on  
February 1, 2013. 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 15



ID # 8114 
 
AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Attached is a “Draft” copy of the agreement. The original agreement is 
currently with ATCIC awaiting signature.  Once it is signed, it will be 
submitted to the Court for signature. 

 Contract Expenditures: Within the last 12 months $0.00 has been 
spent against this contract/requirement. 

 

 Contract-Related Information: 

Award Amount: $ 60,845   

Contract Type: Interlocal Agreement  

Contract Period: February 1, 2013 through September 29, 2013  

 Contract Modification Information: N/A 

Modification Amount:    

Modification Type:     

Modification Period:   

 Solicitation-Related Information: N/A 

Solicitations Sent:  Responses Received:  

HUB Information:  % HUB Subcontractor:  

 Special Contract Considerations:  N/A 

  Award has been protested; interested parties have been notified. 

  Award is not to the lowest bidder; interested parties have been 
notified. 

  Comments:   

 

 Funding Information: 
  SAP Shopping Cart #: 

  Funding Account(s):  

  Comments: Funds Reservation #300000510 









  

 
 

SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY 
 

AND 
 

AUSTIN TRAVIS COUNTY INTEGRAL CARE  
 

FOR 
 

CHILD THERAPEUTIC SERVICES 
 

 

CONTRACT NO. 4400001362 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY PURCHASING OFFICE 

 
 
 
  

DRAFT



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Parties            3 
Recitals           3 
Definitions           4 
General Terms           6 
Responsibilities and Obligations of Contractor      8 
Responsibilities and Obligations of County       21 
Financial Provisions          22 
Suspension/ Termination         30 
Miscellaneous Provisions         32 
Approvals           41 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Work Statement and Budget      42 
Attachment B – Financial Forms        45 
Attachment C – Insurance Requirements       73 
Attachment D – Ethics Affidavit        76 
Attachment E – PIR Grant Assurances and Acknowledgements    79 
Attachment F – PIR Grant Application and Grant Award     96 
 DRAFT



 

 

INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR SOCIAL SERVICES 
BETWEEN TRAVIS COUNTY AND 

AUSTIN-TRAVIS COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH AND MENTAL RETARDATION CENTER FOR 
SERVICES UNDER THE PARENTING IN RECOVERY GRANT 

 
 I.  PARTIES 
 
This Interlocal Cooperation Agreement ("Contract") is entered into by the following Parties: Travis County, a 
political subdivision of Texas ("County") and Austin-Travis County Mental Health and Mental Retardation Center, 
d.b.a. Austin Travis County Integral Care ("Contractor"), the Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority 
designated by the State of Texas for Travis County and the incorporated municipalities therein pursuant to TEXAS 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Chapters 531 and 534, and other applicable statutes. 
 
 II.  RECITALS 
 
County has the authority to provide for the care of indigents and other qualified recipients (TEX. LOC. GOV'T. CODE, 
Section 81.027, and other statutes); and provision of that care constitutes a public purpose. 
 
County has the authority to provide for public health education and information services (TEX. HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE, Chapters 121 and 122, and other statutes), and provision of those services constitutes a public 
purpose. 
 
Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans' Services has the authority to perform all public health functions 
that County can perform through TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ANN., Section 121.032. 
 
Contractor has been designated as the Mental Health and Mental Retardation Authority by the State of Texas for Travis 
County and the incorporated municipalities therein. 
 
Contractor is committed to coordinating an integrated array of quality community-based services addressing the needs 
and requests of people whose lives are affected by mental disabilities, substance abuse, and children's developmental 
delays and emotional behavioral or social disabilities problems; and building on the inherent strengths of consumers, 
families, staff and community. 
 
Contractor is also a major provider of mental health and mental retardation services, and is legislatively mandated to 
provide community-based services as defined in TEXAS HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, Chapter 534, Subchapter 
B, Community Based Services. 
 
County and Contractor are authorized to enter into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement through the TEXAS 
CONSTITUTION, Article 3, Section 64, and "The Interlocal Cooperation Act," TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, 
Chapter 791. 
 
 
Commissioners Court of County may exempt personal and professional services from complying with the competitive 
procurement process under TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE ANN., § 262 et seq. and has issued or hereby 
issues such an order of exemption for the services provided under the terms of this Contract. 
 
Pursuant to the terms of this Contract, Contractor will provide personal and professional services for the care of 
indigents and other qualified recipients and for public health education and information, thus providing services which 
will further the achievement of a public purpose. 
 
Funds provided under this Contract may be received pursuant to federal, state and/or local grant agreements and 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 3 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

services provided for those funds will be subject to the applicable terms of any such agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the hereinafter set forth agreements, covenants, and payments, the amount 
and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, County and Contractor agree to the terms and conditions stated in this 
Contract. 
 
 III.  DEFINITIONS 
 
1.0   In this Contract, 
 
 1.1 "CAN" means the Community Action Network. 
 
 1.2 "Commissioners Court" means the Travis County Commissioners Court. 
  
 1.3 "Contract Funds" means all funds paid by County to Contractor pursuant to Section 13.0 and other 
applicable provisions of this Contract. 
 
 1.4 "Contract Term" means the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term, or any other period of time 
designated in writing as a Contract Term by the Parties. 
 
 1.5 "County Auditor" means  Nicki Riley, the Travis County Auditor, or her successor. 
 
 1.6 "County Department" means Travis County Health, Human Services and Veterans' Services. 
 
 1.7 "County Purchasing Agent" means Cyd Grimes, the Travis County Purchasing Agent, or her 
successor. 
 
 1.8 "Current Revenue Funds" means Contract Funds in the County treasury that are available in the 
current Fiscal Year if appropriated by Commissioners Court for purposes of funding this Contract.  
 
 1.9 "Day(s)" means calendar day(s), unless otherwise specifically noted in any individual provision.  
 
 1.10 "Eligible Client" means a person who is: 
 
  (a) a person in a particular program as designated by County who meets any specific eligibility 

criteria described herein.    
 
 AND 
  
  (b) a person who belongs to one or more of the following groups: 
 

 1.10.1 GROUP I - INDIGENT PUBLIC HEALTH CARE RECIPIENT.  This group  includes 
any individual who: 

 
   (a) Receives public Health Care services under the Indigent Health Care Act 

 (HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, CHAPTER 61); and 
 
   (b)   Is a bona fide resident of Travis County, which is determined by the person's 

stated  intention to remain in Travis County for an indefinite period; and 
 
   (c) has a household income below two hundred percent (200%) of the Poverty Income 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 4 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 Guidelines that are applicable to a household with the same number of persons as the household of 
the  potential client or who meets other specific income guidelines set forth as applicable to a specific 
 program identified in this Contract.  

 
 OR   
 

 1.10.2 GROUP II - INDIGENT SERVICES RECIPIENT.  This group includes any individual 
who receives (or is documented by County to be qualified to receive) support through assistance programs or 
services in Travis County in response to needs related to indigence. 

 
 OR  
 

 1.10.3 GROUP III - PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES RECIPIENT.  This group includes  any 
individual who, under the terms of this Contract, will receive services from Contractor related to Public Health 
Services (as defined herein), in Travis County. 

 
 1.11 "County Executive" means Sherri Fleming, County Executive of Travis County Health, Human 
Services and Veterans' Services Department, or her successor or designated representative. 
 
 1.12 "Fiscal Year" means the County Fiscal Year, which is that twelve-month time period between any 
October 1 and the next following September 30.  
 
 1.13 "Grant Funds" means funds available which: 
 

 (a) have as their source a grant from a federal, state or local governmental agency or non-profit 
organization; and 
 
 (b) have an identified purpose, performance expectations, and financial standards that control 
expenditures; and 
 
 (c) have specific requirements for their use depending on whether the parties to a grant funded 
agreement are contractors, sub-contractors, recipients as determined by the original grant and accounting 
practices. 

 
 1.14 "Is doing business" and "has done business" mean: 
 
  1.14.1 Paying or receiving any money or other valuable thing in exchange for personal services or 

for purchase or use of any property interest, either real or personal, either legal or equitable; or 
 
  1.14.2 Loaning or receiving a loan of money, services, or goods or otherwise creating or having in 

existence any legal obligation or debt; 
 
but does not include: 
 
  1.14.3 Any payments, receipts, loans or receipts of a loan which are less than $250.00 per calendar 

year in the aggregate; or 
 
  1.14.4 Any retail transaction for goods or services sold to a Key Contracting Person at a posted, 

published, or marked price available to the general public. 
 
 1.15 "Key Contracting Person" means any person or business listed in Exhibit A to the Ethics Affidavit 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 5 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

attached to this Contract and marked Attachment D. 
 
 1.16 "Parties" and "Party" means the County and/or Contractor, as applicable. 
 
 1.17 "Poverty Income Guidelines" means the guidelines established by the United States Office of Health 
and Human Services for the current Fiscal Year of the federal government. 
 
 1.18 "Public Health Services" means: 
 
  1.18.1 personal health promotion and maintenance services 
  1.18.2 infectious disease control and prevention services 
  1.18.3 environmental and consumer health programs 
  1.18.4 public health education and information services 
  1.18.5 laboratory services 
  1.18.6 related administrative services 
   and/or those other services as described by applicable statute. 
 
 1.19 "Subcontract" means any agreement between Contractor and another party to fulfill, either directly or 
indirectly, any of the requirements of this Contract, in whole or in part. 
 
 1.20 "Subcontractor" means any party providing services required under this Contract to an Eligible 
Client or to Contractor under an agreement between Contractor and that party, including contractor(s), subcontractor(s), 
and other subrecipient(s) of Contractor, and any party or parties providing services for Contractor which will be paid 
for using Contract Funds committed by County to be paid to Contractor under this Contract.  
 
 1.21 "Unduplicated Client" means one person/client that is counted only once, despite how many different 
services the client is receiving. 
 
 IV. GENERAL TERMS 
 
2.0   CONTRACT TERM 
 
 2.1 Initial Term.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Contract shall continue in full force for 
the Initial Term which begins   February 1, 2013, and terminates September 29, 2013, unless earlier terminated by the 
Parties pursuant to the terms of this Contact. 
 
 2.2   Renewal Term(s)   
 
  2.2.1 Written Renewal.  Unless sooner terminated in compliance with the provisions of this 

Contract, this Contract may only be renewed by action evidenced in writing and executed by County and 
Contractor.  

 
  2.2.2 Renewal Terms.  Unless sooner terminated pursuant to the terms of this Contract, this 

Contract may be renewed under Section 2.2.1 by written agreement signed by County and Contractor for up to  
two (2) additional one-year periods, or for whatever time period agreed to in writing by County and 
Contractor.  The exercise of any option to renew under this provision shall be with the understanding that all 
terms and conditions, including the negotiated rates, remain unchanged and in full force and effect, unless this 
Contract is specifically amended pursuant to Section 3.0 of this Contract to make any changes in those terms.  
Non-competitive renewal shall be based upon the Contractor's positive performance and County's continuing 
need for the services as determined by County. 

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 6 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

3.0   AMENDMENTS 
 
 3.1   Written.  Unless specifically provided otherwise in this Contract, any change to the terms of this 
Contract or any attachments to it shall be made in writing and signed by both Parties. 
 
 3.2 Acknowledgments as to Amendments. 
 
  3.2.1 Authority to Change.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agent, employee or 

representative of County has any authority to change the terms of this Contract or any attachments to it unless 
expressly granted that authority by the Commissioners Court under a specific provision of this Contract or by 
separate action by the Commissioners Court.  Verbal discussion or other indications of changes to this 
Contract will NOT be effective. 

 
  3.2.2 Non-Compliance.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that any action taken by Contractor 

which does not comply with the terms of this Contract and which has not been approved under the terms of 
the Contract or written amendment thereto (pursuant to this Section 3.0) subjects Contractor to disallowance 
of payments related to such actions and possible termination of this Contract. 

 
 3.3   Submission.  Contractor shall submit all requests for all changes, alterations, additions or deletions 
of the terms of this Contract or any attachment to it to the Travis County Purchasing Agent with a copy to the County 
Executive.  Upon agreement by the County Department, the request will be presented by the Purchasing Agent to the 
Commissioners Court for consideration.  
 
4.0   ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 4.1   All Agreements.  All oral and written agreements between the Parties to this Contract relating to the 
subject matter of this Contract that were made prior to the execution of this Contract, including the applicable terms of 
the Contract, have been reduced to writing and are contained in this Contract. 
 
 4.2   Attachments.  The attachments enumerated and denominated below are hereby made a part of this 
Contract, and constitute promised performances by Contractor in accordance with all terms of this Contract. 
 
  4.2.1 Attachment A Work Statement and Budget 
  4.2.2 Attachment B Financial Forms 
     (i) Compliance Certification Form 
     (ii) Payment Request Form 
     (iii) Expenditure Report Form 
     (iv) Budget Revisions Request Form 
     (v) Out of Town Travel Form 
  4.2.3 Attachment C Insurance Requirements 
  4.2.4 Attachment D Ethics Affidavit  
  4.2.5 Attachment E PIR Grant Assurances and Acknowledgements 
  4.2. 6 Attachment F  PIR Grant Application and Grant Award  
  
 4.3  Contractor Communication.    
 
  4.3.1   General Communication.  Contractor and County agree that, unless otherwise designated 

specifically in any provision, all communication, requests, questions, or other inquiries related to this Contract 
shall initially be presented by Contractor to the County Department through the County Executive.    

 
  4.3.2 Contract Issues.  At any time that Contractor has an issue, problem, dispute, or other 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 7 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

question ("issue") concerning this Contract, Contractor may first contact County through County 
Department/County Executive.  Contractor shall provide written notice of the issue to County 
Department/County Executive, with such written notice including a specific written description of the issue as 
well as the Contractor's desired resolution of the issue.  Contractor and County will make a good faith effort to 
resolve the issue to their mutual satisfaction in a timely manner.  It is understood and agreed that any 
resolution of the issue which necessitates a change in any term or condition of this Contract, including a 
waiver of any term or condition, shall be handled only as a written amendment pursuant to Section 3.0 of this 
Contract.    

 
 4.4 Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
  4.4.1   Use of Terms.  The Parties understand and agree that the terms "shall" and "will" are used 

interchangeably in this Contract. 
 
  4.4.2   Authority to Obligate County.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agent, 

employee or representative of County other than the Commissioners Court has any authority to sign any 
document or make any type of agreement obligating County unless expressly granted that authority by the 
Commissioners Court under a specific provision of this Contract or by separate action by the Commissioners 
Court.  Verbal discussion or other indications of changes to this Contract will NOT be effective 

 
 V. RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 
 
5.0   CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE 
 
 5.1   Services and Activities.   
 
  5.1.1  Requirements.  During any Contract Term, Contractor shall perform, in a satisfactory manner 

as determined by County, through County Department, services and activities in accordance with the terms of 
Attachment A, "Work Statement and Budget" and with all other terms and conditions stated in this Contract.  
Under this Contract, the Parties acknowledge and agree that  Contractor will receive funds from federal, state 
and/or local grant(s) and, pursuant to the grantor's terms, will provide only those goods and services necessary 
to achieve the grant's purpose when expending or being paid by grant funds. 

 
  5.1.2  Failure to Perform.  In the event of Contractor's non-compliance with any term of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to timely submission of any report, record or notification, County may 
impose such sanctions as determined to be necessary by County, including, but not limited to: 

 
  (a)  Withholding of payments to Contractor under the Contract until Contractor complies 
 with the term of the Contract: 
 
  (b)  Suspension, termination or cancellation of the Contract, in whole or in part. 

 
 These actions by County may be taken in addition to any other specific action set forth in any provision of this 

Contract or allowed by law. 
 
  5.1.3 Right to Assurance.  Whenever County in good faith has reason to question Contractor's 

intent to perform, County may demand that Contractor provide County with written assurance of Contractor's 
intent to perform.  In the event a demand is made by County and Contractor gives no assurance within thirty 
(30) days of receipt of the written notice of such demand, County may treat this failure as an anticipatory 
repudiation of this Contract.  

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 8 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

  5.1.4 Grant Activities.  The Parties understand and agree that the Contract Funds for this Contract 
are grant funds from the County's Parenting in Recovery Grant ("PIR Grant," or "Grant"), and Contractor 
agrees as follows: 

 
  (i) Performance Requirements.  Contractor agrees to perform all grant activities 
 pursuant to the requirements of the Grant document attached to this Contract as Attachment F . 

 
  (ii) State and Federal Grant Requirements.  Contractor also agrees to comply with all 
 applicable state and federal Grant requirements, including Office of  Management and Budget 
 (OMB) Circulars A-87, A-102, A-110, A-122, A-133, and Texas' Uniform Grant Management 
Standards. 

 
  (iii) Subcontractor Requirements.  Contractor will ensure that all providers of services 
 under this Contract receiving Grant funds for Grant services provided under this Contract and 
 managed by Contractor are contractually required to meet all applicable state and federal Grant 
 requirements, as well as applicable terms and performance requirements of the Grant.  Contractor 
will  be responsible for timely identification of any potential sub-recipients as defined by the Grant, 
 specifically OMB A-133, and applicable state and federal requirements and will notify County 
 of any such potential sub-recipients prior to contracting for Grant services in order to secure 
 County approval of such sub-recipient and to establish an appropriate advance agreement on the 
terms  and conditions of the sub-award. 
 
  (iv) Grant Term.  Services and activities, including all reporting requirements, relating 
 to Grant Activities provided under this Contract shall be provided in accordance with time and date 
 specifications set forth in the Grant. 

 
  (v) Precedence.  All services and activities provided by Contractor related to Grant 
 requirements and paid for by County utilizing Grant funds ("Grant Activities") shall be specifically 
 subject to terms of this Contract as well as those of the Grant.  Should there be a conflict between 
 requirements which cannot be reconciled, as determined by County, then the terms shall be given 
 precedence as follows: 
 

    1.  Grant 
    2.  Contract 
    

  (vi)   Financial Requirements.  Contractor agrees, and agrees to require all 
 subrecipients/subcontractors to agree to perform all grant activities pursuant to reasonable procedures 
 developed by the County Auditor; including financial reporting, record-keeping, and site visit 
 protocols for Contractor as sub-recipient and for Contractor's sub-recipients.  Should Contractor or 
 sub-recipient(s)/subcontractor(s) disagree with such a procedure or protocol and such disagreement 
 cannot be resolved by discussion with the County Auditor, the Contractor or 
 subrecipient/subcontractor's sole remedy is to terminate this Contract pursuant to Section 19.4.  

 
 5.2   Policies.   
 
  5.2.1  General Policies.  The Contractor is required to maintain written policies and procedures 

approved by its governing body and to make copies of all policies available to the County Department upon 
request.  At a minimum, written policies shall exist in the following areas:  Financial Management; 
Subcontracting and/or Procurement; Equal Employment Opportunity; Personnel and Personnel Grievance; 
Nepotism; Non-Discrimination of Clients; Client Grievance; Drug Free Workplace; the Americans With 
Disabilities Act; and any other policies or procedures as might be required by law. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 9 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
  5.2.2  Grievance Policies.   
 

  a.  Procedure.  Contractor and all Subcontractors shall have in place an appropriate written 
 grievance review procedure to receive and resolve complaints against Contractor, and shall provide 
 the County Department with a copy of such procedure immediately upon request by County.  
 Included in the procedure will be the obligation of Contractor to make timely written communication 
 to the County Department regarding potential quality or utilization issues evidenced in any grievance 
 and thus identified and referred to Contractor for action and resolution; and Contractor hereby agrees 
 to make such timely communications to County. 

 
  b.  Monitoring.  Contractor agrees that specific grievances and complaints will be 
 monitored and a mechanism utilized to track and promptly resolve any participant issues, problems, 
or  complaints.  Records of the resolution of grievances shall be maintained by Contractor and made 
 available for monitoring by County through the County Department. 

 
  5.2.3  Internal Control.   

 
  a.  Internal Systems.  Contractor shall establish, maintain, and utilize internal control 
 systems and procedures sufficient to prevent, detect, and correct incidents of waste, fraud, and abuse 
 and to provide for the proper and effective management of all program and fiscal activities funded by 
 this Contract.   

 
  b.  Documentation.  Contractor's internal control systems and all transactions and other 
 significant events must be clearly documented and the documentation made readily available for 
 monitoring by County.   
 
  c.  System Failure.  County may withhold payment and immediately suspend Contractor's 
 performance of this Contract if County identifies possible instances of fraud, abuse, waste, fiscal 
 mismanagement or other serious deficiencies in Contractor's performance.  Suspension shall be a 
 temporary measure pending either corrective action by Contractor or a decision by County to 
 terminate this Contract.  Contractor shall fully cooperate with County's efforts to detect, investigate 
 and prevent waste, fraud and abuse with respect to this Contract, and shall immediately notify 
County  of any identified instances of waste, fraud or abuse.   
 
  d.  Non-retaliation.  Contractor may not discriminate or retaliate in any way against any 
 employee or other person who reports a violation of the terms of this Contract or of any law or 
 regulation or any suspected illegal activity by Contractor to County or to any appropriate law 
 enforcement authority, if the report is made in good faith. 
 
  e.  Contractor Responsibility.   Contractor shall bear full responsibility for the integrity of 
 fiscal and programmatic management.  Such responsibility shall include:  accountability for all 
 funds and materials received from County; compliance with County rules, policies, procedures, and 
 applicable federal and state laws and regulations; and correction of fiscal and program deficiencies 
 identified through self-evaluation and County's monitoring processes.  Ignorance of any Contract  
 provision(s) shall not constitute a defense or basis for waiving or appealing such provisions of 
 requirements. 
 

 5.3  Directors' Meetings.  Contractor shall keep on file copies of notices of Directors' Meetings, Board 
Meetings, or Subcommittee or Advisory Board meetings and copies of minutes from those meetings.  Upon request by 
County, copies of any of the above shall be provided to County Department. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 10 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
 5.4  Forms  
 
  5.4.1  W-9 Taxpayer Identification Form.  Contractor shall provide the County Purchasing Agent 

with an Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification 
that is completed in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code and its rules and regulations, and a statement 
of entity status in a form satisfactory to the County Auditor.  Contractor understands that this W-9 Form must 
be provided to the County Purchasing Agent before any Contract Funds are payable.  If there are any changes 
in the W-9 form during the Initial Term or any Renewal Term of the Contract, Contractor will immediately 
provide the County Purchasing Agent with a new and correct W-9 form   Failure to provide such form within 
the time required may result in delay of payment, suspension or termination of the Contract, or other action as 
deemed necessary by County.  

 
  5.4.2  IRS 990 Form.  Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of its completed 

Internal Revenue Service Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax) for each calendar 
year within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, but no later than September 30 of each year in which 
County funds are received under this Contract.  If Contractor has filed an extension request which prevents the 
timely provision of the form 990, Contractor shall provide the Purchasing Agent with a copy of that 
application for extension of time to file (IRS Form 2758) within thirty (30) days of filing said form(s), and a 
copy of any final document(s) immediately upon receipt of such document(s). 

 
 5.5   Ownership of Property.   
 
  5.5.1 Capital Acquisition Property ("Property").  For purposes of this Contract, "Capital 

Acquisition Property" (or "Property") shall be considered to be any tangible, non-expendable property 
purchased with Contract Funds. 

 
  5.5.2 Title.   
 
   (a) Grant Funds Purchases.  To the extent that  Grant Funds are used to purchase any 

Property, title to such Property shall vest in Contractor if permitted under Title 28 C.F.R., Sections 66.32 and 
66.33 ("Title 28").   Otherwise, title to such Property shall vest as prescribed in  this Section 5.5. 

 
   (b) Non-Grant Funds Purchases.  If property is not covered by Title 28, and if 

Contract Funds are used to purchase such Property, title to such property shall vest in Contractor subject to the 
applicable requirements of this Subsection 5.5. 

 
  5.5.3 Notice.  Written notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent pursuant to the 

"Notice" provision of this Contract within five (5) calendar days of delivery of Capital Acquisition Property, 
and County will then effect identification and recording of such Property for inventory purposes; and, written 
notification must be given to the County Purchasing Agent within five (5) calendar days of any change in the 
status of such Property related to the terms of this Section 5.5.  The Contractor shall maintain adequate 
accountability and control over such Property, shall maintain adequate Property records, and shall perform an 
annual inventory to be reported to the County Purchasing Agent no later than September 30 of each year in 
which Contract Funds are received, and for up to two years after the termination of this Contract as required 
under Section 5.5.6.  Records and reports shall contain the necessary information and documentation to 
support compliance with this Section 5.5. 

 
  5.5.4 Encumbrances.  Contractor shall not give any security interest or lien in, or otherwise 

encumber such Property purchased with Contract Funds. 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 11 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

  5.5.5 Budget.  Property purchased by Contractor must be included and identified in Contractor's 
budget. 

  
  5.5.6 Contract Use.  Property may only be purchased utilizing Contract Funds if such Property 

will be utilized by Contractor to provide or further the provision of the services purchased by County under 
this Contract.  Such Property may also be used outside the area of this Contract only if such use does not 
interfere with or diminish the work required under this Contract.  Within the limits of this Section 5.5, or as 
prescribed in 28 C.F.R., Sections 66.32 or 66.33, as applicable, Contractor shall continue to use such Property 
in a manner which supports provision of the services provided under this Contract throughout the term of this 
Contract.   

 
  5.5.7 Applicability.  The limitations of this Subsection 5.5 shall not apply to Property which  is 

not covered by Title 28 and was purchased by Contractor at least twenty-four months prior.  Title to Property 
covered by this Section 5.5.7 shall vest in Contractor free and clear of any obligations to County.   

 
  
  5.5.8 Trade or Sale.  If Contractor uses Property subject to Section 28 C.F.R. and purchased with 

Contract Funds as a trade-in or sells such Property, the proceeds shall either be used to purchase replacement 
Property subject to 28 C.F.R., Section 66.32 or handled in accordance with applicable provisions of 28 C.F.R., 
Part 66.  Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent of such disposition and, as applicable, the identity of the 
new Property.  All requirements of this Subsection 5.5 shall attach to such replacement Property.  For 
Property that is not covered by either Title 28 or Section 5.5.7 of this Contract, the proceeds shall be used 
either to purchase replacement Property for a similar use or returned to County through the Purchasing Agent. 

 
 
  5.5.9 Certification.  Contractor (through its Executive Director or other authorized signatory) 

shall provide annual written and signed notice to the Purchasing Agent regarding all Property and certifying 
the continued use of such Property in compliance with this Section 5.5.  This Certification shall be included 
with the annual inventory provided under Section 5.5.3. 

 
  5.5.10 Failure to Continue Use.  If Contractor cannot continue to meet the requirements of this 

Section 5.5 regarding Property, then Contractor shall either provide cash compensation for such Property to 
County in an amount equal to the fair market value of the Property (as agreed to by County), or return such 
Property to County through the Purchasing Agent, or request in writing disposition instructions from the 
Purchasing Agent which instructions shall then be followed by Contractor. 

 
  5.5.11 Responsibility.  Contractor shall assume responsibility for the protection of all physical 

property and equipment (Property) purchased under this Contract, and shall take appropriate measures to meet 
this obligation.  Contractor shall furnish the County Purchasing Agent with a written, factual report of the 
theft of, or damage to, any Property purchased under this Contract.  In the event of any theft, vandalism, or 
other offense against the Property, Contractor shall notify the appropriate local law enforcement authorities 
and the County Purchasing Agent immediately. 

   
 5.6   Maintenance of Funds.  The Contractor shall deposit and maintain all monies received under this 
Contract in either a separate numbered bank account or in a general operating account, either of which shall be 
supported with the maintenance of a separate accounting fund or a general fund with a specific chart of accounts which 
reflect and identifies revenues and expenditures for the monies received under this Contract from County. Contractor 
agrees to provide County with copies of specific chart(s) of account(s) maintained under this Section 5.6 upon request 
of County. 
 
 5.7   Long-Term Strategic Planning.  Contractor agrees to participate to the extent possible in any long-

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 12 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

term strategic planning process when requested by County. 
 
 5.8   Insurance.   
 
  5.8.1  Requirements. Contractor shall have, and shall require all Subcontractors providing services 

under this Contract to have, Standard Insurance sufficient to cover the needs of Contractor and/or 
Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards as set forth in Attachment C, 
"Insurance Requirements."  Depending on services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor, 
Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate insurance options as set forth in Attachment C, "Insurance 
Requirements," may be imposed.   

  
  5.8.2  No Liability Limitation.  Contractor shall submit to the County Purchasing Agent Certificates 

of Insurance no later than ten (10) working days after execution of this Contract by the Parties.  Contractor 
shall not begin providing services under this Contract until the required insurance is obtained and until such 
insurance certificate has been received by the County Purchasing Agent.  Acceptance of insurance by County 
shall not relieve or decrease the liability of Contractor with regard to its responsibilities under this Contract 
and shall not be construed to be a limitation of liability.  Contractor shall provide new Certificates of 
Insurance within ten (10) working days of any Renewal Term of this Contract under the terms of this Section 
5.8.2. 

 
  5.8.3  Review and Adjustment.  County reserves the right to review the insurance requirements set 

forth in this Contract during the effective period of this Contract and to make reasonable adjustments to 
insurance coverages, limits and exclusions when deemed necessary and prudent by County based on changes 
in statutory law, court decisions, the claims history of the industry or financial conditions of the insurance 
company or Contractor.  Contractor shall not cause or allow any insurance to be cancelled nor allow any 
insurance to lapse during the Contract term. 

 
 5.9     Indemnification and Claims. 
 
  5.9.1   INDEMNIFICATION.  To the extent provided by the Constitution and the laws of the 

State of Texas, and without waiving any governmental immunity or other protection afforded to 
Contractor thereunder, Contractor agrees to and shall indemnify and hold harmless County, its 
officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, negligence, causes 
of action, suits, and liability of every kind, including all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's 
fees, for injury to or death of any person, for any act or omission by Contractor, or for damage to any 
property, arising out of or in connection with the work done by Contractor under this Contract, 
whether such injuries, death or damages are caused by  Contractor's sole negligence or the joint 
negligence of Contractor  and any other third party.   

 
  5.9.2  Claims Notification.  If Contractor receives notice or becomes aware of any claim, or other 

action, including proceedings before an administrative agency, which is made or brought by any person, firm, 
corporation, or other entity against Contractor or County, Contractor shall give written notice to County 
Department of:  the claim, or other action within three (3) working days after being notified of it or the threat 
of it; the name and address of the person, firm, corporation or other entity that made or threatened to make a 
claim, or that instituted or threatened to institute any type of action or proceeding; the basis of the claim, 
action or proceeding; the court or administrative tribunal, if any, where the claim, action or proceeding was 
instituted; and the name or names of any person against whom this claim is being made or threatened.  This 
written notice shall be given in the manner provided in Section 23.0 of this Contract.  Except as otherwise 
directed, Contractor shall furnish to County copies of all pertinent papers received by Contractor with respect 
to these claims or actions.    

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 13 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 5.10 Materials and Publications.  All published material and written reports submitted under this 
Contract must be originally developed material unless otherwise specifically provided in this Contract.  When material 
not originally developed is included in a report, it shall have the source identified.  This identification may be placed in 
the body of the report or included by footnote.  This provision is applicable when the material is in a verbatim or 
extensive paraphrase format.  Contractor and any Subcontractor, as appropriate, must comply with the applicable 
standard patent rights clauses in 37 Code of Federal Regulations Section 401.14 or Federal Acquisition Regulations 
52.227.1. 
 
 5.11   Rights, Copyrights, Patents, and Licenses.   
 
  5.11.1  Property of County.  All reports, charts, schedules, or other appended documentation to any 

proposal, content of basic proposal, or contracts and any responses, inquiries, correspondence, and related 
material created and/or submitted by Contractor under the terms of this Contract shall become the property of 
County.  Contractor may publish the results of the Contract performance at its expense with prior County 
review and approval.  If County owns the copyright, any publication should include "© Travis County, P. O. 
Box 1748, Austin, Texas, 78767, (the year of publication), All Rights Reserved."  If Contractor is the 
copyright holder, any publication shall include acknowledgment of the support received from County.  At 
least six copies of any such publication must be provided to County through County Department.  County 
reserves the right to require a reasonable number of additional copies before or after the initial review.   

 
  5.11.2  Copyright.   If Contractor is not a college or university with the statutory authority to hold a 

copyright, all work performed pursuant to the terms of this Contract that results in the production of original 
books, manuals, films, or other original material is the exclusive property of County.  All right, title, and 
interest in and to said property shall vest in County upon creation.  All work performed shall be deemed to be 
a "work made for hire" and made in the course of the services rendered pursuant to this Contract.  To the 
extent that title to any such work may not, by operation of law, vest in County or such work may not be 
considered a work made for hire, all rights, title and interest therein are hereby irrevocably assigned to 
County.  County shall have the right to obtain and to hold in its own name any and all patents, copyrights, 
trademarks, service marks, certification marks, collective marks, registrations, or such other protection as may 
be appropriate to the subject matter, and any extensions and renewals thereof.  Contractor agrees to give 
County and agrees to require its Subcontractors to give County, or any person designated by County, all 
assistance reasonably required to perfect the rights defined in this provision, without any charge or expense 
beyond those amounts payable to Contractor for the services rendered under this Contract.   

 
  5.11.3  Adherence and Indemnification.   Contractor warrants and agrees that all applicable 

copyrights, patents, and licenses which may exist on materials used in this Contract have been adhered to by 
Contractor; and  that County shall not be liable for any infringement of those rights; and any rights granted to 
County shall apply for the duration of this Contract.   

 
  5.11.4  License to Use.  The Parties hereby grant to each other an irrevocable, non-exclusive, non-

transferable and royalty-free license to use, reproduce, publish, revise, make disposition of, prepare derivative 
works, distribute to the public, to perform, and to display publicly, for or on behalf of either Party according to 
law, any material (including software) that may be developed as part of the work under this Contract.   

  5.11.5 
  (a) Copyrights, Patents, Rights – Grant Funds.  The Grant awarding agency reserves a royalty-

free nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use and authorize others to use, 
for Federal Government purposes, the following: 

 The copyright in any work developed under an award or subaward; and 
 Any rights of copyright to which County or Contractor purchases ownership with 

Grant support. 
  (b) Inventions and Discoveries – Grant Funds. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 14 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 (i)  If Contractor produces patentable items, patent rights, processes, or inventions, in 
the course of work sponsored by the Grant Funds, such facts must be promptly and fully reported to the Grant 
awarding agency. 
 (ii) Unless there is a prior agreement between the County and the Grant awarding 
agency on the disposition of such items, the Grant awarding agency may determine whether protection on the 
invention or discovery will be sought. 
 (iii) The Grant awarding agency will also determine how rights in the invention or 
discovery (including rights under any patents issued) will be allocated and administered in order to protect the 
public interest consistent with “Government Patent Policy” (President’s Memorandum for Heads of Executive 
Departments and Agencies,” dated August 23, 1971, and statement of Government patent policy, as printed in 
36 Federal Register 16839).  Government regulations have been issued in Title 37 CFR Part 401 by the U.S. 
Department of Commerce. 
   

 
 5.12 Miscellaneous Responsibilities. 
 
 
  5.12.1 Change in Identity.  Contractor shall notify the County Purchasing Agent and TCHHSVS 

immediately in writing, and in advance where possible, of any significant change affecting the Contractor, 
including change of Contractor's name or identity, ownership or control, payee identification number and 
other.  Failure to provide such information in a timely manner may delay payment under this Contract or 
result in other action by County regarding Contractor's status under this Contract. 

  
  5.12.2 Employee Offenses.   
 

  (i)  Client Contact.  Contractor agrees that no Employee ("Employee" being defined 
 under this Section 5.12.2 as including volunteers or other persons working under the direction of 
 Contractor in the provision of services under this Contract in a manner which involves direct 
Client  contact) shall provide services in a manner which involves direct Client contact if that Employee  
 has been convicted of having committed an offense of abuse, neglect, or exploitation or an offense 
 against the person, an offense against the family, or an offense involving public indecency under 
the  TEXAS PENAL CODE. 
 
  (ii)  Procedure.  Contractor agrees to have in place a written policy and procedures for 
 verifying the criminal history and any current criminal indictment involving the offenses listed in 
 this Section 5.12 2 of any Employee having direct contact with County clients, and shall maintain 
 evidence of having processed all Employees through such procedure.  Such policy and procedure 
 must also address the evaluation and monitoring of Employees convicted of an offense under the 
 TEXAS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ACT, but does not have to prohibit direct Client contact 
 where Contractor determines, and documents the grounds for such determination, that such contact 
 would pose no risk to the Eligible Client.  Contractor shall also have in place a procedure for 
 addressing the work of any employee alleged to have committed an offense listed under this 
section  in a manner which will afford reasonable protection to Eligible Clients until such allegation is 
 resolved.  

 
  (iii)  Waiver.  In any circumstance under which Contractor believes that specific fact 
 situations warrant a waiver of the requirements of this Subsection 5.12.2, in whole or in part, 
 Contractor may present the details of such circumstance in writing to County, through the County 
 Executive, for a determination as to such request for waiver.   

 
  5.12.3   Offense Report.  Contractor shall promptly report any suspected case of abuse, neglect or 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 15 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 exploitation to the appropriate office(s) as required by the TEXAS FAMILY CODE, Chapter 261 or 
 other applicable law.  All reports must be made within 24 hours of the discovery of the abuse or 
 neglect. 

 
  5.12.4 Qualifications.  If specific qualifications are set forth in job descriptions required by 

County,  or attached to any position related to providing of services under this Contract, only personnel with 
the  required qualifications will be assigned to fill functions unless a written waiver is granted by the 
 County.  

 
6.0   ACKNOWLEDGMENTS, WARRANTS, AND ASSURANCES 
 
 6.1 Eligible Client Warranty.   Contractor acknowledges and agrees that County is only authorized by 
law to provide certain services, and that the provision of those services must meet a public purpose as determined by 
County.  Contractor warrants that it will spend Contract Funds solely for the provision of such authorized services in 
furtherance of such public purpose.  
 
 6.2   Accurate Information.  Contractor warrants that all reports, data and information submitted to 
County will be accurate, reliable and verifiable.  Approval by County of such shall not constitute nor be deemed a 
release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents or associates for the accuracy and 
competency of their reports, information documents, or services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the assumption of 
such responsibility by County for any defect, error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by Contractor, its 
employees, agents, or associates. 
 
 6.3   No Duplication.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that Contractor will report and receive 
payment for each service provided hereunder solely from Contract Funds pursuant to the terms of this Contract;  and 
that there will be no duplicate payments from other sources for the same services paid for by Contract Funds. 
Contractor will also ensure that this provision and prohibition of duplicate payment for services be included in any 
Subcontracts.   
 
 6.4 Benefit.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all funds paid to Contractor under this Contract 
are paid in trust for the exclusive benefit of Eligible Clients and for the payment of allowable expenditures as set forth 
in this Contract. 
 
 6.5   Maintenance of Effort.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that Contract Funds may not be 
substituted for funds or resources from any other source nor in any way serve to reduce the funds or resources which 
would have been available to or provided through Contractor had this Contract never been executed. 
  
 6.7 Payment of Taxes.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that neither federal, state, nor local income 
tax, nor payroll tax of any kind will be withheld or paid by County on behalf of Contractor or the employees of 
Contractor.  Contractor will not be treated as an employee with respect to the services performed under the terms and 
conditions of this Contract for federal and state tax purposes.  Contractor accepts responsibility for the compensation of 
employees, withholding and payment of taxes, and for purchasing any liability, disability or health insurance coverage 
deemed necessary by Contractor.  Contractor understands that Contractor is responsible to pay, according to the law, 
Contractor's income tax. If Contractor is not a corporation, Contractor further understands that the Contractor may be 
liable for self-employment (social security) tax, to be paid by Contractor according to law. 
 
 6.8 Non-delinquency on Federal Debt.  Contractor, by signing this Contract, certifies that Contractor 
is not delinquent in repaying any Federal debt; has not been judged to be in default on a Federal Debt; and has not 
had a judgment lien filed against it as a result of a Federal debt.  Failure to maintain this status will result in action 
by County up to and including termination of this Contract. 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 16 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 6.9 Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters.  Certification under this Section 6.9 
provides for compliance with certification requirements under 15 CFR Part 26, "Government-wide Debarment and 
Suspension."  Contractor, by signing this Contract, hereby certifies that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, it 
and its principles: 
 
  (a)  are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or 

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by and Federal department or agency.  
 
  (b)  have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a civil 

judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract 
under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction or records, making false statements, or receiving stolen 
property; 

 
  (c)  are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 

entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (b); and 
 
  (d) have not within a three year period preceding this Contract had one or more public transactions 

(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
Where Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements in this Section 6.9, Contractor shall provide an 
explanation of such inability prior to the effective date of this Contract for County's consideration and evaluation 
with the understanding that such may result in termination of this Contract by County. 
 
7.0   COMPLIANCE 
  
 7.1   Federal, State and Local Laws. Contractor shall provide all services and activities performed under 
the terms of this Contract in compliance with the Constitutions of the United States and Texas and with all applicable 
federal, state, and local orders, laws, regulations, rules, policies, and certifications governing any activities undertaken 
during the performance of this Contract including, but not limited to: Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794); the Americans With Disabilities Act 
of 1990, Public Law 101-336 [S.933] ("ADA"), Chapter 73, TEXAS ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE, Section 85.113 (relating to workplace and confidentiality guidelines regarding AIDS and HIV); 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Privacy Standards adopted to implement 
HIPAA at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, at Section 164.512, and Occupations Code, Chapter 159, at Sections 159.003 and 
159.004;  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, or Eligible Client based 
on race, religion, color, gender, national origin, age or handicapped condition.  In performance of all Contract services 
and activities, Contractor will comply with applicable state and federal licensing and certification requirements, health 
and safety standards, and regulations prescribed by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and the Texas 
Department of Health. 
 
 7.2   Confidentiality. 
 
  7.2.1  Method.  Contractor shall establish a method to secure the confidentiality of records and other 

information relating to Eligible Clients in accordance with the applicable Federal laws, rules and regulations, 
the applicable State and local laws, rules, and regulations and applicable professional ethical standards.  This 
provision shall not be construed as limiting the right of access to Eligible Client information.    

 
  7.2.2  Limited Access.  Prior to a scheduled monitoring or audit, Contractor agrees to submit to 

County, through TCHHSVS, in writing, any relevant requirement precluding County's access to Eligible 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 17 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

Client information including the correct citation of the legal authority on which Contractor relies to support its 
claim that County is prohibited from access to the client information. 

 
  7.2.3  Masking.  Upon authorization from County, through TCHHSVS, to render client files 

anonymous, Contractor agrees to mask information identifying clients in a way that will not obstruct County's 
monitoring and evaluative duties in any way. 

 
  7.2.4  Collaboration.  If applicable, Contractor shall execute and have on file copies of 

memorandums of understanding or other agreements with other governmental entities within Travis County 
and/or the City of Austin with whom Contractor will be sharing or obtaining participant information related to 
enrollment.  These agreements will indicate the intent to assist Contractor in obtaining accurate information; 
to ensure that other emergency assistance available has been provided; and to perform all such activities 
within the limits of confidentiality as prescribed by law and applicable policies. 

 
  7.2.5  Privacy.  Contractor shall, and shall ensure that all Subcontractors, comply with state and 

federal laws relating to the privacy and confidentiality of patient and client records that contain protected 
health information, or other information made confidential by law, and shall maintain patient and client 
records in compliance with state laws relating to the security and retention of medical or patient records.  
Contractor shall, and shall ensure that its Subcontractors, maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes and regulations governing medical information.  

 
 7.3   Certification of Software, Hardware, Firmware and Micro code Products. Contractor certifies 
that any supplied or supported software, hardware, firmware and micro code products used individually or together as a 
system to comply with Contract requirements shall operate accurately in the manner in which they were intended when 
given a valid date containing century, year, month and day. 
 
8.0   RETENTION AND ACCESSIBILITY OF CLIENT & FISCAL RECORDS 
  
 8.1  Retention of Records 
 
  8.1.1 Time Requirement.   Contractor shall create and maintain all records and reports required 

and/or created relevant to performance under this Contract, including but not limited to those specifically set 
out in this Section 8.0, until all evaluations, audits and other reviews have been completed and all questions or 
issues (including litigation) arising from those evaluations, audits and reviews are resolved satisfactorily to 
County, or three (3) years after the end of the final Contract period, whichever occurs later.   

 
  8.1.2 Document Destruction.  Contractor agrees that it will not destroy or alter any document in 

order to prevent its use in any official proceeding (for example, federal, state or local investigation, 
bankruptcy, etc.) 

 
 8.2  Client Records.   
 
  8.2.1  Maintenance.  Contractor shall create and maintain all records regarding Eligible Clients that 

include the information on which Contractor relies to determine the Client's eligibility, all records and reports 
necessary, as determined by County, to evaluate the effectiveness of the services provided under this Contract 
(including, at a minimum, the services provided, the cost of providing services, and follow-up information 
about the effect of the services on the Eligible Client as shown by selected indicators), and all records related 
to performance under this Contract.  Contractor shall maintain all medical records in accordance with all 
applicable statutes and regulations governing medical information. 

 
  8.2.2  Unduplicated Client Records.  Contractor shall maintain records for those Eligible Clients 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 18 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

participating in programs designated by County Department from which an Unduplicated Client count can be 
determined.  Contractor shall maintain a separate record for each Unduplicated Client.  This client record shall 
contain at least the following information: 

 
   8.2.2(a)  Name 
   8.2.2(b) Application date 
   8.2.2(c)  Residential address and phone number 
   8.2.2(d) Date of Birth 
   8.2.2(e) Household Income   
   8.2.2(f) Eligibility information 
   8.2.2(g) Service rendered 
   8.2.2(h) Any support documentation 
   8.2.2(i) Family status 
   8.2.2(j) Number in household 
   8.2.2(k) Enrollment Date 
   8.2.2(l) Exit Date 
 
Each Unduplicated Client reported in the Performance Report for designated programs shall correspond to a separate 
client record and support the services rendered to that Unduplicated Client. 
 
 8.3   One-Time Services. In addition to those records required under Section 8.2, Contractor shall create 
and retain records indicating the number of recipients of one time services Contractor provides hereunder, such as 
information and referral services, group education services, outreach education, crisis/help lines, anonymous services, 
provision of food, clothing and one-time basic needs services.  An individual Unduplicated Client record for these 
recipients is not required.  Other Eligible Client records will be maintained by Contractor at County's request. 
 
 8.4   Fiscal Records.  Contractor shall create and maintain all fiscal necessary records and documentation 
for all expenditures pertaining to this Contract in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
or with Other Comprehensive Basis of Accounting (OCBOA) consistent with state law; and, such records shall be kept 
in a readily available state and location until a financial audit in conformance with generally accepted auditing 
standards is completed and all questions arising from it are resolved satisfactorily or three (3) years after the end of the 
Contract period, whichever occurs later. 
 
 8.5   Access.  Contractor shall give County, or any of its duly authorized representatives, access to and the 
right to examine all books, accounts, records, reports, files, and other papers, things, or property belonging to or in use 
by Contractor pertaining to this Contract at reasonable times and for reasonable periods.  These rights to access shall 
continue as long as the records are required to be retained by Contractor, and for any additional time period that the 
records are retained by Contractor. 
 
 8.6   Adjustment.  Contractor may, at any time, request in writing to the County Executive that County 
clarify or provide a waiver of all or a portion of the record requirements in this Section 8.0.  Only waivers under this 
Section 8.6 granted by County in writing will be effective to change any requirement in this Section 8.0. 
 
 8.7 Rights to Materials.   Subject to Sections 5.10 and 5.11,  all reports, charts, schedules, records, or 
other appended documentation of Contractor which is related to this Contract, and any responses, inquiries, 
correspondence and related material submitted by Contractor to County or created by Contractor under this document 
are the property of County. 
 
9.0 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS  
 
 9.1   Performance Reports.  Contractor shall submit data in accordance with the terms of Attachment A, 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 19 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

"Work Statement and Budget," in Monthly Performance Reports to be delivered  to TCHHSVS as required by County 
within fifteen (15) days after the end of the month to which the report relates.  This monthly Performance Report will 
be submitted to Laura Peveto, TCHHSVS, P. O. Box 1748, Austin, Texas  78767, or by scanned document to 
Laura.Peveto@co.travis.tx.us.  
 
 9.2   Reimbursement Reports.  Pursuant to Section 13.2.1, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS reports 
that provide all of the information requested in the Request For Payment and Expenditure report, as required by County 
within  twenty (20) days after the end of the month to which the report relates.  If Contractor fails to provide this 
information to County in a complete and correct form and in a timely manner as set forth in this Contract,  such failure 
may impact the timing of payment by County under Section 13.0. 
 
 9.3 Match Data.  Pursuant to Section 13.2.1, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS reports that provide 
all of the information requested for match data, as reasonably required by County, within twenty (20) days after the end 
of the month to which the report relates.  If Contractor fails to provide this information to County in a complete and 
correct form and in a timely manner as set forth in this Contract, such failure may impact the timing of payment by 
County under Section 13.0. 
 
 9.4   Final Close-Out Report.  Contractor shall deliver a close-out report as required by  TCHHSVS no 
later than sixty (60) calendar days following the termination of any Contract Term (Initial and/or Renewal). 
 
 9.5   Other Funding Sources.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall provide County, through 
TCHHSVS, copies of all evaluation and monitoring reports provided to Contractor from other funding sources listed 
under "Summary of Agency Revenue Sources" during the Contract Term.  Contractor shall report to TCHHSVS any 
changes in total funding received from other funding sources of 10% or more of Contractor's entire budget as well as 
any changes in total program funding that will significantly impact Contractor's ability to meet performance measures 
specific to this Contract.  Such report shall be made within twenty (20) working days after receipt of the notice of that 
change by submission of a revised "Program Funding Summary" Form, or other form as designated by County 
Department.    
 
 9.6   Financial Reports.  Upon request by County, Contractor shall deliver to TCHHSVS copies of all of 
Contractor's financial reports that have been approved by Contractor's Board of Trustees, to include the Contractor's 
Year-to-Date Balance sheet and income statement.  
 
 9.7   Additional Reports.  Contractor shall deliver to County Department within twenty (20) working 
days, any and all special reports, data, and information which the County reasonably requests that Contractor make as a 
routine or special request.   
 
 9.8   Changes in Reports.  Contractor shall provide TCHHSVS with written reports of any changes in 
any of the information, reports, and/or records provided to County pursuant to this Contract promptly upon Contractor 
becoming aware of any such change.  
 
 9.9   Corrections.  County may require Contractor to correct or revise any errors, omissions or other 
deficiencies in any reports or services provided by the Contractor to ensure that such reports and services fulfill the 
purposes of this Contract.  Contractor shall make the required corrections or revisions without additional costs to 
County.   
 
 9.10   Legal Prohibition.  If Contractor is legally prohibited from providing any required or requested 
reports, it shall immediately notify County, through TCHHSVS, in writing of this fact immediately upon Contractor 
becoming aware of it.  Such notice shall include specific identification of the basis of the prohibition, including 
statutory citations as applicable, and shall be reviewed by County for final resolution. 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 20 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

10.0   ASSIGNMENT FOR TAXES.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Contract, if 
Contractor is delinquent in the payment of property taxes, or of any taxes due to Travis County, at any time of 
invoicing for payment, Contractor hereby assigns any payment and/or advance to be made for services and activities 
provided to Eligible Clients under this Contract to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector for payment of delinquent 
taxes, and authorizes County to transfer those funds directly to the Travis County Tax Assessor-Collector.  
 
 VI.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY 
 
11.0   LIMITATIONS 
 
 11.1   County Approval.   
 
  11.1.1  County's Satisfaction.  Section 13.2 notwithstanding, the Parties expressly acknowledge and 

agree that County shall not be responsible for the costs of any services provided under this Contract that are 
not fully performed according to the terms of this Contract to County's satisfaction and with County's 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
  11.1.2  Responsibility and Liability.  Approval of County shall not constitute nor be deemed a 

release of the responsibility and liability of Contractor, its employees, agents or associates for the accuracy 
and competency of their reports, information, documents, or services, nor shall approval be deemed to be the 
assumption of such responsibility by County for any defect, error, omission, act or negligence or bad faith by 
Contractor, its employees, agents, or associates. 

 
 11.2   Prior Debts. County shall not be liable for costs incurred or performances rendered by Contractor 
before or after the Contract Term; for expenses not billed to County within the applicable time frames set forth in this 
Contract; or for any payment for services or activities not provided pursuant to the terms of this Contract.   
 
12.0   COUNTY OBLIGATIONS. 
 
 12.1   Current Revenue Funds. County shall make payments of invoices for services to Contractor under 
this Contract from Grant Funds available to County, and from other Contract Funds if approved by the Commissioners 
Court (including current revenue funds available to County and set aside for this purpose), in accordance with the Grant 
agreement (“Attachment F”) and the terms of this Contract, including the remaining exhibits and attachments hereto.  
County is paying for the performance of governmental functions and services from current revenues available to 
County.  The payment is in an amount that fairly compensates Contractor for the services or functions performed under 
this Contract. 
 
 12.2   Poverty Income Guidelines.  County, through County Department, shall notify Contractor of any 
changes in the Poverty Income Guidelines that occur during the Contract Term. 
 
  12.3   County Confidentiality.  County agrees to keep confidential at all times all information that 
identifies clients and personnel and any other information received from Contractor if required to do so by law. 
 
 12.4 Immunity or Defense.  It is expressly understood and agreed by all Parties that, neither the 
execution of this Contract, nor any conduct of any representative of either Party relating to this Contract, shall be 
considered to waive, nor shall it be deemed to have waived, any immunity or defense that would otherwise be available 
to such Party against claims arising in the exercise of its governmental powers and functions, nor shall it be considered 
a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit. 
 
 12.5 County Training.  In exchange for and in the furtherance of certain services which may be provided 
by Contractor, County may, in certain instances, within applicable County guidelines and policies, and with 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 21 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

Contractor's agreement, offer specific training to Contractor and/or Contractor's employees, agents, or authorized 
representatives.  Additional Contractor opportunities may be made contingent upon the successful completion of such 
training by County to the extent determined necessary by County.  
 

VII.  FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 
 
13.0   CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
 13.1  Maximum Funds. 
 
  13.1.1  Maximum Amount. 
 

  (i)  Subject to the requirements in Sections 13.1.2 and 13.2 and other applicable provisions 
 of this Contract, in consideration of full and satisfactory performance of the services and activities 
 provided by Contractor under the terms of this Contract, as determined by County, County shall 
 provide Contract Funds not to exceed the following amount during the Initial Contract Term: 
 

$ 60,845.00 
  

  (ii) Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the sum stated in this Section 
 13.1.1 is the maximum amount to be paid by County to Contractor during the Initial Contract Term 
 period unless Section 13.1.1 is changed pursuant to Section 3.0, and that the total costs of this 
Contract  shall not exceed the amount included in the County budget and designated for this purpose 
for this  Contract for the Contract Term unless or until an increase in the County budget for this Contract is 
 approved by Commissioners Court. 
 
  (iii) Contract Funds are provided through the County's PIR Grant.  Should  Grant 
funds be withdrawn, decreased, or otherwise not provided to County, the County's  not-to-exceed amount in 
Section 13.1.1(i) above shall be reduced accordingly.  County shall  advise Contractor of any decrease in 
Grant funds, and shall not be responsible for payment of any  expenses incurred for Grant activities 
provided by Contractor after such notice. 

 
  13.1.2  Fiscal Year Limitations on Funding.   
 

  (a)  Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that County funding obligations can 
 ONLY be incurred for the portion of any Contract Term corresponding to a time period included in 
the  approved budget for any one Fiscal Year.   

  (b)    In no event shall any provision of this Contract or any agreement subject to this 
 Contract be interpreted to obligate the County beyond the funds approved by the Commissioners 
 Court for any Fiscal Year/budget period.  Advances and payments by County during the Initial Term 
 or any Contract Term shall be subject to the Fiscal Year limitations applicable to this Contract under 
 Section 13.0. 

  (c)   Funding provided through federal, state, or other grantor organization cannot 
 exceed the term of such grant, whether or not the term of the grant corresponds to the County Fiscal 
 Year. 

  13.1.3  County Payment.  County agrees, and Contractor acknowledges, that determination of 
allowable expenses and payment of Contract Funds will be directed by County Department.   

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 22 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
 13.2   Payments to Contractor. 
 
  13.2.1  Payment(s)   
 

  (a)  Request for Payment.   
 

     (i)  Monthly Request.  Each month during any Contract or Renewal Term,  
  Contractor shall file, within the time limits set forth in this Section 13.2.1, the complete and  
 correct (as reasonably determined by County Department) Request for Payment form(s)   
 (Attachment B) pursuant to Section 13.2.1(b) below) and complete backup documentation as  
 herein outlined.  Contractor understands and agrees that additional documentation   
 supporting Contract expenses, such as signed timesheets, invoice, receipts, purchase orders,  
 or other information, may be reviewed by County during monitoring visit(s), and that   
 additional reporting requirements may be implemented by County at any time that such   
 monitoring or review reveals a need for such, as reasonably determined by County. 

 
 (ii) Timely Filing of Request.  The Request for Payment form(s) and match 
data shall be filed with the TCHHSVS within  twenty (20) days of the end of the month for 
which services  are provided.  Any delay by Contractor in the filing of the complete and 
correct Request for Payment Form may impact the ultimate receipt of payment by 
Contractor.   County shall pay Contractor for authorized expenditures, as determined and 
approved by the County Department reported in that Request for Payment within thirty (30) 
days of receipt by TCHHSVS of that complete and correct (as explained in Section 
13.2.1(b) below) Request for Payment.     

  
  (b)  Complete and Correct Request.  Contractor understands and agrees that the payment by 
 County of the Request for Payment amount will only be made where a complete and correct Request 
 for Payment is determined by County to have been filed.   
 

    (i)  Contractor Corrections.  If County determines that corrections and/or changes  
 to the Request for Payment are necessary, the Request for Payment will be returned to   
 Contractor and those corrections or changes must be made by Contractor prior to the Request  
 for Payment being certified by County for payment.  If the completion of those corrections  
 and/or changes by Contractor and subsequent re-submission to TCHHSVS result in the delay  
 of the certification of a Request for Payment (or "invoice") by County, Contractor    
 understands and agrees that the time for payment under the Prompt Payment Act will not   
 begin to run until that invoice has been corrected so that it is, as reasonably determined by   
 County Department correct and complete as necessary for certification by County.  The time  
 for payment under the Prompt Payment Act will only begin at the receipt of the Request for  
 Payment by TCHHSVS of what is reasonably determined to be a complete and correct   
 Request for Payment. 

 
    (ii)  County Correction.  At any time that County discovers a discrepancy in an  

  invoice that would result in Contractor receiving up to Five Dollars ($5.00) less than the  
  amount invoiced,  County may contact Contractor for written permission (via email or fax)  
 to adjust the invoice according to the County's determination.  Upon receipt of such written  
 permission, County may adjust the invoice as agreed to by Contractor and Contractor agrees  
 to accept the resulting payment as payment in full; no further accounting will be made nor   
 any future payments be adjusted related to the amount so waived by Contractor under this   
 provision.  This provision allowing for correction by County of a Request for Payment will  

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 23 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 ONLY apply where the County's determination of money to be paid to Contractor is less than  
 the total amount shown on the Request for Payment; at any time that the discrepancy   
 involves and increase in the amount to be paid, the Request for Payment will be returned to   
 Contractor for correction. 

 
    (iii)  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the County Auditor will also have 

to   approve the invoice as complete and correct before any payment will be made, and may  
  require changes or corrections to that invoice prior to payment.  

 
  13.2.2  Request Limitation. County shall not be liable to Contractor for any costs incurred by 

Contractor in the performance of this Contract which are not billed to County under the applicable terms of 
this Contract within sixty (60) days following the provision of the service or sixty (60) days following the 
termination of this Initial Contract Term (or any Contract Term, as applicable to the term in which the services 
were provided), whichever occurs first. Costs billed by Contractor on or after the 61st day following the 
termination of any Contract Term shall be considered disallowed and may not be paid by County.  Where 
costs are funded through a grant, the terms of the grant shall dictate the number of days to disallowance, less 
time needed for County review and approval under the terms of the grant.  

 
14.0   ALLOWABLE COSTS 
 
 14.1   Direct Performance.  References to reimbursable costs in this Contract refer only to those costs or 
expenses authorized to be paid by County to Contractor under the terms of this Contract by Contract Funds. Costs shall 
be considered allowable only if, as reasonably determined by County, those costs are: 
 
  (a)  incurred directly and specifically in the performance of this Contract; and  
  (b)  incurred pursuant to all requirements of this Contract; and  
  (c)  incurred in conformance with budget documents attached hereto and in accordance with State of 

Texas financial law and County policy; and 
  (d)  if paid with grant funds, incurred in conformance with and as authorized under the terms of this 

grant. 
 
Indirect Costs, as defined by OMB A-87 or A-122, as applicable, are not considered to be allowable costs under this 
Contract. 
 
 14.2   Specific Prior Authorization.  Contractor understands and agrees that, in order to be considered 
reimbursable under this Contract, any expense MUST be included and identifiable in Contractor's budget document 
attached to this Contract.  That requirement notwithstanding, the following subsections contain additional requirements 
regarding certain Contract expenses:   
 
  14.2.1 Items NOT in Contractor's Budget.  Section 14.1 notwithstanding, if the following are 

NOT in Contractor's specific budget documents (specific inclusion in the budget document will be 
considered approval), County's prior written authorization, through County Department, by the County 
Executive, is required in order for the following to be considered allowable costs, and therefore 
reimbursable under this Contract: 

 
  (i)  Purchases of any non-expendable Capital Acquisition Property which meets the 
 following criteria: 

 
    (a)   The following if with a value of $500.00 or more:  Fax machines, stereo  

 systems, cameras, video recorder/players, microcomputers, software, printers, microscopes,  
 oscilloscopes, centrifuges, balances and incubators. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 24 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

   
    (b) any other tangible non-expendable property with a value of more than  

  $5,000.00. 
 
    (ii)   Alteration or relocation of facilities.  
 

  (iii) The acquisition of all consultant or professional services, as may be approved 
under  the terms of this Contract.  

  
 All authorized consultant or professional services must be documented utilizing the appropriate County form. 
 
  14.2.2 Out Of Town Travel.  Out of town travel shall be approved/reimbursed pursuant to Section 

14.4. 
 
  14.2.3   Notification.  Contractor shall provide County, through TCHHSVS, written notification of 

any change in vendor or subcontractor (including consultants) which has been identified in Contractor's 
budget prior to submission of a Request for Payment related to such vendor or subcontractor in order to ensure 
payment.   

 
  14.2.4   Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs which are described by this Subsection 14.2 which 

are incurred by Contractor without the required approval shall be considered disallowed and may not be paid 
by County.  Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, the County Executive of the County Department 
cannot authorize as an allowable cost items which are not allowable under the terms of any grant funding 
agreement or which have not received an authorized budget appropriation. 

   
 14.3 Taxes.  County shall not be liable for state, local or federal excise taxes of Contractor.  Contractor 
must be able to demonstrate on-site compliance with the Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986, section 1706, amending 
Section 530 of the Revenue Act of 1978, dealing with issuance of Form W-2's to common law employees.  The 
Contractor is responsible for both Federal and State Unemployment insurance coverage and standard Workers' 
Compensation Insurance coverage. Contractor must comply with all Federal and State tax laws and withholding 
requirements.  County will not be liable to Contractor or its employees for any Unemployment or Workers' 
Compensation coverage, or Federal or State withholding requirements. 
 
 14.4 Out of Town Travel Expenses.  
 
  14.4.1 Allowable Travel.  In order to be considered a reimbursable expense under this Contract, all 

travel must be for a purpose directly related to the provision of services under this Contract (with supporting 
documentation available for review by County).  Individual(s) included in travel must either be employees or, 
if allowed by grant where grant funds are being utilized, volunteers who must participate in such travel in 
order to further the provision of services provided under this Contract.  Final determination of such 
relationship shall be made by County in its sole reasonable judgment, and Contractor understands and agrees 
that, if Contractor has reasonable doubt about the relationship of the travel or participants to County services, 
it is the Contractor's obligation to secure County determination or risk such costs being disallowed by County. 

 
  14.4.2 Budget.  Travel will be considered approved only if the expense of such travel is included 

in Contractor's budget and the details of the travel have been provided according to the Out Of Town Travel 
Form ("Travel Form") attached to this Contract as Attachment B (v).  If that Travel Form has not been 
completed and included in this Contract, then the Travel Form must be completed and submitted to County 
through the County Department for written approval by the County Executive or her designated representative 
prior to the travel taking place.  Contractor agrees to provide such information within a timeframe that will 
allow sufficient time for review and approval by County Department prior to departure.  Expenses set out in 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 25 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

the Travel Form must meet the requirements in Section 14.4..4 below and must fall within the amount set 
forth in Contractor's budget for travel. 

 
  14.4.3 Failure to Obtain Approval.  Any costs incurred related to travel without the approval 

required under this Section 14.4 shall be considered disallowed and may not be paid by County. 
 
  14.4.4 County Policies.  Expenses for travel and attendance to destinations outside the City of 

Austin/Travis County are NOT considered an allowable expense and will not be reimbursable under this 
Contract unless those expenses meet the following criteria (and documentation provided/made available 
supporting compliance with these requirements): 

 
  (a) Mileage -  
 - Reimbursed at the annual standard rate set by the Internal Revenue Services. 

- Starts from the employee's regular work place on business workdays and from the employee's home on 
non-work days and holidays. 
- Travel out of county greater than 1000 miles round-trip - transportation expenses are reimbursed in an 
amount not to exceed the cost of round-trip coach airfare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance. 
- Transportation expenses include lodging, meals and mileage incurred as a result of driving rather than 
flying. 

  (b) Air Fare - 
- Not to exceed the rate of a non-refundable coach fare in effect at the time of the travel encumbrance 

  (c) Accommodations -  
- Based on rates, plus taxes, quoted by the lodging place if government rates are not available. 

 - Supporting documentation of lodging place and quoted rates must be provided 
  (d) Meals - 
  - $46.00 per day including gratuities without receipts 
  OR 
 - Up to $60.00 per day for meals and gratuities up to 15% if receipts are submitted 
 - Only if required to be away from home overnight 
 - No reimbursement for alcoholic beverages 
  (e) Incidental Expenses - 
 - Actual costs of car rentals, taxi fares, parking fees, and bus fares if receipts are attached 
 - Mileage for two round trips to airport if choose to get a ride instead of parking 
 - Cab fare to and from airport 

- No reimbursement for extracurricular activities such as golf, tennis, entertainment, movies, tours or sport 
events 
- No payment for fines for violation of the law such as parking tickets, speeding tickets, etc. 

 - No payment for food and/or beverages provided at meetings or in-house training 
  (f) Alternate Travel -  

- May be reimbursed for alternate travel arrangements (transportation mode, accommodations, or schedule) 
provided that the cost is not greater than the least expensive alternative if pre-approved 

 
Out of town travel expenses under this Section 14.4 which do not meet the specified County criteria cannot be 
approved by the County Executive, but would have to be taken to the Commissioners Court for approval PRIOR to 
travel.  All out-of-town travel expenses must be included in Contractor's budget.   
 
 14.5 Overtime Compensation.  Contractor may use any Contract Funds to pay overtime and/or the 
associated fringe benefits on such overtime if the overtime meets the following requirements: 
 
  (a)  Amount is included in the Contractor's budget; and 

 (b) Amount is actually incurred by a Contractor employee who holds a position which is included in 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 26 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

the budget for reimbursement by County Funds (as documented by a signed timesheet); and 
 (c) Amount is incurred as a necessity in the provision of direct services provided under this Contract; 
and 
 (d)  Contractor maintains and implements a written policy concerning overtime compensation which 
manages and controls the use of overtime to minimize the need for overtime compensation. 

 
 14.6 Non-Allowable Costs.  The following costs are not reimbursable, whether incurred directly or 
indirectly by Contractor: 
  
  (a)  Other Post employment Benefits (OPEB) for employees whether or not those costs are for 

current year benefits, prior year benefits, or future year benefits. 
 
  (b)  Employee recognition, rewards, or awards other than performance pay pursuant to compensation 

schedules. 
 
  (c)  Entertainment and gifts, including meals or beverages, even if related to a business purpose.  

This subsection (c) notwithstanding, the Contract will pay for meal and beverage expenses for employees 
incurred during out-of-town trips or conferences related to services provided under this Contract if properly 
budgeted and if incurred according to the Contractor's travel policy as approved by County. 

 
  (d)  Legislative consultant services. 
 
  (e)  Donations to non-profit or private organizations. 
 
  (f)  Legal services.  The Parties agree that the agency has no obligation to provide legal services to 

County under this Contract. 
 
  (g)  General consulting services.  This subsection (g) notwithstanding, the Contract budget may 

include consulting services specifically related to services provided within the terms of this Contract. 
 
15.0  RETURN OF CONTRACT FUNDS 
 
  15.1 Contractor Liability.  Contractor shall be liable to County and refund money paid and/or 
advanced to Contractor upon a reasonable determination by County that the payment of such money:  
 
   15.1.1  has resulted in overpayment 
   15.1.2   has not been spent strictly in accordance with Contract terms; 
   15.1.3 exceeds the total expenditures actually reported by Contractor; or 
   15.1.4  to be disallowed pursuant to financial, performance and/or compliance audit(s). 
 
 15.2  Return of Funds.  Return of funds under this Section 15.0 shall be made by Contractor to 
County within thirty (30) days of request by County and from funds other than Contract Funds.  County may offset 
the amount of any funds owed under this Section against the next advance or payment to Contractor under this or 
any subsequent contract if the return of funds is not made within that thirty (30) day period. 
 
16.0   AUDIT 
 
 16.1   Annual Audit.  Unless otherwise authorized by County, through TCHHSVS, under the terms of this 
Contract, Contractor shall arrange for the performance of an annual (at least one time during each consecutive 365-day 
period) financial audit of Contract Funds to be performed within 180 days of the Contractor's fiscal year end, subject to 
the following conditions and limitations:  

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 27 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
  16.1.1   Single Audit. 

  
  a.  Single Audit Act Application.  For each fiscal year included within a contract period 
 specified in Section 2.0 ("Contract Term") of this Contract, in which Contractor expends a total of 
 $500,000 or more in Federal awards from all sources, Contractor shall have an audit conducted in 
 accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, 31 U.S.C., Section 7501 et seq., and OMB Circular 
No. 133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and other Non-profit Institutions." 

 
  b.  No Single Audit Act Application.  Contractors not subject to the Single Audit Act, and 
 expending $500,000 or more during the Contractor's fiscal year must have a full financial audit 
 performed.  If less than $500,000 is expended, then a financial review is acceptable, pursuant to the 
 requirements of this Contract. 

 
    c.  Performance Requirements.  The audit or review must be:         
                                                                                 

    (i)  performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant ("CPA"), recog-
nized by the regulatory authority of the State of Texas and a member in good standing of the   
 American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and 

 
    (ii)  made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and 

procedures for a non-profit organization and auditing standards (including a Statement of Functional 
Expenses) as stated in the "American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide - Audits 
of Voluntary Health and Welfare Organization;" and  

 
    (iii)  provided for any/each of Contractor's Fiscal Years in which County Funds 

are provided. 
  

  16.1.2  Entire Operations Option.  At the option of Contractor, each audit or review required by this 
Section 16.0 may cover either Contractor's entire operations or each department, agency, or establishment of 
Contractor which received, expended, or otherwise administered Contract Funds.  

 
  16.1.3  Financial Records.  Contractor must maintain records which adequately identify the source 

and application of funds provided for those services purchased with Contract Funds.  These records must 
contain information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, un-obligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays 
or expenditures and income related to Contract Funds. 

 
  16.1.4  Copies.  Contractor shall provide two (2) copies of  its most recent report of the review or 

audit to County through TCHHSVS upon completion within 180 days of the end of the Contractor's fiscal 
year end, but such copies shall be provided no later than September 30 of each year in which County funds are 
received under this Contract. County Department will complete final review of such reports within a 
reasonable time after September 30 of each year upon receipt of such reports.   Copies of the report shall also 
include the auditor's opinion and letters to management. Reviews and audits performed under Section 16.1 are 
subject to consideration and resolution by County or its authorized representative.  Failure to provide such 
copies in a timely manner may result in delay of payment, suspension or termination of the Contract by 
County, unless Contractor is receiving grant funds and notifies the County that a longer period is needed 
because of requirements directly related to grant requirements. 

 
  16.1.5  Continued Obligation.  The expiration or termination of this Contract shall in no way relieve  

Contractor of the obligation to meet the requirements of this Section 16.0 in the manner or format prescribed 
by County. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 28 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
  16.1.6  Cost of Audit.  Contractor understands and agrees that all or a portion of the cost of the 

annual audit as required under this Section 16.0 may be considered an allowable cost and reimbursable under 
this Contract if the following requirements are met: 

 
  (a)  cost is included in Contractor's budget, with the subcontractor providing such services 
 correctly identified; and  

 
  (b)  the cost billed to County is no greater than the percentage relationship of Contract 
Funds  to Contractor's total annual budget, with the cost of the audit being a reasonable cost for such 
services  as agreed to by County.  For example, if the total amount of Contract Funds provided under this 
 Contract is ten percent (10%) of the total Contractor annual budget, then Contract Funds may be 
used  to reimburse up to ten percent (10%) of the total cost of the annual audit;  and  
 
  (c)  the Contract Funds appropriated for this Contract are not Grant Funds. 
 

  16.2   County Audit.  Notwithstanding Section 16.1, County reserves the right to conduct an annual 
financial, compliance, and/or performance audit of the Contract.  Contractor agrees to permit County or its authorized 
representative, to audit Contractor's records and to obtain any documents, materials, or information necessary to 
facilitate such audit. 
 
 16.3   Facilitation.  Contractor shall take whatever action is appropriate to facilitate the performance of any 
audits conducted pursuant to Section 16.0 that County may reasonably require of Contractor.   
 
 16.4 Grant Audit Requirements.  
 
  16.4.1 Contractor shall maintain adequate financial records for all work related to Grant 

Activities, as  prescribed by 28 C.F.R., Part 66,  Subpart C, “Financial Administration” and “Reports, 
Records, Retention, and Enforcement;”  and shall make such records available for audit by County and 
others as set forth in this Section 16.0.  The Contractor also shall maintain such records as are deemed 
necessary by the County to assure  proper accounting for all costs, including expenditure of incentive 
monies, if applicable. All of the records specified in this Section shall be retained as subsequently specified 
herein. 

 
  16.4.2  All records, books, documents, accounting procedures, or practices relating to Grant 

Activities and utilizing Grant Funds shall be subject to examination and/or audit in accordance with all 
applicable state and federal laws, rules, regulations or directives, by the County, the State Auditor, the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their 
duly authorized representatives as applicable.  Contractor shall direct that any subcontractor/ subrecipient 
with whom it has established a contractual relationship to discharge the Contractor's Grant obligations 
under this Contract to likewise permit the County and, if applicable, the State Auditor, the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services, and the Comptroller General of the United States, to have rights of access 
to, inspection of, and reproduction of all books and records of the subcontractor(s)/ subrecipient(s)  that 
pertain to Grant Activities provided under  this Contract. 

 
  16.4.3 Contractor shall maintain and retain for a period of three (3) years after the termination of 

this Contract, or until full and final resolution of all audit or litigation matters which arise before the 
expiration of the three (3) year period, whichever time period is longer, such records as are necessary to 
fully disclose the extent of services provided under this Contract, including but not limited to, any daily 
activity reports and time distribution and attendance records, and other records which may show the basis 
of the allowable cost charges made. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 29 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
  16.4.4 In order to comply with the monitoring and auditing requirements governing this 

Contract, Contractor is considered a subrecipient of federal grant funds under the Promoting Safe and 
Stable Families Program, Administration on Children, Youth and Families, U. S. Department of Health and 
Human Services.  All accounting records should identify the source of Grant Funds received by the 
Contractor under this Contract as federal grant funds passed through from the County. 

 
  16.4.5 In addition to other requirements of the Contract, funds received pursuant to this Contract 

shall be audited in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 by the Contractor's  independent auditor.  
Contractor shall give the County a copy of the entire auditor's report and management letter within sixty 
(60) days of the completion of the audit. 

 
17.0 TRANSFER OF FUNDS.   
 
 17.1 Grant Funds.  Notwithstanding Section 3.0, and as specifically applicable, Contractor may transfer 
funds without a written amendment to this Contract ONLY if Contractor has followed the process set forth in 
Section 17.3 of this Contract. 
 
 17.2 Other Funds.  Notwithstanding the requirements of Section 3.0 of this Contract and, as specifically 
applicable, Contractor may transfer other non-Grant Funds without a written amendment to this Contract ONLY if 
ALL of the following requirements are met: 
 

 17.2.1 the transfer moves funds ONLY between line items within the SAME program 
("Program").  IF Contractor is uncertain as to the definition of "line item" and "program" as used in this 
provision, Contractor is responsible for contacting TCHHSVS for a determination as to the applicability of 
this requirement to the Contractor's request for transfer; and 

 
 17.2.2  the cumulative amount of the transfers between direct budget categories (Personnel, 

Operating Expenses, Direct Assistance and/or Equipment/Capital Outlay) is  not more than ten percent (10%) 
of the Contract total for that Program shown in Section 13.2; and 

 
 17.2.3  the transfer will not change the scope or objective of the programs funded  under 

this Contract, solely as determined by County through TCHHSVS prior to transfer; and 
 
 17.2.4 the transfer follows the process set forth in Section 17.3. 

 
 17.3   Process.  To complete transfer under this Section 17.0 (both Sections 17.1 and 17.2 funds), 
Contractor must submit a budget revision form to the County through TCHHSVS prior to, or simultaneously with, the 
submission of the Contractor's first monthly billing to the County following the transfer which shall reflect such 
changes.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees that failure to meet the requirements of this Section 17.0 may result in 
any transfer of funds being disallowed; as such, the disallowed amount will not be paid by County.  If County 
reasonably determines that payment has been made incorrectly for expenses in violation of this Section 17.0, 
Contractor agrees to refund such payment in full to County within twenty (20) days of written request by County for 
such refund.   
 

VIII.  SUSPENSION/TERMINATION 
 
18.0 SUSPENSION.  If Contractor fails to comply with any term of this Contract, including failure to deliver 
reports required by Section 9.0 and make corrections required by Section 22.0, or if the Commissioners Court requests 
a financial review or performance evaluation related to a reasonable cause to believe that Contractor is not using 
Contract Funds in compliance with the terms of this Contract, County may, upon written notification to Contractor, 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 30 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

suspend this Contract in whole or in part and withhold further payments to Contractor. Contractor agrees that 
Contractor shall not incur additional obligations of Contract Funds until Contractor is in compliance with the terms of 
this Contract or the reports of the financial review and/or program evaluation are completed and all exceptions noted in 
these reports are corrected to County's satisfaction, which County shall not unreasonably withhold. 
 
19.0 TERMINATION 
 
 19.1 Reasons for Termination.  County shall have the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in 
part, at any time before the date of termination specified in Section 2.0 of this Contract for the following reasons: 
 
  19.1.1  Failure to Comply.  Contractor has failed to comply with any term or condition of this 

Contract, including, but not limited to, the failure to deliver reports required by this Contract and make those 
corrections required by this Contract, 

 
  19.1.2  County Funding Out.  During the budget planning and adoption process, Commissioners 

Court fails to provide funding for this Contract for any County Fiscal Year following the beginning of the 
Contract Term, 

  
  19.1.3  Contractor's Ability to Perform.  County finds that Contractor is in a financial condition that 

endangers Contractor's ability to perform this Contract or Contractor is delinquent in the payment of taxes or 
cost of performance of this Contract in the ordinary course of business, or Contractor is in a technical state of 
bankruptcy as defined by the Federal Bankruptcy Act and is subject to the appointment of a trustee, receiver 
or liquidator for all, or a substantial part, of Contractor's property or to the institution of bankruptcy, 
reorganization, rearrangement or liquidation proceedings by or against Contractor, 

 
  19.1.4  Contractor's Ability to Conform.  Contractor is unable to conform to changes required by 

federal, state and local laws or regulations, or 
 
  19.1.5  Beneficial Results.  County finds that Contractor is not producing results that are sufficiently 

beneficial to warrant continued expenditure of Contract Funds. 
 
 19.2  Notification.  County Purchasing Agent shall notify Contractor pursuant to the "Notice" provision of 
this Contract in writing at least thirty (30) days before the date of termination of the decision to terminate; the reasons 
for the termination; the effective date of the termination; and in the case of partial termination, the portion of the 
Contract to be terminated. 
 
 19.3   Contractor Termination.  Contractor may terminate this Contract in whole or in part at any time, 
by giving thirty (30) days written notice pursuant to Section 23.0 if there is termination of significant other funding 
upon which Contractor depends for performance under this Contract or if Contractor is dissolved, only if the 
dissolution is not caused by a breach of this Contract.  Contractor's notice shall include a complete explanation of the 
reasons(s) for termination under this Section 19.3 and designation of the effective date of termination. The Purchasing 
Agent shall notify Contractor in writing of acceptance of termination pursuant to this Section 19.3 upon finding that 
Contractor's claim(s) under this Section 19.3 have been established to County's reasonable satisfaction. 
 
 19.4   Mutual Termination.  Any Party has the right to terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, when  
the Parties agree that the continuation of the activities funded under this Contract would not produce beneficial results 
commensurate with the further expenditure of funds or that mutually satisfactory resolution to a disagreement related to 
County Financial Requirements under Section 5.1.4(vi) cannot be achieved; provided that both Parties agree, in 
writing, upon the termination conditions, including the effective date of the termination; the provisions under which 
termination shall be accepted;  and, in the case of partial termination, the portion of the Contract to be terminated. 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 31 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 19.5   Correction.  At least thirty (30) days before the effective date of termination by County pursuant to 
any provision of this Contract, County shall notify Contractor in compliance with Section 23.0 of the reasons for 
termination, the effective date of termination and the portion of this Contract to be terminated.  Where applicable, as 
reasonably determined by County, Contractor may avoid the termination of this Contract if Contractor corrects the 
causes for the reasons for termination stated in the notice to the satisfaction of County, as reasonably determined by 
County, prior to the effective date of termination, or an extended date if agreed to in writing by the Parties. 
 
 19.6   Results of Termination. 
 
  19.6.1  Cancellation of Outstanding Orders.  Upon termination or receipt of notice to terminate, 

whichever occurs first, Contractor shall cancel, withdraw, or otherwise terminate any outstanding orders or 
Subcontracts related to the performance of this Contract, or the part of this Contract to be terminated, and shall 
cease to incur costs under them.  County shall not be liable to Contractor or to Contractor's creditors for costs 
incurred after termination of this Contract.  County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract. 

 
  19.6.2  Continued Liability.  Notwithstanding any exercise by County of its right of suspension under 

Section 18.0 of this Contract or of early termination pursuant to this Section 19.0 or any provision of this 
Contract, Contractor shall not be relieved of any liability to County for damages due to County by virtue of 
any breach of this Contract by Contractor, or for any amounts paid to Contractor by County and reasonably 
determined by County to be overpayment(s), disallowed payment(s), or payment(s) subject to refund under 
the terms of this Contract.  County may withhold payments to Contractor until the exact amount of damages 
or payments due to County from Contractor is agreed upon or is otherwise determined, and is paid in full. 

 
  19.6.3 Transition.  Where applicable, at the end of the Contract Term or at the time of any other 

Contract termination or cancellation, the Contractor shall in good faith and in reasonable cooperation with 
County, aid in transition to any new arrangement or provider of services which have been provided under 
this Contract as necessary to protect Client interests. 

 
 19.7 Immediate Termination.  Nothing in this Section 19.0, or any other provision of this Contract, shall 
be construed to limit County's authority to withhold payment and immediately suspend Contractor's performance under 
this Contract if County identifies possible instances of fraud, abuse, waste, fiscal mismanagement, or other serious 
deficiencies in Contractor's performance.  Suspension shall be a temporary measure pending either corrective action by 
Contractor or a decision by County to terminate this Contract.  County shall not be liable for any costs incurred by 
Contractor during suspension of this Contract under this Section 19.7.   
 
 
 VIII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 
20.0   INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR.   
 
 20.1 The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that Contractor is an independent contractor and 
assumes all of the rights, obligations and liabilities applicable to it as an independent contractor.  No employee of 
Contractor shall be considered an employee of County or gain any rights against County pursuant to County's 
personnel policies.  The relationship of County and Contractor under this Contract is not and shall not be construed or 
interpreted to be a partnership, joint venture or agency.  The relationship of the Parties shall be an independent 
contractor relationship.  Neither Party shall have the authority to make any statements, representations or commitments 
of any kind, or to take any action which shall be binding on the other Party or which shall hold itself out to be binding 
on the other Party. 
 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 32 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
21.0   SUBCONTRACTS 
 
 21.1   Prior Approval.  Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontracts for any service or activity relating 
to the performance of this Contract without the prior written approval or the prior written waiver of this right of 
approval from County through the Purchasing Agent.  Approval of this Contract will constitute approval as required by 
this Section 21.1 for those Subcontracts/Subcontractors specifically identified in the Contract terms, including the 
Attachments. 
 
 21.2   Contractor Responsibility.   
 
  21.2.1  Subcontractor Compliance.  Contractor is wholly responsible to County for the performance 

under this Contract, whether such performance is provided directly by Contractor or indirectly by any 
Subcontractor.  Contractor is responsible to County for the performance of any Subcontractor, and shall 
monitor both financial and programmatic performance and maintain pertinent records concerning 
Subcontractor(s) that shall be available for inspection by County.  Contractor shall ensure that its 
Subcontractors comply with all applicable terms of this Contract (including terms related to records and 
reports) as if the performance rendered by the Subcontractor was being rendered by Contractor.  Contractor 
shall inspect all Subcontractors' work and shall be responsible for ensuring that it is completed in a good and 
workmanlike manner pursuant to the terms of this Contract. 

 
  21.2.2  Subcontract Terms.  Contractor agrees that all Subcontracts will include provisions which 

require compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations and policies, with the 
applicable terms of this Contract, and with any provisions such as may be reasonably requested by County; 
and shall also include provisions ensuring the following: 

 
   (a)  The disclosure of any other contracts with County at the time the Subcontract is signed 
 or at any time during the Contract Term.  If such contract exists, Subcontractor shall warrant and 
 guarantee that Subcontractor will report and receive payment for each service/participant only from 
 County funds under this Contract; and that there will be no duplicate payments for those 
 services/participants reported under this Contract from any other sources or from County under any 
 other contract or agreement.   
 

  (b)  Agreement: 
 
   (i)  to reasonably cooperate with any County inquiry or investigation into Subcontractor 

 and/or participant complaints; and 
 
   (ii)  to maintain confidentiality of information and security of all records as required by law; 

and 
 
   (iii)  that Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered by 

 Subcontractor; and, in the event of non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations, sole recourse 
 of Subcontractor against Contractor will be through Contractor or the bankruptcy estate of 
Contractor; and 

 
  (iv)  that County is not liable for any payment to Subcontractor; and 
 

   (v)  to warrant that Subcontractor has systems in place to identify and document services to 
 participants according to different funding sources; and 

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 33 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

   (vi)  to warrant that service/participant for which County pays will not also be paid for by 
 any other funding source or by County under any other contract, pursuant to Section 6.3 of this 
 Contract; and 

 
   (vii)  to assure Contractor's ability to meet all Contract requirements, including but not 

 limited to reporting requirements. 
 
 21.3   Contract Limitation.  This Contract sets out the agreements and obligations between County and 
Contractor only, and does not obligate County in any way to any of Contractor's Subcontractors, nor to any other third 
party.  This Contract creates no third party beneficiary rights as between County and any of Contractor's 
Subcontractors.  Contractor has the sole responsibility for payment for services rendered by Subcontractors with 
Subcontractor's sole recourse in the event of Contractor non-payment, insolvency or cessation of operations against 
Contractor or Contractor's bankruptcy estate.   County shall not under any circumstances be liable to Contractor's 
creditors or Subcontractors for any payments under this Contract.  Contractor agrees to include notice of the 
requirements in this section in every Subcontract.  
 
 21.4   HUB.  Contractor agrees to make a "good faith" effort to take all necessary and reasonable steps to 
insure HUBs the maximum opportunity to be Subcontractors under this Contract where HUB Subcontractors exist.  
Contractor must report all expenditures made to HUB Subcontractors to the County Purchasing Agent.  Failure by 
Contractor to make such good faith effort to employ HUBs as Subcontractors constitutes a breach of this Contract and 
may result in termination.  The Parties agree that HUB requirements and determinations will be made by the County 
Purchasing Agent, and that Contractor will contact the County Purchasing Agent with any questions regarding this 
provision.  
 
  21.5   Level of Service.  Contractor will ensure the provision of timely and quality professional services by 
individuals, agencies, or other Subcontractors which will meet or exceed applicable licensing and regulatory standards 
applicable to the service provided and will provide County relevant documentation of such licenses upon request. 
 
 21.6   Payment to Subcontractor(s).  Contractor shall use commercially reasonable effort to pay 
Subcontractor(s) for undisputed claims for services rendered within five (5) business days of receipt of payments and/or 
advances from County corresponding to those services under the terms of this Contract.  This Section 21.6 refers only 
to obligations under this Contract between County and Contractor, and does not operate to contradict or change the 
provisions in Section 21.3. 
 
 21.7 System for Award Management (SAM) .  Contractor must be currently registered or register in the 
federal SAM database and maintain an active registration for the duration of this Contract. 
 
22.0   MONITORING 
 
 22.1   County Monitoring.  County, either directly or through TCHHSVS, reserves the right to perform 
periodic on-site monitoring of Contractor's (and Subcontractors') compliance/performance with the terms of this 
Contract, and of the adequacy, effectiveness and timeliness of Contractor's performance under this Contract. Such 
monitoring visit may include review of any and all performance activities as well as any and all records or other 
documentation maintained in relation to Contractor's performance under this Contract.  Within ninety (90) days of each 
monitoring visit, County shall provide Contractor with a written report of the monitor's performance-related findings.  
If the report notes deficiencies in Contractor's performances under the terms of this Contract, it shall include 
requirements and deadlines for the correction of those deficiencies by Contractor.  Contractor shall take action specified 
in the monitoring report prior to the deadlines specified.  Failure to make required changes in a timely manner may 
result in termination of the Contract by County.  County may provide technical assistance to Contractor and may 
request changes in Contractor's accounting, administrative and management procedures in order to correct any 
deficiencies noted. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 34 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
23.0   NOTICES 
 
 23.1 Requirements.  Except as otherwise specifically noted herein, any notice required or permitted to be 
given under this Contract by one Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be given and deemed to have been 
given immediately if delivered in person to the address set forth in this section for the Party to whom the notice is 
given, or on the third day following mailing if placed in the United States Mail, postage prepaid, by registered or 
certified mail with return receipt requested, addressed to the Party at the address hereinafter specified. 
 
  23.2   County Address.  The address of County for all purposes under this Contract shall be: 
 
  Sherri Fleming, County Executive  (or her successor) 
  Travis County Department of Health, Human Services,  
  and Veterans' Services 
  502 East Highland Mall Boulevard 
  Austin, Texas 78752-3722 
and 
  Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent (or her successor) 
  Travis County Purchasing  
  P. O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas  78767 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
  Honorable David Escamilla (or his successor in office) 
  Travis County Attorney 
  P.O. Box 1748 
  Austin, Texas 78767 
  ATTENTION:  Civil Transactions 
 
 23.4   Contractor Address.  The address of the Contractor for all purposes under this Contract and for all 
notices hereunder shall be: 
 
In Person: ATCIC          
                 1430 Collier Street 
                 Austin, Texas,  78704 
  Attn:  David Evans, Chief Executive Officer 
 
By Mail:  ATCIC 
  P. O. Box 3548 
  Austin, Texas, 78764-3548 
  Attn:  David Evans, Chief Executive Officer 
 
With copies to (registered or certified mail with return receipt is not required): 
 
  ATCIC 
  P. O. Box 3548 
  Austin, Texas 78764-3548 
  Attn:  General Counsel 
 
 23.5   Change of Address. Each Party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of the 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 35 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

change in compliance with Section 23.0.  Any change in the address, including a change in the Contractor's Executive 
Director or Chairperson of the Board of Directors, shall be reported to the County Executive and the Purchasing Agent 
within twenty (20) days of the change. 
 
 23.6   Change of Name.  If a change of name is required by Contractor, the Purchasing Agent and County 
Executive shall be notified in writing immediately.  No change in the obligation of or to Contractor will be recognized 
until it is approved by the Commissioners Court.  Failure to timely provide notice under Section 23.5 and/or 23.6 may 
result in delay of payment. 
 
24.0 PROHIBITIONS 
 
 24.1   County Forfeiture of Contract.  If Contractor has done business with a Key Contracting Person as 
listed in Exhibit "A" to Attachment D during the 365 day period immediately prior to the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor or does business with any Key Contracting Person at any time after the date of execution of this 
Contract by Contractor (including business done during any Renewal Term of this Contract) and prior to full 
performance of this Contract, Contractor shall forfeit all County benefits of this Contract and County shall retain all 
performance by Contractor and recover all considerations, or the value of all consideration, paid to Contractor pursuant 
to this Contract.  Contractor shall notify County of any change in the information submitted with this Contract as to the 
Ethics Affidavit within twenty (20) days of such change throughout the Initial Term and/or any Renewal Term. 
 
 24.2   Conflict of Interest.   
 
  24.2.1 Contractor shall ensure that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or 

elected or appointed official of Contractor, or member of Contractor's governing body, who exercises or has 
exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities performed pursuant to this Contract or 
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these 
activities has or may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the activity, or have an interest in 
any contract, Subcontract or agreement with respect to it, or the proceeds under it, either for him or herself or 
those with whom he or she has family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. 

 
  24.2.2 Questionnaire.  If required by Chapter 176, Texas Local Government Code, the 

Contractor shall complete and file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire with the County Clerk, Elections 
Division, 5501 Airport Blvd., Austin, 78751. The Contractor shall update this Questionnaire by September 
of each year for the duration of this Contract as required by Chapter 176 of the Local Government Code. In 
addition, if any statement on this submitted Questionnaire becomes incomplete or inaccurate, the 
Contractor shall submit an updated Questionnaire. The Contractor should note that the law requires the 
County to provide access to this Questionnaire on the official Travis County Internet website. 

 
 24.3   Solicitation.  Contractor warrants that no persons or selling agency was or has been retained to 
solicit this Contract upon an understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona 
fide employees or bona fide established commercial selling agencies maintained by Contractor to secure business.  For 
breach or violation of this warranty, County shall have the right to terminate this Contract without liability, or, in its 
discretion to, as applicable, add to or deduct from the Contract price for consideration, or otherwise recover the full 
amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 
 
 24.4   Gratuities.  County may cancel this Contract if it is found that gratuities in the form of 
entertainment, gifts, or otherwise were offered or given by Contractor or any agent or representative to any County 
official or employee with a view toward securing favorable treatment with respect to the performing of this Contract.  
In the event this Contract is cancelled by County pursuant to this provision, the County shall be entitled, in addition to 
any other rights and remedies, to recover from Contractor a sum equal in amount to the cost incurred by Contractor in 
providing such gratuities.   Contractor's employees, officers and agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 36 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

or anything of monetary value from Subcontractors or potential Subcontractors.  Contractor shall establish safeguards 
to prohibit its employees from using their positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by 
a desire for private gain for themselves or others, particularly those with whom they have family, business or other ties. 
 
 24.5   Nepotism.  Contractor agrees that it will comply with the guidelines set forth for public officials 
under TEX. GOVERNMENT CODE ANN, Ch. 573, by ensuring that no officer, employee or member of the 
governing body of Contractor shall vote or confirm the employment of any person related within the second degree by 
affinity or third degree by consanguinity to any member of the governing body or to any other officer or employee 
authorized to employ or supervise such person. 
 
25.0   ASSIGNABILITY 
 
 25.1   Written Approval.  No  Party may assign any of the rights or duties created by this Contract without 
the prior written approval of the other Party.  This provision includes assignment, sale, merger or any other action 
resulting in any change in the status of Contractor.  It is acknowledged by Contractor that no officer, agent, employee 
or representative of County has any authority to assign any part of this Contract unless expressly granted that authority 
by the Commissioners Court.  Submission of a request for approval under this Section 25.1, "Assignment," shall be 
made in writing to the Purchasing Agent.  Failure to secure the approval required in this Section 25.1 may result in 
delay of payment or other sanctions. 
 
 25.2   Binding Agreement.  Subject to Section 25.1, this Contract shall be binding upon the successors, 
assigns, administrators, and legal representatives of the Parties to this Contract. 
 
26.0   LEGAL AUTHORITY 
 
 26.1   Contractor Authority.  Contractor guarantees that Contractor possesses the legal authority to enter 
into this Contract, receive funds authorized by this Contract, and to perform the services Contractor has obligated itself 
to perform under this Contract. 
 
 26.2   Signors.  The person or persons signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, or representing 
themselves as signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, do hereby warrant and guarantee that he, she or they have 
been duly authorized by Contractor to sign this Contract on behalf of Contractor and to bind Contractor validly and 
legally to all terms, performances, and provisions in this Contract. 
 
 26.3   Suspension.  County shall have the right to suspend or terminate this Contract if there is a dispute as 
to the legal authority of either Contractor or the person signing this Contract to enter into this Contract or to render 
performances under it.  Contractor and any person signing this Contract for Contractor are liable to County for any 
money disbursed by County for performance of the provisions of this Contract, if County has suspended or terminated 
this Contract for breach of Section 26.1 or Section 26.2. 
 
27.0   INTERPRETATIONAL GUIDELINES 
 
 27.1  Computation of Time.  When any period of time is stated in this Contract, the time shall be 
computed to exclude the first day and include the last day of the period.  If the last day of any period falls on a 
Saturday, Sunday or a day that County has declared a holiday for its employees these days shall be omitted from the 
computation. 
 
 27.2   Numbers and Gender.  Words of any gender in this Contract shall be construed to include any other 
gender and words in either number shall be construed to include the other unless the context in the Contract clearly 
requires otherwise.  
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 37 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 27.3   Headings.  The headings at the beginning of the various provisions of this Contract have been 
included only to make it easier to locate the subject matter covered by that section or subsection, and are not to be used 
in construing this Contract. 
 
28.0   OTHER PROVISIONS 
 
 28.1   Exemption From County Purchasing Act.  Pursuant to TEX. LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 
ANN. § 262 et seq., Commissioners Court hereby orders that this Contract is exempt from the requirements of the 
County Purchasing Act because it is a Contract for the purchase of personal or professional services or meets other 
requirement(s) for exemption pursuant to applicable law. 
 
 28.2   Survival of Conditions.  Applicable provisions of this Contract shall survive beyond termination or 
expiration of this Contract until full and complete compliance with all aspects of these provisions has been achieved 
where the Parties have expressly agreed that those provisions should survive any such termination or expiration or 
where those provisions remain to be performed or by their nature would be intended to be applicable following any 
such termination or expiration. 
 
 28.3   Non-Waiver of Default. One or more acts of forbearance by any Party to enforce any provision of 
this Contract or any payment, act or omission by any Party shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver of any 
breach or default of any other Party which then exists or may subsequently exist. 
 
 28.4   Reservation of Rights.  If any Party to this Contract breaches this Contract, the other Party(ies) shall 
be entitled to any and all rights and remedies provided for by the Texas law and any applicable Federal laws or 
regulations.  All rights of each Party hereunder are specifically reserved and any payment, act or omission shall not 
impair or prejudice any remedy or right that either Party may have under it.  The exercise of or failure to exercise any 
right or remedy in this Contract by either Party or the failure to act in accordance with law based upon the other Party's 
breach of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Contract, or the failure to demand the prompt performance of any 
obligation under this Contract shall not preclude the exercise by such Party of any other right or remedy under this 
Contract or under any law, nor shall any action taken or not taken in the exercise of any right or remedy be deemed a 
waiver of any other rights or remedies. 
 
 28.5   Law and Venue.  This Contract is governed by the laws of the State of Texas and all obligations 
under this Contract shall be performable in the City of Austin, Texas or in Travis County, Texas.  It is expressly 
understood that any lawsuit, litigation, or dispute arising out of or relating to this Contract will take place in Travis 
County and the City of Austin. 
 
 28.6   Severability.  If any portion of this Contract is ruled invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the 
remainder of it shall remain valid and binding.  If federal, state or local laws or other requirements are amended or 
judicially interpreted so as to render continued fulfillment of this Contract, on the part of either Party, substantially 
unreasonable or impossible, and if the Parties should be unable to agree upon any amendment that would therefore be 
needed to enable the substantial continuation of the services contemplated herein, the Parties shall be discharged from 
any further obligations created under the terms of this Contract, except for the equitable settlement of the respective 
accrued interests or obligations incurred up to the date of termination. 
 
 28.7   Political Activity.  Contractor shall not use any of the performance under this Contract or any 
portion of the Contract Funds for any activity related to influencing the outcome of any election for public office, or 
any election, or the passage or defeat of any legislative measure.   This prohibition shall not be construed to prevent any 
official or employee of Contractor from furnishing to any member of its governing body upon request or to any other 
local or state official or employee, or to any citizen, information in the hands of the employee or official not considered 
under law to be confidential.  No Contract Funds can be used directly or indirectly to hire employees or in any other 
way fund or support candidates for the legislative, executive or judicial branches of the government of Contractor, the 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 38 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

State of Texas or the government of the United States. 
 
 
 28.8   Sectarian Activity.   
 
  28.8.1   Religious Influence.  Within the limits and understandings set forth in Section 28.8.2, 

Contractor shall ensure that provision of services under this Contract shall be carried on in a manner free from 
religious influence. Contractor shall not execute any agreement with any primarily religious organization to 
receive Contract Funds from Contractor unless the agreement includes provisions such as those set forth 
herein or as provided by County, to effectuate this assurance.  Contractor shall submit such agreements to 
County prior to the release of Contract Funds to such Contractor. 

 
  28.8.2  Civil Rights Act, Section 702 Application. Contractor and County agree to be bound by the 

following as to Subcontractor(s) and Contractor respectively:  A religious organization that enters into a 
contract with County (or Subcontractor who enters into a Subcontract with Contractor) does not by so 
contracting lose exemption provided under Section 702 of the Civil Rights Act (42 U.S.C., Section 2000E-
1(a)) regarding employment practices.  A religious or charitable organization is eligible to be a Contractor on 
the same basis as any other private organization.  Contractor retains its independence from State and Local 
governments, including the Contractor's control over the definition, development, practice, and expression of 
its religious beliefs.   Except as provided by federal law, County shall not interpret this Contract to require a 
religious organization to alter its form of internal governance or remove religious art, icons, scripture or other 
symbols.   

 
 Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services nor the expenditure of 

funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious character, practices or 
expressions.  The purpose of this Contract is the provision of social services.  No expenditures have as their 
objective the funding of sectarian worship, instruction or proselytization.   

 
 Contractor shall reasonably apprise all Eligible Clients of the following and ensure the provision of services 

pursuant to the following:  
 
 Neither the County's selection of charitable or faith-based Contractor of social services nor the expenditure of 

funds under this Contract is an endorsement of the Contractor's charitable or religious character, practices or 
expressions.  No provider of social services for the County may discriminate against you on the basis of 
religion, a religious belief, or your refusal to actively participate in a religious practice.  If a Client believes 
that their rights have been violated, that complaint should be discussed with a County representative 
immediately. 

 
  28.8.3 Additional Rights.  Section 104 of the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity 

Reconciliation Act of 1996 (8 U.S.C. Section 604a) sets forth certain additional rights and responsibilities for 
charitable and faith-based providers of social services, certain additional rights of assisted individuals, and 
certain additional responsibilities of County to providers and assisted individuals.  This Contract is subject to 
those additional rights and responsibilities. 

 
 28.9   Publicity. In any publicity prepared or distributed by or for Contractor, the funding through County 
shall be mentioned as having made the project possible.  Prior to publication or any disbursement of such publicity, 
Contractor must provide a copy of the final form of the publicity and secure the approval of the County Executive.  
When appropriate as determined by County Executive, Contractor shall publicize the services and activities of 
Contractor under this Contract.  
 
 28.10 Dispute Resolution - Administration by Purchasing Agent.   When the Contractor and/or County 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 39 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

have been unable to successfully resolve any question or issue related to this Contract presented to the County under 
Section 4.3, the Contractor or County shall then present the matter to the Purchasing Agent by providing the Purchasing 
Agent with written notice of the dispute.  Such notice shall contain a specific written description of the issues involved 
as well as the Contractor's requested resolution of the dispute and any other relevant information which Contractor 
desires to include.  As of the receipt of such notice by the Purchasing Agent, the Purchasing Agent will act as the 
County representative in any further issuances and in the administration of this Contract in relation to the described 
dispute.  Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any document, notice or correspondence in relation to the disputes at 
this stage not issued by or to the Purchasing Agent is void.  If the Contractor does not agree with any document, notice 
or correspondence relating to the dispute issued by the Purchasing Agent or other authorized County person, the 
Contractor must submit a written notice to the Purchasing Agent with a copy to the County Executive within ten (10) 
calendar days after receipt of the document, notice or correspondence, outlining the exact point of disagreement in 
detail.  The Purchasing Agent will issue a written notice of the final resolution of the dispute to the Contractor within 
thirty (30) days of receipt of the initial written notice of dispute by the Purchasing Agent.  If this final resolution does 
not resolve the dispute to the Contractor's satisfaction, Contractor may submit a written Notice of Appeal to the 
Commissioners Court through the Purchasing Agent.  The Purchasing Agent will provide a copy of such response to 
the County Executive. This Notice of Appeal must be submitted within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the 
unsatisfactory final resolution.  Contractor then has the right to be heard by Commissioners Court and the Purchasing 
Agent will coordinate placing the matter on the Commissioners Court agenda.  
 
 28.11   Mediation.  If the Contractor is not satisfied with the resolution of the dispute pursuant to Section 
28.10, Contractor shall notify the County Executive, and, if mediation is acceptable to both Parties in resolving the 
dispute arising under this Contract, the Parties agree to use the Dispute Resolution Center of Austin, Texas, as the 
provider of mediators for mediation as described in the TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.023.  
Unless both Parties are satisfied with the result of the mediation, the mediation will not constitute a final and binding 
resolution of the dispute.  All communications within the scope of the mediation shall remain confidential as described 
in TEX. CIV. PRAC. AND REM. CODE, Section 154.073, unless both Parties agree, in writing, to waive the 
confidentiality.   
 
 28.12 Coordination.  Contractor shall coordinate and share information with other Travis County Health 
and Human Services programs and CAN in any way that is appropriate as determined by County to maximize the 
benefit to Eligible Clients in City of Austin/Travis County and to avoid duplication of services. 
 
 28.13 County Public Purpose.  By execution of this Contract, the Commissioners Court hereby finds that 
the issues, problems and needs to be addressed by the services to be provided under the terms of this Contract, and 
specifically set forth in Attachment A hereto, constitute a significant public concern impacting members of the indigent 
population which the County serves.   The Commissioners Court further finds that the provision of services to be 
provided by Contractor pursuant to this Contract will further the public purpose of addressing those health and human 
services issues, problems and needs identified in this Contract (including Attachment A) for qualified individuals. 
 
 28.14 Force Majeure.  Neither Party shall be financially liable to the other Party for delays or failures to 
perform in Contract performance caused by force majeure (i.e. those causes generally recognized under Texas law as 
constituting impossible conditions).  Such delays or failures to perform shall extend the period of performance until 
these exigencies have been removed.  The party seeking to avail itself of this clause shall notify the other Party within 
five (5) business days or otherwise waive the right as a defense, unless notification is impractical under the 
circumstances, in which case notification shall be done in as timely a manner as possible.  Each Party agrees that 
breach of the notice requirements of this Section 28.14 entitles the other Party to reduce or stop payments (as 
applicable) or immediately terminate this Contract. 
 
BY THE SIGNATURES AFFIXED BELOW, the above Contract is hereby accepted as all the terms and conditions of 
this Contract, and the provision of services between the effective date of this Contract (February 1, 2013) and the 
execution of this Contract by the Parties are hereby ratified. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 40 of 234

DRAFT



 

 

 
CONTRACTOR:   
AUSTIN-TRAVIS COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH AND MENTAL RETARDATION CENTER 
 
 
By:                                                                                 
Its Duly Authorized Agent 
Printed Name:                                                                
Title:                                                                    
Date: ______________ 
 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY 
 
 
By:                                                                                                                                              
 Samuel T. Biscoe 
 Travis County Judge    
Date:                                 
 
County Approvals: 
As to Legal Form: 
 
___________________________ 
Assistant County Attorney  Date:_____ 
Funds Certified By: 
 
___________________________ 
Nicki Riley, County Auditor Date:_____ 
Purchasing: 
 
___________________________ 
Cyd Grimes, Purchasing Agent Date:_____ 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 41 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment A  Page 1 of 3 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

 
CONTRACTOR DESCRIPTION: 
 

Austin Travis County Integral Care provides community-based behavioral health and 
developmental disabilities services in Travis County, serving more than 22,000 
individuals and families annually, by offering a comprehensive system of services and 
programs year-round. 

Individuals receiving services at Integral Care are often in dire need of care and have a 
single or combined diagnosis of developmental disabilities, persistent mental illnesses, 
and chemical dependency issues. Integral Care's programs are administered through the 
following service areas: 

 Adult Behavioral Health  
 Child and Family  
 Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  
 Psychiatric Crisis Services and Jail Diversion  

Services include mental health assessments, psychiatric evaluations, 24-hour crisis 
interventions, medication treatment, inpatient treatment, supportive employment and 
vocational services, service coordination, care coordination, case management, family 
support and respite care, housing, information and referral, supported living and 
residential services. Integral Care also provides community services in consumer’s place 
of residence, schools, or within the community most appropriate for delivery of services. 

CONTRACTOR SERVICES: 
 
Austin Travis County Integral Care will provide mental health therapeutic services to 
children 0 – 17 years of age whose parents are enrolled in the Travis County Family Drug 
Treatment Court (FDTC) Program by employing a Child Therapist. 
 
CHILD THERAPEUTIC SERVICES: 
 
The Child Therapist will work closely with participating caregiver (parent or legally 
authorized representative) and the Travis County Family Drug Treatment Court (FDTC) 
Team to establish and work toward goals that increase the emotional, developmental and 
social-emotional well-being of the child while the parent(s) are enrolled in the FDTC and 
Parenting in Recovery (PIR) .   
 
Specific duties of the Child Therapist include: 
 

 Screening children, ages 0 – 3, of parents enrolled in the Travis County 
Family Drug Court Program using the Ages and Stages Questionnaire 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 42 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment A  Page 2 of 3 
 

(ASQ), a developmental and social-emotional screening tool for children 
from birth to 5 years of age; 
 

 Screen children ages 4-17 using the Child and Adolescent Needs and 
Strengths - MH (CANS-MH) assessment tool; 

 
 Maintains a caseload of 10-15 FDTC families to provide psychotherapy to 

improve the parent/child attachment and functioning; 
 

 Provides mental health therapeutic services to enrolled children/youth for 
4 to 12 months with closure occurring when the goals have been met 
and/or the child/youth has been successfully transitioned to longer term 
services and or community-based services; 

 
 When therapeutically indicated the therapist will provide direct services to 

the child/youth utilizing evidenced based practices including Trauma-
Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT); filial therapy; Child-
Parent Psychotherapy. 

 
 Engages both the child and their caregiver (parent or kin), in assessing the 

social-emotional needs of the child to plan for the developmental 
activities, therapeutic interventions; 

 
 Develops an individualized treatment plan of care for each child/youth 

enrolled that may include mental health assessment, advocacy, care 
coordination/case management, parent training, crisis intervention, 
counseling, therapy and skills training; 

 
 Makes referrals and collateral contacts to community agencies to address 

the educational, social/recreational, any additional behavioral healthcare 
services and supports, including medical/dental care of the child; 

 
 Appears in court to provide testimony to the court on progress made by 

the child and/or parent while participating in the FDTC/ Parenting in 
Recovery; 

 
 Conducts an average of four (4) assessments a month and will monitor an 

average of 35 plans a year; 
 

 Will coordinate with providers on the ATCIC  Provider Network to 
provide non-traditional therapeutic services and supports, such as, 
art/music therapy, recreational therapy, behavioral aide, pro-social groups, 
individual/family mentoring, respite care, and equine therapy, on an as 
needed basis; 

 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 43 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment A  Page 3 of 3 
 

 Be responsible for documenting the service encounters while providing 
the therapeutic services; 

 
 Preparing and providing the reports necessary for adhering to the 

requirements of the Parenting in Recovery grant based on the child 
therapist’s role on the grant; and 

 
 Assist in the coordination of team meetings involving the child and/or 

family members in addressing the developmental and social-emotional 
well-being needs of the child. 

 
 
Minimum Qualifications of the Child Therapist 
 

 Master’s Degree in Social Work or related field; 
 
 Licensed Practitioner of the Healing Arts (LPHA), either as a Licensed 

Professional Counselor (LPC), or Licensed Clinical Social Worker (LCSW). 
 
 Extensive knowledge of the stages of child development including social and 

emotional well-being; child welfare and child protective services systems;  
 

 Minimum of three (3) years providing children’s mental health services, infant 
mental health services, or other direct services addressing the developmental 
and social-emotional needs of children; 

 
 Trained in evidenced based practices including Trauma-Focused Cognitive 

Behavioral Therapy (TF-CBT); and prefer filial therapy and/or Child-Parent 
Psychotherapy 

 
 Demonstrate flexibility with work schedule and willingness to work evening 

hours and/or weekends; and  
 

 Ability to demonstrate cultural and/or linguistic competency with children and 
their families with diverse backgrounds, with Bilingual capabilities (Spanish 
and English) strongly preferred. 

 
WORKPLAN: 
 
The services provided under this Contract shall be provided during the Contract Term 
which begins September 30, 2012 and terminates September 29, 2013.   
 
BUDGET: 
 
The budget for salary, fringe and operating expenses is up to $60,845. 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 44 of 234

DRAFT



  Compliance Certification form – Grant Contracts
  IMPORTANT:  this completed form must be submitted with each monthly invoice  

Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist

Payment requested: month, 2013 Payment requested from: _X_ TRAVIS COUNTY

  The following items must be itemized in the current approved program budget, OR written prior approval by TCHHS&VS
  Executive Director regarding these items must be attached to the Payment Request. (Mark any that apply to this month)

___  Purchase of any non-expendable property * 
   * (agency must also complete the Equipment Purchased table, below)

___  Alteration or relocation of facilities 
___  Out of County Travel/ Conferences/ Seminars/ Training 

 ___  Consultant/professional services or subcontracts 
___  Budget transfers over the 10% rule per contract 
___  None of the above apply to this month

___   Compliance with Special Conditions/ Corrective Action Plan.
___   Overtime expenditures if any followed contract requirements 
___   Audit expenditures if any were allocated per agency funding sources per contract 
___   Annual Audit submitted by Service Agency per contract.
___   Transfer of Funds/Budget adjustments less than 10% made by agency ** 

    ** ( agency must attach Budget Revision request form)

Equipment Purchased: 
Purchase 
Date Cost

Model 
Number

Travis County Purchasing Office employee, ______________________ was notified of above purchases on __________. 
   (name)          (date)

 I  certify  the information reported herein and attached hereto is true, correct, and complete.
 Please process the attached payment(s). (Certification required for processing of payment.)

Executive Director ______________________________________________  Date ____________________
 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
  For Travis County staff use only:

___   County funds calculated accurately ( to two decimals )
___   County program budget not over-spent, per contract 
___   Fiscal year limitation not over-spent, per contract (75% Rule)
___   Annual Audit submission by Service Agency per contract has been verified
___   Compliance with Special Conditions/ Corrective Action Plan is confirmed

   Attach copies of the following to this sheet and mark all that apply:
�   Payment Request (verified and approved)
�   Expenditure Report  (verified and approved)
�   Budget Revision form (if applicable)
�   Revised/ Modified Payment Request (if applicable)
�   Any required prior approval documents

I  certify  the information reported herein and attached hereto is true, correct, and complete.
 Please process the attached payment(s). (Certification required for processing of payment.)

Travis County contract manager  ____________________________________      Date ______________

Travis County director (or designee) _______________________________________     Date _______________
 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
  For TC HHS&VS Admin./Finance use only:

___   Service has been received in the HTE system                                                                        

___   Payment Request reviewed for: 1) reporting accuracy 2) expenditures verified and 3) contract compliance.

___   Annual Audit submission by Service Agency per contract has been verified

 I hereby certify that the information reported on this compliance certification form by all parties is true, correct, and complete.
 I understand that the legality of the payment is dependent on the accuracy of these statements.  Please process the 
 attached payment(s).  (Please note, payment will not be processed without this signed certification attached to request for payment.)

        _____________________________________________________________      Date __________________
          (signature of Executive Manager or Director, HHS&VS Administrative Services Division)

Grant Approval (County Auditor) Date

Item Serial Number Location

printed 2/21/2013  form revised July 2005 - Auditor

Attachment B Page 1 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 45 of 234

DRAFT



    INSTRUCTIONS for TRAVIS COUNTY INVOICING:
            Using the Payment Request/ Expenditure Report and related forms for Social Service Contracts 

   *** IMPORTANT:  Please carefully read and follow the steps below in the order indicated to prepare and submit monthly invoices using 
the electronic invoicing spreadsheet forms located in the adjacent tabs of this file  ***

GENERAL INFORMATION.  This file contains the following spreadsheet tabs, listed from left to right:
Tab 1.  This Instructions page - please print this and refer to it often as you prepare your invoices;
Tab 2.  Budget Revision Request form, which must be completed and submitted any time such revision is needed;
Tab 3.  Compliance Certification form - this completed form must be submitted with every invoice; and
Tabs 4 & above.  The Expenditure Reports and Payment Requests (follow the detailed instructions below  ), comprised of 24 linked monthly 
spreadsheet tabs (12 “Exp Rpt” & 12 “Pay Req”), beginning with January.  NOTE:  (Subject to any changes in County requirements) if you have 
any unexpended funds remaining after your last regular monthly invoice and for which you will request payment, there will be a 
Supplemental "13th payment request" form provided separately, along with your Contract Annual Summary (formerly Close-Out) forms.

MAINTAINING the INTEGRITY of FORMS/ LINKS:  The cell formulas and embedded links among the forms have been carefully constructed - 
do NOT change them without consulting us first. The forms may also be password-protected, allowing you to input required data into appropriate cell
only.  If your invoice forms need any changes, please contact your Travis County contract manager or City HHSD Research Analyst David Garza for 
assistance by email     David.Garza@ci.austin.tx.us      or by phone (512) 972-5008.  Your assigned Travis County contract manager and the City 
Research Analyst are also available should you have any questions or need technical assistance.

MONTHLY EXPENDITURE REPORT  (Complete this form FIRST)

1) In the “Jan07 Exp Rpt” spreadsheet tab, review and if needed add/correct the appropriate program and agency information near the top.  Be sure to 
include your agency’s contact person name/phone/extension.

2) For the Approved Budget column F, review and if needed, add/correct your TRAVIS COUNTY total 12-month (January 1 through December 31) 
program budget amount for each line item.  Note that all subtotals and totals will calculate automatically. The resulting bottom line total in line 21 (cell 
F42) should equal the corresponding total COUNTY-only program budget amount for the current contract term.

3) Then in the Expenditures January 2007 column, input the actual amount for each eligible expenditure line item (total for the January 1st through 
January 31st period).  Then check all amounts on the sheet for accuracy, and make sure that the correct amounts and other information are carried 
forward into the remaining monthly “…Exp Rpt” spreadsheets.    As each new month is completed in the contract term, you will repeat this step for 
the corresponding month’s Expenditure Report.  Be sure to   verify the accuracy of all calculations and cumulative amounts, every time you invoice.

PAYMENT REQUEST (Check/correct this form only AFTER completing the Expenditure Report)

These spreadsheets are designed so that the amounts in each of the 12 Payment Request forms automatically calculate directly from the corresponding 
Expenditure Report – this means that the two January forms are linked, as are the two February forms, etc.  In addition, all of the “…Exp Rpt” and 
“…Pay Req”  forms are linked so that the correct cumulative amounts should automatically be carried forward into the appropriate cells for 
subsequent months.   IMPORTANT: All amounts in the Payment Requests should be calculated automatically -- your main task for Payment 
Requests is to  verify  that all of the amounts are calculated and printed correctly.

5) Verify that each  “…Pay Req” spreadsheet includes a unique Invoice Number in the shaded block near the top - this number is also linked to the 
invoice number of the corresponding month's Exp Rpt form.  This Number is a code representing your agency and program, the month invoiced, and 
ends in “ 1 ” to indicate it is the first or original invoice for that month.   Important:  if for any reason you later submit a different, revised or corrected, 
etc.  invoice for that same month (which replaces or supplements the original invoice ), change the ending number to “ 2 ” on that second invoice, then
to“ 3 ” on the third one as needed, etc.

 ***  Reminder for steps 6, 7 and 8 below:  Most items on the Payment Request should be input or corrected by first adjusting the 
corresponding linked data in that month’s Expenditure Report.  ***

6) Next, review and  (if needed) add/correct the appropriate agency and program information in section I, including the Payment Request Amount for 
the month being invoiced.

7) Check and correct (if needed) the amounts in Section II, ensuring that they are consistent with the corresponding amounts in the monthly  “… Exp 
Rpt”  spreadsheets.

8) Review the other “…Pay Req” spreadsheets to ensure that all of the information is accurately carried forward also.

9)  To invoice for each upcoming month, repeat steps 3 and 5-8 listed above for the appropriate pair of monthly sheets,
         print both sheets, obtain the required signatures, and submit as usual with a completed Compliance Certification form. 

Note - NOT included here: Supplemental "13th Payment" forms - If you have any unexpended funds remaining after your last monthly invoice 
and for which you will request payment, the appropriate Supplemental / 13th Payment forms should be provided after December for your action.  
Otherwise, you will release any remaining unexpended funds back to the County as part of the separate "Contract Annual Summary" (formerly 
known as "Close-Out") process.

Travis County Health and Human Services Veterans Services Department Instructions and forms revised Dec. 2006 for County-Only use 
Attachment B Page 2 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 46 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number:

IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Preparer's Signature Date

Authorized Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )

Staff Comments: 

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

Name and Title

Vendor ID Number

Name and TitleContract Manager's Signature
SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

        2.  Previous Payments Requested
        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST

$0.00

Title

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$0.00
$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget

Month/Year

Jan-13

        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4) $60,845.00

Title

$60,845.00

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 3 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 47 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: Report Period: Jan-13
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:     
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved  Expenditures   Cumulative Budget 

Budget  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00

2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00

6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

    Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE
Food / Beverage - for clients

Other (specify)

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Equipment

Supplies

Consultants / Contractual

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Other (Specify)

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time
Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. 
only)
Benefits

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 4 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 48 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #1
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Preparer' s Signature Date

Authorized Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

$0.00

Title

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Vendor ID Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

Travis County FundsItem

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

$0.00Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Contract Manager's Signature
SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

Month/Year

 February 2013Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

Title

$60,845.00

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA
Program

Staff Comments: 

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

Name and Title

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

$60,845.00

$0.00
$0.00

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 5 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 49 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #1 Report Period: February 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  February 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Equipment
Supplies

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses
Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 6 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 50 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #2
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

Name and Title
John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )

        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
$60,845.00

$0.00

Title

Title

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Month/Year

 March 2013

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00
$0.00

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )
Contract Manager's Signature

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

        2.  Previous Payments Requested
        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST

Name and Title

Vendor ID Number

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 7 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 51 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #2 Report Period: March 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  March 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

Benefits
Other (Specify)

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

Supplies

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.
Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Equipment

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

0

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 8 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 52 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #3
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order NumberVendor ID Number

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )
Contract Manager's Signature Name and Title

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

Month/Year

 April 2013

Staff Comments: 

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00

$0.00
$0.00

Title

Title

        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget $60,845.00

Contract Term

        2.  Previous Payments Requested

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 9 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 53 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #3 Report Period: April 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  April 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Equipment
Supplies

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses
Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 10 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 54 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #4
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

Name and Title
John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )

        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
$60,845.00

$0.00

Title

Title

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Month/Year

 May 2013

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00
$0.00

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )
Contract Manager's Signature

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested
        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST

Name and Title

Vendor ID Number

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 11 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 55 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #4 Report Period: May 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  May 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

Benefits
Other (Specify)

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

Supplies

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.
Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Equipment

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 12 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 56 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #5
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 June 2013

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

$60,845.00
$0.00

Staff Comments: 

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Name and Title

$0.00

Title

        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

Title

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$60,845.00

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Vendor ID Number

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )
Contract Manager's Signature Name and Title

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 13 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 57 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #5 Report Period: June 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  June 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Equipment
Supplies

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses
Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 14 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 58 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #6
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order NumberVendor ID Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Name and TitleContract Manager's Signature

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

$0.00

Title

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$60,845.00

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

Title

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 July 2013

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 15 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 59 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #6 Report Period: July 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  July 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:
Travis Co. USE ONLY:

Reviewed & approved by: Date:

Benefits
Other (Specify)

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

Supplies

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.
Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Equipment

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

0

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 16 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 60 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #7
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Name and Title

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$0.00

$60,845.00
$0.00

Title

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 August 2013

Staff Comments: 

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Travis County FundsItem

Contract Manager's Signature

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Vendor ID Number

Title

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

$60,845.00
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 17 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 61 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #7 Report Period: August 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  August 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

    Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Equipment
Supplies

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses
Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. 
only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 18 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 62 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number: TCC #8
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order NumberVendor ID Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Name and TitleContract Manager's Signature

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

$0.00

Title

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$60,845.00

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

Title

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 September 2013

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 19 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 63 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: TCC #8 Report Period: September 2013
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  September 2013  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00

6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

Benefits
Other (Specify)

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

Supplies

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.
Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Equipment

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

0

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 20 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 64 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number:
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Name and Title

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$0.00

$60,845.00
$0.00

Title

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 October 2012

Staff Comments: 

Travis County FundsItem

Contract Manager's Signature

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

Vendor ID Number

Title

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

$60,845.00
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 21 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 65 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: 0 Report Period: October 2012
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  October 2012  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00

6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00 60,845.00 60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

    Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

Equipment
Supplies

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. 
only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 22 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 66 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number:
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order NumberVendor ID Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

Name and TitleContract Manager's Signature

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

$0.00

Title

        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

$60,845.00

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

Title

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

$0.00

Month/Year

 November 2012

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

$0.00

Travis County FundsItem

$60,845.00
$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 23 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 67 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: 0 Report Period: November 2012
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  November 2012  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00 60,845.00 60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

Benefits
Other (Specify)

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

Supplies

Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.
Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Consultants / Contractual

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)

Equipment

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

0
SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL
RECOVERED ADVANCE 

PAYMENTS

0

Maximums Allowable

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)
Other (specify)

Food / Beverage - for clients

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 24 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 68 of 234

DRAFT



Invoice Number:
IMPORTANT:  Both an Expenditure Report and a Compliance Certification form must be provided with this invoice  

Agency
ATCIC

1430 Collier Street                            
Austin TX 78704
Phone (512) 447-4141

Authorized Signature Date

Preparer' s Signature Date

Date

TC HHS & VS Financial Approval Date AMOUNT APPROVED

County Account Number Issue Area Purchase Order NumberVendor ID Number

SECTION V - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  (Travis County FINANCE )
Name and Title

John C. Bradshaw          
Contract Specialist

SECTION IV - PAYMENT APPROVAL -  ( TRAVIS CO. Staff )
Contract Manager's Signature Name and Title

SECTION I - CURRENT PAYMENT DATA

SECTION II - PROGRAM BUDGET AND PAYMENT SUMMARY

Program

Contract Term PAYMENT REQUEST AMOUNT

Parenting in Recovery - Child 
Therapist

Month/Year

 December 2012

$0.00

        1.  Grant Funded Program Budget
        2.  Previous Payments Requested
        3.  AMOUNT OF THIS PAYMENT REQUEST

Title

Title

$0.00

SECTION III - CERTIFICATION (Must be completed by Contractor )

$60,845.00
        4.  Total Payments Requested (Item 2 plus Item 3)
        5.  Balance (Item 1, minus Item 4)

I certify that this Payment Request and the corresponding Expenditure Report have been made in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of the Contract.  I also certify that all information provided is correct and that the amounts are not in 
excess of current needs.

Travis County Grant Contract

PAYMENT REQUEST

Staff Comments: 

Travis County FundsItem

$0.00

$60,845.00
$0.00

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM
Attachment B Page 25 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 69 of 234

DRAFT



             TRAVIS COUNTY CONTRACT EXPENDITURE REPORT
Inv. #: 0 Report Period: December 2012
Agency: ATCIC Program: Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist
Agency contact: First and Last Names Phone: number, ext.   Current contract term:         
E-mail:  name@address.org Fax:  number, ext. Feb. 1, 2013 - Sept. 30, 2013

Approved Budget Actual Expenditures & Balance
Line Item Approved   Expenditures    Cumulative Budget 

Budget  December 2012  Expenditures Balance

1 40,753.00 0.00 0.00 40,753.00
2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 10,454.00 0.00 0.00 10,454.00
4 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

A 51,207.00 0.00 0.00 51,207.00

5 3,808.00 0.00 0.00 3,808.00
6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9 2,520.00 0.00 0.00 2,520.00

10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
14 3,310.00 0.00 0.00 3,310.00
B 9,638.00 0.00 0.00 9,638.00

15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
17 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

E 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 60,845.00 0.00 0.00 60,845.00
60,845.00 60,845.00 60,845.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

     Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:
Reviewed & approved by: Date:

TOTALS ( A+B+C+D+E )

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

     Note: any amounts on line E must be input as negative dollars (reimbursed)
SUBTOTAL: RECOVERED 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS

List items (specify equipmt/capit.)
0
SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

0

Supplies

SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY

RECOVERED ADVANCE 
PAYMENTS

Other (specify)

Financial Assistance to Individuals   
(e.g., rent, mortgage, utilities)

SUBTOTAL - OP. EXPENSES

Food / Beverage - for clients
DIRECT ASSISTANCE

Conferences/Seminars/Tng out of 
Travis County

Equipment

OPERATING EXPENSES
General Operating Expenses
Insurance/Bonding
Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. 
funds, include pro-rata share only)
Consultants / Contractual
Staff Travel - within Travis County
Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within 
Travis Co.

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.

Maximums Allowable

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)
Benefits
Other (Specify)
SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PM

Attachment B Page 26 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 70 of 234

DRAFT



Agency Name: Revision for:   TRAVIS COUNTY Funding Only  

Program Name:

Revision Number: (No.) Contract Term: Feb. 1, 2013 to Sept. 30, 2013

Effective Date for Revision: 

Approved Prior Approval Adjustment Amt. Revised

Budget Required ? ( indicate + or - ) Budget 

1 0.00

2 0.00

3 0.00

4 YES 0.00
A 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 0.00

6 0.00

7 0.00

8 0.00

9 0.00

10 0.00

11 YES 0.00

12 YES 0.00

13 YES 0.00

14 YES 0.00
B 0.00 0.00 0.00

15 0.00

16 0.00

17 YES 0.00

18 YES 0.00
C 0.00 0.00 0.00

19 YES 0.00

20 YES 0.00
D 0.00 0.00 0.00

21 0.00 0.00 0.00

Preparer's Signature: Date: 

    Authorized Signature: Date:

Travis Co. USE ONLY:

Reviewed & approved by: ____________________________________________ Date: __________________

Food / Beverage - for clients
Financial Assistance to Individuals   (e.g., rent, 
mortgage, utilities)

Other (specify)

SUBTOTAL - EQPMT./ CAPITAL

TOTALS (A+B+C+D+E)

#REF!

SUBTOTAL: DIRECT ASSIST.

EQUIPMT./CAPITAL OUTLAY
List items (specify equipmt/capit.)

#REF!

Staff Travel - out of Travis Co.g
County

Other (specify)

#REF!

SUBTOTAL - OPER. EXPENSES

DIRECT ASSISTANCE

OPERATING EXPENSES

Consultants / Contractual

Staff Travel - within Travis County

Conference/Seminars/Trng.  within Travis Co.

Insurance/Bonding

General Operating Expenses

Audit Expenses (for Travis Co. funds, include 
pro-rata share only)

SUBTOTAL - PERSONNEL

Line Item

PERSONNEL
Salaries - REGULAR time

Salaries-OVERTIME (Trav.Co. only)

BUDGET REVISION REQUEST - GRANT CONTRACTS 
Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans Service

Benefits

Other (Specify)

ATCIC

Parenting in Recovery - Child Therapist

(date to be effective)

Notice: the line items in this form are NOT directly linked to the monthly "...Exp Rpt" forms - you must still input your revised 
budget line items (when approved) into the next applicable monthly "...Exp Rpt" form as usual

AGENCY: Refer to any applicable contract section(s) and / or  attachment(s) 
when using this form

 HHSD form revised for Travis Co.-ONLY  use - Dec. 2006 printed 2/21/2013 12:38 PMAttachment B Page 27 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 71 of 234

DRAFT



 

OUT OF TOWN TRAVEL FORM 
 
 
 

NAME OF CONTRACTOR:_______________________________________________ 
 
DATE OF SUBMISSION:________________________ 
 
PURPOSE OF TRAVEL AND RELATIONSHIP TO COUNTY BUSINESS: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DESTINATION:_________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE:   From _________________ to ____________________ 
 
INDIVIDUALS PARTICIPATING:  RELATIONSHIP TO CONTRACT PURPOSE: 
_______________________________________ _________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________ _________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________ _________________________________________________ 
_______________________________________ _________________________________________________ 
 
COSTS: 
 Lodging (Total):  $_______________________ 
 Details:   ______________________________________________________________ 
 Meals (Total):  $ _______________________ 
 Details:   ______________________________________________________________ 
 Transportation (Total): $ _______________________ 
 Details:   ______________________________________________________________ 
 
 
SIGNATURE:_______________________________________ 
Printed Name:_______________________________________ 
Title:_______________________________________________ 
Date:_______________ 
 

Attachment B Page 28 of 28

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 72 of 234

DRAFT



 

Travis County Insurance Requirements   Page 1 of 3 
 

 
ATTACHMENT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Contractor shall have, and shall require all subcontractors providing services under this Contract to have, 
Standard Insurance meeting the General Requirements as set forth below and sufficient to cover the needs of 
Contractor and/or Subcontractor pursuant to applicable generally accepted business standards.  Depending on 
services provided by Contractor and/or Subcontractor(s), Supplemental Insurance Requirements or alternate 
insurance options shall be imposed as follows: 
 
I.  General Requirements Applicable to All Contractors' Insurance.   
 
The following requirements apply to the Contractor and to Subcontractor(s) performing services or activities 
pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the following concerning 
insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and  subcontractor(s): 
 
 A. The minimum types and limits of insurance indicated below shall be maintained throughout the 
duration of the Contract. 
 
 B.   NOTE:  Texas Council Risk Management Fund (TCRMF) is the Center administrator of the 
Fund.   Not AM Best rated 
 

C. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, the required insurance shall be in force as 
evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance issued by the writing agent or carrier.   A copy of the Certificate of 
Insurance shall be forwarded to County immediately upon execution of this Contract.   
 
NOTE:  TCRMF does not issue “Certificates of Insurance”,   The method to provide proof of insurance is 
through a letter format called a “Verification of Insurance”.    
 
 D. Certificates of Insurance  shall include the endorsements outlined below and shall be submitted 
to the Travis County Purchasing Agent  within ten (10) working days  of execution of the contract by both 
parties or the effective date of the Contract, whichever comes first.  The Certificate(s) shall show the Travis 
County contract number and all endorsements by number. 
 

E. Insurance required under this Contract which names Travis County as Additional Insured shall 
be considered primary for all claims. 
 

F. Insurance limits shown below may be written as Combined Single Limits or structured using 
primary and excess or umbrella coverage that follows the form of the primary policy. 
 

G. County shall be entitled, upon its request and without expense, to receive certified copies of 
policies and endorsements. 
 

H. County reserves the right to review insurance requirements during any term of the Contract and 
to require that Contractor make reasonable adjustments when the scope of services has been expanded. 
 

I. Contractor shall not allow any insurance to be cancelled or lapse during  any term of this 
Contract. Contractor shall not permit the minimum limits of coverage to erode or otherwise be reduced.  

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 73 of 234

DRAFT



 

Travis County Insurance Requirements   Page 2 of 3 
 

Contractor shall be responsible for all premiums, deductibles and self-insured retention.  All deductibles and 
self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificates of Insurance. 
 

J. Insurance coverage specified in this Contract is not intended and will not be interpreted to limit 
the responsibility or liability of the Contractor or subcontractor(s). 

 
 
II. Specific Requirements   
 
The following requirements (II.A - II.E, inclusive) apply to the Contractor and Subcontractor(s) performing 
services or activities pursuant to the terms of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to the 
following concerning insurance requirements applicable to Contractor and subcontractor(s): 
 
     A. Workers' Compensation and Employers' Liability Insurance 

 
1. Coverage shall be consistent with statutory benefits outlined in the Texas Workers' 
Compensation Act. 

 
  ATCIC is a governmental entity and Employers’ Liability is not required 
 

3. Policies under this Section shall apply to State of Texas and include the following 
endorsements in favor of Travis County and City of Austin: 

   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form 420304) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form 420601) 
 
 B. Commercial General Liability Insurance 
 
  1. Minimum limit: 
   $500,000* per occurrence for coverage A and B with a  
   $1,000,000 policy aggregate 
 
  2. The Policy shall contain or be endorsed as follows: 
   a.  Blanket liability is not included in ATCIC policy because of Tort 
Limits/governmental entity. 
   b. Independent Contractor Coverage 
 

3.  The Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County 
 
4.  a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form CG 2404) 

   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form CG 0205) 
c.  Travis County named as additional insured (Form CG 2010) 

 
*  Supplement Insurance Requirement  If child care, or housing arrangements for clients is provided, 
the required limits shall be: 
 
   $ 1,000,000 per occurrence with a 
   $ 2,000,000 policy aggregate 
 

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 74 of 234

DRAFT



 

Travis County Insurance Requirements   Page 3 of 3 
 

 C. Business Automobile Liability Insurance† 
 

1. If any form of transportation for clients is provided, coverage for all owned, non-owned, and 
hired vehicles shall be maintained with a combined single limit of $300,000* per occurrence 

 2. Policy shall also include the following endorsements in favor of Travis County  
   a. Waiver of Subrogation (Form TE 2046A) 
   b. Thirty (30) day Notice of Cancellation (Form TE 0202A) 
   c. Travis County named as additional insured (Form TE 9901B) 
 
†  Alternative Insurance Requirement 
 If NO transportation services of any type is provided, and use of a motor vehicle is strictly limited to travel to 
and from work or work sites, evidence of Personal Auto Policy coverage with limits of  
   $ 100,000/$300,000/$50,000  
may be provided in lieu of Business Automobile Liability Insurance 
 

D.  Professional Liability/E & O Insurance 
 

 1. Coverage shall be provided with a minimum limit of $1,000,000 per claim /$3,000,000 
aggregate to cover injury in the care of Contractor or Subcontractor and to cover negligent acts, 
sexual harassment, errors, or omissions arising out of Professional Services under this Contract.  
NOTE:  The policy is not child/adult/specific-policy is all inclusive. 

 
 2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

this Contract is signed and/or effective, whichever comes first.  Coverage shall include a three (3) 
year extended reporting period from the date this Contract expires or is terminated.  Certificate of 
Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall contain both the retroactive date of 
coverage and the extended reporting dates. NOTE: As long as Center is with TCRMF this 
requirement stays in effect and there is no extended dates included on the verification of insurance.  
Tail insurance is dated. 

 
 3. Subcontractor(s) who are not covered under Contractor’s professional liability insurance 

shall provide Contractor with current certificates of insurance annually on the renewal date of their 
insurance policy. 

  
 E. Blanket Crime Policy Insurance 
 

1. If an advance against  Contract Funds is requested or received in an amount greater than 
$5,000, a Blanket Crime Policy shall be required with limits of the  Contract Funds allocated in the 
Contract or the amount of scheduled advances. 

   
  2. If coverage is written on a claims made policy, the retroactive date shall be prior to the date 

services begin under this Contract or the effective date of this Contract, whichever comes first.   
Coverage shall include a three- (3) year extended reporting period from the date this Contract 
expires or is terminated.  Certificate of Insurance shall clarify coverage is claims made and shall 
contain both the retroactive date of coverage and the extended reporting period date. 

 
  

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 75 of 234

DRAFT



 
ATTACHMENT D 

ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
 

STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS 

 
 ETHICS AFFIDAVIT 
 
Date:          
Name of Affiant:         
Title of Affiant:          
Business Name of Proponent:        
County of Proponent:         
 
Affiant on oath swears that the following statements are true: 
 
1. Affiant is authorized by Proponent to make this affidavit for Proponent.   
 
2.  Affiant is fully aware of the facts stated in this affidavit.  
 
3. Affiant can read the English language.  
 
4. Proponent has received the list of key contracting persons associated with this solicitation which is attached to this affidavit 

as Exhibit "1".  
 
5.  Affiant has personally read Exhibit "1" to this Affidavit.  
 
6. Affiant has no knowledge of any key contracting person on Exhibit "1" with whom Proponent is doing business or has done 

business during the 365 day period immediately before the date of this affidavit whose name is not disclosed in the 
solicitation.  

             
Signature of Affiant 

             
Address 

 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me by    on  , 20____.  
 

                                          
   

Notary Public, State of ____________ 
      

Typed or printed name of notary 
My commission expires:     

  
  

Attachment D Page 1 of 3

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 76 of 234

DRAFT



EXHIBIT 1 
LIST OF KEY CONTRACTING PERSONS 

January 16, 2013 
 
CURRENT 
      Name of Individual  Name of Business 
Position Held     Holding Office/Position   Individual is Associated       
 
  County Judge .............................................................Samuel T. Biscoe 
  County Judge (Spouse) ..............................................Donalyn Thompson-Biscoe  
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Cheryl Brown 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Melissa Velasquez 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Josie Z. Zavala 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Vacant 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 ..........................................Ron Davis 
  Commissioner, Precinct 1 (Spouse) ...........................Annie Davis   Seton Hospital 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Deone Wilhite 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Felicitas Chavez 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2  .........................................Sarah Eckhardt 
  Commissioner, Precinct 2 (Spouse) ...........................Kurt Sauer   Daffer McDaniel, LLP  
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Loretta Farb 
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Joe Hon 
  Executive Assistant  ...................................................Peter Einhorn 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 ..........................................Gerald Daugherty* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 3 (Spouse) ...........................Charyln Daugherty  Consultant 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Bob Moore* 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Martin Zamzow* 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Barbara Smith* 
  Commissioner, Precinct 4 ..........................................Margaret Gomez 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Edith Moreida 
  Executive Assistant ....................................................Norma Guerra 
  County Treasurer .......................................................Dolores Ortega-Carter  
  County Auditor  .........................................................Nicki Riley* 
  County Executive, Administrative .............................Vacant 
  County Executive, Planning & Budget ......................Leslie Browder* 
  County Executive, Emergency Services ....................Danny Hobby 
  County Executive, Health/Human Services ...............Sherri E. Fleming 
  County Executive, TNR  ............................................Steven M. Manilla, P.E. 
  County Executive, Justice & Public Safety ................Roger Jefferies 
  Director, Facilities Management ................................Roger El Khoury, M.S., P.E. 
  Interim Chief Information Officer .............................Tanya Acevedo 
  Interim Chief Information Officer .............................Rod Brown 
  Interim Chief Information Officer .............................Walter Lagrone 
  Director, Records Mgment & Communications ........Steven Broberg 
  Travis County Attorney  ............................................David Escamilla 
  First Assistant County Attorney  ................................Steve Capelle 
  Executive Assistant, County Attorney .......................James Collins 
  Director, Land Use Division ......................................Tom Nuckols 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .....................................Julie Joe 
  Attorney, Land Use Division .....................................Christopher Gilmore  
  Director, Transactions Division  ................................John Hille 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Daniel Bradford 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Elizabeth Winn 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Mary Etta Gerhardt  
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Barbara Wilson 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Jim Connolly 
  Attorney, Transactions Division ................................Tenley Aldredge 
  Director, Health Services Division ............................Beth Devery 
  Attorney, Health Services Division ...........................Prema Gregerson 
  Purchasing Agent  ......................................................Cyd Grimes, C.P.M., CPPO 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent  ......................................Marvin Brice, CPPB 
  Assistant Purchasing Agent .......................................Bonnie Floyd, CPPO, CPPB, CTPM 

Attachment D Page 2 of 3

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 77 of 234

DRAFT



  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................CW Bruner, CTP 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Lee Perry  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Jason Walker 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Richard Villareal 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Patrick Strittmatter 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Lori Clyde, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Scott Wilson, CPPB 
 Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Jorge Talavera, CPPO, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Loren Breland, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................John E. Pena, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Rosalinda Garcia   
  Purchasing Agent Assistant IV ..................................Angel Gomez*  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Shannon Pleasant, CTPM 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................David Walch 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Michael Long, CPPB 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Nancy Barchus, CPPB  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Jesse Herrera, CTP, CTPM, CTCM* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Sydney Ceder* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant III ..................................Vacant 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ....................................Vacant  
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ....................................L. Wade Laursen* 
  Purchasing Agent Assistant II ....................................Sam Francis* 
  HUB Coordinator .......................................................Sylvia Lopez 
  HUB Specialist ..........................................................Betty Chapa 
  HUB Specialist ..........................................................Jerome Guerrero 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .....................................Scott Worthington 
  Purchasing Business Analyst .....................................Jennifer Francis 
 
 
FORMER EMPLOYEES 
 
   Name of Individual 
Position Held    Holding Office/Position   Date of Expiration  
Purchasing Agent Assistant III .......  .............  ..............Elizabeth Corey, C.P.M. ..  ..............  ............. 03/14/13 
Attorney, Transactions Division .....  .............  ..............Tamara Armstrong ...........  ..............  ............. 03/30/13 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Lori Duarte .........  .............  ..............  ............. 06/15/13 
Chief Information Officer .  .............  .............  ..............Joe Harlow .........  .............  ..............  ............. 07/31/13 
County Auditor  .  ..............  .............  .............  ..............Susan Spataro, CPA .........  ..............  ............. 08/31/13 
Purchasing Agent Assistant IV .......  .............  ..............George R. Monnat, C.P.M., A.P.P. .  ............. 09/26/13 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Cheryl Aker ........  .............  ..............  ............. 10/05/13 
Purchasing Agent Assistant II .........  .............  ..............Jayne Rybak, CTP ............  ..............  ............. 12/14/13 
Commissioner, Precinct 3 .  .............  .............  ..............Karen Huber .......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Garry Brown ......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Julie Wheeler ......  .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 
Executive Assistant ...........  .............  .............  ..............Jacob Cottingham .............  ..............  ............. 01/01/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 *  - Identifies employees who have been in that position less than a year. 

Attachment D Page 3 of 3

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 78 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 1 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 79 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 2 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 80 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 3 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 81 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 4 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 82 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 5 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 83 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 6 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 84 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 7 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 85 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 8 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 86 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 9 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 87 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 10 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 88 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 11 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 89 of 234

DRAFT



Attachment E Page 12 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 90 of 234

DRAFT



Acknowledgement of Federal Funding  
 
As required by U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) appropriations 
acts, all HHS recipients must acknowledge Federal funding when issuing statements, 
press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other documents describing 
projects or programs funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. Recipients are 
required to state (1) the percentage and dollar amounts of the total program or project 
costs financed with Federal funds and (2) the percentage and dollar amount of the total 
costs financed by nongovernmental sources. 

Activities Abroad 

HHS recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United States are 
coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and that appropriate 
licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained. 
 

Age Discrimination Act of 1975 

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, 42 U.S.C. 6101 et seq., prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of age in any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The 
HHS implementing regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 91. 

 
Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI) 
 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq., provides that no person 
in the United States will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The HHS implementing 
regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 80. 
 
Confidentiality of Patient/Client Records 
 
Section 543 of the PHS Act, 42 U.S.C. 290dd-2, requires that records of substance abuse 
patients be kept confidential except under specified circumstances and purposes. The 
covered records are those that include the identity, diagnosis, prognosis, or treatment of 
any patient maintained in connection with any program or activity relating to substance 
abuse education, prevention, training, treatment, rehabilitation, or research that is 
conducted, regulated, or directly or indirectly assisted by any department or agency of the 
United States. This requirement is implemented in 42 CFR part 2. 
 
Controlled Substances 
 
Grantees are prohibited from knowingly using appropriated funds to support activities 
that promote the legalization of any drug or other substance included in Schedule I of the 
schedule of controlled substances established by section 202 of the Controlled Substances 

Attachment E Page 13 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 91 of 234

DRAFT



Act, 21 U.S.C. 812. This limitation does not apply if the recipient notifies the GMO that 
there is significant medical evidence of a therapeutic advantage to the use of such drug or 
other substance or that federally sponsored clinical trials are being conducted to 
determine therapeutic advantage. 
 
If controlled substances are proposed to be administered as part of a research protocol or 
if research is to be conducted on the drugs themselves, applicants/recipients must ensure 
that the DEA requirements, including registration, inspection, and certification, as 
applicable, are met. Regional DEA offices can supply forms and information concerning 
the type of registration required for a particular substance for research use. The main 
registration office in Washington, DC, may be reached at 800-882-9539. Information also 
is available from the National Institute on Drug Abuse at 301-443-6300. 
 
Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX) 
 
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681, 1682, 1683, 1685, and 
1686, provides that no person in the United States will, on the basis of sex, be excluded 
from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under 
any educational program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. The HHS 
implementing regulations are codified at 45 CFR part 86. 
 
Hatch Act 
 
The Hatch Act restricts political activity of executive branch employees of the federal 
government and District of Columbia government employees (5 U.S.C. 7321–7328) and 
State or local officers or employees (5 U.S.C. 1501–1528). “State or local officer or 
employee” means an individual employed by a State or local agency whose principal 
employment is in connection with an activity that is financed in whole or in part by loans 
or grants made by the United States or a Federal agency. (Certain State educational or 
research institutions are excluded from this definition.) 
 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) 
 
The “Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information” (the Privacy 
Rule) implement the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 
1996, 42 U.S.C. 1320d et seq., which governs the protection of individually identifiable 
health information. The Privacy Rule is administered and enforced by HHS’s OCR and is 
codified at 45 CFR parts 160 and 164. Not all HHS recipients are subject to the Privacy 
Rule. The Privacy Rule applies only to “covered entities,” as defined by the rule, which 
include health plans and most health-care providers. 
The OCR Web site (http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/hipaa) provides information on the Privacy 
Rule, including the complete text of the regulation and a set of decision tools for 
determining whether a particular entity is subject to the rule. An educational booklet, 
Protecting Health Information in Research: Understanding the HIPAA Privacy Rule, is 
available through OCR’s Web site and at http://privacyruleandresearch.nih.gov/. That 

Attachment E Page 14 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 92 of 234

DRAFT



Web site also includes other educational materials approved by OCR and the HHS Office 
of the General Counsel.  
 
Limited English Proficiency 
 
Recipients of Federal financial assistance must take reasonable steps to ensure that people 
with limited English proficiency have meaningful access to health and social services and 
that there is effective communication between the service provider and individuals with 
limited English proficiency. To clarify existing legal requirements, HHS published 
“Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition 
Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons.” 
This guidance, which is available at http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/lep/revisedlep.html, provides 
a description of the factors that recipients should consider in determining and fulfilling 
their responsibilities to individuals with limited English proficiency under Title VI of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1964. 
 
Pro-Children Act 
 
The Pro-Children Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. 7183, imposes restrictions on smoking in 
facilities where federally funded children’s services are provided. HHS grants are subject 
to these requirements only if they meet the Act’s specified coverage. The Act specifies 
that smoking is prohibited in any indoor facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used 
for the routine or regular provision of kindergarten, elementary, or secondary education 
or library services to children under the age of 18. In addition, smoking is prohibited in 
any indoor facility or portion of a facility (owned, leased, or contracted for) used for the 
routine or regular provision of federally funded health care, day care, or early childhood 
development, including Head Start services to children under the age of 18. The statutory 
prohibition also applies if such facilities are constructed, operated, or maintained with 
Federal funds. The statute does not apply to children’s services provided in private 
residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, portions of facilities 
used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment, or facilities where WIC coupons are 
redeemed. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition 
of a civil monetary penalty of up to $1,000 per violation and/or the imposition of an 
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. Any questions concerning the 
applicability of these provisions to an HHS grant should be directed to the GMO. 
 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) 
 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794, as amended, provides that 
no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the United States will, solely by reason 
of the handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial 
assistance. These requirements pertain to the provision of benefits or services as well as 
to employment. The HHS implementing regulations are codified at 45 CFR parts 84 and 
85. 
 

Attachment E Page 15 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 93 of 234

DRAFT



Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 
 
Under RCRA (42 U.S.C. 6901 et seq.), any State agency or agency of a political 
subdivision of a State using appropriated Federal funds must comply with 42 U.S.C. 
6962. This includes State and local institutions of higher education or hospitals that 
receive direct HHS awards. Section 6962 requires that preference be given in 
procurement programs to the purchase of specific products containing recycled materials 
identified in guidelines developed by EPA (40 CFR parts 247–254).  
 
Restriction on Abortions 
 
HHS funds may not be spent for an abortion. 
 
Restriction on Distribution of Sterile Needles 
 
Funds appropriated for HHS may not be used to carry out any program of distributing 
sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic injection of any illegal drug. 
 
Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
 
The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 
(the Uniform Relocation Act), 42 U.S.C. 4601 et seq., applies to all programs or projects 
undertaken by Federal agencies or with Federal financial assistance that cause the 
displacement of any person. 
 
The HHS requirements for complying with the Uniform Relocation Act are set forth in 
49 CFR part 24. Those regulations include uniform policies and procedures regarding 
treatment of displaced people. They encourage entities to negotiate promptly and 
amicably with property owners so property owners’ interests are protected and litigation 
can be avoided. 
 
U.S. Flag Air Carriers 
 
Recipients must comply with the requirement that U.S. flag air carriers be used by 
domestic recipients to the maximum extent possible when commercial air transportation 
is the means of travel between the United States and a foreign country or between foreign 
countries. This requirement must not be influenced by factors of cost, convenience, or 
personal travel preference. The cost of travel under a ticket issued by a U.S. flag air 
carrier that leases space on a foreign air carrier under a code-sharing agreement is 
allowable if the purchase is in accordance with GSA regulations on U.S. flag air carriers 
and code shares (see http://www.gsa.gov/gsa/cm_attachments/GSA_DOCUMENT/ 
110304_FTR_R2QA53_0Z5RDZ-i34K-pR.pdf). (A code-sharing agreement is an 
arrangement between a U.S. flag carrier and a foreign air carrier in which the U.S. flag 
carrier provides passenger service on the foreign air carrier’s regularly scheduled 
commercial flights.) 
 

Attachment E Page 16 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 94 of 234

DRAFT



USA Patriot Act 
 
The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to 
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act) amends 18 U.S.C. 175–175c. 
Among other things, it prescribes criminal penalties for possession of any biological 
agent, toxin, or delivery system of a type or in a quantity that is not reasonably justified 
by a prophylactic, protective, bona fide research, or other peaceful purpose. The act also 
establishes restrictions on access to specified materials. “Restricted persons,” as defined 
by the act, may not possess, ship, transport, or receive any biological agent or toxin that is 
listed as a select agent (see “Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and 
Response Act”). 
 
Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act 
 
The Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002, 
42 U.S.C. 201 Note, is designed to provide protection against misuse of select agents and 
toxins, whether inadvertent or the result of terrorist acts against the U.S. homeland, or 
other criminal acts (see 42 U.S.C. 262a). The act was implemented, in part, through 
regulations published by CDC at 42 CFR part 73, Select Agents and Toxins. Copies of 
these regulations are available from the Import Permit Program and the Select Agent 
Program, respectively, CDC, 1600 Clifton Road, MS E-79, Atlanta, GA 30333; 
telephone: 404-498-2255. These regulations also are available at 
http://www.cdc.gov/od/ohs/biosfty/shipregs.htm. 
 
Retention and access requirements for records 
Sub-recipient shall comply with retention and access requirements for records as codified 
in 45 CFR 92 .42.  

Attachment E Page 17 of 17

Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 95 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 96 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 97 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 98 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 99 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 100 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 101 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 102 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 103 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 104 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 105 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 106 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 107 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 108 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 109 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 110 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 111 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 112 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 113 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 114 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 115 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 116 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 117 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 118 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 119 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 120 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 121 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 122 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 123 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 124 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 125 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 126 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 127 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 128 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 129 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 130 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 131 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 132 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 133 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 134 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 135 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 136 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 137 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 138 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 139 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 140 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 141 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 142 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 143 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 144 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 145 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 146 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 147 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 148 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 149 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 150 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 151 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 152 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 153 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 154 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 155 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 156 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 157 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 158 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 159 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 160 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 161 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 162 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 163 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 164 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 165 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 166 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 167 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 168 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 169 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 170 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 171 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 172 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 173 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 174 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 175 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 176 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 177 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 178 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 179 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 180 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 181 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 182 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 183 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 184 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 185 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 186 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 187 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 188 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 189 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 190 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 191 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 192 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 193 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 194 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 195 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 196 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 197 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 198 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 199 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 200 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 201 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 202 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 203 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 204 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 205 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 206 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 207 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 208 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 209 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 210 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 211 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 212 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 213 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 214 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 215 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 216 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 217 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 218 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 219 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 220 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 221 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 222 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 223 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 224 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 225 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 226 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 227 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 228 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 229 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 230 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 231 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 232 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 233 of 234

DRAFT



Contract No. 4400001362 
Page 234 of 234

DRAFT



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 16













Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 


Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
Prepared By: Kurt Nielsen Phone #: 854-7218 
Division Director/Manager: Charles Bergh 

~c3.-~L~ 
Department HeadlTitle: Steven M. Manillt.1>.E'., County Executive-TNR 

Sponsoring Court Member: Commissioner Eckhardt, Precinct Two 


AGENDA LANGUAGE: 

Consider and take appropriate action on the following requests: 

A) A proposed motion to authorize fees at the new facilities located at Northeast 

Metro Park; 

B) A proposed motion to make a change to the policy regarding refunds of facility 

rentals; and 

C) A proposed motion allowing Youth Baseball Organizations to charge a spectator 

fee of up to $5 per spectator at Travis County's Metro Park Baseball Complexes 

during their 2013 tournament weekends. 


BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

A) Included in the newly constructed skate park at Northeast Metro Park are two (2) 

new group shelters and two (2) concession pads with electrical service. 


We propose adding the two (2) shelters to our current fee schedule as X-Large 

Shelters at a cost of $75 per day with a $50 refundable deposit and a $10 

reservation fee. 


We propose to rent the concession pads to potential vendors for $20 per day on 

weekdays and $40 per day on weekends and Holidays with a $50 refundable deposit 

and a $1 0 reservation fee. 


See revised fee schedule: Attachment A 


B) We are proposing to make a change to our policy regarding the refund of athletic 

field and facility rentals fees. Currently, if someone cancels a shelter or pavilion 

rental less than twelve (12) days before the event they lose their reservation fee, 

only ($10), but not the deposit ($50 for shelters/concessions and $100 for pavilions). 

We propose that if the cancellation is not made more than twelve (12) days prior to 

the event they would lose their reservation fee and their deposit. We have also 

added language to clarify the policy_ 


salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 17



See revised policy: Attachment B 

C) The Sam Bass Youth Baseball Organization is the primary customer at our 
Northeast Metro Park Baseball Complex. They provide opportunities for youth in the 
Pflugerville area to play recreational baseball. They have between 250 - 300 youth 
playing in their baseball recreation league each year. The cost is between $80 and 
$130 per participant for a 12 to 16 game season. Much of the cost of their 
recreational baseball program is subsidized by their select baseball league 
tournaments. 

The Sam Bass Youth Baseball Organization has requested permission to charge a 
$4 spectator fee for people 16 years of age and older during their tournament 
weekends at Northeast Metro Park (see attached request). They contend that in 
order to compete with other youth baseball organizations in the area they need to 
keep their tournament entry fees competitive. Other organizations having 
tournaments in the Pflugerville area at the Round Rock, Taylor, and Williamson 
County baseball complexes are able to charge spectator fees. This allows them to 
lower their tournament entry fees and potentially draw more teams. 

In order to be equitable to other users we propose extending the authorization to our 
users at the Southeast and East Metro baseball complexes. The authorization 
would be given to organizations requesting permission to charge a spectator fee at 
baseball tournament events. Any general park use (walkers, joggers, etc.) would be 
allowed to pass through the area at no charge. 

We are requesting this authorization be in effect through the 2013 calender year as a 
pilot program. If the program is successful, we will consider returning to 
Commissioners' Court to make this part of our athletic field rental policies. 

See request: Attachment C 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
Staff recommends approval of these motions. 

ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

A) Adding the new Northeast Metro facilities to our fee schedule will enable the 

public to utilize these amenities for group gatherings and concession opportunities. 


B) The revisions to our Refund Policy will reduce last minute cancellations of our 
facilities and clarify the policy. 

C) This is an opportunity to continue to support the youth baseball organizations 
that utilize Travis County's baseball fields in their efforts to provide opportunities for 



youth and raise funds. This will allow these organizations to lower their tournament 
entry fees and optimistically draw more teams. 

FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
A) We estimate approximately $2,000 to $2,500 per year in revenue from the new 
shelters and concession pads at Northeast Metro Park. 

B) Discouraging last minute cancellations of our shelter and pavilions should 
increase our rental revenues, however is difficult to quantify. 

C) We expect an increase in baseball field use and subsequently increased rental 
revenue. If the pilot program is succesful this year we may propose a new fee to 
groups requesting authorization to charge spectator fees. 

EXHIBITS/ATT ACHMENTS: 
Attachment A (Revised Fee Schedule) 
Attachment B (Revised Refund Policy) 
Attachment C (Request Letter) 

REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Cynthia McDonald Financial Manager TNR 854-4239 
Steve Manilla gounty Executive TNR 854-9429 
Charles Bergh Park Director TNR 854-9408 
John Hille County Attorney COUI"lt}' Attorney 854-9642 
~.. 

cc: 

Robert Armistead Park Division Manager TNR 854-9831 
Tim Speyrer P~rk Supervisor II TNR 989-8706 
Tanya Thornhill Park Supervisor II TNR 247-7937 
Robert Davis Park Supervisor II TNR 278-9966 

0701 - Parks Planning



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

FY2010 FEE SCHEDULE 


Updated 12/8/09 

PARK FEES 

Day Use $10 per vehicle No Change 
Day Use at Hippie Hollow Park $12 per vehicle No Change 
Pedestrian/Bicyclist $3 per ped / bicy No Change 
Pedestrian/Bicyclist at Hippie Hollow Park $5 per ped / bicy No Change 
Primitive Camping aka Day/Night Combo $15 per vehicle No Change 
Improved Camping (plus $10.00 reservation ('ee) $20 per vehicle No Change 
Trailer Parking Fee (No char£e to Lone Star Seniors and Veterans) $2 per trailer, per day No Change 
Annual Day Use Permit (+ $2.00 per vehicle at Hippie Hollow) $100 per vehicle No Change 
Duplicate Annual Permit (+ $2.00 per vehicle at Hippie Hollow) $50 per vehicle No Change 
Pedestrian/Bicycle Annual (+ $2.00 per pedlbicy at Hippie Hollow) $25 per ped / bicy No Change 
Annual Trailer Parking Permit $30 per trailer No Change 
Lone Star Pass for Day Use (Senior Citizens) No Charge for age 62 or older No Change 
Overnight Camping for Lone Star/Annual Permit Holders $7 per night No Change 
Lone Star Veteran Pass for Day Use No Charge to U.S. Veteran w/ 

60% service related 
rii<;llhilitv No Change 

Camping for Lone Star Veterans No Charge to U.S. Veteran w/ 
60% service related 
rii<;llhilitv No Change 

ATHLETIC FIELDS (BASIC) 
Del Valle, East Metro. Moya. Northeast Metro. Southeast Metro, 
Webberville: 

Reservation Fee - Groups (General) Monday thru Thursday $5 per field, per hour No Change 

Reservation Fee - Groups (Non-Profit Youth) Monday thru Thursday $5 per field, per hour No Change 
Field Usage - Groups (General) $5 per field, per hour No Change 
Field Usage - Groups (Non-Profit Youth) No Charge No Change 

LIGHTS ($5.00 per 15 minute increments) 
Del Valle. East Metro. Moya. Northeast Metro, Southeast Metro, 
Webberville: 

Baseball/Softball 
Groups (General) $20 per field, per hour No Change 
Groups (Non-Profit Youth) $20 per field, per hour No Change 

LIGHTS ($7.50 per 15 minute increments) 
Soccer 
Groups (General) $30 per field, per hour No Change 
Groups (Non-Profit Youth) $30 per field, per hour No Change 

TOURNAMENT/SPECIAL EVENTS (Maintenance Surcharee) 
Del Valle. East Metro. Maya. Northeast Metro. Southeast Metro. 
Webberville: 

Groups (General) $5 per field, per hour No Change 
Groups (Non-Profit Youth) $5 per field, per hour No Change 

FIELD PREPARATION (SET-UP ONLY) 
Del Valle. East Metro. Maya . Northeast Metro, Southeast Metro, 
Webberville: 

Page I of2 



TRANSPORTATION AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

FY2010 FEE SCHEDULE 


Updated 12/8/09 

..... , ';::·:··ic·; ~:~ ~;r:1~:j~.~t~i DEstmti()l~:':;C'" ... ... ...•. .•. c ~,.I : :fEE''CtiRGE . , RaPOSon,; 
PARK FEES (continued) 

SHELTERlPAVILION RENTAL 
Ben E. Fisher. Del Valle. Moya, Northeast Metro. Southeast Metro. 
Webberville. Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation fee. The 
fees apply Friday. Saturday. Sunday. & Holidays only. 

Small w/electricity 
Large w/electricity 

X-Large w/electricity (add new Northeast Metro Shelters east & west) 

Deposit (Refundable) 

BASKETBALL SHELTER RENTAL - EAST METRO PARK 
Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation fee 
X-Large w/electricity 
Deposit (Refundable) 

$30 

$50 

$75 
$50 

$75 
$50 

per day 

per day 

per day 
per shelter, per day 

per day 
per shelter, per day 

No Change 

No Change 

No Change 
No Change 

No Change 
No Change 

COMMUNITY PAVILION CENTER - EAST METRO PARK 
Rentalplus $10.00 non-refundable reservationfee. 

Deposit (Refundable) 
Groups (General & Non-Profit Youth) 
Dailv/Hourlv Rate (2 hour minimum required) 
Groups (General & Non-Profit Youth) 

PAVILION AT BOB WENTZ PARK 
Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation fee 

$100 
$300 

$35 

per day 
per day 
per hourl2 hr 

No Change 
No Change 
No Change 

Rental- Hourly Use (4 hour minimum required) 
Deposit (Refundable) 

CONCESSION BUILDING AT MANSFIELD DAM PARK 
Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation fee 

$10 
$100 

per hour, 4hr min 
per day 

No Change 
No Change 

Rental - Hourly Use (4 hour minimum required) 
Deposit (Refundable) 

CONCESSION BUILDING RENTAL 
Basic Concession Building 

Del Valle. Moya. Webberville (ballfields): Rental plus $10.00 non
refundable reservation fee. 

Groups (General) 

Groups (Non-Profit Youth) 

Deposit (Refundable) 

$10 per hour, 4hr min 
$100 per day 

$100 per building, per day 

$35 per building, per day 
No Charge 

No Change 
No Change 

No Change 

No Change 
No Change 

Improved (Enhanced) Concession Building 
East Metro. Northeast Metro. Southeast Metro, Webberville (soccer 
fields): Rentalplus $10.00 non-refundable reservationfee. 

Groups (General) 
Groups (Non-Profit Youth) 
Deposit (Refundable) 

$150 per building, per day 
$50 per building, per day 

No Charge 

No Change 
No Change 
$50 per day 

Improved Concession with Shelter 
East Metro. Northeast Metro. Southeast Metro: 
Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation fee. 

Groups (Genera\) 
Groups (Non-Profit Youth) 
Deposit (Refundable) 

$200 
$125 

$50 

per building, per day 
per building, per day 
per shelter, per day 

No Change 
No Change 
No Change 

CONCESSION PADS (NORTH & SOUTH) with electrical service 
Northeast Metro (Skate Park): Rental plus $10.00 non-refundable reservation 
fee. 

Rental Weekdays (all groups) 

Rental Weekends & Holidays (all groups) 

Deposit (Refundable) (all groups) 

New facility at Northeast Metro 

new facility 

new facility 

new facility 

$20 

$40 

$50 

per pad/per day 

per pad/per day 

per pad/per day 

Page 2 of2 



IPolicy for Refund of Athletic Field and Facility Rental~ 

• 	 Travis County Parks must receive a cancellation request twelve (12) 
business days (}vlonday thruFriday) in advance of the scheduled event date 
in order for the renter to receive a full refund, which will include all fees 
except the non-refundable reservation fee. 

• 	 If a renter fails to cancel his/her reservation twelve (12) business days 
(Alonday fliru p,"ida)) prior to the rental date, he/she will forfeit all 
reservation fees and 

• 	 Athletic Field light fees, field preparation fees, and other use fees (not to 
include reservation .ree.s~ are eligible for refund if cancellation is made .fetff 
(4) business days prior to the event. HJritten cancellation not Inade prior 
to the through Parks Re.s'ervation o,lllce. llse the .lacili~v 1~'ill be 
as'sumed. 

• 	 Renters may make changes (if no schedule conflict exists) to their athletic 
field reservation (alterations of the hours reserved) provided that it is done 
four (4) business days (fti/onda.v thru .Friday) prior to the event. 
Reservations cannot reduced to than four (4) hours per field. 

• 	 All fees are due to the Parks Office four (4) business days (lvlonday thru 
Frida)) prior to the rental date. 

• 	 All fees will be refunded in the case of rainouts. All rainouts are determined 
by park staff. 



Date: January 22, 2013 

Requesting Party: Sam Bass Youth Baseball 

Requesting to: Travis County Parks and Recreation 

Subject: Travis County Parks and Recreation Proposed Gate Fee Use 

Historically Sam Bass has no been allowed to charge a spectator gate fee at the North East Travis 
County complex, due to this the ability to compete in the market for tournaments has been 
difficult. In order to compete in the market (which will require the reduction of entry fees for 
tournaments) Sam Bass Baseball is proposing a $4 per spectator gate fee charge for people 16 
years of age and older on tournament weekends only (league weekends will remain free 
admission). This fee will help offset the increase cost for field rentals during tournaments. Sam 
Bass agrees to charge "baseball tournament" spectators only this $4 fee. 

Any general use (walking, jogging etc.) parties utilize the sidewalks or pathways into or out of 
the baseball area they will be allowed to pass through at no charge. 

Weare confident that our ability to regain some market share in the area by approving this 
measure. Weare also very thankful to the commissioners and staff of Travis County for their 
continued support of the league and other youth of this area. 

Sincerely 

Darrell Fletcher 

President 

Sam Bass Youth Baseball 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 19

































































salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 20







salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 21





























salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 22





salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 23











































































































































































































































































































































































salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 24























salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 25

































salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 26







































 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
AT 11:00 A.M.:  
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON LEGISLATIVE 
MATTERS, INCLUDING: 

A. UPDATE ON LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES; 
B. REQUEST FROM SHERIFF’S OFFICE TO EXPAND AUTHORITY 

TO ENFORCE COMMERCIAL MOTOR VEHICLE LAWS; 
C. HOUSE BILL 958, RELATING TO THE ANNUAL INTEREST RATE 

OF THE TEXAS COUNTY AND DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM; 
D. STATE PARTICIPATION IN THE EXPANSION OF THE MEDICAID 

PROGRAM; AND,   
E. ADDITIONS TO THE PRIORITIES, POLICY POSITIONS AND THE 

POSITIONS ON OTHER PROPOSALS SECTIONS OF THE TRAVIS 
COUNTY LEGISLATIVE AGENDA. 

 
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORDINATOR RECOMMENDATION:   
IGR recommends that the Court: 

1. Adopt the draft resolution in opposition to House Bill 598; and, 
2. Modify the Travis County Legislative Agenda as recommended.  

 
 
BACKGROUND:  
1. February 26 marks the beginning of the eighth week of the legislative 

session. As of last Thursday, 2,353 bills and joint resolutions have been 
filed. Your IGR Office is tracking 636 of them and key County policy 
staffers have already provided 627 analyses through the ATLAS system. 
A spreadsheet detailing these figures is enclosed.  
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 27



2. The Court’s efforts to raise the visibility of the LIRAP and LIP diversions 
seem to be bearing fruit. In response to the letter the Court sent to 
Representative Drew Darby on February 12, Representative Paul 
Workman last Monday sent his own letter to Representative Darby. It is 
attached. We continue to work with our delegation, other legislators, and 
our colleagues in TAC and the CUC on this important issue.  

 
3. Committee meetings have started in earnest. A schedule of the standing 

committee meetings times for both the Senate and the House is 
enclosed.  

 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  

 
4. The Travis County Sheriff’s Office seeks permissive authority to enforce 

certain federal laws and regulations regarding commercial motor 
vehicles. This would require a change in state law. The Sheriff’s Office 
asks the Court to support such changes and to add passage of such 
legislation to the County’s legislative priorities. Major Phyllis Clair, 
Deputy Jessie Tippie, and Planner Julie Cullen will be available to 
answer any questions.  
 

5. House Bill 958 (Attachment A), by Representative Rob Orr, would lower 
the interest crediting rate on Texas County and District Retirement 
System (TCDRS) funds. IGR recommends that the Commissioners 
Court adopt the attached resolution in opposition to HB 958, and direct 
the legislative team to convey its opposition to the Legislature. Amy 
Bishop, TCDRS Deputy Director, and Tom Harrison, TCDRS General 
Counsel, will be available to answer questions.  

 
6. The Legislature is considering whether Texas should participate in the 

expansion of Medicaid coverage included in Patient Protection and 
Affordable Care Act of 2010. IGR recommends that the Court encourage 
the State to participate in the program. Central Health, our healthcare 
district, and Travis County Health and Human Services and Veterans 
Services, join in that recommendation. Trish Young Brown, the CEO of 
Central Health, will be available to answer questions.  

 
7. Last week, the Court adopted several amendments to the Legislative 

Agenda. An updated document integrating those changes is attached.  
 



8. IGR recommends the following change to the Travis County Legislative 
Agenda:  

Add the following to the Health & Human Services subsection of the 
Policy Positions section:  

Support legislation and budgeting decisions to include Texas in 
the Medicaid expansion program. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Not applicable.    
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Tanya Acevedo, Project Management Division Manager 
Travis County Information Technology Services 
Phone:  854-8685 
Email:  Tanya.Acevedo@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Daniel Bradford, Assistant County Attorney 
County Attorney’s Office 
Phone:  854-3718 
Email:   Daniel.Bradford@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Leslie Browder, County Executive 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-8679 
Email:  Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us  
 
David Escamilla  
County Attorney  
Phone:  854-9415 
Email:  David.Escamilla@co.travis.tx.us  
 
 
 

mailto:Tanya.Acevedo@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Daniel.Bradford@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:David.Escamilla@co.travis.tx.us


Sherri Fleming, County Executive  
Health and Human Services/Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4101 
Email:  Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Cyd Grimes 
Purchasing Agent 
Phone:  854-9700 
Email:  Cyd.Grimes@co.travis.tx.us  
 
John Hille, Transactions Division Director 
County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9642 
Email: John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Danny Hobby, County Executive  
Emergency Services 
Phone:  854-4416 
Email:  Danny.Hobby@co.travis.tx.us   
 
Roger Jefferies, County Executive 
Justice and Public Safety 
Phone:  854-4415 
Email:  Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Gregg Knaupe 
Travis County Legislative Consultant 
Phone:  499-8826 
Email: Gregg@KnaupeGR.com  
 
Steven Manilla, County Executive 
Transportation and Natural Resources 
Phone:   854-9429 
Email:   Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Nicki Riley 
Travis County Auditor 
Phone:  854-3227 
Email:  Nicki.Riley@co.travis.tx.us  
 
 

mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Cyd.Grimes@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:John.Hille@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Danny.Hobby@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Roger.Jefferies@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Gregg@KnaupeGR.com
mailto:Steven.Manilla@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Nicki.Riley@co.travis.tx.us


Jessica Rio, Budget Director 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-4455 
Email: Jessica.Rio@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Aerin-Renee Toussaint, Budget Analyst II 
Planning and Budget Office 
Phone:  854-1160 
Email:  Aerin.Toussaint@co.travis.tx.us  
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Bill Status Report, February 21, 2013.  
B. Standing Committee meeting schedules for the Texas Senate and 

House of Representatives, 83rd Texas Legislature.  
C. Legislative Proposal Memo on expansion of Sheriff’s Office 

enforcement authority, February 21, 2013. 
D. Legislative Proposal Memo on House Bill 958, February 21, 2013. 
E. Legislative Proposal Memo on Medicaid program expansion in Texas, 

February 21, 2013. 
F. Travis County Legislative Agenda, as amended through February 12, 

2013.  
 

mailto:Jessica.Rio@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Aerin.Toussaint@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County IGR Bill Status Report  83rd Texas Legislature

AS OF WEEK 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

10-Jan 17-Jan 24-Jan 31-Jan 7-Feb 14-Feb 21-Feb 28-Feb 7-Mar 14-Mar

HBs 446 550 686 845 1,035 1,282 1,582

HJRs 39 43 44 51 58 63 72

SBs 149 162 209 268 386 528 669

SJRs 11 13 16 20 22 29 30

TOTAL BILLS 645 768 955 1,184 1,501 1,902 2,353

TRACKED 167 281 305 368 474 551 636

ANALYSES 109 137 281 346 430 485 627

SUPPORT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

OPPOSE 0 0 0 0 1 1 1

AS OF WEEK 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21-Mar 28-Mar 4-Apr 11-Apr 18-Apr 25-Apr 2-May 9-May 16-May 23-May

HBs

HJRs

SBs

SJRs

TOTAL BILLS

TRACKED

ANALYSES

SUPPORT

OPPOSE

THURSDAY

TRAVIS COUNTY

THURSDAY

TRAVIS COUNTY

Printed: 2/21/2013, 10:16 AM



Senate Committee Coordinator Committee Handbook

5

83RD LEGISLATURE
SENATE COMMITTEE SCHEDULE

TIME MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY

8:00 A.M.

9:00 A.M.

1:30 P.M. or 
upon adj.

8:30 A.M.

11:00 A.M. 
or upon adj.

Administration will meet at the discretion of the Chair.
These committees will continue meeting in the afternoon as necessary.
Regular bill hearing only.  Thursday will serve as a back up for bill hearings, if necessary.

** 
***

State Affairs**
Senate Chamber

State Affairs**
Senate Chamber

Finance***
E1.036

HHS**
Senate Chamber

Natural Resources**
E1.012

Natural Resources**
E1.012

HHS**
E1.016

Finance**
E1.036

Veteran Affairs & 
Military Installations
Betty King Cmte. Room

Open Government
Betty King Cmte. Room

Agriculture &
Rural Affairs 

E1.012

9:30 A.M.

* 

IGR** - E1.028

Jurisprudence
Betty King Cmte. Room

Criminal Justice
E1.016

Education**
E1.028

Education**
E1.028

Higher Education**
E1.012

Government
Organization

Betty King Cmte. Room

Business & Commerce
E1.016

Economic**
Development

Senate Chamber

Transportation**
E1.016

Nominations**
E1.016



MONDAY

7:00 AM
Appropriations E1.030

2:00 PM or upon adjournment
Elections E2.028
Government Efficiency & Reform E1.026
International Trade & Intergovernmental Affairs E1.014
Investments & Financial Services E2.030
Judiciary & Civil Jurisprudence E2.012
Land & Resource Management E2.016
Pensions E2.026
Technology E2.010
Ways & Means E2.014

4:00 PM or upon adjournment
Local & Consent Calendars E2.020

TUESDAY

8:00 AM
Natural Resources E2.010
Transportation E2.012

10:30 AM or upon adjournment
Criminal Jurisprudence E2.016
Environmental Regulation E1.026
Human Services E2.030
Rules & Resolutions Agricultural Museum, 1W.14

2:00 PM or upon adjournment
Business & Industry E2.014
Insurance E2.026
Licensing & Administrative Procedures E1.010
Public Education E2.036

Effective Monday, February 04, 2013

83rd Legislature - Regular Session

HOUSE COMMITTEE SCHEDULE

1

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text
The Select Committee on Transparency in State Agency Operations will meet at the discretion of the Co-Chairs.

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text
 

h0560a6
Typewritten Text



WEDNESDAY

8:00 AM
Agriculture & Livestock E1.010
Public Health E2.012
Special Purpose Districts E2.014

10:30 AM or upon adjournment
State Affairs JHR 140
Urban Affairs E2.016

2:00 PM or upon adjournment
Corrections E2.010
Culture, Recreation & Tourism E2.026
Energy Resources JHR 120
Federalism & Fiscal Responsibility, Select E2.036
Higher Education E1.014

THURSDAY

8:00 AM
Defense & Veterans' Affairs E2.012
Economic & Small Business Development E2.014
General Investigating & Ethics E1.010
Homeland Security & Public Safety E2.010

10:30 AM or upon adjournment
County Affairs E2.016
Criminal Procedure Reform, Select E2.028
Redistricting E2.026

Effective Monday, February 04, 2013

83rd Legislature - Regular Session

HOUSE COMMITTEE SCHEDULE

2

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text
The Select Committee on Transparency in State Agency Operations will meet at the discretion of the Co-Chairs.

h0560a6
Typewritten Text

h0560a6
Typewritten Text



Intergovernmental Relations 
                                           Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
 700 Lavaca Building, Suite 360 (512) 854-9754 
 Austin, TX  78701  deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us 
  Twitter: @TravCo_IGR   

 
 

 
 

 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 THROUGH: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, Intergovernmental Relations 

 DATE: Thursday, February 21, 2013 for Tuesday, February 26, 2013 

 RE: Expansion of Sheriff’s Office authority to regulate commercial motor 
vehicles  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
 
 
Summary and IGR Coordinator Recommendation 
The Travis County Sheriff’s Office seeks permissive authority to enforce certain federal 
laws and regulations regarding commercial motor vehicles. This would require a 
change in state law. The Sheriff’s Office asks the Court to support such changes and to 
add passage of such legislation to the County’s legislative priorities.  
 
Background 
Commercial motor vehicles include 18-wheelers, buses, and other large, heavy vehicles 
operate in the stream of commerce. Commercial motor vehicles, or CMVs, are regulated 
by both federal and state laws and regulations.  
 
The Texas Transportation Code1 authorizes certain local law enforcement agencies to 
enforce federal rules and regulations, provided that the law enforcement officers have 
been trained and certified in those rules and regulations. Most of the enforcement 
authority has been granted to police departments, although sheriffs and deputy sheriffs 
in counties on the Mexican border or with populations greater than 2.2 million people 
(Harris and Dallas) also have such authority.2  
 

                                                 
1  TEXAS TRANS. CODE, Chapter 644.   
 
2  TEXAS TRANS. CODE, SECTION 644.101(C).  

mailto:deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.644.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.644.htm#644.101


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 2  
 
The Travis County Sheriff’s Office believes having such authority within the County 
would enhance traffic safety and increase the efficiency of the Sheriff’s Office 
operations. Federal law enforcement grants are available to support enforcement 
activities, subject to limitations in state law.3  
 
Issues and Opportunities 
An explanation of the Sheriff’s Office rationale for seeking this authority is attached.  
 
Budgetary and Fiscal Impact 
The Sheriff’s Office has assured PBO that the expansion of authority contemplated by 
this change in law could be accomplished within existing resources.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. Travis County Sheriff’s Office, “Information Data,” February 21, 2013.  
 
 
CC: The Honorable Greg Hamilton, Travis County Sheriff  
 Jim Sylvester, Chief Deputy Sheriff, Travis County Sheriff’s Office  
 Major Phyllis Clair, Travis County Sheriff’s Office  
 Julie Cullen, Travis County Sheriff’s Office 
 
  

                                                 
3  TEX. TRANS. CODE, Section 644.102.  

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.644.htm#644.102


 

  

Information Data 
 

The Travis County Sheriff’s Office (TCSO) is requesting modification to the wording of the Texas 
Transportation Code Section 644.101 (c).  This section establishes the criteria for the eligibility of a 
County to enforce the regulations for Commercial Motor Vehicles (CMV) set forth by the US Department 
of Transportation (USOT) - Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA).     
 

• Current: Section 644.101 (c) a sheriff or deputy sheriff of a county bordering the United Mexican 
States or of a county with a population of 2.2 million or more is eligible to apply for certification 
under this section. 

 
• Proposed Changes: Section 644.101 (c) a sheriff or deputy sheriff of a county bordering the 

United Mexican States or of a county with a population of 2.2 (1) million or more is eligible to 
apply for certification under this section. 

 
The requested change will lower the population requirement from 2.2 to 1 million.  This will allow Travis 
County, and 2 additional counties, to become eligible for certification.   
 
Why does TCSO want this change?  
It has been noted that there were over 945,000 vehicles registered in Travis County in 2012, coupled 
with an estimated 659 active trucking/commercial motor vehicle companies and pass-thru traffic, 
roadways throughout Travis County have become extremely congested.  Because of this high 
concentration of cars mixed with CMV within our jurisdiction, TCSO would like to expand its capabilities 
in enforcing both the state and federal CMV regulations, in order to protect the safety and lives of its 
citizens, protect the conditions of the roadway infrastructure, as well as becoming self-sufficient in the 
enforcement of all CMV regulations.   
 
What will the changes do?   
TCSO is currently only able to ticket for state CMV violations, which only allows a deputy to cite a vehicle 
on size, weight, markings, limited equipment and registration violations. By expanding TCSO’s 
enforcement capabilities, deputies would not only be able to ticket an unsafe CMV, but they would have 
the ability to render a vehicle out-of-service pending repair or correction, if the deputy deems the 
vehicle to be a hazard to public safety or the roadways.   
  
TCSO deputies are dependent upon calling other certified law enforcement agencies for the 
enforcement or removal of unsafe CMV.  The primary certified agencies that TCSO utilizes for assistance 
are: Austin Police Department (APD), Pflugerville Police Department (PPD), and Texas Department of 
Public Safety (DPS).  However, these agencies are not always available for assistance or able to assist in a 
timely manner. This dependency is an inefficient use of both time and taxpayer funds in a situation that 
should be able to be handled by a single deputy.  This change would allow TCSO to become self-
sufficient in the enforcement of CMV regulations.           
 
Who would this change affect/benefit? 
By lowering the population criteria, three additional county sheriff’s offices would be eligible to obtain 
certification to enforce federal CMV regulations.  These counties are Tarrant, Bexar and Travis Counties.  
This change will affect the law enforcement agencies assigned to enforcing the regulations governing 
commercial motor vehicles within these three counties, as well as benefit the safety of the general 



 

  

driving public and the trucking industry.  TCSO is already actively enforcing the state CMV regulations, 
but is dependent upon DPS, APD or PPD in order to enforce the more stringent federal regulations and 
guidelines.  A direct benefit for TCSO would be the cost savings associated with a more efficient use of 
the deputies time, versus incurring the costs associated with down/wait times.  There will also be 
uniformed inspections procedures, violation reporting and reporting systems which allow for officer 
efficiency.  Outside agencies assisting TCSO would see similar benefits by not having to send an officer to 
assist with a violation that could be handled by one deputy, as well as the uniformed reporting.          
  



 

  

    
DATA SHEET 

 
Travis County - Commercial Vehicle Crash Data  
 Fatalities Serious Injuries Other Injuries Non-

Injuries 
Unknown 
Severity 

Total 
Crashes 

 Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Crashes   

2011 6 7 108 154 113 210 266 3 496 

2010 5 5 118 168 105 200 309 4 541 

2009 5 5 94 135 112 190 332 11 554 

 
 
Travis County – All Vehicle Crash Data  
 Fatalities Serious Injuries Other Injuries Non-

Injuries 
Unknown 
Severity 

Total 
Crashes 

 Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Crashes   

2011 73 84 3695 4985 3277 5519 6599 469 14113 

2010 75 82 3577 4921 3078 5457 6906 460 14096 

2009 92 95 3206 4250 3823 6173 6173 7381 15241 

 
Trucking Companies (within Travis County)  
Number  Status  
659 Active  
16 Active – No Insurance  
2 Dismissed  
299 Expired  
596 Revoked  
65 Transitional  
22 Incomplete  
 
  



 

  

 
 

DATA SHEET 
Comparisons 

 
Fatalities  
 CMV All Percentage 
 Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual 
2011 6 7 73 84 8.22% 8.33% 
2010 5 5 75 82 6.67% 6.10% 
2009 5 5 92 95 5.43% 5.26% 
 
* In 2011, 8.33% of the motor vehicles fatalities involved a commercial motor vehicle.   
* There has been a steady increase in the percentage of fatalities involving CMV over the last 3 years.  
 
Serious Injuries   
 CMV All Percentage 
 Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual 
2011 108 154 3695 4985 2.92% 3.09% 
2010 118 168 3577 4921 3.30% 3.41% 
2009 94 135 3206 4250 2.93% 3.18% 
 
 
Other Injuries   
 CMV All Percentage 
 Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual  Crashes  Actual 
2011 113 210 3277 5519 3.45% 3.81% 
2010 105 200 3078 5457 3.41% 3.67% 
2009 112 190 3823 6173 2.93% 3.08% 
 
* There has been a steady increase in the percentage of other injuries involving CMV over the last 3 
years. 
 
All Crashes within Travis County  
 CMV All Percentage 
 Crashes within Travis County 
2011 496 14113 3.51% 
2010 541 14096 3.84% 
2009 554 15241 3.63% 
 
 
 
  



 

  

 
Exhibit A 

 

      
 

      
  

Travis County Sheriff’s Office could only ticket for:  
 
 
State Violation  

• Over width without permit 
• Defective safety chains 
• No Operating Authority  

 
Federal Violations:  

• No Hazardous Material Placards (Out of Service) C.F.R. [385.13(a)(1)] 
• No Hazmat Endorsement (Out of Service) [383.23(a)(2)/391.11(b)(5)] 
• No Operating Authority (Out of Service) [392.9(a)] 
• Tire/Wheel Clearance ( Out of Service)[396.3(a)(1)] 
• Oil/Grease Leaks/Engine (Out of Service) [393.209(e) 
• Defective or No Stop/Signal Lights (Out of Service) [393.9] 
• TCSO called for DPS assistance & the vehicle was cited or placed out of service 

 



 

  

 
Exhibit B 

 

      
 
 

      
 

  Travis County Sheriff’s Office could only ticket for: 
 

 
State Violation:  

• Unsafe Speed  
• Expired CMV Inspection-Truck 

 
Federal Violations:  

• Defective Brakes (Out of Service) C.F.R. [396.3(a)(1)] 
• Mis-Matched Slack Adjusters (Brake Violation) [393.47] 
• Fail to Repair/Maintain Any CMV Subject to Driver’s Control 
• Power Steering Fluid Leak [393.209(e)] 
• Frame Accessories Not Bolted/Riveted Securely [393.201(d)] 
• Damaged/Discolored Windshield [393.60(c)] 
• Defective Windshield Washing System [393.78] 

 



 

  

Exhibit C  

Examples of Other Violations 

TCSO can cite but cannot put a vehicle out of service 

1)  Cracked/Broken frame member/axle spring assembly [393.207(a)] 

2)  Cracked lower spring clip/spring assembly [393.207(c)]  

3)  Broken rear spring bracket  [393.207(c)] 

4)  Worn tires/defective tire – visible belt material [393.75 (a)] 

5)  Hole in air bag/deflated air suspension (i.e. system failure, leak, etc.) 
[393.207 (f)]  

 



 

  

 

Critical Vehicle Inspection Items 
 
• Brake Systems 
• Coupling Devices 
• Exhaust Systems 
• Frames 
• Fuel Systems 
• Lighting Devices (Headlamps, Tail Lamps, Stop Lamps, Turn Signals and 
   Lamps/Flags on Projecting Loads) 
• Securement of Cargo 
• Steering Mechanisms 
• Suspensions 
• Tires 
• Van and Open-Top Trailer Bodies 
• Wheels, Rims and Hubs 
• Windshield Wipers 
• Emergency Exits and/or Electrical Cables and Systems in Engine and Battery Compartments (Buses) 
  



 

  

 

Definitions and Regulations 

 

CMV – Commercial motor vehicle (CMV) means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used 
in commerce to transport passengers or property if the motor vehicle—  

 
(1) Has a gross combination weight rating or gross combination weight of 11,794 kilograms or 
more (26,001 pounds or more), whichever is greater, inclusive of a towed unit(s) with a gross 
vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds), 
whichever is greater; or 
 
(2) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross vehicle weight of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 
pounds or more), whichever is greater; or 
 
(3) Is designed to transport 16 or more passengers, including the driver; or  
 
(4) Is of any size and is used in the transportation of hazardous materials as defined in this 
section. 

  
** Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration – All Regulations Part 383.5  
 

FMCSA – Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration      
 

TCSO – Travis County Sheriff’s Office  

 

 

   



Intergovernmental Relations 
                                           Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
 700 Lavaca Building, Suite 360 (512) 854-9754 
 Austin, TX  78701  deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us 
  Twitter: @TravCo_IGR   

 
 

 
 

 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 THROUGH: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, Intergovernmental Relations 

 DATE: (Thursday, February 21 for) Tuesday, February 26, 2013  

 RE: H.B. 958 -- Relating to the annual interest rate of the Texas County 
and District Retirement System  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
That the Travis County Commissioners Court adopt the attached resolution in 
opposition to House Bill 958, and direct its legislative team to convey that opposition to 
the Legislature.  
 
Summary and IGR Coordinator Recommendation 
House Bill 958 (Attachment A), by Representative Rob Orr, would lower the interest 
crediting rate on Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) funds, 
including the annuity reserve fund, which is used to pay monthly benefits to current 
retirees. Over time, this would deplete the fund, forcing TCDRS to either reduce 
benefits for retirees, increase costs for counties, or both.  
 
IGR recommends that the Commissioners Court adopt the attached resolution 
(Attachment B) in opposition to HB 958, and direct the legislative team to convey its 
opposition to the Legislature.  
 
Background 
The Texas Legislature created TCDRS in 1967. TCDRS serves 252 of Texas’s 254 counties 
and also serves 389 diverse districts – for example, water districts, hospital districts, 
appraisal districts, and emergency services districts. Currently, TCDRS provides 
retirement, disability and survivor benefits for more than 228,000 Texans. In 2012, 
TCDRS paid an estimated $871 million in benefits to retirees and former members.   
 
HB 958 would lower the interest crediting rate on TCDRS funds from seven percent 
(7%) to five percent (5%). This would have an immediate impact on TCDRS operations 

mailto:deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 2  
 
and, over time, affect the level of benefits to current and future retirees. An analysis of 
HB 958 prepared by TCDRS is included as Attachment C.  
 
This particularly affects Travis County retirees because our employees already 
contribute at the highest contribution rate (7%), and the County already matches at two 
and a quarter to one, which is close to the maximum rates statutorily allowed. This 
means that Travis County would have no mechanism to adjust employee contributions 
or employer match to compensate for the reduction in benefits imposed by HB 958.  A 
county that was at the lower end of the employee contribution and employer match 
rates, for example 4% employee contribution and one to one employer match, could 
adjust their employee contribution rate and employer match rate upward in order to 
keep retiree benefits about the same – an option that would not available to Travis 
County. 
 
Issues and Opportunities 
TCDRS argues that it is unlike other retirement systems in important ways:  
1) TCDRS benefits are savings based. Members – and their employer counties and 

districts – contribute to their retirement over the length of their careers. Benefits at 
retirement are based on each employee’s account balance and employer matching, 
not on a final salary and length of service algorithm.  

2) TCDRS receives no money from the State, although there is significant State 
oversight of its operations. Its independent, nine-member board is comprised of 
system members and retirees appointed by the governor and confirmed by the 
Texas Senate.  

3) Participating employers must pay 100% of their required contributions every year. 
This ensures that the necessary funds will be there when needed. In comparison, 
less than two-thirds of other public pension plans receive 90% or more of their 
employer contributions every year.  

4) Counties and other participating employers have flexibility and local control over 
benefits. Employers can choose benefit levels to meet their needs and budgets. This 
level of flexibility is not standard in most traditional retirement plans, making it 
difficult or impossible for employers to lower costs when needed. 

 
During the legislative interim, there was considerable discussion of the need for 
pension reform. In December, however, the Comptroller issued a report finding that 
TCDRS had a system-wide funded ratio of 89 percent, which was very healthy. A news 
article about that report is included as Attachment D.  
 

http://www.texastransparency.org/yourmoney/pdf/TexasItsYourMoney-Pensions.pdf


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 3  
 
Already, several commissioners courts around the state have adopted resolutions or 
orders opposing HB 958. An example from Comal County is included as Attachment E.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS  
A. 83rd Texas Legislature, House Bill 958, filed February 5, 2013.   
B. DRAFT resolution in opposition to House Bill 958 
C. Texas County and District Retirement System, “TCDRS bill analysis of HB 958,” 

February 2013.  
D. Austin American-Statesman, “Combs calls for ‘tweaks’ to improve pension oversight, 

transparency,” December 5, 2012.  
E. Comal County Commissioners Court, “Res 2013-06 Strongly Opposing the Passage 

of HB 958 TCDRS Interest Credit  Reduction 7 to 5%,” February 14, 2013.  
 
 
CC: Leslie Browder, County Executive for Planning and Budget  
 Leroy Nellis, Budget Director Emeritus  
 Tom Harrison, Deputy Director and General Counsel, TCDRS 
 Ann McGeehan, Assistant General Counsel, TCDRS 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 Page - 1 - 

83R1120 DDT-D 
  
By:  Orr H.B. No. 958 

 
 

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ACT 

relating to the annual interest rate of the Texas County and 

District Retirement System. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  Section 845.314, Government Code, is amended to 

read as follows: 

Sec. 845.314.  INTEREST RATES.  Unless this subtitle expressly 

states another specified rate of interest, for periods beginning 

after December 31, 2013 [1996], the annual rate of interest is five 

[seven] percent. 

SECTION 2.  This Act takes effect immediately if it receives a 

vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as 

provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution.  If this 

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this 

Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Travis County is a member of the Texas County 
and District Retirement System, through which it funds the 
pension program for over 4,700 employees and living 
retirees; and,   
 
WHEREAS, the TCDRS is a well-managed, financially and 
actuarially sound system that, at nearly 90% funded, is in 
the top 20% of public retirement systems in the country; 
and, 
 
WHEREAS, employee and employer contributions to 
TCDRS are made on a pre-funded basis each year, virtually 
eliminating the risk of unfunded liabilities; and, 
 
WHEREAS, retiree benefits in TCDRS are based on the 
retiree’s final savings balance and employer matching, 
rather than the traditional “last three years” calculation, 
thus eliminating unanticipated increases; and, 
 
WHEREAS, counties participating in the TCDRS system are 
able to adjust benefit levels to meet their needs and budget 
requirements, a level of flexibility not found in most 
traditional plans; and, 
 
WHEREAS, HB 958, which would reduce the interest 
crediting rate on all TCDRS funds from 7% to 5%, has been 
filed during the 83rd Texas Legislative Session; and, 
 
WHEREAS, TCDRS is the only statewide plan in which 
reducing the interest rate significantly impacts retiree 
benefits; and, 
 



WHEREAS, TCDRS counties and districts currently have 
local control to select benefits and costs based on their 
workforce needs and budget, and, 
 
WHEREAS, the passage of HB 958 would significantly 
reduce TCDRS retiree benefits; now therefore,   
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Travis County Commissioners 
Court urges the Texas Legislature to oppose legislation that 
would endanger the actuarial soundness, solvency or 
sustainability of the TCDRS; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Travis County 
Commissioners Court expresses its opposition to House Bill 
958, and wishes to communicate that opposition to 
members of the Travis County delegation and to the entire 
Legislature. 
 
 
 

 
 

_________________________________ 
SAMUEL T. BISCOE 

COUNTY JUDGE 
 
 
     
RON DAVIS    SARAH ECKHARDT 
COMMISSIONER, PCT. 1    COMMISSIONER, PCT. 2 
 
 
     
GERALD DAUGHERTY              MARGARET J. GÓMEZ 
COMMISSIONER, PCT. 3    COMMISSIONER, PCT. 4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

TCDRS bill analysis of HB 958 

Filed by Rep. Rob Orr (R-Burleson), HB 958 reduces the interest crediting rate on all TCDRS funds 
from 7% to 5%, which would significantly reduce benefits and employer costs for all TCDRS plans.  

Specifically, this bill lowers the interest crediting on the system’s annuity reserve fund, which is used to 
pay monthly benefits to current retirees. This fund needs to be credited with 7% annual interest to be 
sufficiently funded. HB 958 reduces this crediting to 5%. As a result, HB 958 would cause the annuity 
reserve fund to eventually run out of money. To get things back in balance there would need to be an 
across-the-board reduction in benefits to retirees, an extra charge to employers to fund the shortfall or 
a combination of both.  

In addition, the bill lowers the interest crediting on employee accounts from 7% to 5%. TCDRS is a 
savings-based or cash-balance plan. This means members are saving for their own retirement over the 
length of their careers. Benefits are based on the total final employee savings balance (deposits and 
interest) and employer matching. In contrast, benefits in traditional pension plans are based on a final 
average salary calculation and length of career.  

TCDRS is the only statewide plan in which reducing the interest rate on employee accounts significantly 
impacts retiree benefits. Teacher Retirement System (TRS) and Employees Retirement System (ERS) 
benefits are based on final salary before retirement. For most plans at Texas Municipal Retirement 
System (TMRS), there is a component of the benefit based on the final salary in addition to the cash-
balance component. Thus, for these other statewide systems, changes to the interest rate do not impact 
retiree benefits (or may not impact retiree benefits, in the case of TMRS). 

For an example of how the interest rate reduction might affect an individual, consider a new employee 
enrolled in a TCDRS plan with a 200% employer match and a 7% employee deposit rate. The interest 
rate on the employee’s deposits is 5%. This employee works 20 years and then retires. 

 The benefit for this employee would be reduced by approximately 17% compared to the benefit 
this employee would receive with a 7% interest rate. 

 The cost for the employer to provide this benefit would also be reduced by 17%. 

Keep in mind, this is an average example. The impact on actual individuals would vary based on their 
circumstances. For example, an employee who is close to retirement may not be impacted as much as 
an employee who has many years before retirement. Similarly, the impact on employers’ total plan costs 
would vary based on plan experience and demographics. 

Employers currently have local control to select benefits and costs based on their workforce needs and 
budget. Employers may reduce benefits and costs by reducing the amount employees are saving toward 
retirement (the employee deposit rate) or by reducing the employer matching rate. In order to achieve 
the same result without adjusting the interest rate, the employer in the example above could reduce the 



Page 2 of 2 

 

employer matching rate from 200% match to 150% match. This would ultimately result in the same 17% 
reduction in the benefit and cost. 

We continue to analyze the impact of this bill on system funds and to look at the complexity of such a 
change. We will keep you updated as we have more information. 

 

 



 
 
Updated: 5:10 p.m. Tuesday, Dec. 4, 2012 | Posted: 4:30 p.m. Tuesday, Dec. 4, 2012 
PUBLIC PENSIONS 

Combs calls for ‘tweaks’ to improve 
pension oversight, transparency 
No sign that public pension overhaul in the offing at 
Legislature. 

 
Jay Janner 
 
Texas Comptroller Susan Combs on Tuesday released a pension report, the 
fourth in a series on government debt and taxes. 
By Kate Alexander 
American-Statesman Staff 
 
A conservative push to overhaul Texas’ public pensions appears to have fizzled, if 
comments from state Comptroller Susan Combs on Tuesday are any indication. 
“Stability-wise, we’re actually in pretty doggone good shape,” Combs said of Texas’ 
major statewide public pension plans as she released a report that called for “tweaks” to 
improve transparency and oversight. 
Combs, a Republican who is eyeing a run for lieutenant governor in 2014, said she 
would remain “agnostic” on whether the public pensions should be converted to 
retirement plans akin to the 401(k) most common in the private sector. 
Conservative groups such as the Texas Public Policy Foundation have been advocating 
for such a change. They have pointed to troubles in other states, such as Illinois and 
California, as an indication that pension funds in general aren’t sustainable. 

http://www.statesman.com/staff/kate-alexander/
http://media.cmgdigital.com/shared/lt/lt_cache/thumbnail/960/img/photos/2012/12/04/c2/d1/jwj-Susan-Combs-0019.jpg


Talmadge Heflin, director of the foundation’s Center for Fiscal Policy, said Combs’ 
recommendations for greater transparency and more oversight authority for the Pension 
Review Board could be a “precursor to an overhaul.” 
“The public would get a look at what is inside the pension systems that are out there,” 
Heflin said. “That then would help the public and the legislators to have a greater 
understanding of the potential problems that are out there.” 
But Heflin acknowledged that an overhaul is a long-term goal and isn’t likely to happen 
when legislators return in January. 
“You have to be realistic,” Heflin said. “We still believe that reform needs to take place. 
… You take it a step at a time.” 
Texas’ major plans — the Teacher Retirement System of Texas and the Employees 
Retirement System of Texas — don’t have enough assets to covers their future 
obligations, largely because of their investment returns during the economic collapse. 
But the funds’ assets do exceed the 80 percent threshold experts say is needed for a 
plan to be healthy. 
Combs said there are some indications that some local plans, particularly in Houston, 
have funding troubles. 
“A California-style problem could one day be in the cards for some cities, which has the 
effect of exerting downward pressure on other parts of your local budget, which, of 
course, ultimately affects you, the taxpayers,” Combs said at a news conference. 
Max Patterson, executive director of the Texas Association of Public Employees 
Retirement Systems, said he has been hearing from elected officials that they have 
confidence in the pension systems across the state and they aren’t inclined to push for 
a wholesale conversion to the 401(k)-type system. 
“I think that push has come from … a handful of isolated, individual groups that have 
their own cause and their own belief,” Patterson said. 
The pension report released Tuesday was the fourth and final installment in a series 
called “Texas, It’s Your Money,” in which Combs’ office has looked at local government 
debt and taxes. She has called for legislation that would require local governments to 
provide more information to voters during bond elections as well as other transparency 
measures. 
She noted that some local governments were resistant or weren’t responsive to 
releasing details about their finances. 
“If it’s hard for us to find out, it’s really hard for the average citizen,” Combs said. 

 

 





Intergovernmental Relations 
                                           Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
 700 Lavaca Building, Suite 360 (512) 854-9754 
 Austin, TX  78701  deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us 
  Twitter: @TravCo_IGR   

 
 

 
 

 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

THROUGH: Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, Intergovernmental Relations 

 DATE: Thursday, February 21, 2013   

 RE: Medicaid Expansion in Travis County  
 
SUGGESTED MOTION 
That the Travis County Commissioners Court add the following to the 
Health & Human Services subsection of the Policy Positions section:   

a. Support legislation and budgeting decisions to include Texas in the 
Medicaid expansion program. 

 
BACKGROUND 
According to the Kaiser Family Foundation, 6,143,5000 Texans are 
uninsured; at 23.7%, Texas has the highest uninsured rate in the nation. In 
Travis County, 233,067 residents are uninsured, which at 22.7% of the 
population is just below the state average. 
 
The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) will expand 
health insurance coverage and access to health care for all Americans. 
Provisions and reforms to the private health insurance industry established 
by PPACA are expected to lower the uninsured rate in Texas to 17.3% and 
in Travis County to 17.1%.1   

                                                 
1 Estimates of the Impact of the Affordable Care Act on Counties in Texas, April 2012, conducted for Methodist 
Healthcare Ministries of South Texas by Michael E. Cline, Ph.D., and Steve H. Murdock, Ph.D., Hobby 
Center for the Study of Texas at Rice University. 

mailto:deece.eckstein@co.travis.tx.us


Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 2  
 
In addition to private health insurance reform, PPACA allows states to 
participate in the expansion of Medicaid to adults up to 138% of the federal 
poverty level (FPL). Childless adults between ages 19 – 64 will see the 
biggest gains in insurance coverage under Medicaid expansion; unless 
pregnant or fully disabled, they currently do not qualify for coverage. 
 
Low-Income Health Care in Travis County 
State law mandates that local governmental entities must provide basic 
healthcare services to indigent residents who are at or below 21% FPL.  The 
Central Health Medical Access Program (MAP) offers a health care 
program to eligible residents up to 100% FPL and offers access to primary 
care clinics for eligible residents on a sliding fee scale up to 200% FPL.   
 
The cost burden of providing this care falls to Central Health and in turn to 
Travis County taxpayers.  Despite multiple funding streams and an influx 
of 1115 Waiver Funds, there is still a higher demand for services than can 
be provided. There remains a shortfall in recouping uncompensated care 
costs as well. Medicaid expansion would substantially reduce 
uncompensated care, allowing for Central Health’s funds to be used 
towards other health care services.   
 
Impact of Medicaid Expansion on Travis County 
Travis County will see an annual gain of Medicaid funds, projected at 
$224,135,916.2  These gains will help offset the current strains of healthcare 
services and increase coverage to needy populations. However there will 
be an increased need for additional delivery system expansion to serve the 
newly covered population.  
 
Medicaid expansion will further reduce the uninsured rate in Travis 
County. The Center for Public Policy Priorities estimates that the rate in 

                                                 
2 Presentation to the Senate Health & Human Services and Senate State Affairs Committees on the 
Affordable Care Act, August 1, 2012 



Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 3  
 
Travis County will drop an additional 5.4% points, lowering its uninsured 
rate to 11.7%. In total, between PPACA reforms and Medicaid expansion, 
Travis County will nearly halve its uninsured population, going from 
233,067 down to 119,442. 
 
Over the next decade, Texas could see a reduction of $1.7 billion in 
uncompensated care costs. As one of six counties carrying the bulk of 
Texas’ uninsured, Travis County will definitely see some relief from this 
burden.   
 
The Cost of Medicaid Expansion in Texas 
The federal government will cover 100% of the costs for the first three years 
of expansion to adults.  In 2017 the reimbursement rate is reduced to 95% 
and decreases by 1% each year through 2019, and 90% in 2020 and beyond.  
Accordingly, the state will never have to cover more than 10% of the costs 
of Medicaid expansion to adults.   
 
No local tax money will be required of county residents to pay for the 
Medicaid expansion; instead it will be paid with state and federal tax 
revenue. Should Texas elect not to participate in Medicaid expansion, the 
federal tax dollars from Texans will be diverted to other states that are 
participating in the expansion.   
 
Texas will see a large return on investment for every dollar spent towards 
Medicaid expansion. For every $1 the state contributes the federal 
government will match it with $9 – the current match for Texas Medicaid is 
only $1.45 in federal match for every $1 from the state. Over the course of 
the next ten years, Texas will receive $100 billion in federal funds for the 
$15 billion it will spend on Medicaid expansion.3   
 

                                                 
3 Expanding Medicaid in Texas: Smart, Affordable and Fair, January 2013, prepared for Methodist Healthcare 
Ministries of South Texas by Billy Hamilton Consulting. 



Travis County Intergovernmental Relations 
Deece Eckstein, Coordinator 
February 21, 2013, Page 4  
 
Attachments: 
A. Travis County Intergovernmental Relations, “Who Has Medicaid & 

CHIP Coverage in Travis County,” February 20, 2013 
B. Center for Public Policy Priorities, “Texas Uninsured: Without 

Medicaid Expansion, Only Half as Many Gain Coverage,” 
Presentation to the Conference of Urban Counties Membership 
Luncheon, February 6, 2013  

C. Texas Health and Human Services Commission, “Medicaid 
Expansion Population,” Presentation to the Senate Health & Human 
Services and Senate State Affairs Committees on the Affordable Care 
Act, August 1, 2012 

D. Texas Health and Human Services Commission, “Texas Health Care 
Coverage – Post ACA Implementation,”  Presentation to the Senate 
Health & Human Services and Senate State Affairs Committees on 
the Affordable Care Act, August 1, 2012 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

Who Has Medicaid & CHIP Coverage in Travis County  
 

Approximately 12.8% of the Travis County population receives health 

insurance coverage under Medicaid and CHIP.  Under the current system 

the following populations are covered by Medicaid in both Texas and 

Travis County: 

 

 MEDICAID AND CHIP COVERAGE IN TEXAS & TRAVIS COUNTY

 Eligible Populations
 FPL %  FPL $/Year

 Texas
Travis 

 County (Federal Poverty Level)

 Children Under 19 in Medicaid  2,538,577  81,995

 Newborns
 Ages 1 – 5
 Ages 6 - 18

 185%
 133%
 100%

 $35,317
 $25,390
 $19,090   

 Children in CHIP  200%  $38,180  583,151  17,694

 Pregnant Women  185%  $35,317  93,496  2,535

 Low-income Families*  225,933  8,671

 TANF Parent of 2/No Income
 Working Parent of 2

 12%
 19%

 $2,256
 $3,696   

 Seniors & Adults w/ Disabilities  737,051  20,699

 SSI (aged or disabled)
 Long Term Care

 75%
 225%

 $8,376
 $25,128   

 Total Enrolled  4,178,208  131,594

*The financial eligibility thresholds for benefits for adults are so low that only the poorest of the poor 
qualify for any kind of assistance if they do not fall into one of the other covered categories.   

       

 
 



Texas Uninsured: Without Medicaid Expansion, 

Only half as many gain coverage

0

0.05

0.1

0.15

0.2

0.25

Texas Now With ACA

Medicaid

Without ACA

Medicaid

23.8%

11.6%
17.3%

3 million 

uninsured

4.5 million 

uninsured

12

6.1 million 

uninsured

Michael E. Cline, Ph.D., and Steve H. Murdock, Ph.D. , Rice University,  Estimates 

of the Impact of the Affordable Care Act on Counties in Texas, April 2012.



Medicaid Expansion Population 

Page 7 

ACA Medicaid Expansion Level (133% FPL) 

FPL 
Level 

 
Individual 

 
Family of 3 

12% $1,340 $2,291 

74% $8,266 $14,126 

100% $11,170 $19,090 

133% $14,856 $25,390 

400% $44,680 $76,360 
12% FPL  

Annual Income Levels 

The chart to the left shows the group of 
uninsured low-income adults that would have 
no other coverage option in absence of the ACA 
Medicaid Expansion.  
Note: The ACA expands Medicaid coverage for 
adults under age 65 (up to 133% FPL). However, 
subsidies are available to adults through the 
Exchange beginning at 100% FPL. 

220% FPL 



Texas Health Care Coverage –  

Post ACA Implementation 

Page 8 

CHIP CHIP 

200% FPL 

CHIP 

200% FPL 

CHIP 
Current  

Medicaid 

185% FPL 

Current  

Medicaid 

133% FPL Current  

Medicaid 

100% FPL 

Current  

Medicaid 

185% FPL 

Current   

Medicaid 

74% FPL 
 

14% FPL 

NEW  

Optional 
Medicaid 

133% FPL 

NEW  

Optional 
Medicaid 

133% FPL 

Former CHIP 
to Medicaid 

133% 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

Unsubsidized  

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Unsubsidized   

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Unsubsidized   

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Unsubsidized   

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Unsubsidized  

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Current   

Medicaid 

220% FPL 

Unsubsidized  

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 

NEW Optional 
Medicaid 
(Parent/ 

Childless Adult) 

Unsubsidized  

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Unsubsidized  

In or Out of 
Exchange 

Sliding Scale  

Health 
Insurance 
Subsidies, 
through 

Exchange 

400% FPL 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 1 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 

 
Travis County is the fifth-largest county in Texas, with a population of over one million 
people.  Travis County is known for its natural beauty, thriving economy and civic spirit.  
Home to the state capital and The University of Texas at Austin, Travis County is 
enriched by its diverse and well-educated population.   
 
As a political subdivision of state government, Travis County requires legislative 
authority to enhance and improve the services it delivers.  The Travis County 
Commissioners Court desires to enhance the quality of life of all Travis County 
residents and to provide the maximum return on investment for all revenues entrusted 
to the County.   
 
Principles for Legislative Action 
The Commissioners Court has adopted the following principles for the 83rd Texas 
Legislature: 
 Travis County is a unique place, and Travis County government should preserve 

and enhance the human, economic, cultural and natural resources of the area. 
 Travis County government acts as a steward of the public trust and of public 

resources entrusted to its care.   
 The Travis County Commissioners Court is committed to providing the maximum 

value and return on investment for all revenues entrusted to the County.   
 The Travis County Commissioners Court believes that local government best 

understands and responds to the needs of its constituents.  Therefore, it seeks 
maximum flexibility in implementing the policies and programs mandated by the 
Legislature.   

 In a time of dramatic budget shortfalls at the state level, the Travis County 
Commissioners Court opposes legislation or budgeting decisions that would shift the 
cost of state-funded programs to local governments.   

 The Travis County Commissioners Court believes counties need greater authority 
and tools to deal with the challenges of a rapidly-urbanizing area in rapidly-changing 
times.   

 
 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 2 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

Priorities 
(Items in this list are the legislative priorities for the IGR staff and the legislative 
consultants, i.e., “blue sheet.”  The list will be modified throughout the session as the 
Commissioners Court assigns and reviews those priorities.) 
 
 
1. Oppose legislation or budget decisions that would create unfunded mandates or 

divert county revenues.  (TRBA-1)   
 
2. Oppose legislation that would restrict the ability of counties to raise the revenues 

necessary to provide an adequate level of services to their citizens.  Travis County 
opposes appraisal caps and revenue caps. (TRBA-5)   

 
3. Support additional funding for programs that provide necessary benefits and 

services to Travis County residents. (HHS-1)     
 
4. Support legislation that would provide funding and infrastructure to improve the 

availability and continuity of mental and physical health care between county jails 
and the community. (JCJ-MH-1) 

 
5. Support legislation that respects and promotes local control over billboards, 

including digital electronic billboards. (ENV-4,-5)    
 
6. Support legislation giving counties the necessary tools to manage growth, protect 

property values, and preserve quality of life in the unincorporated areas. (GMLU-1)   
 
7. Support equitable additional funding for transportation infrastructure, including rail 

and mass transit. (MTF-2) 
 
8. Support legislation to effectively plan and manage groundwater and surface water as 

a single resource.  (ENV-9,-10,-12,-13) 
 

9. Support legislation to amend the Open Meetings Act to update references to “tape” 
recordings of public meetings and conform them to modern technology. (TRBA-9) 
 

10. Support legislation that would amend the Government Code to allow political 
subdivisions to implement the same loan, Roth and automatic enrollment provisions 
as state agencies, if in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code. (TRBA-10) 

 
11. Support legislation to clarify the geographic extent of ad valorem tax liens on 

business personal property. (TRBA-11)  
 

12. Support legislation to create two new criminal courts – one district court and one 
county court – in Travis County effective September 1, 2015. (JCJ-AJ-1) 

 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 3 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

Policy Positions 
(Items in this list are the legislative policy positions of Travis County.)  
 
 
Emergency Services 
1. Support legislation to amend the medical examiners’ statutes to promote best 

practices throughout the State while preserving local control and flexibility. 
2. Support legislation to preserve county regulatory authority over fire sprinklers in 

residential housing larger than three units. 
3. Support legislation or budgeting decisions that would tie Medicaid reimbursement 

rates for air ambulance services to federally established Medicare reimbursement 
rates.   

 
 
Environment and Natural Resources  
1. Oppose legislation eliminating or diluting Travis County’s authority to “…take any 

necessary and proper action to comply with the requirements of the storm water 
permitting program under the national pollutant discharge elimination system.”  

2. Support legislation to increase funding for the Texas Recreation and Parks Account 
Local Park Grant Program and the Texas State Park System.   

3. Support legislation to give Travis County authority to regulate off-premises signs 
along scenic portions of state and county roads.    

4. Oppose legislation that would reduce or eliminate local control over the placement 
and usage of digital electronic billboards.   

5. Support legislation to increase ratepayer protection in water supply corporation and 
water utility proceedings before the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. 

6. Support allowing counties to recover costs and attorney’s fees from a utility if they 
intervene on behalf of rate payers in unincorporated areas in water supply rate 
cases. 

7. Support legislation that would reconcile the incompatibility in the legal treatment of 
groundwater and surface water, recognizing that they are one and the same.  

8. Support modification of the State water planning process to include ground water 
modeling, which should include a regional component. 

9. Support funding of the State water plan through a fair and equitable mechanism. 
10. Support establishment by a State agency of a consistent set of water conservation 

standards for the state. 
11. Support measures to improve the effectiveness of ground water management by 

Ground Water Conservation Districts.  
12. Support full funding for the Low Income Repair Assistance, Retrofit and Accelerated 

Vehicle Retirement Program and the Local Initiative Projects. 
13. Support legislation that would improve the ability of the County to enforce clean air, 

water and other environmental laws. 
 
 
 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 4 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

Growth Management/Land Use   
1. Support legislation giving counties the necessary tools to manage growth, protect 

property values, and preserve quality of life in the unincorporated areas.   
2. Support legislation allowing counties to adopt a long-range comprehensive plan for 

land development within the unincorporated areas of the county. 
3. Support legislation allowing counties to adopt regulations that would buffer sensitive 

areas like schools, churches and residences from incompatible industrial uses. 
4. Support legislation that would restrict the ability of a homeowners’ association to 

prohibit the use of qualifying sustainable technologies on homes or property within 
their jurisdiction.   

 
 
Health and Human Services 
Changes to the MHMR, DSHS, DFPS 
1. Support additional funding for health and human services programs that provide 

necessary benefits and services to Travis County residents.     
2. Support legislation and budgeting decisions that will fully fund necessary mental 

health services provided by county MHMR departments. 
3. Oppose expansion of mandatory participation in private mental health managed care 

programs, leaving counties the option to participate. 
 

 
Juvenile and Criminal Justice 
Mental Health 
1. Support legislation that would provide funding and infrastructure to improve the 

availability and continuity of mental and physical health care between county jails 
and the community. 

2. Support additional funding for both state-run mental health facilities and for counties 
to provide mental health services in their facilities.  

Re-Entry Programs 
1. Support legislation to enhance employment readiness and job opportunities for 

people with criminal histories. 
2. Support legislation that would provide people with felony drug convictions the same 

access to food stamps as afforded other ex-offenders. 
3. Support legislation that would promote kinship care for children whose parents are 

incarcerated to reduce the impact on the foster care system. 
Jail Population Management 
1. Support legislation to reduce or eliminate the financial and operational burdens of 

state-supervised offenders in county correctional facilities.   
2. Support legislation to reimburse counties for all expenses incurred in housing state-

supervised offenders such as parole violators. 
3. Support legislation to allow for the release of technical parole violators on bond. 
4. Support legislation to increase opportunities for the use of technology (e.g., GPS 

monitoring, SCRAM devices) in jail diversion strategies. 
Pretrial Release on Personal Bonds 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 5 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

1. Oppose legislation that would eliminate or reduce local courts’ discretion with 
respect to the use of personal bonds.   

Administration of Justice 
1. Support legislation to create two new criminal courts – one district court and one 

county court – in Travis County effective September 1, 2015. 
 
 
Mobility and Transportation Funding   
1. Support increased funding for the Texas Department of Transportation for 

transportation and other mobility needs, including rail and mass transit.   
2. Support equitable additional funding for transportation infrastructure, including rail 

and mass transit. 
3. Support legislation enabling counties, on a local option basis, to levy taxes or fees to 

support mobility infrastructure.    
4. Support legislation to enable Travis County to levy a Transportation Project 

(Mobility) Fee to construct new and widen existing arterial roadways within the 
unincorporated areas. 

5. Support legislation to enable Travis County to levy an impact fee upon new land 
development within the unincorporated area to pay for arterial roadway 
improvements serving the development.     

 
 
Taxation, Revenues, Budget and Administration 
1. Oppose legislation or budget decisions that would create unfunded mandates or 

divert county revenues.   
2. Oppose legislation that would limit the County’s ability to meet the needs of its 

citizens by artificially capping appraisal values or county revenues.   
3. Support legislation that would allow counties to offer specialized retirement 

packages to early retirees.   
4. Support constitutionally-based unfunded mandate protection for local governments 

that allows counties to opt out of a mandate until funding is provided.  
5. Oppose legislation that would restrict the ability of counties to raise the revenues 

necessary to provide an adequate level of services to their citizens.  Travis County 
opposes appraisal caps and revenue caps.   

6. Support legislation giving counties greater freedom and flexibility in providing 
procurement notices to their residents.   

7. Support legislation that encourages economic development while preserving the 
authority and discretion of the commissioner’s court in negotiating economic 
development incentives.  

8. Support TCDRS as a prudently and conservatively structured defined contribution 
pension plan with hybrid components appropriate for counties. 

9. Support legislation to amend the Open Meetings Act to update references to “tape” 
recordings of public meetings and conform them to modern technology. 



UPDATE: 2/12/13 
 

 
TRAVIS COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT  LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
ADOPTED THROUGH: FEBRUARY 12, 2013 PAGE 6 OF 6 83RD TEXAS LEGISLATURE 
 

10. Support legislation that would amend the Government Code to allow political 
subdivisions to implement the same loan, Roth and automatic enrollment provisions 
as state agencies, if in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code. 

11. Support legislation to clarify the geographic extent of ad valorem tax liens on 
business personal property.  

12. Oppose legislation that would diminish the authority or discretion of a 
commissioner’s court and would not serve a court-approved public purpose. 

 
 
Positions on Other Proposals Before the 83rd Texas Legislature  
(Items in this list are legislative positions regarding initiatives of other Travis County 
elected officials or other groups or organizations.)  
 
 



MEMO 
 

 For Your 
Information 

 Action 
Required 

  
 TO: Travis County Commissioners Court 

 FROM: Steven Manilla, County Executive, TNR 

  Deece Eckstein, Coordinator, IGR 

 DATE: Tuesday, February 26, 2013 

 RE: ITEM #28 – Federal Legislation on Truck Weight Limits 
 

SUMMARY AND IGR RECOMMENDATION 
The Coalition Against Bigger Trucks (CABT) has asked the Commissioners 
Court to join them in expressing opposition to federal legislation that 
would raise the truck weight limit on federal highways above the current 
80,000 pounds. Such an increase would significantly enhance the wear and 
tear caused by big trucks to both the federal and to the state and local road 
networks.   
 
TNR and IGR recommend that the Court express its opposition to such 
legislation and that members of the Court send the attached letters to 
Travis County members of the congressional delegation, and adopt the 
attached resolution. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The current weight limit for trucks on the US highway system is 80,000 
pounds (40 tons). According to a government study, one 40-ton truck does 
as much damage to the road as 9,600 cars. Overweight vehicles pose even 
greater problems: a study by the American Association of State Highway 
and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) showed that raising the legal limit 
from 80,000 lbs. to 97,000 lbs. on a 6-axle truck results in 50% more road 

http://cabt.org/
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 28



damage. Additionally, increasing the legal limit to from 80,000 lbs. to 
100,000 lbs. on a 6-axle truck increases the road damage rate by 80%.  
 
Such damage is not limited to the federal highways, of course. These large 
trucks also travel on state and local road network system, where they 
impact local safety and road maintenance expenses. The attached memo 
from Don Ward at TNR describes some of the problems caused by 
overweight trucks.  
 
On November 29, 2011 the Commissioners Court took a position against 
similar proposals to change truck weight limits. At that time, the 
Commissioners Court sent letters to US Senators Kay Bailey Hutchison and 
John Cornyn expressing: 

a) opposition to S. 1450, by Senator Olympia Snowe (R-Maine) that 
would permit states to do “demonstration projects” allowing trucks 
to carry loads up to 100,000 pounds in some circumstances, and  

b) support for S. 876 by Senator Frank Lautenberg (D-New Jersey) that 
would require states to enforce the current federal limits on truck 
length and width.   

 
Once again this Congress, legislation has been filed to increase the current 
limit. HR 612 was filed by Congressman Michael H. Michaud (D-Maine) 
seeking to increase weight limits from 80,000 to 97,000 pounds. CABT seeks 
the County’s help in encouraging our congressional delegation to withhold 
support for the new bill.  
 
In 2012, as part of the MAP-21 omnibus transportation legislation, the 
Congress directed the Department of Transportation (USDOT) to 
undertake a two-year study examining the impacts of truck weights on 
highway safety, bridge and pavement damage and modal diversion. CABT 
argues that no congressional action on truck weight limits should be taken 
until the study is released in 2014. 
 
 

http://www.traviscountytx.gov/commissioners_court/minutes/2011/11/vs111129.pdf
http://thomas.loc.gov/cgi-bin/bdquery/D?d112:1:./temp/~bdL5JK:@@@L&summ2=m&|/home/LegislativeData.php|
http://thomas.loc.gov/cgi-bin/bdquery/D?d112:1:./temp/~bd70f9:@@@L&summ2=m&|/home/LegislativeData.php|
http://thomas.loc.gov/cgi-bin/bdquery/z?d113:HR00612:@@@X
http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/map21/freight.cfm


Attachments  
1. Draft letters for Travis County members of the Texas congressional 

delegation, for approval and signature by the Commissioners Court, 
February 26, 2013.  

2. Resolution opposing increases in truck weights or lengths operating 
on federal, state and, county and local roads, February 26, 2013. 

3. Memo from Don Ward re impact of truck weight limits on Travis 
County road construction, safety and maintenance issues, November 
16, 2011.   

4. Coalition Against Bigger Trucks, “Bigger Trucks Are Not Greener 
Trucks.”  

 
 
Cc: Don Ward 
 
 















 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON APPOINTMENTS 
TO THE STRATEGIC HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS.   
 
SUMMARY AND IGR COORINDATOR RECOMMENDATION:   
On October 30, 2012, the Commissioners Court issued a Call for 
Applications to fill two vacancies on the Strategic Housing Finance 
Corporation (SHFC) Board of Directors. Fifteen qualifying applications were 
received and, on December 11, the Court identified four candidates it 
wished to interview for the two vacancies On February 14, 2013, members 
of the Court interviewed the four candidates.    
  
IGR recommends that the Court make two appointments to the SHFC 
Board, for terms to conclude on December 31, 2015 and December 31, 
2016.  
 
BACKGROUND:  
Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 

• Seven members; five appointed by individual Court members, two by 
the Court as a whole  

• Staggered six-year terms 
• The two Court-appointed slots (Place 6 and Place 7) are vacant, with 

terms expiring December 31, 2015 (Place 6) and December 31, 2016 
(Place 7).  

• Not subject to the Uniform Appointment Process 
 
The four candidates are Richard Anton, Magdalena Blanco, Wilmer 
Roberts, and Ed Wendler, Jr.  

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 29



ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:   
There are seven members of the Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 
(SHFC) Board of Directors. Five members are appointed by individual 
members of the Court and two are appointed by the Court as a whole. 
Appointments are for terms of six years, and there is no limit on the amount 
of terms an appointee may serve. Appointees must be residents of the 
county.1 Because there is overlap between the missions of the Housing 
Authority and the SHFC, some individuals serve on both boards; however, 
the two boards are, and should be, independent.   
 
The current members of the SHFC and their dates of appointment are 
included as Attachment A. The Commissioners Court as a whole makes 
two appointments to the Board of Directors; the remaining five 
appointments are made by individual members of the Court.  
 
The two slots filled by the full Commissioners Court – Places 6 and 7 – are 
currently vacant. The term of the person in Place 6 term will expire on 
December 31, 2015, and of the person in Place 7 on December 31, 2016. It 
is for these two slots that the Court will be interviewing the candidates.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  No fiscal impact.    
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Leslie Browder 
County Executive, Planning and Budget 
Phone:  854-8679 
Email: Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone:  854-4581 
Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
                                            
1  Strategic Housing Finance Corporation of Travis County, By-Laws, June 12, 2004.  

mailto:Leslie.Browder@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us


    
Andrea Shields 
Corporations Manager, Planning and Budget Office 
Phone: 854-9116 
Email: Andrea.Shields@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Karen Thigpen 
Assistant Corporations Administrator 
Phone: 854-9106 
Email: karen.thigpen@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Craig Alter 
Executive Director, Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas 
Phone:  480-8245, x15 
Email: craig@hatctx.com  
 
Debbie Honeycutt 
Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas 
Phone: 480-8245, x34  
Email: debbie@hatctx.com 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Current roster of SHFC Board of Directors members, as of January 1, 

2013. 
  
 

mailto:Andrea.Shields@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:karen.thigpen@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:craig@hatctx.com
mailto:debbie@hatctx.com


ATTACHMENT A 
 
 

      Strategic Housing Finance Corporation 
Board of Directors 

(This agency is not covered under the Uniform Appointment Process*) 

      
      

Place Name 
Appointing 
Authority 

Date(s) of 
Appointment 

Current Term 
Expiration 
Date 

Adopted** 
Term 

Expiration 
Date 

5 

Willie S. 
Anderson 

County 
Judge 

5/31/2011 5/31/2017 
12/31/2017 

… 12/31/2023 
… 12/31/2029 

1 

Melvin Wrenn Precinct 1 6/1/2004 
reappointed 
11/13/2012 

12/31/2014 
12/31/2014 

… 12/31/2020 
… 12/31/2026 

2 

Sarah Dale 
Anderson 

Precinct 2 11/16/2010  
reappointed 
1/24/2012 

8/31/2017 
12/31/2017 

… 12/31/2023 
… 12/31/2029 

3 

Ofelia 
Elizondo 

Precinct 3 7/5/2005 
reappointed 
10/25/2011 

7/31/2017 
12/31/2013 

… 12/31/2019 
… 12/31/2025 

4 

Richard Moya Precinct 4 6/1/2004 
reappointed 
11/13/2012 

12/31/2018  
… 12/31/2018 
… 12/31/2024 
… 12/31/2030 

6 

Vacancy  
 
 
[Craig Alter] 

Court 
Appointment 

 
 
 

[11/9/2004] 

 
[11/30/2010 
Resigned 

10/16/2012] 

12/31/2015 
… 12/31/2021 
… 12/31/2027 

7 

Vacancy 
 
[Joe Albert 
Ramos (+)] 

Court 
Appointment 

 
 
 

[11/9/2004] 

 
 
 

[11/30/2010] 

12/31/2016 
… 12/31/2022 
… 12/31/2028 

 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to Cheryl Aker in the County Judge's office, Cheryl.Aker@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. 
for the next week's meeting. 

 

 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Edith Moreida/X49280 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Commissioner Margaret J. Gomez 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Commissioner Margaret J. Gomez 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
  
A. DISCUSS AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION TO PLACE THE 

CIVIL COURTHOUSE PROJECT, WHETHER P3 OR DESIGN 
BUILD, ON THE BALLOT FOR VOTER APPROVAL. 

 
B. DISCUSS AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION ON YEAR TO HAVE 

THE ELECTION ON VOTER APPROVAL OF THE CIVIL  

COURTHOUSE PROJECT.  
 
C. DISCUSS AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION APPROVE 

LIMITING SPENDING ON THE CIVIL COURTHOUSE PROJECT 
UNTIL AFTER  THE BOND ELECTION FOR THE CIVIL 
COURTHOUSE PROJECT. 

 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 30



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 31





































{02248693.DOC / } 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 MEMORANDUM 
 from 
 William C. Blount 
  
 
 
 
TO:   Travis County Judge and County Commissioners 

Board of Directors of 
   Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
 
DATE:  February 13, 2013 
 
RE:   Consideration of request to provide loans for developers of multifamily 

residential tax credit properties in the 2013 9% tax credit round 
 
Agenda Date: February 19, 2013 
 
 Several developers have contacted the housing finance corporation staff regarding the 
possibility of the corporation and/or Travis County providing loans to the developers in order to 
assist the developers with obtaining additional points in the very competitive tax credit application 
process administered by TDHCA.   
 
9% Tax Credit System 
 
 The 9% tax credit program is a Federal government program available to developers of 
affordable housing in their efforts to provide housing to low income residents.  Essentially, a 
developer is awarded tax credits which it can then sell (or syndicate) in exchange for equity 
contributions which provide a portion of the funds to acquire and construct the project.  In Texas, 
TDHCA administers the program and publishes a Qualified Allocation Plan (“QAP”) to set forth 
the rules on which it will base its awarding of 9% tax credits in Texas.  The process is quite 
competitive and this year, the region which includes Travis County is expected to generate 18 
applications with only 2 applications expected to be awarded tax credits (3 is possible but not 
likely).  TDHCA’s plan sets out the standards which it will apply to award applicants points for 
various aspects of their project, such as sponsor characteristics, low-income set asides, tenant 
services, proximity to schools, community support, etc.  The full QAP is online at 
http://www.tdhca.state.tx.us/multifamily/htc/docs/13-QAP.pdf. 
 
 A revised criteria for obtaining points this year is the provision of development funding by 

 
 8310 N. Capital of Texas 

    Highway, Suite 490 
Austin, Texas 78731 
(512) 479-0300 
Fax (512) 474-1901 
___________________ 

Offices in: 

· Austin 

· Fort Worth 

· San Antonio 

· Waco 

___________________ 

www.namanhowell.com 
 

http://www.tdhca.state.tx.us/multifamily/htc/docs/13-QAP.pdf
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 32



{02248693.DOC / } 

a unit of general local government.  Essentially, an applicant may gain a relatively large number of 
points by obtaining local support in the form of a development loan from the local government.  
For a proposed project in the county but outside of any city limits, that support can come from an 
entity such as TCHFC.  For a project inside of a city, that support can come from the city or the 
county government. 
 
Developer Proposal 
 
 The developer proposal is for the developer to pledge a certificate of deposit or similar cash 
collateral to the governmental entity (the County or TCHFC) providing the loan, therefore there 
would be no risk to TCHFC or the County of nonpayment.  The loan would be for a stated term of 
5 years, however, these loans are generally repaid within 30 to 180 days of the developer closing 
on its funding and it is not anticipated that the loan would be outstanding for longer than 180 days. 
 It is anticipated that the developer would pay an application fee, pay for all costs (legal, etc.) of 
documenting the loan and pay an origination fee in order to obtain the loan.   
 
 Tax Credit applications from the developers are due to TDHCA on March 1.  The 
developers at this point would only need a letter stating that the developer has applied for funding. 
 However, the staff does not want to provide the confirmation letter if the loan program is 
something that neither the Commissioners Court nor the Board of TCHFC desire to establish.  The 
actual loan transaction would occur in August.  The loans would only be made to developers who 
received allocation from TDHCA so, while TCHFC has received 3 inquiries from developers, 
there will not be 3 loans made.  
 
 
 
 
cc: Karen Thigpen 

Andrea Shields 
 John Hille 
 



Project Name Address City 
Population 

Served
# of 

Units
Unit 

Types % of AMI
Approximate 
Loan Amount

Windy Ridge Apartment Homes 10910 Ranch Rd 620 Austin (Unincorp) Family/Vets 120 1, 2, 3BR 30, 50 & 60% $1,800,000
Cottages at Wildhorse Creek 11725 Murchison St Manor Family   80 1, 2, 3BR 30, 50 & 60% $66,000
The Hills of Pflugerville Colorado Sands Dr Pflugerville Seniors 117 1, 2 BR 30, 50 & 60% $425,000



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

$xxx        ►◄      ►◄2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation ("Maker"), 
promises to pay to the order of ►◄ ("Payee"), at ►◄, or such other address as Payee may from 
time to designate, the sum of xxxxxxxx DOLLARS ($XXX) in legal and lawful money of the 
United States of America, together with interest thereon from date hereof at the rates describe 
below. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The interest rate due under this promissory note (the "Note") shall be equal to the lesser 
of (i) the Applicable Federal Rate or (ii) the Maximum Lawful Rate. The Applicable Federal 
Rate shall be determined on the date hereof. After maturity (whether by demand, acceleration or 
otherwise) until paid, interest shall accrue on the matured principal and accrued, but unpaid, 
interest at an annual rate equal to the Maximum Lawful Rate. Interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The term "Applicable Federal Rate," means the interest rate as provided by the Internal 
Revenue Service in Revenue Ruling 2012-20 that is effective as of the date hereof. The 
Applicable Federal Rate as of the date hereof is 0.24% per annum. 
 
 The term "Maximum Lawful Rate," means the greater of (i) the highest rate permitted by 
applicable Texas or United States law, or (ii) an annual rate equal to the weekly ceiling 
determined in accordance with the computation specified in the Texas Finance Code, as 
amended, as such weekly ceiling is in effect from time to time, but in no event greater than 
eighteen (18%) percent annually. Unless precluded by law, changes in the Maximum Lawful 
Rate created by statute or governmental action during the term of this Note shall be immediately 
applicable to this note on the effective date of such changes. 
 
 This promissory note (the "Note") is due and payable as follows, to-wit: 
 
 All principal and interest thereon shall begin to accrue on the Funding Date (as defined in 
that certain Term Loan Agreement between Maker and Payee dated as of ►◄) and shall be due 
and payable upon the Maturity Date defined in that certain Term Loan Note as of ►◄ from 
►◄ to Maker. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, and the holder of this Note is entitled to the benefits 
of, all deeds of trust, mortgages, security agreements, assignments, lien instruments, guaranties, 
endorsements, or other agreements (the "Collateral Agreements") executed or created by any 
person or entity (including but not limited to Maker) to secure payment of this Note. Without 
limiting the foregoing, the Collateral Agreements include: 
 

An Assignment and Pledge Agreement executed of even date 
herewith by Maker and ►◄ in favor of Lender. 

 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

 If default occurs in the payment of any principal or interest when due hereunder, or upon 
the occurrence of any default or failure to perform any covenant, agreement or obligation to be 
performed under any Collateral Agreements, or upon Maker's insolvency or business failure, the  
appointment of a receiver of all or any part of Maker's property, an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors of Maker, a calling of a meeting of creditors of Maker, the commencement of any 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or debtor relief laws by or against Maker or any  
guarantor or surety for Maker, the holder hereof may, at its option, declare the entirety of this 
Note, principal and interest, immediately due and payable, and pursue any and all other remedies 
available to it at law or in equity, but failure to do so at any time shall not constitute a waiver of 
such holder's right to do so at any other time. Failure to exercise this option upon any default 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent defaults. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or upon default in the performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms of any of the Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and 
grace required by this Note, at the option of Payee, the unpaid balance of this Note shall be 
matured, and if Maker defaults in the prompt payment of this Note when due or declared due, 
and this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, or suit is brought on the Note, 
or the Note is collected through probate, bankruptcy or other judicial proceedings, then Maker, 
jointly and severally if more than one, agrees and promises to pay all reasonable attorney's fees, 
court costs and collection expenses incurred by Payee. 
 
 If at any time and from time to time Payee is prevented from collecting the rate of interest 
and the fees specified in this Note by applicable law or governmental regulation, Payee shall be 
entitled to recoup the amount it would have otherwise been able to collect (the "Recoupment 
Amount") during such period when the recoupment will not violate applicable law or regulation 
(the "Recoupment Period"). During each Recoupment Period, Maker shall continue to pay the 
Maximum Lawful Rate until there has been paid under this Note, in addition to the interest at the 
applicable rate specified herein during such Recoupment Period, an amount equal to the 
Recoupment Amount. Interest collected by Payee during each Recoupment Period shall first be 
applied to payment of current interest due at the applicable rate specified in this Note and any 
remaining interest collected shall be applied to the Recoupment Amount. When Payee has 
recouped all of the Recoupment Amount, the interest rate payable by Maker shall revert to the 
applicable rate specified in this Note. In no event, however, shall the interest rate charged 
hereunder ever exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate and in the event of any prepayment of this 
Note, only that portion of the Recoupment Amount which has been earned through the date of 
prepayment shall be payable. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or in the performance of any obligation 
contained in any Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and grace required by this Note, 
this Note and all obligations contained in any Collateral Agreements shall become immediately 
due at the election of Payee. Maker and each surety, endorser, guarantor and any other party 
liable for payment of this Note, in whole or in part, hereby severally: (i) waive demand, 
presentment for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of protest, notice of intent to 
accelerate, notice of acceleration, dishonor, and all other waivable notices, and diligence in 
collecting this Note or enforcing any of the Collateral Agreements; (ii) agree to any substitution, 
subordination, exchange or release of any party primarily or secondarily liable for payment of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

this Note; (iii) agree that Payee shall not be required first to institute suit or exhaust Payee's 
remedies against Maker or others liable for payment of this Note or performance under any 
Collateral Agreement; and (iv) consent to any extension or postponement of time of payment of 
this Note and to any other indulgence with respect hereto without notice to any of them, Payee's 
failure to exercise Payee's option to accelerate upon any default shall not constitute a waiver of 
the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent default. 
 
 Limitation of Interest:   Maker confirms that Maker is not aware of any violation of 
applicable usury laws related to this note or any Collateral Agreement. The parties intend to 
conform strictly to the applicable usury laws and, to induce Payee to make a loan to Maker, 
Maker agrees that: 
 

All existing or future agreements and transactions between Maker and the Payee are 
expressly limited so that under no circumstance shall the amount of Interest, as defined 
below, exceed the maximum legal rate allowed by applicable law. 

 
If, under any possible construction of this Note or any Collateral Agreement, Excess 
Interest, as defined below, would otherwise be payable, any Excess Interest shall be 
automatically, as of the date of charging or payment, applied to a reduction of the 
principal balance of this Note and not to the payment of interest, or if the Excess Interest 
exceeds the unpaid principal balance of this Note it shall be refunded to Maker, and this 
Note and/or the Collateral Agreement shall be automatically reformed to reduce the 
Interest payable to the maximum legal rate without the necessity of execution of an 
amending document. 

 
If Maker discovers that this Note or any of the Collateral Agreements may violate any 
applicable usury law, Maker shall notify Payee of the alleged violation and shall give 
Payee sixty days to cure the violation. During the sixty day notice and cure period, Maker 
shall not prosecute any claim or defense based upon a violation of applicable usury laws. 

 
To the extent not prohibited by law, all Interest shall be amortized, prorated and spread, 
in equal parts, over the full stated term of this Note so that the actual rate of Interest is 
uniform through the term of this note. 

 
"Excess Interest" shall mean all interest or fees charged, collected, or received in excess 
of the maximum legal rate of interest, including, but not limited to, those arising due to 
acceleration of maturity, late fees, prepayment, or demand for prepayment. 

 
For purposes of this Limitation of Interest section, and only this section, the term 
"Interest" shall be all inclusive and shall mean the amount of interest contracted for,  
charged, or received by Payee from Maker, or any third party, for the use, forbearance, or 
detention of the principal of this Note. 

 
If any installment becomes overdue for more than five (5) days, at Payee's option, five 
percent (5%) of the overdue installment amount will be charged ill order to defray the 
expense of handling the delinquent payment. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

 
Maker may prepay all or any part hereof at anytime without penalty, and interest shall 
immediately cease on all amounts so prepaid. All prepayments shall be applied first to 
accrued but unpaid interest, the balance to installments due hereon in inverse order of 
maturity. 
 
This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

 
THIS NOTE AND THE INSTRUMENTS BEING EXECUTED ALONG WITH IT 
REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY 
NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR 
SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES. 
 
THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
 

BALLOON WARNING 
 
 This loan is payable in full at maturity. Maker must repay the entire principal balance of 
the loan and unpaid interest then due. Payee is under no obligation to refinance the loan at that 
time. Maker will therefore, be required to make payment out of other assets that Maker may 
own, or Maker will have to find another lender, which may be Payee, willing to lend Maker the 
money to pay the loan. If Maker refinances this loan at maturity, Maker may have to pay some or 
all of the closing costs normally associated with a new loan even if Maker obtains refinancing 
from Payee. 
 
      MAKER: 
      TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE   
      CORPORATION 
 
 

By: _______________________________ 
  Name: 
 Title: 

  
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

 The Agreement has been released and the original certificate, or passbook or other 
evidence of the Collateral (if any) has been returned to Debtor. 
 
 
      ►◄ 
 
 

By: ______________________________ 
Title: ____________________________ 

 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

TERM LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
________ Bank 
Austin, Texas  
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Borrower"), has 
concurrently herewith borrowed from __________ Bank (the "Lender") the sum of LOAN 
AMOUNT ($xxxxxxxxxx) (the "Loan"), payable on the Funding Date (as hereinafter defined) as 
evidenced by that certain Term Loan Note of the Borrower bearing even date herewith payable 
to the order of Lender (the "Note") in said principal amount and expressed to mature and to bear 
interest as set forth in, and otherwise in the form of, the note attached hereto as Exhibit A. The 
Borrower executes and delivers this Agreement to set forth and confirm the terms and conditions 
applicable to the Note and the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower made in connection therewith: 
 
SECTION 1.  PAYMENTS. 
 
 Section 1.1.  Prepayments.  The Borrower shall have the privilege of prepaying the 
Note in whole or in part at any time and from time to time. All such prepayments shall be made 
upon not less than one (1) bank business day's prior notice to the Lender. Each prepayment shall 
be made by the payment of the principal amount to be prepaid and accrued interest thereon to the 
date fixed for prepayment. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Payment of Fees.  The Borrower shall pay to the Lender on the date hereof 
(the "Closing Date"), an amount equal to 1% of the original principal amount of the Loan (the 
"Lender Fees"). 
 
 Section 1.3.  Place and Application of Payments.  The Borrower hereby agrees to make 
all payments of the Lender Fees, the principal and interest and all other amounts payable 
hereunder and under the Note (collectively, the "Obligations") promptly when due and such 
amounts due to the Lender under the Note shall be paid in accordance with the Note and any 
amounts due to the Lender's attorney for fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Loan 
shall be paid to such attorney on the Closing Date. All such payments shall be made in lawful 
money of the United States of America, in immediately available funds at the place of payment, 
without set-off or counterclaim and without reduction for, and free from, any and all present or 
future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, charges, deductions, withholdings, restrictions or 
conditions of any nature imposed by any government or any political subdivision or taxing 
authority thereof. 
 
 Section 1.4. The proceeds of the Loan shall be payable by the Lender to the Borrower 
upon the demand of the Borrower on any business day on or before ►◄, 2013 (the "Funding 
Date"); provided, however, that ►◄, a Texas limited partnership ("►◄") has deposited  
collateral into the Account (as defined in the Bank Agreement) on or prior to the Funding Date 
pursuant to paragraph 4 of the Bank Agreement. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

SECTION 2.  SECURITY. 
 
 Section 2 .1.  Collateral Documents.  For the benefit of the Lender, as security for the 
payment of the Obligations, including without limitation, all principal of and interest on the 
Note, the Borrower and ►◄ hereby grant the Lender a lien on and security interest in the 
Account (as defined in the Bank Agreement), in each case whether now owned or existing or 
hereafter created, acquired or arising and has concurrently herewith executed and delivered that 
certain Assignment and Pledge Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the "Bank Agreement"), 
among ►◄ the Borrower and the Lender, granting the Lender a lien on and security interest in 
the Account. 
 
 Section 2.2.  Further Assurances.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it shall 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents (as hereinafter defined) 
and that it shall, at any time and from time to time as requested by the Lender, execute and 
deliver such further instruments and do such other acts as the Lender may deem reasonably 
necessary or desirable to provide for or protect or perfect the lien and security interest of the 
Lender in the collateral security granted thereby. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
 The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 3.1. The Borrower is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under 
the laws of the State of Texas and is duly licensed or qualified and in good standing in all 
jurisdictions wherein the nature of its activities or business conducted or property owned or 
leased by it requires such qualification or licensing. The Borrower is in full compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement and has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement, to 
borrow the sum evidenced by the Note, to grant a lien on and security interest in its property 
pursuant to the Collateral Documents, and to perform each and all of the matters and things 
provided for in this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents. The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents, and the observance and 
performance of any of the matters and things herein or therein set forth, will not violate or 
contravene any provision of law or of the organizational documents of the Borrower, or to the 
Borrower's knowledge of any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement of or affecting the 
Borrower or any of its property. 
 
 Section 3.2.  There is no litigation or governmental proceeding pending, nor to the 
Borrower's knowledge threatened, against the Borrower which, if adversely determined, would 
result in any material adverse change in the financial condition or properties, business or 
operations of the Borrower. All tax returns required to be filed by the Borrower in any 
jurisdiction have, in fact, been filed, and all taxes, assessments, fees, and other governmental 
charges upon the Borrower or upon any of its property, income, or franchises, which are shown 
to be due and payable in such returns, have been paid. The Borrower does not know of any 
proposed additional tax assessments against it for which adequate provisions in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles have not been made on its books and records. Adequate 
provisions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for taxes on the books of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

the Borrower have been made for all open years, and for its current fiscal year. No authorization, 
consent, license, or exemption from, or filing or registration with, any court or governmental 
department, agency or instrumentality, is or will be necessary to the valid execution, delivery or 
performance by the Borrower of this Agreement, the Note or the Collateral Documents. 
 
 Section 3.3.  The Borrower is not a party to any contracts or agreements with any of its 
Affiliates (as defined herein) on terms and conditions which are less favorable to the Borrower 
than would be usual and customary in similar contracts or agreements between persons or 
entities not affiliated with each other. 
 
 Section 3.4.  The Borrower is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable 
local, state and federal environmental, health and safety statutes and regulations, and, to its 
knowledge, has not acquired, incurred or assumed, directly or indirectly, any material contingent 
liability in connection with the release of any toxic or hazardous waste or substance into the 
environment. The Borrower is not the subject to any evaluation under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Specified 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986,42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. 
 
 Section 3.5.  No Event of Default or Default (as hereinafter defined) has occurred and is 
continuing. 
 
 Section 3.6.  The Borrower understands that neither the Lender nor any person 
representing the Lender has made any representation to it, or accepts any responsibility, with 
respect to whether the Loan or the Note qualifies Playa del Pueblo for the award of certain points 
by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs pursuant to its Housing Tax Credit 
Program Qualified Allocation Plan and Rules. 
 
SECTION 4.  COVENANTS. 
 
 From and after the date hereof and so long as any amount remains unpaid on the Note, 
except to the extent compliance in any case or cases is waived in writing by the Lender, the 
Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 4.1 .  Maintenance of Business. The Borrower shall preserve and keep in force 
and effect all licenses and permits necessary to the proper conduct of its business. 
 
 Section 4.2.  [intentionally deleted]. 
 
 Section 4.3.  Taxes. The Borrower shall duly pay and discharge all taxes, assessments 
and governmental charges upon or against the Borrower or against any of its property before the 
same become delinquent and before penalties accrue thereon, unless and to the extent that the 
same are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings. 
 
 Section 4.4.  [intentionally deleted]. 
 
 Section 4.5.  [intentionally deleted]. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

SECTION 5.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
 Section 5.1. Anyone or more of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
hereunder: 
 

 (a) default in the payment when due (whether by lapse of time, acceleration, or 
otherwise) of any principal of or interest on the Note or any fee, charge, obligation or 
other amount payable hereunder of the Borrower to the Lender, which such default is not 
remedied within ten (10) business days after the due date; 
 
 (b) default in the observance or performance of any of the covenants set forth in 
Section 4 hereof or in any of the Collateral Documents which such default is not 
remedied within thirty (30) days after notice to the Borrower by the Lender; 
 
 (c) default in the observance or performance of any other provision hereof which 
is not remedied within thirty (30) days after notice thereof to the Borrower by the Lender; 
 
 (d) monetary default shall occur under any evidence of indebtedness issued, 
assumed or guaranteed by the Borrower or under any indenture, agreement or other 
instrument under which the same may be issued, and such default shall continue for a 
period of time  sufficient to permit the acceleration of the maturity of any such 
indebtedness, or any such  indebtedness shall not be paid when due (whether by demand, 
lapse of time, acceleration or otherwise) subject to applicable notice, grace and cure 
periods; 
 
 (e)   any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or made by the 
Borrower in any statement or certificate furnished by it pursuant hereto, proves untrue in 
any material respect as of the date of the issuance or making thereof; 
 
 (f)   dissolution or termination of existence of the Borrower; 
 
 (g) the Borrower becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or bankruptcy, reorganization, 
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under 
any bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors are instituted against the Borrower 
and are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after such institution, or a decree or order 
of a court having jurisdiction in the premises for the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
custodian for the Borrower, or for the major part of its property is entered and the trustee, 
receiver or custodian appointed pursuant to such decree or order is not discharged within 
ninety (90) days after such appointment; or 
 
 (h)   the Borrower shall institute bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under any 
bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors or shall consent to the institution of such 
proceedings against it by others or to the entry of any decree or order adjudging it 
bankrupt or insolvent or approving as filed any petition seeking reorganization under any 
bankruptcy or similar law or shall apply for or shall consent to the appointment of a 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

receiver, trustee or custodian for it or for the major part of its property or shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its 
debts as they mature or shall take any corporate action in contemplation or in furtherance 
of any of the foregoing purposes.  
 

 Section 5.2.   When any Event of Default described in subsections 5.l(a) to 5.1(h) has 
occurred and is continuing, the Lender may, by notice to the Borrower, declare the Obligations, 
including without limitation, the principal of and the accrued interest on the Note to be forthwith 
due and payable, and thereupon the Note, including both principal and interest, and all fees and 
charges payable hereunder shall be and become immediately due and payable without further 
demand, presentment, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
SECTION 6.   DEFINITIONS. 
 
 The following terms when used herein shall have the following meanings, such terms to 
be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined: 
 
 "Affiliate" shall mean any person, firm, corporation or entity (herein collectively called a 
"Person") directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common 
control with, another Person. A Person shall be deemed to control another Person for the 
purposes of this definition if such first Person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to 
direct, or cause the direction of, the management and policies of the second Person, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, common directors, trustees or officers, by contract or 
otherwise. 
 
 "Collateral Documents" means the Bank Agreement and any security agreements, 
assignments, mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements and other documents as shall from 
time to time secure the Note and the obligations of the Borrower hereunder.  
 
 "Event of Default" shall mean any event or condition identified as such in Section 5.1 
hereof and the term "Default" shall mean any event or condition which constitutes an Event of 
Default. 
 
 Capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall, unless otherwise specified, 
have the meanings so ascribed to them in all provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
 Section 7.1.  Holidays.  If any payment hereunder or under the Note becomes due and 
payable on a day which is not a bank business day, the due date of such payment shall be 
extended to the next succeeding bank business day on which date such payment shall be due and 
payable. In the case of any payment of principal falling due on a day which is not a bank 
business day, interest on such principal amount shall continue to accrue during such extension at 
the rate per annum then in effect, which accrued amount shall be due and payable on the next 
scheduled date for the payment of interest. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Section 7.2.  No Waiver, Cumulative Remedies.  No delay or failure on the part of the 
Lender or on the part of the holder of the Note in the exercise of any power or right shall operate 
as a waiver thereof or as an acquiescence in any Default, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any power or right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
power or right. The rights and remedies hereunder of the Lender and of the holder of the Note 
are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies which any of them would 
otherwise have. All of the covenants, warranties and representations of the Borrower herein shall 
be in addition to and cumulative of all other covenants, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower contained in, or provided for in, any other instrument or document now or hereafter 
executed and delivered by the Borrower to or in favor of the Lender. 
 
 Section 7.3.  Amendments, Etc.   No amendment, modification, termination or waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, the Bank Agreement or of the Note nor consent to any 
departure by the Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the Lender and the Borrower. No notice to or demand on the Borrower in 
any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other 
circumstances. 
 
 Section 7.4.  Costs and Expenses.   The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all 
reasonable costs and expenses of the Lender incurred by the Lender in connection with an Event 
of Default or the enforcement of this Agreement, the Note, the Collateral Documents and the 
other instruments and documents to be delivered hereunder and in preserving or protecting or 
exercising the rights of the Lender hereunder or thereunder or with respect to any collateral 
security for the Note or other liabilities and in connection with any action, suit or proceeding 
brought against the Lender by any person or entity which arises out of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby or out of any action or inaction by the Lender hereunder or 
thereunder, including all of the foregoing incurred in any bankruptcy, arrangement or 
reorganization proceeding involving the Borrower. 
 
 Section 7.5.  Stamp Taxes.   The Borrower agrees to pay on demand any documentary, 
stamp or similar taxes payable in respect of this Agreement or the Note, including interest and 
penalties, in the event any such taxes are assessed, irrespective of when such assessment is made 
and whether or not any credit to it is then in use. 
 
 Section 7.6.   Survival of Representations.   All representations and warranties made 
herein or in certificates given pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and of the Note and shall continue in full force and effect with respect to the date as 
of which they were made as long as any credit is in use or available hereunder. 
 
 Section 7.7.  Payments.  The Borrower will promptly and punctually pay the principal 
of and interest on the Note without presentment of the Note and without any notation of any such 
payment being made on the Note. 
 
 Section 7.B.  Addresses for Notices. All communications provided for herein shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been given or made when served personally or when 
deposited in the United States mail addressed if to the Borrower at ►◄, or if to Lender at ►◄, 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

or at such other address as shall be designated by any party hereto in a written notice given to 
each party pursuant to this Section 7.8. 
 
 Section 7.9.  Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience 
of reference only and are not a part of this Agreement for any other purpose. 
 
 Section 7.10.  Severability of Provisions.  Any provision of this Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, which is unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such 
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any 
other jurisdiction. 
 
 Section 7.11.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and by different parties hereto on separate counterparts, and all such counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 Section 7.12.  Binding Nature, Governing Law, Etc.   This Agreement, the Note and/or 
the Collateral Documents, shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, 
and shall inure to the benefit of the Lender and the benefit of its successors and assigns, 
including any subsequent holder of the Note. This Agreement and the rights and duties of the 
parties hereto shall be construed and determined in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and any prior agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto are 
superseded hereby. The Borrower may not assign its rights hereunder without the written consent 
of the Lender. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 
 Upon your acceptance hereof in the manner hereinafter set forth, this Term Loan 
Agreement shall be a contract between us for the uses and purposes hereinabove set forth. 
 
Dated as of ►◄, 2013. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
 
 
BY: _______________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[Signature Page to Term Loan Agreement] 
 
 
 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Accepted and agreed to as of the day and year last above written. 
 
 
      ►◄ 
 
 
      By: __________________________________ 

Name:  
Title:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Acceptance Page to Term Loan Agreement} 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

Exhibit A 
 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

$xxxxxxxxxx                                     ►◄                                                                 ►◄, 2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation ("Maker"), 
promises to pay to the order of ►◄("Payee"), at ►◄, or such other address as Payee may from 
time to designate, the sum of ►◄($xxxxxxxxxx) in legal and lawful money of the United States 
of America, together with interest thereon from date hereof at the rates describe below. Interest 
shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The interest rate due under this promissory note (the "Note") shall be equal to the lesser 
of (i) the Applicable Federal Rate or (ii) the Maximum Lawful Rate. The Applicable Federal 
Rate shall be determined on the date hereof. After maturity (whether by demand, acceleration or 
otherwise) until paid, interest shall accrue on the matured principal and accrued, but unpaid, 
interest at an annual rate equal to the Maximum Lawful Rate. Interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The term "Applicable Federal Rate," means the interest rate as provided by the Internal 
Revenue Service in Revenue Ruling 2012-20 that is effective as of the date hereof. The 
Applicable Federal Rate as of the date hereof is 0.24% per annum. 
 
 The term "Maximum Lawful Rate," means the greater of (i) the highest rate permitted by 
applicable Texas or United States law, or (ii) an annual rate equal to the weekly ceiling 
determined in accordance with the computation specified in the Texas Finance Code, as 
amended, as such weekly ceiling is in effect from time to time, but in no event greater than 
eighteen (18%) percent annually. Unless precluded by law, changes in the Maximum Lawful 
Rate created by statute or governmental action during the term of this Note shall be immediately 
applicable to this note on the effective date of such changes. 
 
 This promissory note (the "Note") is due and payable as follows, to-wit: 
 
 All principal and interest thereon shall begin to accrue on the Funding Date (as defined in 
that certain Term Loan Agreement between Maker and Payee dated as of ►◄, 2013) and shall 
be due and payable upon the Maturity Date defined in that certain Term Loan Note as of ►◄, 
2013 from ►◄. to Maker. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, and the holder of this Note is entitled to the benefits 
of, all deeds of trust, mortgages, security agreements, assignments, lien instruments, guaranties, 
endorsements, or other agreements (the "Collateral Agreements") executed or created by any 
person or entity (including but not limited to Maker) to secure payment of this Note. Without 
limiting the foregoing, the Collateral Agreements include: 
 

An Assignment and Pledge Agreement executed of even date 
herewith by Maker and ►◄. in favor of Lender. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 If default occurs in the payment of any principal or interest when due hereunder, or upon 
the occurrence of any default or failure to perform any covenant, agreement or obligation to be 
performed under any Collateral Agreements, or upon Maker's insolvency or business failure, the 
appointment of a receiver of all or any part of Maker's property, an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors of Maker, a calling of a meeting of creditors of Maker, the commencement of any 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or debtor relief laws by or against Maker or any 
guarantor or surety for Maker, the holder hereof may, at its option, declare the entirety of this 
Note, principal and interest, immediately due and payable, and pursue any and all other remedies 
available to it at law or in equity, but failure to do so at any time shall not constitute a waiver of 
such holder's right to do so at any other time. Failure to exercise this option upon any default 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent defaults. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or upon default in the performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms of any of the Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and 
grace required by this Note, at the option of Payee, the unpaid balance of this Note shall be 
matured, and if Maker defaults in the prompt payment of this Note when due or declared due, 
and this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, or suit is brought on the Note, 
or the Note is collected through probate, bankruptcy or other judicial proceedings, then Maker, 
jointly and severally if more than one, agrees and promises to pay all reasonable attorney's fees, 
court costs and collection expenses incurred by Payee. 
 
 If at any time and from time to time Payee is prevented from collecting the rate of interest 
and the fees specified in this Note by applicable law or governmental regulation, Payee shall be 
entitled to recoup the amount it would have otherwise been able to collect (the "Recoupment 
Amount") during such period when the recoupment will not violate applicable law or regulation 
(the "Recoupment Period"). During each Recoupment Period, Maker shall continue to pay the 
Maximum Lawful Rate until there has been paid under this Note, in addition to the interest at the 
applicable rate specified herein during such Recoupment Period, an amount equal to the 
Recoupment Amount. Interest collected by Payee during each Recoupment Period shall first be 
applied to payment of current interest due at the applicable rate specified in this Note and any  
remaining interest collected shall be applied to the Recoupment Amount. When Payee has 
recouped all of the Recoupment Amount, the interest rate payable by Maker shall revert to the 
applicable rate specified in this Note. In no event, however, shall the interest rate charged 
hereunder ever exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate and in the event of any prepayment of this 
Note, only that portion of the Recoupment Amount which has been earned through the date of 
prepayment shall be payable. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or in the performance of any obligation 
contained in any Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and grace required by this Note, 
this Note and all obligations contained in any Collateral Agreements shall become immediately 
due at the election of Payee. Maker and each surety, endorser, guarantor and any other party 
liable for payment of this Note, in whole or in part, hereby severally: (i) waive demand, 
presentment for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of protest, notice of intent to 
accelerate, notice of acceleration, dishonor, and all other waivable notices, and diligence in 
collecting this Note or enforcing any of the Collateral Agreements; (ii) agree to any substitution, 
subordination, exchange or release of any party primarily or secondarily liable for payment of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

this Note; (iii) agree that Payee shall not be required first to institute suit or exhaust Payee's 
remedies against Maker or others liable for payment of this Note or performance under any 
Collateral Agreement; and (iv) consent to any extension or postponement of time of payment of 
this Note and to any other indulgence with respect hereto without notice to any of them, Payee's 
failure to exercise Payee's option to accelerate upon any default shall not constitute a waiver of 
the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent default. 
 
 Limitation of Interest:  Maker confirms that Maker is not aware of any violation of 
applicable usury laws related to this note or any Collateral Agreement. The parties intend to 
conform strictly to the applicable usury laws and, to induce Payee to make a loan to Maker, 
Maker agrees that: 
 

All existing or future agreements and transactions between Maker and the Payee are 
expressly limited so that under no circumstance shall the amount of Interest, as defined 
below, exceed the maximum legal rate allowed by applicable law. 
 
If, under any possible construction of this Note or any Collateral Agreement, Excess 
Interest, as defined below, would otherwise be payable, any Excess Interest shall be 
automatically, as of the date of charging or payment, applied to a reduction of the 
principal balance of this Note and not to the payment of interest, or if the Excess Interest 
exceeds the unpaid principal balance of this Note it shall be refunded to Maker, and this 
Note and/or the Collateral Agreement shall be automatically reformed to reduce the 
Interest payable to the maximum legal rate without the necessity of execution of an 
amending document. 
 
If Maker discovers that this Note or any of the Collateral Agreements may violate any 
applicable usury law, Maker shall notify Payee of the alleged violation and shall give 
Payee sixty days to cure the violation. During the sixty day notice and cure period, Maker 
shall not prosecute any claim or defense based upon a violation of applicable usury laws. 

 
To the extent not prohibited by law, all Interest shall be amortized, prorated and spread, 
in equal parts, over the full stated term of this Note so that the actual rate of Interest is 
uniform through the term of this note. 

 
"Excess Interest" shall mean all interest or fees charged, collected, or received in excess 
of the maximum legal rate of interest, including, but not limited to, those arising due to 
acceleration of maturity, late fees, prepayment, or demand for prepayment. 

 
For purposes of this Limitation of Interest section, and only this section, the term 
"Interest" shall be all inclusive and shall mean the amount of interest contracted for, 
charged, or received by Payee from Maker, or any third party, for the use, forbearance, or 
detention of the principal of this Note. 

 
 If any installment becomes overdue for more than five (5) days, at Payee's option, five 
percent (5%) of the overdue installment amount will be charged in order to defray the expense of 
handling the delinquent payment. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Maker may prepay all or any part hereof at anytime without penalty, and interest shall 
immediately cease on all amounts so prepaid. All prepayments shall be applied first to accrued 
but unpaid interest, the balance to installments due hereon in inverse order of maturity  
 
 This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. 
 
 THIS NOTE AND THE INSTRUMENTS BEING EXECUTED ALONG WITH IT 
REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE 
CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT 
ORAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES. 
 
 
 THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES  
 
 

BALLOON WARNING 
 
 This loan is payable in full at maturity. Maker must repay the entire principal balance of 
the loan and unpaid interest then due. Payee is under no obligation to refinance the loan at that 
time. Maker will therefore, be required to make payment out of other assets that Maker may 
own, or Maker will have to find another lender, which may be Payee, willing to lend Maker the 
money to pay the loan. If Maker refinances this loan at maturity, Maker may have to pay some or 
all of the closing costs normally associated with a new loan even if Maker obtains refinancing 
from Payee. 
 
 
 

MAKER: 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name:  
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

TERM LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Austin, Texas 
 
Dated: ►◄, 2013 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 The undersigned, ►◄. a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), has concurrently 
herewith borrowed from the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Travis County 
HFC' or the "Lender") the sum of ►◄Dollars ($XXXXXX) (the "Loan") as evidenced by that 
certain Term Loan Note of the Borrower bearing even date herewith payable to the order of the 
Travis County HFC (the "Note") in said principal amount and expressed to mature and to bear 
interest as set forth in, and otherwise in the form of, the note attached hereto as Exhibit A in 
connection with the development of an approximately ►◄ (the "Project"). The Borrower 
executes and delivers this Agreement to set forth and confirm the terms and conditions 
applicable to the Note and the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower made in connection therewith: 
 
SECTION 1.  PAYMENTS. 
 
 Section 1.1.  Prepayments. (a) Mandatory. All moneys received by the Lender from the 
Bank (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof) pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Bank 
Agreement (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof) shall be used to pay the Obligations (as defined 
below). Additionally, any applications of the money held in the Account (as defined in the Bank 
Agreement) to reduce the balance of the Bank Note (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof), shall be a 
credit against the balance due on the Note. 
 
 (b)  Voluntary.  The Borrower shall have the privilege of prepaying the Note in 
whole or in part at any time and from time to time without penalty All such prepayments shall be 
made upon not less than one bank business day's prior notice to the Lender. Each prepayment 
shall be made by the payment of the principal amount to be prepaid and accrued interest thereon 
to the date fixed for prepayment. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Payment of Fees.  The Borrower shall pay to the Lender (i) on the date 
hereof (the "Closing Date"), an amount equal to 5.25% of the original principal amount of the 
Loan, and (ii) for each full month the Loan is outstanding following the one year anniversary of 
the Closing Date, an amount equal to 0.4% of the remaining principal amount of the Loan 
calculated based on the outstanding principal amount thereof as of the first day of such month 
(collectively, the "Lender Fees"), payable, in the aggregate, to the Lender on the earlier of the 
Maturity Date or each January 15 and July 15 following the one year anniversary of the Closing 
Date so long as such Loan remains outstanding. 
  
 Section 1.3.  Place and Application of Payments.  The Borrower hereby agrees to make 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

all payments of the Lender Fees, the principal and interest and all other amounts payable  
hereunder and under the Note (collectively, the "Obligations") promptly when due and such 
amounts due to the Lender under the Note shall be paid in accordance with the Note and such 
amounts due to the Lender's attorney for fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Loan 
shall be paid to such attorney per the invoice submitted thereby. All such payments shall be 
made in lawful money of the United States of America, in immediately available funds at the 
place of payment, without set-off or counterclaim and without reduction for, and free from, any 
and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, charges, deductions, withholdings, 
restrictions or conditions of any nature imposed by any government or any political subdivision 
or taxing authority thereof. 
 
SECTION 2. SECURITY. 
 
 Section 2.1.  Collateral Documents.   For the benefit of the Lender, as security for the 
payment of the Obligations, including without limitation, all principal of and interest on the 
Note, the Borrower has concurrently herewith executed and delivered that certain Assignment 
and Pledge Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the "Bank Agreement"), among the 
Borrower, the Lender and ►◄(the "Bank"), granting the Lender and the Bank a lien on and 
security interest in the Account to secure that certain $►◄ promissory note (the "Bank Note") 
executed by the Lender and payable to the order of the Bank of even date herewith. 
 
 Section 2 .2 .  Further Assurances.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it shall 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents (as hereinafter defined) 
and that it shall, at any time and from time to time as requested by the Lender, execute and 
deliver such further instruments and do such other acts as the Lender may deem reasonably 
necessary or desirable to provide for or protect or perfect the lien and security interest of the 
Lender in the collateral security granted thereby. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
 The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 3.1.  The Borrower is a limited partnership duly organized, validly existing, and 
in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas and is duly licensed or qualified and in 
good standing in all jurisdictions wherein the nature of its activities or business conducted or 
property owned or leased by it requires such qualification or licensing, including without 
limitation, the State of Texas. The Borrower is in full compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement and has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement, to borrow the 
sum evidenced by the Note, to grant a lien on and security interest in its property pursuant to the 
Collateral Documents, and to perform each and all of the matters and things provided for in this 
Agreement, the Note, and the Collateral Documents; and the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement, the Note, and the Collateral Documents, and the observance and performance of any 
of the matters and things herein or therein set forth, will not violate or contravene any provision 
of law or of the organizational documents of the Borrower, or to the Borrower's knowledge of 
any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement of or affecting the Borrower or any of its 
property. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 Section 3.2.  There is no litigation or governmental proceeding pending, nor to the 
Borrower's knowledge threatened, against the Borrower which, if adversely determined, would 
result in any material adverse change in the financial condition or properties, business or 
operations of the Borrower. All tax returns required to be filed by the Borrower in any 
jurisdiction have, in fact, been filed, and all taxes, assessments, fees, and other governmental 
charges upon the Borrower or upon any of its property, income, or franchises, which are shown 
to be due and payable in such returns, have been paid. The Borrower does not know of any 
proposed additional tax assessments against it for which adequate provisions in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles have not been made on its books and records. Adequate 
provisions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for taxes on the books of 
the Borrower have been made for all open years, and for its current fiscal year. No authorization, 
consent, license, or exemption from, or filing or registration with, any court or governmental 
department, agency or instrumentality, is or will be necessary to the valid execution, delivery or 
performance by the Borrower of this Agreement, the Note or the Collateral Documents. 
 
 Section 3.3.  The Borrower is not a party to any contracts or agreements with any of its 
Affiliates (as defined herein) on terms and conditions which are less favorable to the Borrower 
than would be usual and customary in similar contracts or agreements between persons or 
entities not affiliated with each other. 
 
 Section 3.4.  The Borrower is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable 
local, state and federal environmental, health and safety statutes and regulations, and, to its 
knowledge, has not acquired, incurred or assumed, directly or indirectly, any material contingent 
liability in connection with the release of any toxic or hazardous waste or substance into the 
environment. The Borrower is not the subject to any evaluation under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Specified 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986,42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. 
 
 Section 3.5.  No Event of Default or Default (as defined herein) has occurred and is 
continuing. 
 
 Section 3.6.  The Borrower understands that neither the Lender nor any person 
representing the Lender has made any representation to it or takes any responsibility with respect 
to whether the Loan or the Note qualifies the Borrower for the award of certain points by the 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs pursuant to its Housing Tax Credit 
Program Qualified Allocation Plan and Rules. 
 
SECTION 4.  COVENANTS. 
 
 From and after the date hereof and so long as any amount remains unpaid on the Note, 
except to the extent compliance in any case or cases is waived in writing by the Lender, the 
Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 4.1.  Maintenance of Business.  The Borrower shall preserve and keep in 
force and effect all licenses and permits necessary to the proper conduct of its business. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 Section 4.2.  Maintenance.   The Borrower shall maintain, preserve and keep its 
properties and equipment in good repair and working order and condition (ordinary wear and tear 
and casualty excepted), and shall from time to time make all needful and proper repairs, 
renewals, replacements, additions and betterments thereto so that at all times the efficiency 
thereof shall be fully preserved and maintained. 
 
 Section 4.3.  Taxes.   The Borrower shall duly pay and discharge all taxes, 
assessments and governmental charges upon or against the Borrower or against any of its 
property before the same become delinquent and before penalties accrue thereon, unless and to 
the extent that the same are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings. 
 
 Section  4.4.  Insurance.  The Borrower shall insure and keep insured, in good and 
responsible insurance companies, all insurable property owned by the Borrower which is of a 
character usually insured by companies similarly situated and operating like properties, against 
loss or damage from fire and such other hazards or risks as are customarily insured against by 
companies similarly situated and operating like property; and the Borrower shall similarly insure 
employers' and public liability risks in good and responsible insurance companies. The Borrower 
shall upon request of any Lender furnish a certificate setting forth in summary form the nature 
and extent of the insurance maintained by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 4.4. 
 
 Section 4.5.  Financial Reports.  The Borrower shall furnish to the Lender or its 
authorized representatives such information respecting the business affairs, operations and 
financial condition of the Borrower as may be reasonably requested and without any request 
shall furnish to the Lender promptly after knowledge thereof shall have come to the attention of 
any responsible officer of the Borrower, written notice of any threatened or pending litigation or 
governmental proceeding against the Borrower which would materially adversely affect the 
business and properties of the Borrower and/or the occurrence of any Default or Event of 
Default. 
 
SECTION 5.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
 Section 5.1.  Any one or more of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
hereunder: 
 
  (a)   default in the payment when due (whether by lapse of time, acceleration, or 

otherwise) of any principal of or interest on the Note or any fee, charge, obligation or  
other  amount payable hereunder or default in the payment when due of any other 
indebtedness or liabilities (whether direct, contingent or otherwise) of the Borrower 
owing to the Lender; 

 
  (b)   default in the observance or performance of any of the covenants set forth in 

Section 4 hereof or in any of the Collateral Documents which such default is not 
remedied within thirty (30) days after notice to the Borrower by the Lender; 

 
  (c)   default in the observance or performance of any other provision hereof 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

which is not remedied within thirty (30) days after notice thereof to the Borrower by the 
Lender; 
 

  (d)   monetary default shall occur under any evidence of indebtedness issued, 
assumed or guaranteed by the Borrower or under any indenture, agreement or other 
instrument under which the same may be issued, and such default shall continue for a 
period of time sufficient to permit the acceleration of the maturity of any such 
indebtedness, or any such indebtedness shall not be paid when due (whether by demand, 
lapse of time, acceleration or otherwise) subject to applicable notice, grace and cure 
periods; 
 

  (e)   any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or made by the 
Borrower in any statement or certificate furnished by it pursuant hereto, proves untrue in 
any material adverse respect as of the date of the issuance or making thereof; 

 
  (f)   dissolution or termination of existence of the Borrower; 
 

 (g)   the Borrower becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or bankruptcy, reorganization,  
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under 
any bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors are instituted against the Borrower 
and are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after such institution, or a decree or order 
of a court having jurisdiction in the premises for the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
custodian for the Borrower, or for the major part of its property is entered and the trustee, 
receiver or custodian appointed pursuant to such decree or order is not discharged within 
ninety (90) days after such appointment; or 
 

  (h)   the Borrower shall institute bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under any 
bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors or shall consent to the institution of such 
proceedings against it by others or to the entry of any decree or order adjudging it 
bankrupt or insolvent or approving as filed any petition seeking reorganization under any 
bankruptcy or similar law or shall apply for or shall consent to the appointment of a 
receiver, trustee or custodian for it or for the major part of its property or shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its 
debts as they mature or shall take any corporate action in contemplation or in furtherance 
of any of the foregoing purposes. 

 
 Section 5.2.  When any Event of Default described in subsections 5.1(a) to 5.1(f), both 
inclusive, has occurred and is continuing, the Lender may, by notice to the Borrower, declare the 
Obligations, including without limitation, the principal of and the accrued interest on the Note to 
be forthwith due and payable, and thereupon the Note, including both principal and interest, and 
all fees and charges payable hereunder shall be and become immediately due and payable 
without further demand, presentment, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
 Section 5.3.  When any Event of Default described in subsection 5.1(g) or 5.1(h) has 
occurred and is continuing, then the entire principal balance of the Note and all interest thereon 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

and all fees, charges and the other Obligations payable hereunder shall immediately become due 
and payable without presentment, demand, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
SECTION 6.  DEFINITIONS. 
 
 The following terms when used herein shall have the following meanings, such terms to 
be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined: 
 
 "Affiliate" shall mean any person, firm, corporation or entity (herein collectively called a 
"Person") directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common 
control with, another Person.  A Person shall be deemed to control another Person for the 
purposes of this definition if such first Person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to 
direct, or cause the direction of, the management and policies of the second Person, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, common directors, trustees or officers, by contract or 
otherwise. 
 
 "Collateral Documents" means the Bank Agreement and any security agreements, 
assignments, mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements, and other documents as shall from 
time to time secure the Note and the obligations of the Borrower hereunder. 
 
 "Event of Default" shall mean any event or condition identified as such in Section 5.1 
hereof and the term "Default" shall mean any event or condition which constitutes an Event of 
Default. 
 
 Capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall, unless otherwise specified, 
have the meanings so ascribed to them in all provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 7.  MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
 Section 7.1.  Holidays.  If any payment hereunder or under the Note becomes due  
and payable on a day which is not a bank business day, the due date of such payment shall be 
extended to the next succeeding bank business day on which date such payment shall be due and 
payable. In the case of any payment of principal falling due on a day which is not a bank 
business day, interest on such principal amount shall continue to accrue during such extension at 
the rate per annum then in effect, which accrued amount shall be due and payable on the next 
scheduled date for the payment of interest. 
 
 Section 7.2.  No Waiver, Cumulative Remedies.  No delay or failure on the part of the 
Lender or on the part of the holder of the Note in the exercise of any power or right shall operate 
as a waiver thereof or as an acquiescence in any default, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any power or right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
power or right. The rights and remedies hereunder of the Lender and of the holder of the Note 
are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies which any of them would 
otherwise have. All of the covenants, warranties and representations of the Borrower herein shall 
be in addition to and cumulative of all other covenants, representations and warranties of the 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

Borrower contained in, or provided for in, any other instrument or document now or hereafter 
executed and delivered by the Borrower to or in favor of the Lender. 
 
 Section 7.3.  Amendments, Etc.  No amendment, modification, termination or waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, the Bank Agreement or of the Note nor consent to any 
departure by the Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the Lender and the Borrower. No notice to or demand on the Borrower in 
any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other 
circumstances. 
 
 Section 7.4.  Costs and Expenses.  The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all 
reasonable costs and expenses of the Lender incurred by the Lender in connection with an Event 
of Default or the enforcement of this Agreement, the Note, the Collateral Documents, and the 
other instruments and documents to be delivered hereunder and in preserving or protecting or 
exercising the rights of the Lender hereunder or thereunder or with respect to any collateral 
security for the Note or other liabilities and in connection with any action, suit or proceeding 
brought against the Lender by any person or entity which arises out of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby or out of any action or inaction by the Lender hereunder or 
thereunder, including all of the foregoing incurred in any bankruptcy, arrangement or 
reorganization proceeding involving the Borrower. 
 
 Section 7.5.  Stamp Taxes.  The Borrower agrees to pay on demand any documentary, 
stamp or similar taxes payable in respect of this Agreement or the Note, including interest and 
penalties, in the event any such taxes are assessed, irrespective of when such assessment is made 
and whether or not any credit to it is then in use. 
 
 Section 7.6.  Survival of Representations.  All representations and warranties made 
herein or in certificates given pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and of the Note and shall continue in full force and effect with respect to the date as 
of which they were made as long as any credit is in use or available hereunder. 
 
 Section 7.7.  Payments.  The Borrower will promptly and punctually pay the 
principal of and interest on the Note without presentment of the Note and without any notation of 
any such payment being made on the Note. 
 
 Section 7.8  Addresses for Notices.  All communications provided for herein 
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given or made when served personally or 
within five (5) business days when deposited in the United States mail, sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed if to the Borrower at ►◄, or if to the Travis County HFC at 
►◄, Attention: ►◄or at such other address as shall be designated by any party hereto in a 
written notice given to each party pursuant to this Section 7.8. 
 
 Section 7.9.  Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only and are not a part of this Agreement for any other purpose. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 Section 7.10.  Severability of Provisions.  Any provision of this Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, which is unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such 
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any 
other jurisdiction. 
 
 Section 7.11.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and by different parties hereto on separate counterparts, and all such counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 Section 7.12.  Binding Nature, Governing Law, Etc.  This Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and 
assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the Lender and the benefit of its successors and assigns, 
including any subsequent holder of the Note. This Agreement and the rights and duties of the 
parties hereto shall be construed and determined in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and any prior agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto are 
superseded hereby. The Borrower may not assign its rights hereunder without the written consent 
of the Lender. The Borrower and Lender agree that jurisdiction and venue for all claims made 
under or in connection with this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents shall lie 
exclusively in Texas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 
 Upon your acceptance hereof in the manner hereinafter set forth, this Term Loan 
Agreement shall be a contract between us for the uses and purposes hereinabove set forth as of 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      ►◄., a Texas Limited 
      Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
  
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{Signature Page for Term Loan Agreement} 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
Accepted and agreed to as of the day and year first above written. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATlON 

 
 
      By: ______________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Acceptance Page for Term Loan Agreement] 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT A 
 

►◄. 
TERM LOAN NOTE 

FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
►◄XXXXXXXX         ►◄, 2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ►◄., a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), hereby 
promises to pay to the order of Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Lender"), at its 
office at ►◄,Attention: ►◄, or at such other place as the holder hereof may from time to time 
direct in writing, the principal sum of ►◄ ($XXXXXXXX) on, if not sooner paid, the later of 
(i) the date that is one year following the date of this Note and (ii) the date the Project is placed 
in service, as determined in accordance with the Cost Certification Procedures Manual 
promulgated by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (the "Maturity 
Date"), together with interest on such principal amount at the rates and payable in the manner 
and on the dates specified below. 
 
 The Borrower hereby promises to pay interest (computed on the basis of a year of 365 or 
366 days, as the case may be for the actual number of days elapsed) at the office described above 
(or such other place as aforesaid) on the balance of principal remaining from time to time unpaid 
hereon at the rate of 0.24% per annum payable semiannually on each January 15 and July 15 and 
on the Maturity Date. The Borrower may prepay any or all of the then unpaid principal without 
penalty provided that any accrued and unpaid interest upon such principal shall be paid at the 
time of such prepayment. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in the Term 
Loan Agreement), such annual rate shall be the lower of the Highest Lawful Rate (as hereinafter 
defined) and 14% from the date of such Event of Default until the earlier of the curing of such 
Event of Default or the payment in full of all obligations hereunder. 
 
 This Note is issued under the terms and provisions of that certain Term Loan Agreement 
bearing even date herewith between the Borrower and the Lender (the 'Term Loan Agreement"), 
and this Note and the holder hereof are entitled to all of the benefits provided for by the Term 
Loan Agreement or referred to therein, to which Term Loan Agreement reference is hereby made 
for a statement thereof. The principal installments and interest hereon may be declared due prior 
to their expressed maturities and voluntary prepayments may be made hereon, all as specified in 
the Term Loan Agreement. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning 
ascribed thereto in the Term Loan Agreement. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, among other things, (i) that certain Assignment and 
Pledge Agreement, dated as of ►◄, 2013, among the Borrower, the Lender and ►◄ and (ii) 
any other Collateral Document; and this Note and the holder hereof are entitled to all of the 
benefits and security afforded by the foregoing collateral documents, to which reference is 
hereby made for statement thereof. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 The Borrower promises to pay all reasonable costs and expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys' fees) suffered or incurred by the holder hereof in collecting this Note or enforcing any 
rights in any collateral therefor. The Borrower hereby waives presentment for payment and 
demand. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State 
of Texas. 
 
 It is expressly provided and stipulated that notwithstanding any provision of this Note or 
any other instrument evidencing or securing the loan evidenced hereby, in no event shall the 
aggregate of all interest paid by the Borrower to the Lender under this Note ever exceed the 
maximum nonusurious rate allowed to be charged or collected under applicable laws of the State 
of Texas and the United States of America (the "Highest Lawful Rate") on the principal balance 
of this Note from time to time advanced and remaining unpaid. In this connection, it is expressly 
stipulated and agreed that it is the intent of the Borrower and the Lender in the execution and 
delivery of this Note to contract in strict compliance with applicable laws. In furtherance  
thereof, none of the terms of this Note or any other instrument evidencing or securing the loan 
evidenced hereby, shall ever be construed to create a contract to pay for the use, forbearance or 
detention of money, at a rate in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate permitted to be charged of the 
Borrower under applicable laws. Borrower or any guarantors, endorsers or other parties now or 
hereafter becoming liable for payment of this Note shall never be liable for interest in excess of 
the Highest Lawful Rate, and the provision of this paragraph and the immediately succeeding 
paragraph shall govern over all other provisions of this Note and any installments evidencing or 
securing the loan evidenced hereby, should such provisions be in apparent conflict herewith. 
 
 
 

►◄a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
 
By:_____________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

{SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE TERM LOAN NOTE FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

REPAYMENT DIRECTION 
 

 Pursuant to the terms of that certain Assignment and Pledge Agreement dated as of ►◄, 
2013 (the "Assignment Agreement") by and among the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation ("TCHFC"), ►◄ ("►◄") and ►◄("►◄") ►◄ hereby directs ►◄ to apply the 
Collateral (as defined in the Assignment Agreement) in the Account (as defined in the 
Assignment Agreement) for repayment of the full principal balance of that certain Promissory 
Note (the "Bank Note") of TCHFC issued to ►◄dated as of ►◄, 2013 in the principal amount 
of $xxxxxxxxxx. 
 
 TCHFC acknowledges and agrees that it will, upon application of the Collateral for 
repayment of  the Bank Note, provide a credit in the same amount to that certain Promissory 
Note (the  TCHFC Note") of ►◄ issued to TCHFC dated as of ►◄, 2013 in the principal 
amount of $xxxxxxxxx. 
 
 By execution of this Repayment Direction, ►◄ and TCHFC hereby agree to the 
following in connection with repayment of the Bank Note and the TCHFC Note on ►◄, 2013 
(the "Repayment Date"): 
 

 1.  ►◄shall apply Collateral in the amount of $xxxxxxx for repayment in 
full of the  principal balance of the Bank Note. ►◄shall waive any interest accruing on 
the Bank Note. 

 
2.  TCHFC shall issue a credit in the amount of $xxxxxxx for repayment in 

full of the TCHFC Note.  TCHFC shall waive any interest accruing on the TCHFC Note. 
 

3.  Pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement (the "TCHFC Agreement") dated 
as of ►◄, 2013 between ►◄ and TCHFC, upon application of the payments described 
above, the TCHFC Agreement and the TCHFC Note shall terminate. 

 
4. Pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement (the "Bank Agreement") dated as of 

►◄, 2013 between TCHFC and ►◄, upon application of the payments described 
above, the Bank Agreement and the Bank Note shall terminate. 

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Playa Del Pueblo, Ltd. and the Travis County Housing 
Finance Corporation have executed this Repayment Direction as of the Repayment Date. 
 
 

►◄, a Texas Limited Partnership, as borrower 
hereunder 

By:  ►◄, a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

By:  ►◄ a Texas non-profit corporation, its sole 
member 

By: __________________________________ 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 

 
      BY:   ___________________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title: 
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Playa Del Pueblo, Ltd. and the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation have executed this Repayment Direction as of the Repayment Date. 
 
 

►◄, a Texas Limited Partnership, as borrower 
hereunder 

By:  ►◄, a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

By:  ►◄ a Texas non-profit corporation, its sole 
member 

By: __________________________________ 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 

 
      BY:   ___________________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title: 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT 
 

 This Assignment and Pledge Agreement (the "Agreement") is executed by Travis County 
Housing Finance Corporation ("Debtor") and ►◄., a Texas limited partnership ("Owner") this 
►◄th day of ►◄, 201►◄ to secure the payment of that certain ►◄and No/IOO Dollars 
($XXXXXXXX) promissory note (the "Note") of even date herewith executed by Debtor and 
payable to the order of ►◄("Lender"). 
 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE 
 

 For value received, Debtor and Owner hereby assign and transfer to Lender, and Debtor 
and Owner hereby give to Lender a security interest in the following account: 
 

Name of Account: ►◄. 
Account Number: ►◄ 
Depository Institution: ►◄ 
Collateral Amount: $►◄ 
 

together with any renewals or substitutions of the above described account. This account will be 
referred to herein as the "Collateral". The Collateral is held with ►◄, ►◄, Texas ►◄. The 
Collateral includes all funds now in the Account listed above, plus all additions of any kind and 
from any source (the "Account"), made at any time before the release of this Agreement in 
writing. 
 
 This Agreement is made to secure the payment of the following described debt, plus all 
extensions, renewals, modifications and substitutions thereof: 
 

$►◄ promissory note (the "Note") of even date herewith 
executed by Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
and payable to the order of ►◄, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 
 

 Debtor and Owner hereby agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
 1.  This Agreement will continue in full force and effect until Lender executes a 
written release (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B") and Lender shall not be 
required to release this Agreement and return the Collateral to Debtor until the Note and all 
related obligations of Debtor to Lender are paid in full. 
 
 2.  During the term of this Agreement, Owner shall have the right to direct the 
Lender to apply all or a portion of the Collateral from the Account for the sole purpose of 
applying the Collateral to amounts due and owing to the Lender pursuant to the Note. 
 
 3.  No joint owner, beneficiary, surviving spouse or representative of Debtor's or 
Owner's estate shall have any rights in the Collateral in the event of Debtor's or Owner's death or 
dissolution until the Note and all related obligations of Debtor to Lender are paid in full. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

 
 4.  Collateral in the amount of $►◄shall be deposited into the Account prior to any 
advances on the Note. 
 
 5.  If the Note is in default according to its terms, the Lender shall have the unilateral 
right to withdraw all or any part of the Collateral and apply the amount so withdrawn toward the 
payment of the Note and all related obligations of Debtor to Lender, even if the withdrawal 
causes a penalty. Lender can exercise this right with notice to Debtor or Owner. 
 
 6.  During an event of default, Debtor and Owner hereby appoint Lender as Debtor's 
and Owner's attorney in fact to exercise the rights granted to Lender herein. 
 
 7.  Debtor and Owner hereby represent and affirm to Lender that no other person or 
entity has any rights in all or any part of the Collateral and further, that no part of the Collateral 
is exempt or protected by law from this Agreement. 
 
 8.  The rights and remedies granted to Lender herein are in addition to any rights 
and/or remedies stated in any other agreements. 
 
 9.  Debtor and Owner shall be personal liable for the warranties and representations 
made respectively by Debtor and Owner in this Agreement. 
 
 10.  Debts secured by this Agreement (whether specifically listed or not) include all 
sums that could possibly be due under the Note. 
 
 11.  Intentionally deleted. 
 
 12.  By signing this Agreement, Debtor and Owner accept the terms of this Agreement 
and acknowledge receipt of a copy of this Agreement. 
 
Effective as of the date first stated above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[signatures on following pages] 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

 
 
      DEBTOR: 
      TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
      CORPORATION 
 
 
      By: _______________________________ 
      Name: 
      Title: 
 
 
      OWNER: 
 
 
      ►◄., a Texas Limited 
      Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
 

By: ►◄, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄, a Texas non-profit corporation, 
its sole member 
 
By:►◄ 
 

 
 
      ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
 

►◄ 
 
By: __________________________  
Name: Vice President – Lending 
 
 

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

Copy of executed Note 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

CLOSING DIRECTIONS OF  
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
. 

►◄ 
►◄ 
 
 The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation.,  (the "TCHFC"), has 
borrowed from and promised to pay to the order of ►◄ (the "Lender") the principal sum of 
►◄ ($xxxxxxxxx)) pursuant to the terms of that certain Term Loan Note (the "Note") of the 
Borrower dated as of ►◄, 2013 (the "Closing Date"). The TCHFC hereby directs the Lender to 
allocate the proceeds of the Note as follows: 
 
 (i) $xxxxxxxxxx to the TCHFC on the Closing Date via wire transfer pursuant to the 
following wire instructions: 
 

BANK ►◄ 
BNF =  
RFB =  
OBI =  
Participant Name: 
ABA Number: 
 

 (ii) $xxxxxxxxxx to ►◄ via wire transfer pursuant to the following wire instructions: 
 
   Bank ►◄ 
   ABA Bank Number ►◄ 
   Account Name: ►◄ 
   Account Number ►◄ 
   Reference Number ►◄ 
 
 (iii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender, ►◄ of which shall be attributable to 
the Bank Fees pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement between the TCHFC and the Lender and 
$►◄ of which shall be attributable to Lender underwriting and legal fees.  
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
►◄ 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
►◄ 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

CLOSING DIRECTIONS OF ►◄ 
 
. 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Austin, Texas 
 
 The undersigned, ►◄., a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), has borrowed from 
and promised to pay to the order of Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Lender") 
the principal sum of ►◄ ($xxxxxxxxx)) pursuant to the terms of that certain Term Loan Note 
(the "Note") of the Borrower dated as of ►◄, 2013 (the "Closing Date"). The Borrower hereby 
directs the Lender to allocate the proceeds of the Note as follows: 
 
 (i) $xxxxxxxxxx to the Borrower on the Closing Date via wire transfer pursuant to the 
following wire instructions: 
 

BANK ►◄ 
ACCOUNT NAME: ►◄. 
ACCOUNT NUMBER: ►◄ 
ROUTING NUMBER: ►◄ 
ABA WIRE NUMBER: ►◄ 
 

 (ii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender and attributed to the payment of legal 
fees incurred in connection with the Note, payable by the Borrower from proceeds of the Note as 
of the Closing Date. 
 
 (iii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender as payment by the Borrower of the 
Lender Fees pursuant to the terms of the Term Loan Agreement. 
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

►◄., a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By: ►◄, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄Corporatjon, a Texas non-profit 
corporation, its sale member 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE: 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By 
Name:  
Title:  

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

►◄., a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By: ►◄, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄Corporatjon, a Texas non-profit 
corporation, its sale member 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE: 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 33



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 34



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 35







salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 36

















AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
single pdf to agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's meeting. 
 

 
 
 
Meeting Date:  February 26, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tim Labadie 854.5864 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David Escamilla, County Attorney 
 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Sam Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
Consider and take appropriate action concerning the settlement offer regarding 
payment for STAR Flight services rendered to Ryder Pettit.  Executive Session also 
pursuant to Tex. Gov’t Code § 551.071(1)(B). 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: N/A 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: N/A 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
 
Danny Hobby 854.9367 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 41



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 42



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 43



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 44



286967-1    168.716 

 
 
Meeting Date: 02/26/13 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Laurie R. Eiserloh, 854-9513 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: David A. Escamilla 
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Hon. Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: IN CONSULTATION WITH COUNTY ATTORNEY, 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION CONCERNING THE EXTENSION 
OF ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE WITH PAY FOR JUVENILE PROBATION 
EMPLOYEE, SLOT 30005259. (EXECUTIVE SESSION UNDER GOV’T. CODE 
ANN. §551.071, CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY, AND §551.074, 
PERSONNEL EXCEPTION) 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item 46



 
 
Meeting Date:    Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number:   Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Heads:  Sherri Fleming, 854-4581  
     Deece Eckstein, 854-9754 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:   Judge Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
CONSIDER AND TAKE APPROPRIATE ACTION REGARDING JOINT 
TRAVIS COUNTY-CITY OF AUSTIN APPOINTMENTS TO THE CENTRAL 
HEALTH BOARD OF MANAGERS, INCLUDING: 
A. DESIGNATING MEMBERS OF THE COURT AND COUNTY STAFF TO 

PARTICIPATE IN THE SCREENING COMMITTEE PROCESS; AND, 
B. DESIGNATE A TIME FOR THE FULL COURT TO INTERVIEW 

CANDIDATES SELECTED BY THE SCREENING COMMITTEE.  
 
SUMMARY AND IGR RECOMMENDATION: 
In January, the Court and the Public Health and Human Services 
Subcommittee of the Austin City Council adopted a process for jointly 
selecting a member of the Central Health Board of Managers. Under that 
process, the deadline for applications was Friday, February 22, 2013.  
 
The next step in the process is a review of all the applications by a six-
member screening committee composed equally of representatives of the 
City and County. The Subcommittee intends to appoint one councilmember 
and two City staffers. IGR recommends that the Court: 

1. appoint one member of the Court and two County staff to the 
screening committee; and 

2. set aside time during the week of March 4 to interview the candidates 
recommended by the screening committee.  

 
BACKGROUND:  
 
Membership 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item A1



Central Health/Travis County Healthcare District (TCHD) Board of 
Managers: 
 Nine members, with four-year staggered terms 

o Four appointed by the Travis County Commissioners Court 
o Four appointed by the Austin City Council 
o One appointed jointly by the two bodies 

 The current County-City appointee, Anthony Haley, resigned at the 
end of 2012 

 Subject to the Uniform Appointment Process 
 
The Commissioners Court makes four appointments to the Travis County 
Healthcare District (DBA Central Health) Board of Managers. Additionally, 
the Commissioners Court and the Austin City Council jointly make one 
appointment to the nine-member board. Terms are for four years, and are 
staggered. The Board’s bylaws provide that the Managers will serve until 
their re-appointment or the selection of their successor.  
 
Process 
Anthony Haley, the joint County-City appointee, resigned from the Board 
effective December 31, 2012. On January 15, the Court discussed the 
outlines of a process and authorized IGR to work with elected officials and 
staff at the City of Austin to flesh out the joint process and to develop a set 
of application materials. On January 22, the Court adopted the process and 
application materials recommended by the joint effort, issuing a Call for 
Applications with a deadline of February 22, 2013.   
 
The process adopted by the Court and the Council Subcommittee calls for 
the screening committee to meet within the next week and identify three 
candidates to be interviewed separately by both the Commissioners Court 
and the Subcommittee.  
 
Qualifications  
With input from Central Health, the Court and the Subcommittee suggested 
the following qualifications in the Call for Applications:  

1. Senior management-level experience in a non-governmental entity 
2. Experience serving on Boards of Directors for high-level businesses 

or for-profit organizations 
3. Demonstrated leadership experience requiring strategic planning, 

execution, and maintenance of successful business operations 
4. Knowledge of the issues and components related to the “safety net” 

health system. 



5. Understanding of the operating principles and value of Federally 
Qualified Health Centers (FQHCs). 

6. Reflective of the diversity of the communities served by Central 
Health 

7. Mature and seasoned community leader 
 
In addition to these criteria, the County requires applicants to complete a 
Conflict of Interest Disclosure Affidavit.1 Responses to the Affidavit provide 
valuable information to the Court, but do not act as an absolute bar to 
service on the Central Health Board of Managers.  
 
The County also requires a Central Health appointee, as a precondition for 
assuming his or her role, to complete a Personal Financial Statement 
document.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING:  Not applicable.    
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS:  None.   
 
NAMES, PHONE NUMBERS AND EMAIL ADDRESSES OF PERSONS 
WHO MIGHT BE AFFECTED BY OR BE INVOLVED WITH THIS 
REQUEST:   
 
Sherri Fleming 
County Executive, Health and Human Services & Veterans Services 
Phone: 854-4581 
Email: Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Prema Gregerson 
County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-9224 
Email: Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us  
 
Beth Devery 
County Attorney’s Office 
Phone: 854-6654 
Email: Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us  
                                            
 
1  The City has a different conflicts requirement, but for purposes of this appointment adopted the 

County’s approach.   
 

http://www.ethics.state.tx.us/forms/pfs13.pdf
mailto:Sherri.Fleming@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Prema.Gregerson@co.travis.tx.us
mailto:Beth.Devery@co.travis.tx.us


 
Ann-Marie Price, Director of Government Affairs 
Central Health 
Phone: 978-8179 
Email: annmarie.price@centralhealth.net  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Current roster of Central Health Board of Managers members, 

updated February 26, 2013.  
B. Timetable for making the joint City-County appointment to the Central 

Health Board of Managers, adopted January 22 (Court) and January 
24 (Subcommittee).   

mailto:annmarie.price@centralhealth.net


ATTACHMENT A 

 Updated: February 26, 2013 

 

Central Health Board of Managers 
 

Current Membership First 
Appointed 

Date 
Reappointed 

Term 
Expires 

Rosie Mendoza, Chair  
Contact Phone: (512) 708-1690  
E-mail Address: rosiem@rmendozacpa.com  
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

08/01/04 03/05/09 12/31/12 

VACANT  
Contact Phone:  
E-mail Address:   
Nominated by: Outside  
Representing: City Council & Travis County 

06/11/09 
Resigned 
12/31/12 

  12/31/16 

Brenda Coleman-Beattie, Treasurer  
Contact Phone: (512) 329-9990  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/31/09 10/05/10 12/31/15 

Guadalupe Zamora, M.D.  
Contact Phone: (512) 482-0248 
Email Address: GZamora1@austin.rr.com  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

01/15/13  12/31/16 

Thomas Coopwood, M.D.  
Contact Phone: (512) 345-1316  
E-mail Address: tcoopwood1@austin.rr.com  
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell  
Representing: City resident, if applicable 

01/01/08 12/08/11 12/31/14 

Katrina Daniel  
Contact Phone: (512) 619-8638  
E-mail Address: katrina.daniel@sbcglobal.net  
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

07/23/09 01/27/11 12/31/14 

Clarke Heidrick  
Contact Phone: (512) 480-5636  
E-mail Address: cheidrick@gdhm.com  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

08/01/05 12/29/09 12/31/13 

Lynne Hudson  
Contact Phone: (512) 000-0000  
E-mail Address: l.hudson@sbcglobal.net  
Nominated by: Mayor Lee Leffingwell 

04/21/11   12/31/13 

Rebecca Lightsey  
Contact Phone: (512) 473-2800  
E-mail Address: rlightsey@texasappleseed.net  
Nominated by: Travis County  
Representing: Travis County 

03/18/11 10/25/11 12/31/15 

 

mailto:rosiem@rmendozacpa.com
mailto:GZamora1@austin.rr.com
mailto:tcoopwood1@austin.rr.com
mailto:katrina.daniel@sbcglobal.net
mailto:cheidrick@gdhm.com
mailto:l.hudson@sbcglobal.net
mailto:rlightsey@texasappleseed.net


ATTACHMENT B 
 

Proposed Process and Timeline for Selecting a  
Central Health Board of Managers Member 

Representing the City of Austin and Travis County 
 
 
DATE CITY OF AUSTIN JOINT TRAVIS COUNTY 
January 15 PHHS Subcmte. meets, 

approves process 
 Cmsnrs. Ct. receives 

briefing, approves process 
 

January 16-18  Staff group works to finalize 
application materials and 

public information 
campaign, timetablei 

 

Week of 
January 21 

PHHS approves packet, 
issues Call for Applications 

(1/24) 

 Commissioners Court 
approves packet, issues 
Call for Applications 

(1/22) 
Friday,  
February 22 
 

 DEADLINE  
for Applicationsii 

 

Week of 
February 25 
 

 Joint City/County 
workgroup (3 from each) 

reviews applications, 
develops short list of 3 

candidatesiii 

 

Week of  
March 4 

PHHS Subcmte. interviews 
all 3 candidates, ranks 

themiv 

 Commissioners Court 
interviews all 3 

candidates, ranks themv 
Week of  
March 11 
(spring break) 

 Joint City/County 
workgroup compares 

rankings, identifies optionsvi 

 

Week of  
March 18vii 
 

   

Week of 
March 25viii 

PHHS Subcmte. approves 
candidate for submission to 

full City Council for 
appointment to the Central 

Health BoM 

 Commissioners Court 
appoints finalist to Central 

Health BoM 

April, 2013  Once the appointment is 
done, the workgroup meets 
to evaluate the process and 
see if it can be formalized 

for the futureix 

 

 



ATTACHMENT B 
 

                                                           
i  City staff and county staff have already exchanged the most recent application packets (as of 1/10), and will identify 

any meaningful difference between them for discussion/resolution.  
 
ii  Both the City and the County will aggressively promote information about the vacancy and recruit applicants. 

Applicants can apply either to the County or to the City’s website. However, both the City and the County will 
exchange all applications received.  

 
iii  The six-member workgroup will be composed of equal numbers of staff and elected officials from each entity.  They 

will individually review, then meet to discuss and prioritize, all the applications that have been received, working in a 
very short timeframe. More time may be necessary, however. The three persons identified by the workgroup will be 
known as “candidates.”  

 
iv  The Public Health and Human Services Subcommittee has a regular schedule of meetings, but would convene in called 

meetings at key points through this process.   
 
v  TravCo IGR is checking to see if a Work Session of the Commissioners Court can be scheduled for Thursday, March 

7.  
 
vi  If both the PHHS Subcommittee and the Commissioners Court rank the three candidates the same, then both bodies 

can proceed to formalize their appointments at the next opportunity. However, if the rankings differ, additional steps 
may be necessary. Options: 
• If both entities are willing, they could re-interview the top two ranked candidates.  
• The entities could each designate (in advance?) one member who will negotiate the final joint appointment on 

behalf of that entity (e.g., Councilmember Martinez and Judge Biscoe).  
 
vii  This week is left open to allow the two bodies to resolve any differences in their recommendations.  
 
viii  This timetable, while very ambitious, would allow the new joint appointee to participate in the Board of Managers’ 

work beginning April 1, 2013.  
 
ix  Whether an interlocal agreement is adopted or not, the staffs should evaluate the process used this time, then 

memorialize its recommendations for the future.  
 



salazad
Typewritten Text
Item C3



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 

 

 
 
 
Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Tracy J Miller | 512.854.6923 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Sheriff Greg Hamilton 

Commissioners Court Sponsor: Judge Samuel T. Biscoe 
 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
Receive state required Racial Profiling Report for calendar year 2012 from 
the Travis County Sheriff's Office. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
Attached is the Tier 2 – Racial Profiling Report printed from the Texas 
Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education 
(TCLEOSE) website and back-up. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
N/A 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
N/A 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
N/A 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 
N/A 
 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Item C4



TIER 2 - FULL RACIAL PROFILING REPORT

 

Agency Name:    TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Reporting Date:   02/15/2013

TCLEOSE Agency Number:   453100 

Chief Administrator:   GREGORY M. HAMILTON

Agency Contact Information:

 

Phone: 512-854-6923

Email: tracy.miller@co.travis.tx.us

 

 

 

This Agency filed a full report because:

Our agency chooses to fully report even though it qualifies for the partial exemption.  

 

Certification to This Report 2.132 (Tier 2) – Full Report

 

Article 2.132(b) CCP Law Enforcement Policy on Racial Profiling

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE has adopted a detailed written policy on racial profiling. Our

policy:

(1) clearly defines acts constituting racial profiling;

(2) strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE from

engaging in racial profiling;

(3) implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the TRAVIS CO.

SHERIFF'S OFFICE if the individual believes that a peace officer employed by the TRAVIS CO.

SHERIFF'S OFFICE has engaged in racial profiling with respect to the individual;

(4) provides public education relating to the agency's complaint process;

(5) requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer employed by the

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE who, after an investigation, is shown to have engaged in racial

profiling in violation of the TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE's policy adopted under this article;

(6) require collection of information relating to motor vehicle stops in which a citation is issued and

to arrests made as a result of those stops, including information relating to:

     (A) the race or ethnicity of the individual detained;

     (B) whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the individual detained consented to the

search; and

     (C) whether the peace officer knew the race or ethnicity of the individual detained before

detaining that individual; and

(7) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected,

Page 1 of 5 pages submitted electronically to the

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards

and Education

   

mailto:tracy.miller@co.travis.tx.us


(7) require the chief administrator of the agency, regardless of whether the administrator is elected,

employed, or appointed, to submit an annual report of the information collected under Subdivision

(6) to:

     (A) the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education; and

     (B) the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency, if the agency is an

agency of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

 

 

I certify these policies are in effect.

 

Executed by: GREGORY M. HAMILTON

Chief Administrator 

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Date: 02/15/2013

Page 2 of 5 pages submitted electronically to the

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards

and Education

   



 

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICEMotor Vehicle Racial Profiling Information

 

Gender:

1. 10202 Female      

2. 17213 Male      

      3. 27415  Total (3, 10, 13, 18, 21, 40 and

51 must be equal)

           

Race or Ethnicity:

4. 3275 African      

5. 866  Asian      

6. 15064  Caucasian      

7. 7805  Hispanic      

8. 363  Middle Eastern      

9. 42  Native American      

      10. 27415  Total (3, 10, 13, 18, 21, 40 and

51 must be equal)

           

Race or Ethnicity known prior to stop?

11. 690 Yes      

12. 26725 No      

      13. 27415 Total (3, 10, 13, 18, 21, 40 and

51 must be equal)

           

Reason for stop:?

14. 1333 Violation of law other than traffic      

15. 28 Pre-existing knowledge (i.e. warrant)      

16. 18406 Moving Traffic Violation      

17. 7648 Vehicle Traffic Violation (Equipment,

Inspection or Registration)

     

      18. 27415 Total (3, 10, 13, 18, 21, 40 and

51 must be equal)

           

Page 3 of 5 pages submitted electronically to the

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards

and Education

   



Search conducted?

19. 547 Yes      

20. 26868 No      

      21. 27415 Total

           

Reason for search?

22. 225 Consent      

23. 46 Contraband/evidence in plain sight      

24. 170 Probable cause or reasonable suspicion      

25. 4 Inventory search performed as result of

towing

     

26. 102 Incident to arrest/warrant      

      27. 547 Total (must equal line 19)

           

Contraband discovered?

28. 120 Yes      

29. 427 No      

      30. 547  Total (must equal line 19)

           

Description of Contraband

31. 70 Illegal drugs/drug paraphernalia      

32. 0 Currency      

33. 6 Weapons      

34. 9 Alcohol      

35. 34 Stolen property      

36. 1 Other      

      37. 120 Total (must equal line 28)

           

Arrest result of stop or search:

38. 90 Yes      

39. 27325 No      

      40.  27415 Total (3, 10, 13, 18, 21, 40 and 51

must be equal)

           

Page 4 of 5 pages submitted electronically to the

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards

and Education

   



Arrest based on:

41. 90 Violation of the Penal Code      

42. 0 Violation of a Traffic Law      

43. 0 Violation of City Ordinance      

44. 0 Outstanding Warrant      

           

Street address or approximate location of the stop:

45. 2086 City Street      

46. 0 US Highway      

47. 25329 County Road      

48. 0 Private Property or Other      

           

Written warning or a citation as a result of the stop:

49. 27360 Yes      

50. 55 No      

      51. 27415   Total

           

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE has submitted electronically the analysis in PDF format

required by 2.134 CCP(c) which contains

(1) a comparative analysis of the information compiled under Article 2.133 to:

     (A) evaluate and compare the number of motor vehicle stops, within the applicable jurisdiction,

of persons who are recognized as racial or ethnic minorities and persons who are not recognized as

racial or ethnic minorities; and

     (B) examine the disposition of motor vehicle stops made by officers employed by the agency,

categorized according to the race or ethnicity of the affected persons, as appropriate, including any

searches resulting from stops within the applicable jurisdiction; and

(2) information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer

employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling.

 

I certify the analysis meets the above requirements.

 

Executed by: GREGORY M. HAMILTON

Chief Administrator 

TRAVIS CO. SHERIFF'S OFFICE

Date: 02/15/2013

Page 5 of 5 pages submitted electronically to the

Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards

and Education

   



5336 Female 4866 Female 10202 Female

7820 Male 9393 Male 17213 Male

0 Other 0 Other 0 Other

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

1393 African 1882 African 3275 African

422 Asian 444 Asian 866 Asian

7206 Caucasian 7627 Caucasian 14833 Caucasian ###

3859 Hispanic 3946 Hispanic 7805 Hispanic

189 Middle Eastern 174 Middle Eastern 363 Middle Eastern

32 Native American 10 Native American 42 Native American

55 Other 176 Other 231 Other

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

152 Yes 538 Yes 690 Yes

13004 No 13721 No 26725 No

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

15 Violation other than 370 Violation other than 385 Violation other than ###

11 Pre-existing 17 Pre-existing 28 Pre-existing

11550 Moving Traffic 6856 Moving Traffic 18406 Moving Traffic

837 Vehicle Traffic Violation 6811 Vehicle Traffic Violation 7648 Vehicle Traffic Violation

743 Other 205 Other 948 Other

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

56 Yes 491 Yes 547 Yes

13100 No 13768 No 26868 No

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

12 Consent 213 Consent 225 Consent

0 Contraband/plain site 46 Contraband/plain site 46 Contraband/plain site

21 PC or reasonable susp 149 PC or reasonable susp 170 PC or reasonable susp

0 Impound 4 Impound 4 Impound

23 Incident to arrest 79 Incident to arrest 102 Incident to arrest

56 Total 491 Total 547 Total

28 No 14167 No 14195 No

28 Yes 92 Yes 120 Yes

56 Total 14,259 Total 14,315 Total

Racial Profile Tier 2 - COMBINED

GENDER

RACE

RACE KNOWN

REASON for STOP

SEARCH Conducted

SEARCH Conducted

CONTRABAND Discovered

Racial Profile Tier 2 - E-CITES Racial Profile Tier 2 - PATROL

CONTRABAND Discovered CONTRABAND Discovered

REASON for STOP REASON for STOP

SEARCH Conducted SEARCH Conducted

REASON for Search SEARCH Conducted

GENDER GENDER

RACE RACE

RACE KNOWN RACE KNOWN



Racial Profile Tier 2 - COMBINEDRacial Profile Tier 2 - E-CITES Racial Profile Tier 2 - PATROL

16 Illegal drugs 54 Illegal drugs 70 Illegal drugs

0 Currency 0 Currency 0 Currency

2 Weapons 4 Weapons 6 Weapons

9 Alcohol 0 Alcohol 9 Alcohol

0 Evidence 34 Evidence 34 Evidence

1 Other 0 Other 1 Other

28 Total 92 Total 120 Total

29 Yes 61 Yes 90 Yes

13127 No 14198 No 27325 No

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

0 Violation of Penal Code 90 Violation of Penal Code 90 Violation of Penal Code

0 Violation of Traffic Law 0 Violation of Traffic Law 0 Violation of Traffic Law

0 Violation City Ordinace 0 Violation City Ordinace 0 Violation City Ordinace

0 Outstanding Warrant 0 Outstanding Warrant 0 Outstanding Warrant

0 Total 90 Total 90 Total

1152 City Street 934 City Street 2086 City Street

12004 County Road 13325 County Road 25329 County Road

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

13156 Yes 14204 Yes 27360 Yes

0 No 55 No 55 No

13,156 Total 14,259 Total 27,415 Total

WRITTEN WRN or CIT GivenWRITTEN WRN or CIT Given WRITTEN WRN or CIT Given

STOP Location

DESCRIPTION of Contraband

ARREST Result of STOP

ARREST Based OnARREST Based On ARREST Based On

STOP Location STOP Location

DESCRIPTION of Contraband DESCRIPTION of Contraband

ARREST Result of STOP ARREST Result of STOP



RACIAL PROFILING COMPLAINTS 
 
The Internal Affairs division of the Travis County Sheriff’s Office reported no complaints 
of racial profiling in 2012. 
 
 
ADDITIONALLY 
 
There are 3,271 records not included in the report.  They were either listed as 
“unknown” or “other” for race or gender; or one of the other mandatory fields were left 
blank and it was unclear where we were to count the record.  As it is a significant 
number they are included below. 
 
 
Totals Reason & Category 
  
35 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the RACE field 

 
13 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the GENDER field 

 
15 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the DID you Know the RACE or  

ETHNICTY of the Violator Prior to the Stop field was left blank 
 

199 Were deleted because the DID you Know the RACE or ETHNICITY of the 
Violator Prior to the Stop field was left blank 

  
146 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the REASON for the STOP field 
  
88 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the LOCATION of Contact field 
  
1887 Were deleted because the LOCATION of Contact field was left blank 
  
39 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the REASON for CONTACT field 
  
93 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the SEARCH field 
  
526 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the WHAT was SEARCHED field 
  
5 Were deleted because there was a “?” in the What CONTRABAND was 

Found field 
  
126 Were deleted because they were UNATTENDED VEHICLES  
  
99 Were deleted for other reasons 
  
3,271 TOTAL records deleted due to entry error 
 



Female 
10,202 

37% 

Male 
17,213 
 63% 

Gender 



African 

3275 

12% 

Asian 

866 

3% 

Caucasian 

14,833 

54% 

Hispanic 

7805 

29% 

Middle Eastern 

363 

1% 

Native American 

42 

0% 

Other 

231 

1% 

Race / Ethnicity 



Penal Viol 

385 

1% 

Pre-Exisiting 

28 

0% 

Moving Traffic 
18,406 

67% 

Non-Moving 

7648 

28% 

Other 

948 

4% 

Reason for stop 



Yes 

690 

3% 

No 

26,725 

97% 

Did you know the race before? 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE:  All agenda requests and supporting materials should be submitted as 
a pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us  by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next 
week's meeting. 
 

 
 
Meeting Date:    February 26, 2013 
Prepared By/Phone Number: David Salazar, 854-9555 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head:  County Judge 
Commissioners Court Sponsor:    Judge Biscoe 
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: 
 
RECEIVE STATE REQUIRED RACIAL PROFILING REPORT FOR 
CALENDAR YEAR 2012 FROM CONSTABLE, PRECINCT TWO.  
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES: 
 
Please see attached. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: 
 
None. 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 

mailto:agenda@co.travis.tx.us
salazad
Typewritten Text
Item C5











{02248693.DOC / } 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 MEMORANDUM 
 from 
 William C. Blount 
  
 
 
 
TO:   Travis County Judge and County Commissioners 

Board of Directors of 
   Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
 
DATE:  February 13, 2013 
 
RE:   Consideration of request to provide loans for developers of multifamily 

residential tax credit properties in the 2013 9% tax credit round 
 
Agenda Date: February 19, 2013 
 
 Several developers have contacted the housing finance corporation staff regarding the 
possibility of the corporation and/or Travis County providing loans to the developers in order to 
assist the developers with obtaining additional points in the very competitive tax credit application 
process administered by TDHCA.   
 
9% Tax Credit System 
 
 The 9% tax credit program is a Federal government program available to developers of 
affordable housing in their efforts to provide housing to low income residents.  Essentially, a 
developer is awarded tax credits which it can then sell (or syndicate) in exchange for equity 
contributions which provide a portion of the funds to acquire and construct the project.  In Texas, 
TDHCA administers the program and publishes a Qualified Allocation Plan (“QAP”) to set forth 
the rules on which it will base its awarding of 9% tax credits in Texas.  The process is quite 
competitive and this year, the region which includes Travis County is expected to generate 18 
applications with only 2 applications expected to be awarded tax credits (3 is possible but not 
likely).  TDHCA’s plan sets out the standards which it will apply to award applicants points for 
various aspects of their project, such as sponsor characteristics, low-income set asides, tenant 
services, proximity to schools, community support, etc.  The full QAP is online at 
http://www.tdhca.state.tx.us/multifamily/htc/docs/13-QAP.pdf. 
 
 A revised criteria for obtaining points this year is the provision of development funding by 

 
 8310 N. Capital of Texas 

    Highway, Suite 490 
Austin, Texas 78731 
(512) 479-0300 
Fax (512) 474-1901 
___________________ 

Offices in: 

· Austin 

· Fort Worth 

· San Antonio 

· Waco 

___________________ 

www.namanhowell.com 
 

http://www.tdhca.state.tx.us/multifamily/htc/docs/13-QAP.pdf
salazad
Typewritten Text
HFC Item 1

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text

salazad
Typewritten Text



{02248693.DOC / } 

a unit of general local government.  Essentially, an applicant may gain a relatively large number of 
points by obtaining local support in the form of a development loan from the local government.  
For a proposed project in the county but outside of any city limits, that support can come from an 
entity such as TCHFC.  For a project inside of a city, that support can come from the city or the 
county government. 
 
Developer Proposal 
 
 The developer proposal is for the developer to pledge a certificate of deposit or similar cash 
collateral to the governmental entity (the County or TCHFC) providing the loan, therefore there 
would be no risk to TCHFC or the County of nonpayment.  The loan would be for a stated term of 
5 years, however, these loans are generally repaid within 30 to 180 days of the developer closing 
on its funding and it is not anticipated that the loan would be outstanding for longer than 180 days. 
 It is anticipated that the developer would pay an application fee, pay for all costs (legal, etc.) of 
documenting the loan and pay an origination fee in order to obtain the loan.   
 
 Tax Credit applications from the developers are due to TDHCA on March 1.  The 
developers at this point would only need a letter stating that the developer has applied for funding. 
 However, the staff does not want to provide the confirmation letter if the loan program is 
something that neither the Commissioners Court nor the Board of TCHFC desire to establish.  The 
actual loan transaction would occur in August.  The loans would only be made to developers who 
received allocation from TDHCA so, while TCHFC has received 3 inquiries from developers, 
there will not be 3 loans made.  
 
 
 
 
cc: Karen Thigpen 

Andrea Shields 
 John Hille 
 



Project Name Address City 
Population 

Served
# of 

Units
Unit 

Types % of AMI
Approximate 
Loan Amount

Windy Ridge Apartment Homes 10910 Ranch Rd 620 Austin (Unincorp) Family/Vets 120 1, 2, 3BR 30, 50 & 60% $1,800,000
Cottages at Wildhorse Creek 11725 Murchison St Manor Family   80 1, 2, 3BR 30, 50 & 60% $66,000
The Hills of Pflugerville Colorado Sands Dr Pflugerville Seniors 117 1, 2 BR 30, 50 & 60% $425,000



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

$xxx        ►◄      ►◄2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation ("Maker"), 
promises to pay to the order of ►◄ ("Payee"), at ►◄, or such other address as Payee may from 
time to designate, the sum of xxxxxxxx DOLLARS ($XXX) in legal and lawful money of the 
United States of America, together with interest thereon from date hereof at the rates describe 
below. Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The interest rate due under this promissory note (the "Note") shall be equal to the lesser 
of (i) the Applicable Federal Rate or (ii) the Maximum Lawful Rate. The Applicable Federal 
Rate shall be determined on the date hereof. After maturity (whether by demand, acceleration or 
otherwise) until paid, interest shall accrue on the matured principal and accrued, but unpaid, 
interest at an annual rate equal to the Maximum Lawful Rate. Interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The term "Applicable Federal Rate," means the interest rate as provided by the Internal 
Revenue Service in Revenue Ruling 2012-20 that is effective as of the date hereof. The 
Applicable Federal Rate as of the date hereof is 0.24% per annum. 
 
 The term "Maximum Lawful Rate," means the greater of (i) the highest rate permitted by 
applicable Texas or United States law, or (ii) an annual rate equal to the weekly ceiling 
determined in accordance with the computation specified in the Texas Finance Code, as 
amended, as such weekly ceiling is in effect from time to time, but in no event greater than 
eighteen (18%) percent annually. Unless precluded by law, changes in the Maximum Lawful 
Rate created by statute or governmental action during the term of this Note shall be immediately 
applicable to this note on the effective date of such changes. 
 
 This promissory note (the "Note") is due and payable as follows, to-wit: 
 
 All principal and interest thereon shall begin to accrue on the Funding Date (as defined in 
that certain Term Loan Agreement between Maker and Payee dated as of ►◄) and shall be due 
and payable upon the Maturity Date defined in that certain Term Loan Note as of ►◄ from 
►◄ to Maker. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, and the holder of this Note is entitled to the benefits 
of, all deeds of trust, mortgages, security agreements, assignments, lien instruments, guaranties, 
endorsements, or other agreements (the "Collateral Agreements") executed or created by any 
person or entity (including but not limited to Maker) to secure payment of this Note. Without 
limiting the foregoing, the Collateral Agreements include: 
 

An Assignment and Pledge Agreement executed of even date 
herewith by Maker and ►◄ in favor of Lender. 

 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

 If default occurs in the payment of any principal or interest when due hereunder, or upon 
the occurrence of any default or failure to perform any covenant, agreement or obligation to be 
performed under any Collateral Agreements, or upon Maker's insolvency or business failure, the  
appointment of a receiver of all or any part of Maker's property, an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors of Maker, a calling of a meeting of creditors of Maker, the commencement of any 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or debtor relief laws by or against Maker or any  
guarantor or surety for Maker, the holder hereof may, at its option, declare the entirety of this 
Note, principal and interest, immediately due and payable, and pursue any and all other remedies 
available to it at law or in equity, but failure to do so at any time shall not constitute a waiver of 
such holder's right to do so at any other time. Failure to exercise this option upon any default 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent defaults. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or upon default in the performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms of any of the Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and 
grace required by this Note, at the option of Payee, the unpaid balance of this Note shall be 
matured, and if Maker defaults in the prompt payment of this Note when due or declared due, 
and this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, or suit is brought on the Note, 
or the Note is collected through probate, bankruptcy or other judicial proceedings, then Maker, 
jointly and severally if more than one, agrees and promises to pay all reasonable attorney's fees, 
court costs and collection expenses incurred by Payee. 
 
 If at any time and from time to time Payee is prevented from collecting the rate of interest 
and the fees specified in this Note by applicable law or governmental regulation, Payee shall be 
entitled to recoup the amount it would have otherwise been able to collect (the "Recoupment 
Amount") during such period when the recoupment will not violate applicable law or regulation 
(the "Recoupment Period"). During each Recoupment Period, Maker shall continue to pay the 
Maximum Lawful Rate until there has been paid under this Note, in addition to the interest at the 
applicable rate specified herein during such Recoupment Period, an amount equal to the 
Recoupment Amount. Interest collected by Payee during each Recoupment Period shall first be 
applied to payment of current interest due at the applicable rate specified in this Note and any 
remaining interest collected shall be applied to the Recoupment Amount. When Payee has 
recouped all of the Recoupment Amount, the interest rate payable by Maker shall revert to the 
applicable rate specified in this Note. In no event, however, shall the interest rate charged 
hereunder ever exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate and in the event of any prepayment of this 
Note, only that portion of the Recoupment Amount which has been earned through the date of 
prepayment shall be payable. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or in the performance of any obligation 
contained in any Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and grace required by this Note, 
this Note and all obligations contained in any Collateral Agreements shall become immediately 
due at the election of Payee. Maker and each surety, endorser, guarantor and any other party 
liable for payment of this Note, in whole or in part, hereby severally: (i) waive demand, 
presentment for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of protest, notice of intent to 
accelerate, notice of acceleration, dishonor, and all other waivable notices, and diligence in 
collecting this Note or enforcing any of the Collateral Agreements; (ii) agree to any substitution, 
subordination, exchange or release of any party primarily or secondarily liable for payment of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

this Note; (iii) agree that Payee shall not be required first to institute suit or exhaust Payee's 
remedies against Maker or others liable for payment of this Note or performance under any 
Collateral Agreement; and (iv) consent to any extension or postponement of time of payment of 
this Note and to any other indulgence with respect hereto without notice to any of them, Payee's 
failure to exercise Payee's option to accelerate upon any default shall not constitute a waiver of 
the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent default. 
 
 Limitation of Interest:   Maker confirms that Maker is not aware of any violation of 
applicable usury laws related to this note or any Collateral Agreement. The parties intend to 
conform strictly to the applicable usury laws and, to induce Payee to make a loan to Maker, 
Maker agrees that: 
 

All existing or future agreements and transactions between Maker and the Payee are 
expressly limited so that under no circumstance shall the amount of Interest, as defined 
below, exceed the maximum legal rate allowed by applicable law. 

 
If, under any possible construction of this Note or any Collateral Agreement, Excess 
Interest, as defined below, would otherwise be payable, any Excess Interest shall be 
automatically, as of the date of charging or payment, applied to a reduction of the 
principal balance of this Note and not to the payment of interest, or if the Excess Interest 
exceeds the unpaid principal balance of this Note it shall be refunded to Maker, and this 
Note and/or the Collateral Agreement shall be automatically reformed to reduce the 
Interest payable to the maximum legal rate without the necessity of execution of an 
amending document. 

 
If Maker discovers that this Note or any of the Collateral Agreements may violate any 
applicable usury law, Maker shall notify Payee of the alleged violation and shall give 
Payee sixty days to cure the violation. During the sixty day notice and cure period, Maker 
shall not prosecute any claim or defense based upon a violation of applicable usury laws. 

 
To the extent not prohibited by law, all Interest shall be amortized, prorated and spread, 
in equal parts, over the full stated term of this Note so that the actual rate of Interest is 
uniform through the term of this note. 

 
"Excess Interest" shall mean all interest or fees charged, collected, or received in excess 
of the maximum legal rate of interest, including, but not limited to, those arising due to 
acceleration of maturity, late fees, prepayment, or demand for prepayment. 

 
For purposes of this Limitation of Interest section, and only this section, the term 
"Interest" shall be all inclusive and shall mean the amount of interest contracted for,  
charged, or received by Payee from Maker, or any third party, for the use, forbearance, or 
detention of the principal of this Note. 

 
If any installment becomes overdue for more than five (5) days, at Payee's option, five 
percent (5%) of the overdue installment amount will be charged ill order to defray the 
expense of handling the delinquent payment. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

 
Maker may prepay all or any part hereof at anytime without penalty, and interest shall 
immediately cease on all amounts so prepaid. All prepayments shall be applied first to 
accrued but unpaid interest, the balance to installments due hereon in inverse order of 
maturity. 
 
This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. 

 
THIS NOTE AND THE INSTRUMENTS BEING EXECUTED ALONG WITH IT 
REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY 
NOT BE CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR 
SUBSEQUENT ORAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES. 
 
THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
 

BALLOON WARNING 
 
 This loan is payable in full at maturity. Maker must repay the entire principal balance of 
the loan and unpaid interest then due. Payee is under no obligation to refinance the loan at that 
time. Maker will therefore, be required to make payment out of other assets that Maker may 
own, or Maker will have to find another lender, which may be Payee, willing to lend Maker the 
money to pay the loan. If Maker refinances this loan at maturity, Maker may have to pay some or 
all of the closing costs normally associated with a new loan even if Maker obtains refinancing 
from Payee. 
 
      MAKER: 
      TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE   
      CORPORATION 
 
 

By: _______________________________ 
  Name: 
 Title: 

  
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257022.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

 The Agreement has been released and the original certificate, or passbook or other 
evidence of the Collateral (if any) has been returned to Debtor. 
 
 
      ►◄ 
 
 

By: ______________________________ 
Title: ____________________________ 

 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

TERM LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
________ Bank 
Austin, Texas  
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Borrower"), has 
concurrently herewith borrowed from __________ Bank (the "Lender") the sum of LOAN 
AMOUNT ($xxxxxxxxxx) (the "Loan"), payable on the Funding Date (as hereinafter defined) as 
evidenced by that certain Term Loan Note of the Borrower bearing even date herewith payable 
to the order of Lender (the "Note") in said principal amount and expressed to mature and to bear 
interest as set forth in, and otherwise in the form of, the note attached hereto as Exhibit A. The 
Borrower executes and delivers this Agreement to set forth and confirm the terms and conditions 
applicable to the Note and the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower made in connection therewith: 
 
SECTION 1.  PAYMENTS. 
 
 Section 1.1.  Prepayments.  The Borrower shall have the privilege of prepaying the 
Note in whole or in part at any time and from time to time. All such prepayments shall be made 
upon not less than one (1) bank business day's prior notice to the Lender. Each prepayment shall 
be made by the payment of the principal amount to be prepaid and accrued interest thereon to the 
date fixed for prepayment. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Payment of Fees.  The Borrower shall pay to the Lender on the date hereof 
(the "Closing Date"), an amount equal to 1% of the original principal amount of the Loan (the 
"Lender Fees"). 
 
 Section 1.3.  Place and Application of Payments.  The Borrower hereby agrees to make 
all payments of the Lender Fees, the principal and interest and all other amounts payable 
hereunder and under the Note (collectively, the "Obligations") promptly when due and such 
amounts due to the Lender under the Note shall be paid in accordance with the Note and any 
amounts due to the Lender's attorney for fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Loan 
shall be paid to such attorney on the Closing Date. All such payments shall be made in lawful 
money of the United States of America, in immediately available funds at the place of payment, 
without set-off or counterclaim and without reduction for, and free from, any and all present or 
future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, charges, deductions, withholdings, restrictions or 
conditions of any nature imposed by any government or any political subdivision or taxing 
authority thereof. 
 
 Section 1.4. The proceeds of the Loan shall be payable by the Lender to the Borrower 
upon the demand of the Borrower on any business day on or before ►◄, 2013 (the "Funding 
Date"); provided, however, that ►◄, a Texas limited partnership ("►◄") has deposited  
collateral into the Account (as defined in the Bank Agreement) on or prior to the Funding Date 
pursuant to paragraph 4 of the Bank Agreement. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

SECTION 2.  SECURITY. 
 
 Section 2 .1.  Collateral Documents.  For the benefit of the Lender, as security for the 
payment of the Obligations, including without limitation, all principal of and interest on the 
Note, the Borrower and ►◄ hereby grant the Lender a lien on and security interest in the 
Account (as defined in the Bank Agreement), in each case whether now owned or existing or 
hereafter created, acquired or arising and has concurrently herewith executed and delivered that 
certain Assignment and Pledge Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the "Bank Agreement"), 
among ►◄ the Borrower and the Lender, granting the Lender a lien on and security interest in 
the Account. 
 
 Section 2.2.  Further Assurances.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it shall 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents (as hereinafter defined) 
and that it shall, at any time and from time to time as requested by the Lender, execute and 
deliver such further instruments and do such other acts as the Lender may deem reasonably 
necessary or desirable to provide for or protect or perfect the lien and security interest of the 
Lender in the collateral security granted thereby. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
 The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 3.1. The Borrower is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under 
the laws of the State of Texas and is duly licensed or qualified and in good standing in all 
jurisdictions wherein the nature of its activities or business conducted or property owned or 
leased by it requires such qualification or licensing. The Borrower is in full compliance with the 
terms of this Agreement and has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement, to 
borrow the sum evidenced by the Note, to grant a lien on and security interest in its property 
pursuant to the Collateral Documents, and to perform each and all of the matters and things 
provided for in this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents. The execution and 
delivery of this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents, and the observance and 
performance of any of the matters and things herein or therein set forth, will not violate or 
contravene any provision of law or of the organizational documents of the Borrower, or to the 
Borrower's knowledge of any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement of or affecting the 
Borrower or any of its property. 
 
 Section 3.2.  There is no litigation or governmental proceeding pending, nor to the 
Borrower's knowledge threatened, against the Borrower which, if adversely determined, would 
result in any material adverse change in the financial condition or properties, business or 
operations of the Borrower. All tax returns required to be filed by the Borrower in any 
jurisdiction have, in fact, been filed, and all taxes, assessments, fees, and other governmental 
charges upon the Borrower or upon any of its property, income, or franchises, which are shown 
to be due and payable in such returns, have been paid. The Borrower does not know of any 
proposed additional tax assessments against it for which adequate provisions in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles have not been made on its books and records. Adequate 
provisions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for taxes on the books of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

the Borrower have been made for all open years, and for its current fiscal year. No authorization, 
consent, license, or exemption from, or filing or registration with, any court or governmental 
department, agency or instrumentality, is or will be necessary to the valid execution, delivery or 
performance by the Borrower of this Agreement, the Note or the Collateral Documents. 
 
 Section 3.3.  The Borrower is not a party to any contracts or agreements with any of its 
Affiliates (as defined herein) on terms and conditions which are less favorable to the Borrower 
than would be usual and customary in similar contracts or agreements between persons or 
entities not affiliated with each other. 
 
 Section 3.4.  The Borrower is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable 
local, state and federal environmental, health and safety statutes and regulations, and, to its 
knowledge, has not acquired, incurred or assumed, directly or indirectly, any material contingent 
liability in connection with the release of any toxic or hazardous waste or substance into the 
environment. The Borrower is not the subject to any evaluation under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Specified 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986,42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. 
 
 Section 3.5.  No Event of Default or Default (as hereinafter defined) has occurred and is 
continuing. 
 
 Section 3.6.  The Borrower understands that neither the Lender nor any person 
representing the Lender has made any representation to it, or accepts any responsibility, with 
respect to whether the Loan or the Note qualifies Playa del Pueblo for the award of certain points 
by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs pursuant to its Housing Tax Credit 
Program Qualified Allocation Plan and Rules. 
 
SECTION 4.  COVENANTS. 
 
 From and after the date hereof and so long as any amount remains unpaid on the Note, 
except to the extent compliance in any case or cases is waived in writing by the Lender, the 
Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 4.1 .  Maintenance of Business. The Borrower shall preserve and keep in force 
and effect all licenses and permits necessary to the proper conduct of its business. 
 
 Section 4.2.  [intentionally deleted]. 
 
 Section 4.3.  Taxes. The Borrower shall duly pay and discharge all taxes, assessments 
and governmental charges upon or against the Borrower or against any of its property before the 
same become delinquent and before penalties accrue thereon, unless and to the extent that the 
same are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings. 
 
 Section 4.4.  [intentionally deleted]. 
 
 Section 4.5.  [intentionally deleted]. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

SECTION 5.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
 Section 5.1. Anyone or more of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
hereunder: 
 

 (a) default in the payment when due (whether by lapse of time, acceleration, or 
otherwise) of any principal of or interest on the Note or any fee, charge, obligation or 
other amount payable hereunder of the Borrower to the Lender, which such default is not 
remedied within ten (10) business days after the due date; 
 
 (b) default in the observance or performance of any of the covenants set forth in 
Section 4 hereof or in any of the Collateral Documents which such default is not 
remedied within thirty (30) days after notice to the Borrower by the Lender; 
 
 (c) default in the observance or performance of any other provision hereof which 
is not remedied within thirty (30) days after notice thereof to the Borrower by the Lender; 
 
 (d) monetary default shall occur under any evidence of indebtedness issued, 
assumed or guaranteed by the Borrower or under any indenture, agreement or other 
instrument under which the same may be issued, and such default shall continue for a 
period of time  sufficient to permit the acceleration of the maturity of any such 
indebtedness, or any such  indebtedness shall not be paid when due (whether by demand, 
lapse of time, acceleration or otherwise) subject to applicable notice, grace and cure 
periods; 
 
 (e)   any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or made by the 
Borrower in any statement or certificate furnished by it pursuant hereto, proves untrue in 
any material respect as of the date of the issuance or making thereof; 
 
 (f)   dissolution or termination of existence of the Borrower; 
 
 (g) the Borrower becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or bankruptcy, reorganization, 
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under 
any bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors are instituted against the Borrower 
and are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after such institution, or a decree or order 
of a court having jurisdiction in the premises for the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
custodian for the Borrower, or for the major part of its property is entered and the trustee, 
receiver or custodian appointed pursuant to such decree or order is not discharged within 
ninety (90) days after such appointment; or 
 
 (h)   the Borrower shall institute bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under any 
bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors or shall consent to the institution of such 
proceedings against it by others or to the entry of any decree or order adjudging it 
bankrupt or insolvent or approving as filed any petition seeking reorganization under any 
bankruptcy or similar law or shall apply for or shall consent to the appointment of a 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

receiver, trustee or custodian for it or for the major part of its property or shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its 
debts as they mature or shall take any corporate action in contemplation or in furtherance 
of any of the foregoing purposes.  
 

 Section 5.2.   When any Event of Default described in subsections 5.l(a) to 5.1(h) has 
occurred and is continuing, the Lender may, by notice to the Borrower, declare the Obligations, 
including without limitation, the principal of and the accrued interest on the Note to be forthwith 
due and payable, and thereupon the Note, including both principal and interest, and all fees and 
charges payable hereunder shall be and become immediately due and payable without further 
demand, presentment, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
SECTION 6.   DEFINITIONS. 
 
 The following terms when used herein shall have the following meanings, such terms to 
be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined: 
 
 "Affiliate" shall mean any person, firm, corporation or entity (herein collectively called a 
"Person") directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common 
control with, another Person. A Person shall be deemed to control another Person for the 
purposes of this definition if such first Person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to 
direct, or cause the direction of, the management and policies of the second Person, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, common directors, trustees or officers, by contract or 
otherwise. 
 
 "Collateral Documents" means the Bank Agreement and any security agreements, 
assignments, mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements and other documents as shall from 
time to time secure the Note and the obligations of the Borrower hereunder.  
 
 "Event of Default" shall mean any event or condition identified as such in Section 5.1 
hereof and the term "Default" shall mean any event or condition which constitutes an Event of 
Default. 
 
 Capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall, unless otherwise specified, 
have the meanings so ascribed to them in all provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 7. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
 Section 7.1.  Holidays.  If any payment hereunder or under the Note becomes due and 
payable on a day which is not a bank business day, the due date of such payment shall be 
extended to the next succeeding bank business day on which date such payment shall be due and 
payable. In the case of any payment of principal falling due on a day which is not a bank 
business day, interest on such principal amount shall continue to accrue during such extension at 
the rate per annum then in effect, which accrued amount shall be due and payable on the next 
scheduled date for the payment of interest. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Section 7.2.  No Waiver, Cumulative Remedies.  No delay or failure on the part of the 
Lender or on the part of the holder of the Note in the exercise of any power or right shall operate 
as a waiver thereof or as an acquiescence in any Default, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any power or right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
power or right. The rights and remedies hereunder of the Lender and of the holder of the Note 
are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies which any of them would 
otherwise have. All of the covenants, warranties and representations of the Borrower herein shall 
be in addition to and cumulative of all other covenants, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower contained in, or provided for in, any other instrument or document now or hereafter 
executed and delivered by the Borrower to or in favor of the Lender. 
 
 Section 7.3.  Amendments, Etc.   No amendment, modification, termination or waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, the Bank Agreement or of the Note nor consent to any 
departure by the Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the Lender and the Borrower. No notice to or demand on the Borrower in 
any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other 
circumstances. 
 
 Section 7.4.  Costs and Expenses.   The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all 
reasonable costs and expenses of the Lender incurred by the Lender in connection with an Event 
of Default or the enforcement of this Agreement, the Note, the Collateral Documents and the 
other instruments and documents to be delivered hereunder and in preserving or protecting or 
exercising the rights of the Lender hereunder or thereunder or with respect to any collateral 
security for the Note or other liabilities and in connection with any action, suit or proceeding 
brought against the Lender by any person or entity which arises out of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby or out of any action or inaction by the Lender hereunder or 
thereunder, including all of the foregoing incurred in any bankruptcy, arrangement or 
reorganization proceeding involving the Borrower. 
 
 Section 7.5.  Stamp Taxes.   The Borrower agrees to pay on demand any documentary, 
stamp or similar taxes payable in respect of this Agreement or the Note, including interest and 
penalties, in the event any such taxes are assessed, irrespective of when such assessment is made 
and whether or not any credit to it is then in use. 
 
 Section 7.6.   Survival of Representations.   All representations and warranties made 
herein or in certificates given pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and of the Note and shall continue in full force and effect with respect to the date as 
of which they were made as long as any credit is in use or available hereunder. 
 
 Section 7.7.  Payments.  The Borrower will promptly and punctually pay the principal 
of and interest on the Note without presentment of the Note and without any notation of any such 
payment being made on the Note. 
 
 Section 7.B.  Addresses for Notices. All communications provided for herein shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been given or made when served personally or when 
deposited in the United States mail addressed if to the Borrower at ►◄, or if to Lender at ►◄, 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

or at such other address as shall be designated by any party hereto in a written notice given to 
each party pursuant to this Section 7.8. 
 
 Section 7.9.  Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience 
of reference only and are not a part of this Agreement for any other purpose. 
 
 Section 7.10.  Severability of Provisions.  Any provision of this Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, which is unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such 
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any 
other jurisdiction. 
 
 Section 7.11.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and by different parties hereto on separate counterparts, and all such counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 Section 7.12.  Binding Nature, Governing Law, Etc.   This Agreement, the Note and/or 
the Collateral Documents, shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, 
and shall inure to the benefit of the Lender and the benefit of its successors and assigns, 
including any subsequent holder of the Note. This Agreement and the rights and duties of the 
parties hereto shall be construed and determined in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and any prior agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto are 
superseded hereby. The Borrower may not assign its rights hereunder without the written consent 
of the Lender. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 
 Upon your acceptance hereof in the manner hereinafter set forth, this Term Loan 
Agreement shall be a contract between us for the uses and purposes hereinabove set forth. 
 
Dated as of ►◄, 2013. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
 
 
BY: _______________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[Signature Page to Term Loan Agreement] 
 
 
 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Accepted and agreed to as of the day and year last above written. 
 
 
      ►◄ 
 
 
      By: __________________________________ 

Name:  
Title:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Acceptance Page to Term Loan Agreement} 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

Exhibit A 
 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 

$xxxxxxxxxx                                     ►◄                                                                 ►◄, 2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation ("Maker"), 
promises to pay to the order of ►◄("Payee"), at ►◄, or such other address as Payee may from 
time to designate, the sum of ►◄($xxxxxxxxxx) in legal and lawful money of the United States 
of America, together with interest thereon from date hereof at the rates describe below. Interest 
shall be computed on the basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The interest rate due under this promissory note (the "Note") shall be equal to the lesser 
of (i) the Applicable Federal Rate or (ii) the Maximum Lawful Rate. The Applicable Federal 
Rate shall be determined on the date hereof. After maturity (whether by demand, acceleration or 
otherwise) until paid, interest shall accrue on the matured principal and accrued, but unpaid, 
interest at an annual rate equal to the Maximum Lawful Rate. Interest shall be computed on the 
basis of a 365 day year. 
 
 The term "Applicable Federal Rate," means the interest rate as provided by the Internal 
Revenue Service in Revenue Ruling 2012-20 that is effective as of the date hereof. The 
Applicable Federal Rate as of the date hereof is 0.24% per annum. 
 
 The term "Maximum Lawful Rate," means the greater of (i) the highest rate permitted by 
applicable Texas or United States law, or (ii) an annual rate equal to the weekly ceiling 
determined in accordance with the computation specified in the Texas Finance Code, as 
amended, as such weekly ceiling is in effect from time to time, but in no event greater than 
eighteen (18%) percent annually. Unless precluded by law, changes in the Maximum Lawful 
Rate created by statute or governmental action during the term of this Note shall be immediately 
applicable to this note on the effective date of such changes. 
 
 This promissory note (the "Note") is due and payable as follows, to-wit: 
 
 All principal and interest thereon shall begin to accrue on the Funding Date (as defined in 
that certain Term Loan Agreement between Maker and Payee dated as of ►◄, 2013) and shall 
be due and payable upon the Maturity Date defined in that certain Term Loan Note as of ►◄, 
2013 from ►◄. to Maker. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, and the holder of this Note is entitled to the benefits 
of, all deeds of trust, mortgages, security agreements, assignments, lien instruments, guaranties, 
endorsements, or other agreements (the "Collateral Agreements") executed or created by any 
person or entity (including but not limited to Maker) to secure payment of this Note. Without 
limiting the foregoing, the Collateral Agreements include: 
 

An Assignment and Pledge Agreement executed of even date 
herewith by Maker and ►◄. in favor of Lender. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 If default occurs in the payment of any principal or interest when due hereunder, or upon 
the occurrence of any default or failure to perform any covenant, agreement or obligation to be 
performed under any Collateral Agreements, or upon Maker's insolvency or business failure, the 
appointment of a receiver of all or any part of Maker's property, an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors of Maker, a calling of a meeting of creditors of Maker, the commencement of any 
proceeding under any bankruptcy, insolvency or debtor relief laws by or against Maker or any 
guarantor or surety for Maker, the holder hereof may, at its option, declare the entirety of this 
Note, principal and interest, immediately due and payable, and pursue any and all other remedies 
available to it at law or in equity, but failure to do so at any time shall not constitute a waiver of 
such holder's right to do so at any other time. Failure to exercise this option upon any default 
shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent defaults. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or upon default in the performance of or 
compliance with any of the terms of any of the Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and 
grace required by this Note, at the option of Payee, the unpaid balance of this Note shall be 
matured, and if Maker defaults in the prompt payment of this Note when due or declared due, 
and this Note is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, or suit is brought on the Note, 
or the Note is collected through probate, bankruptcy or other judicial proceedings, then Maker, 
jointly and severally if more than one, agrees and promises to pay all reasonable attorney's fees, 
court costs and collection expenses incurred by Payee. 
 
 If at any time and from time to time Payee is prevented from collecting the rate of interest 
and the fees specified in this Note by applicable law or governmental regulation, Payee shall be 
entitled to recoup the amount it would have otherwise been able to collect (the "Recoupment 
Amount") during such period when the recoupment will not violate applicable law or regulation 
(the "Recoupment Period"). During each Recoupment Period, Maker shall continue to pay the 
Maximum Lawful Rate until there has been paid under this Note, in addition to the interest at the 
applicable rate specified herein during such Recoupment Period, an amount equal to the 
Recoupment Amount. Interest collected by Payee during each Recoupment Period shall first be 
applied to payment of current interest due at the applicable rate specified in this Note and any  
remaining interest collected shall be applied to the Recoupment Amount. When Payee has 
recouped all of the Recoupment Amount, the interest rate payable by Maker shall revert to the 
applicable rate specified in this Note. In no event, however, shall the interest rate charged 
hereunder ever exceed the Maximum Lawful Rate and in the event of any prepayment of this 
Note, only that portion of the Recoupment Amount which has been earned through the date of 
prepayment shall be payable. 
 
 Upon default in the payment of this Note or in the performance of any obligation 
contained in any Collateral Agreements, and after any notice and grace required by this Note, 
this Note and all obligations contained in any Collateral Agreements shall become immediately 
due at the election of Payee. Maker and each surety, endorser, guarantor and any other party 
liable for payment of this Note, in whole or in part, hereby severally: (i) waive demand, 
presentment for payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of protest, notice of intent to 
accelerate, notice of acceleration, dishonor, and all other waivable notices, and diligence in 
collecting this Note or enforcing any of the Collateral Agreements; (ii) agree to any substitution, 
subordination, exchange or release of any party primarily or secondarily liable for payment of 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

this Note; (iii) agree that Payee shall not be required first to institute suit or exhaust Payee's 
remedies against Maker or others liable for payment of this Note or performance under any 
Collateral Agreement; and (iv) consent to any extension or postponement of time of payment of 
this Note and to any other indulgence with respect hereto without notice to any of them, Payee's 
failure to exercise Payee's option to accelerate upon any default shall not constitute a waiver of 
the right to exercise it in the event of any subsequent default. 
 
 Limitation of Interest:  Maker confirms that Maker is not aware of any violation of 
applicable usury laws related to this note or any Collateral Agreement. The parties intend to 
conform strictly to the applicable usury laws and, to induce Payee to make a loan to Maker, 
Maker agrees that: 
 

All existing or future agreements and transactions between Maker and the Payee are 
expressly limited so that under no circumstance shall the amount of Interest, as defined 
below, exceed the maximum legal rate allowed by applicable law. 
 
If, under any possible construction of this Note or any Collateral Agreement, Excess 
Interest, as defined below, would otherwise be payable, any Excess Interest shall be 
automatically, as of the date of charging or payment, applied to a reduction of the 
principal balance of this Note and not to the payment of interest, or if the Excess Interest 
exceeds the unpaid principal balance of this Note it shall be refunded to Maker, and this 
Note and/or the Collateral Agreement shall be automatically reformed to reduce the 
Interest payable to the maximum legal rate without the necessity of execution of an 
amending document. 
 
If Maker discovers that this Note or any of the Collateral Agreements may violate any 
applicable usury law, Maker shall notify Payee of the alleged violation and shall give 
Payee sixty days to cure the violation. During the sixty day notice and cure period, Maker 
shall not prosecute any claim or defense based upon a violation of applicable usury laws. 

 
To the extent not prohibited by law, all Interest shall be amortized, prorated and spread, 
in equal parts, over the full stated term of this Note so that the actual rate of Interest is 
uniform through the term of this note. 

 
"Excess Interest" shall mean all interest or fees charged, collected, or received in excess 
of the maximum legal rate of interest, including, but not limited to, those arising due to 
acceleration of maturity, late fees, prepayment, or demand for prepayment. 

 
For purposes of this Limitation of Interest section, and only this section, the term 
"Interest" shall be all inclusive and shall mean the amount of interest contracted for, 
charged, or received by Payee from Maker, or any third party, for the use, forbearance, or 
detention of the principal of this Note. 

 
 If any installment becomes overdue for more than five (5) days, at Payee's option, five 
percent (5%) of the overdue installment amount will be charged in order to defray the expense of 
handling the delinquent payment. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257724.DOCX / } 

 Maker may prepay all or any part hereof at anytime without penalty, and interest shall 
immediately cease on all amounts so prepaid. All prepayments shall be applied first to accrued 
but unpaid interest, the balance to installments due hereon in inverse order of maturity  
 
 This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. 
 
 THIS NOTE AND THE INSTRUMENTS BEING EXECUTED ALONG WITH IT 
REPRESENT THE FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES AND MAY NOT BE 
CONTRADICTED BY EVIDENCE OF PRIOR, CONTEMPORANEOUS OR SUBSEQUENT 
ORAL AGREEMENT OF THE PARTIES. 
 
 
 THERE ARE NO UNWRITTEN ORAL AGREEMENTS BETWEEN THE PARTIES  
 
 

BALLOON WARNING 
 
 This loan is payable in full at maturity. Maker must repay the entire principal balance of 
the loan and unpaid interest then due. Payee is under no obligation to refinance the loan at that 
time. Maker will therefore, be required to make payment out of other assets that Maker may 
own, or Maker will have to find another lender, which may be Payee, willing to lend Maker the 
money to pay the loan. If Maker refinances this loan at maturity, Maker may have to pay some or 
all of the closing costs normally associated with a new loan even if Maker obtains refinancing 
from Payee. 
 
 
 

MAKER: 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name:  
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

TERM LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Austin, Texas 
 
Dated: ►◄, 2013 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 The undersigned, ►◄. a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), has concurrently 
herewith borrowed from the Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Travis County 
HFC' or the "Lender") the sum of ►◄Dollars ($XXXXXX) (the "Loan") as evidenced by that 
certain Term Loan Note of the Borrower bearing even date herewith payable to the order of the 
Travis County HFC (the "Note") in said principal amount and expressed to mature and to bear 
interest as set forth in, and otherwise in the form of, the note attached hereto as Exhibit A in 
connection with the development of an approximately ►◄ (the "Project"). The Borrower 
executes and delivers this Agreement to set forth and confirm the terms and conditions 
applicable to the Note and the covenants, agreements, representations and warranties of the 
Borrower made in connection therewith: 
 
SECTION 1.  PAYMENTS. 
 
 Section 1.1.  Prepayments. (a) Mandatory. All moneys received by the Lender from the 
Bank (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof) pursuant to the terms of this Agreement and the Bank 
Agreement (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof) shall be used to pay the Obligations (as defined 
below). Additionally, any applications of the money held in the Account (as defined in the Bank 
Agreement) to reduce the balance of the Bank Note (as defined in Section 2.1 hereof), shall be a 
credit against the balance due on the Note. 
 
 (b)  Voluntary.  The Borrower shall have the privilege of prepaying the Note in 
whole or in part at any time and from time to time without penalty All such prepayments shall be 
made upon not less than one bank business day's prior notice to the Lender. Each prepayment 
shall be made by the payment of the principal amount to be prepaid and accrued interest thereon 
to the date fixed for prepayment. 
 
 Section 1.2.  Payment of Fees.  The Borrower shall pay to the Lender (i) on the date 
hereof (the "Closing Date"), an amount equal to 5.25% of the original principal amount of the 
Loan, and (ii) for each full month the Loan is outstanding following the one year anniversary of 
the Closing Date, an amount equal to 0.4% of the remaining principal amount of the Loan 
calculated based on the outstanding principal amount thereof as of the first day of such month 
(collectively, the "Lender Fees"), payable, in the aggregate, to the Lender on the earlier of the 
Maturity Date or each January 15 and July 15 following the one year anniversary of the Closing 
Date so long as such Loan remains outstanding. 
  
 Section 1.3.  Place and Application of Payments.  The Borrower hereby agrees to make 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

all payments of the Lender Fees, the principal and interest and all other amounts payable  
hereunder and under the Note (collectively, the "Obligations") promptly when due and such 
amounts due to the Lender under the Note shall be paid in accordance with the Note and such 
amounts due to the Lender's attorney for fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Loan 
shall be paid to such attorney per the invoice submitted thereby. All such payments shall be 
made in lawful money of the United States of America, in immediately available funds at the 
place of payment, without set-off or counterclaim and without reduction for, and free from, any 
and all present or future taxes, levies, imposts, duties, fees, charges, deductions, withholdings, 
restrictions or conditions of any nature imposed by any government or any political subdivision 
or taxing authority thereof. 
 
SECTION 2. SECURITY. 
 
 Section 2.1.  Collateral Documents.   For the benefit of the Lender, as security for the 
payment of the Obligations, including without limitation, all principal of and interest on the 
Note, the Borrower has concurrently herewith executed and delivered that certain Assignment 
and Pledge Agreement, dated as of the Closing Date (the "Bank Agreement"), among the 
Borrower, the Lender and ►◄(the "Bank"), granting the Lender and the Bank a lien on and 
security interest in the Account to secure that certain $►◄ promissory note (the "Bank Note") 
executed by the Lender and payable to the order of the Bank of even date herewith. 
 
 Section 2 .2 .  Further Assurances.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it shall 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of the Collateral Documents (as hereinafter defined) 
and that it shall, at any time and from time to time as requested by the Lender, execute and 
deliver such further instruments and do such other acts as the Lender may deem reasonably 
necessary or desirable to provide for or protect or perfect the lien and security interest of the 
Lender in the collateral security granted thereby. 
 
SECTION 3.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. 
 
 The Borrower represents and warrants to the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 3.1.  The Borrower is a limited partnership duly organized, validly existing, and 
in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas and is duly licensed or qualified and in 
good standing in all jurisdictions wherein the nature of its activities or business conducted or 
property owned or leased by it requires such qualification or licensing, including without 
limitation, the State of Texas. The Borrower is in full compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement and has full right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement, to borrow the 
sum evidenced by the Note, to grant a lien on and security interest in its property pursuant to the 
Collateral Documents, and to perform each and all of the matters and things provided for in this 
Agreement, the Note, and the Collateral Documents; and the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement, the Note, and the Collateral Documents, and the observance and performance of any 
of the matters and things herein or therein set forth, will not violate or contravene any provision 
of law or of the organizational documents of the Borrower, or to the Borrower's knowledge of 
any indenture, loan agreement or other agreement of or affecting the Borrower or any of its 
property. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 Section 3.2.  There is no litigation or governmental proceeding pending, nor to the 
Borrower's knowledge threatened, against the Borrower which, if adversely determined, would 
result in any material adverse change in the financial condition or properties, business or 
operations of the Borrower. All tax returns required to be filed by the Borrower in any 
jurisdiction have, in fact, been filed, and all taxes, assessments, fees, and other governmental 
charges upon the Borrower or upon any of its property, income, or franchises, which are shown 
to be due and payable in such returns, have been paid. The Borrower does not know of any 
proposed additional tax assessments against it for which adequate provisions in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles have not been made on its books and records. Adequate 
provisions in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for taxes on the books of 
the Borrower have been made for all open years, and for its current fiscal year. No authorization, 
consent, license, or exemption from, or filing or registration with, any court or governmental 
department, agency or instrumentality, is or will be necessary to the valid execution, delivery or 
performance by the Borrower of this Agreement, the Note or the Collateral Documents. 
 
 Section 3.3.  The Borrower is not a party to any contracts or agreements with any of its 
Affiliates (as defined herein) on terms and conditions which are less favorable to the Borrower 
than would be usual and customary in similar contracts or agreements between persons or 
entities not affiliated with each other. 
 
 Section 3.4.  The Borrower is in compliance in all material respects with all applicable 
local, state and federal environmental, health and safety statutes and regulations, and, to its 
knowledge, has not acquired, incurred or assumed, directly or indirectly, any material contingent 
liability in connection with the release of any toxic or hazardous waste or substance into the 
environment. The Borrower is not the subject to any evaluation under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Specified 
Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986,42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. 
 
 Section 3.5.  No Event of Default or Default (as defined herein) has occurred and is 
continuing. 
 
 Section 3.6.  The Borrower understands that neither the Lender nor any person 
representing the Lender has made any representation to it or takes any responsibility with respect 
to whether the Loan or the Note qualifies the Borrower for the award of certain points by the 
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs pursuant to its Housing Tax Credit 
Program Qualified Allocation Plan and Rules. 
 
SECTION 4.  COVENANTS. 
 
 From and after the date hereof and so long as any amount remains unpaid on the Note, 
except to the extent compliance in any case or cases is waived in writing by the Lender, the 
Borrower hereby covenants and agrees with the Lender as follows: 
 
 Section 4.1.  Maintenance of Business.  The Borrower shall preserve and keep in 
force and effect all licenses and permits necessary to the proper conduct of its business. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 Section 4.2.  Maintenance.   The Borrower shall maintain, preserve and keep its 
properties and equipment in good repair and working order and condition (ordinary wear and tear 
and casualty excepted), and shall from time to time make all needful and proper repairs, 
renewals, replacements, additions and betterments thereto so that at all times the efficiency 
thereof shall be fully preserved and maintained. 
 
 Section 4.3.  Taxes.   The Borrower shall duly pay and discharge all taxes, 
assessments and governmental charges upon or against the Borrower or against any of its 
property before the same become delinquent and before penalties accrue thereon, unless and to 
the extent that the same are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings. 
 
 Section  4.4.  Insurance.  The Borrower shall insure and keep insured, in good and 
responsible insurance companies, all insurable property owned by the Borrower which is of a 
character usually insured by companies similarly situated and operating like properties, against 
loss or damage from fire and such other hazards or risks as are customarily insured against by 
companies similarly situated and operating like property; and the Borrower shall similarly insure 
employers' and public liability risks in good and responsible insurance companies. The Borrower 
shall upon request of any Lender furnish a certificate setting forth in summary form the nature 
and extent of the insurance maintained by the Borrower pursuant to this Section 4.4. 
 
 Section 4.5.  Financial Reports.  The Borrower shall furnish to the Lender or its 
authorized representatives such information respecting the business affairs, operations and 
financial condition of the Borrower as may be reasonably requested and without any request 
shall furnish to the Lender promptly after knowledge thereof shall have come to the attention of 
any responsible officer of the Borrower, written notice of any threatened or pending litigation or 
governmental proceeding against the Borrower which would materially adversely affect the 
business and properties of the Borrower and/or the occurrence of any Default or Event of 
Default. 
 
SECTION 5.  EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. 
 
 Section 5.1.  Any one or more of the following shall constitute an "Event of Default" 
hereunder: 
 
  (a)   default in the payment when due (whether by lapse of time, acceleration, or 

otherwise) of any principal of or interest on the Note or any fee, charge, obligation or  
other  amount payable hereunder or default in the payment when due of any other 
indebtedness or liabilities (whether direct, contingent or otherwise) of the Borrower 
owing to the Lender; 

 
  (b)   default in the observance or performance of any of the covenants set forth in 

Section 4 hereof or in any of the Collateral Documents which such default is not 
remedied within thirty (30) days after notice to the Borrower by the Lender; 

 
  (c)   default in the observance or performance of any other provision hereof 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

which is not remedied within thirty (30) days after notice thereof to the Borrower by the 
Lender; 
 

  (d)   monetary default shall occur under any evidence of indebtedness issued, 
assumed or guaranteed by the Borrower or under any indenture, agreement or other 
instrument under which the same may be issued, and such default shall continue for a 
period of time sufficient to permit the acceleration of the maturity of any such 
indebtedness, or any such indebtedness shall not be paid when due (whether by demand, 
lapse of time, acceleration or otherwise) subject to applicable notice, grace and cure 
periods; 
 

  (e)   any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or made by the 
Borrower in any statement or certificate furnished by it pursuant hereto, proves untrue in 
any material adverse respect as of the date of the issuance or making thereof; 

 
  (f)   dissolution or termination of existence of the Borrower; 
 

 (g)   the Borrower becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or bankruptcy, reorganization,  
arrangement, insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under 
any bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors are instituted against the Borrower 
and are not dismissed within ninety (90) days after such institution, or a decree or order 
of a court having jurisdiction in the premises for the appointment of a trustee, receiver or 
custodian for the Borrower, or for the major part of its property is entered and the trustee, 
receiver or custodian appointed pursuant to such decree or order is not discharged within 
ninety (90) days after such appointment; or 
 

  (h)   the Borrower shall institute bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, 
insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other proceedings for relief under any 
bankruptcy law or laws for the relief of debtors or shall consent to the institution of such 
proceedings against it by others or to the entry of any decree or order adjudging it 
bankrupt or insolvent or approving as filed any petition seeking reorganization under any 
bankruptcy or similar law or shall apply for or shall consent to the appointment of a 
receiver, trustee or custodian for it or for the major part of its property or shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its 
debts as they mature or shall take any corporate action in contemplation or in furtherance 
of any of the foregoing purposes. 

 
 Section 5.2.  When any Event of Default described in subsections 5.1(a) to 5.1(f), both 
inclusive, has occurred and is continuing, the Lender may, by notice to the Borrower, declare the 
Obligations, including without limitation, the principal of and the accrued interest on the Note to 
be forthwith due and payable, and thereupon the Note, including both principal and interest, and 
all fees and charges payable hereunder shall be and become immediately due and payable 
without further demand, presentment, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
 Section 5.3.  When any Event of Default described in subsection 5.1(g) or 5.1(h) has 
occurred and is continuing, then the entire principal balance of the Note and all interest thereon 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

and all fees, charges and the other Obligations payable hereunder shall immediately become due 
and payable without presentment, demand, protest or notice of any kind. 
 
SECTION 6.  DEFINITIONS. 
 
 The following terms when used herein shall have the following meanings, such terms to 
be equally applicable to both the singular and plural forms of the terms defined: 
 
 "Affiliate" shall mean any person, firm, corporation or entity (herein collectively called a 
"Person") directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by, or under direct or indirect common 
control with, another Person.  A Person shall be deemed to control another Person for the 
purposes of this definition if such first Person possesses, directly or indirectly, the power to 
direct, or cause the direction of, the management and policies of the second Person, whether 
through the ownership of voting securities, common directors, trustees or officers, by contract or 
otherwise. 
 
 "Collateral Documents" means the Bank Agreement and any security agreements, 
assignments, mortgages, deeds of trust, financing statements, and other documents as shall from 
time to time secure the Note and the obligations of the Borrower hereunder. 
 
 "Event of Default" shall mean any event or condition identified as such in Section 5.1 
hereof and the term "Default" shall mean any event or condition which constitutes an Event of 
Default. 
 
 Capitalized terms defined elsewhere in this Agreement shall, unless otherwise specified, 
have the meanings so ascribed to them in all provisions of this Agreement. 
 
SECTION 7.  MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
 Section 7.1.  Holidays.  If any payment hereunder or under the Note becomes due  
and payable on a day which is not a bank business day, the due date of such payment shall be 
extended to the next succeeding bank business day on which date such payment shall be due and 
payable. In the case of any payment of principal falling due on a day which is not a bank 
business day, interest on such principal amount shall continue to accrue during such extension at 
the rate per annum then in effect, which accrued amount shall be due and payable on the next 
scheduled date for the payment of interest. 
 
 Section 7.2.  No Waiver, Cumulative Remedies.  No delay or failure on the part of the 
Lender or on the part of the holder of the Note in the exercise of any power or right shall operate 
as a waiver thereof or as an acquiescence in any default, nor shall any single or partial exercise 
of any power or right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
power or right. The rights and remedies hereunder of the Lender and of the holder of the Note 
are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies which any of them would 
otherwise have. All of the covenants, warranties and representations of the Borrower herein shall 
be in addition to and cumulative of all other covenants, representations and warranties of the 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

Borrower contained in, or provided for in, any other instrument or document now or hereafter 
executed and delivered by the Borrower to or in favor of the Lender. 
 
 Section 7.3.  Amendments, Etc.  No amendment, modification, termination or waiver 
of any provision of this Agreement, the Bank Agreement or of the Note nor consent to any 
departure by the Borrower therefrom shall in any event be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the Lender and the Borrower. No notice to or demand on the Borrower in 
any case shall entitle the Borrower to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other 
circumstances. 
 
 Section 7.4.  Costs and Expenses.  The Borrower agrees to pay on demand all 
reasonable costs and expenses of the Lender incurred by the Lender in connection with an Event 
of Default or the enforcement of this Agreement, the Note, the Collateral Documents, and the 
other instruments and documents to be delivered hereunder and in preserving or protecting or 
exercising the rights of the Lender hereunder or thereunder or with respect to any collateral 
security for the Note or other liabilities and in connection with any action, suit or proceeding 
brought against the Lender by any person or entity which arises out of the transactions 
contemplated hereby or thereby or out of any action or inaction by the Lender hereunder or 
thereunder, including all of the foregoing incurred in any bankruptcy, arrangement or 
reorganization proceeding involving the Borrower. 
 
 Section 7.5.  Stamp Taxes.  The Borrower agrees to pay on demand any documentary, 
stamp or similar taxes payable in respect of this Agreement or the Note, including interest and 
penalties, in the event any such taxes are assessed, irrespective of when such assessment is made 
and whether or not any credit to it is then in use. 
 
 Section 7.6.  Survival of Representations.  All representations and warranties made 
herein or in certificates given pursuant hereto shall survive the execution and delivery of this 
Agreement and of the Note and shall continue in full force and effect with respect to the date as 
of which they were made as long as any credit is in use or available hereunder. 
 
 Section 7.7.  Payments.  The Borrower will promptly and punctually pay the 
principal of and interest on the Note without presentment of the Note and without any notation of 
any such payment being made on the Note. 
 
 Section 7.8  Addresses for Notices.  All communications provided for herein 
shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given or made when served personally or 
within five (5) business days when deposited in the United States mail, sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed if to the Borrower at ►◄, or if to the Travis County HFC at 
►◄, Attention: ►◄or at such other address as shall be designated by any party hereto in a 
written notice given to each party pursuant to this Section 7.8. 
 
 Section 7.9.  Headings.  Section headings used in this Agreement are for 
convenience of reference only and are not a part of this Agreement for any other purpose. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 Section 7.10.  Severability of Provisions.  Any provision of this Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, which is unenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, as to such 
jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such unenforceability without invalidating the 
remaining provisions hereof or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provision in any 
other jurisdiction. 
 
 Section 7.11.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, and by different parties hereto on separate counterparts, and all such counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 
 
 Section 7.12.  Binding Nature, Governing Law, Etc.  This Agreement, the Note 
and/or the Collateral Documents, shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and 
assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of the Lender and the benefit of its successors and assigns, 
including any subsequent holder of the Note. This Agreement and the rights and duties of the 
parties hereto shall be construed and determined in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and any prior agreements, whether written or oral, with respect thereto are 
superseded hereby. The Borrower may not assign its rights hereunder without the written consent 
of the Lender. The Borrower and Lender agree that jurisdiction and venue for all claims made 
under or in connection with this Agreement, the Note and the Collateral Documents shall lie 
exclusively in Texas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
 
 Upon your acceptance hereof in the manner hereinafter set forth, this Term Loan 
Agreement shall be a contract between us for the uses and purposes hereinabove set forth as of 
the day and year first above written. 
 
 
      ►◄., a Texas Limited 
      Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
  
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

{Signature Page for Term Loan Agreement} 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 
Accepted and agreed to as of the day and year first above written. 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATlON 

 
 
      By: ______________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Acceptance Page for Term Loan Agreement] 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT A 
 

►◄. 
TERM LOAN NOTE 

FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
►◄XXXXXXXX         ►◄, 2013 
 
 FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ►◄., a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), hereby 
promises to pay to the order of Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Lender"), at its 
office at ►◄,Attention: ►◄, or at such other place as the holder hereof may from time to time 
direct in writing, the principal sum of ►◄ ($XXXXXXXX) on, if not sooner paid, the later of 
(i) the date that is one year following the date of this Note and (ii) the date the Project is placed 
in service, as determined in accordance with the Cost Certification Procedures Manual 
promulgated by the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs (the "Maturity 
Date"), together with interest on such principal amount at the rates and payable in the manner 
and on the dates specified below. 
 
 The Borrower hereby promises to pay interest (computed on the basis of a year of 365 or 
366 days, as the case may be for the actual number of days elapsed) at the office described above 
(or such other place as aforesaid) on the balance of principal remaining from time to time unpaid 
hereon at the rate of 0.24% per annum payable semiannually on each January 15 and July 15 and 
on the Maturity Date. The Borrower may prepay any or all of the then unpaid principal without 
penalty provided that any accrued and unpaid interest upon such principal shall be paid at the 
time of such prepayment. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (as defined in the Term 
Loan Agreement), such annual rate shall be the lower of the Highest Lawful Rate (as hereinafter 
defined) and 14% from the date of such Event of Default until the earlier of the curing of such 
Event of Default or the payment in full of all obligations hereunder. 
 
 This Note is issued under the terms and provisions of that certain Term Loan Agreement 
bearing even date herewith between the Borrower and the Lender (the 'Term Loan Agreement"), 
and this Note and the holder hereof are entitled to all of the benefits provided for by the Term 
Loan Agreement or referred to therein, to which Term Loan Agreement reference is hereby made 
for a statement thereof. The principal installments and interest hereon may be declared due prior 
to their expressed maturities and voluntary prepayments may be made hereon, all as specified in 
the Term Loan Agreement. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meaning 
ascribed thereto in the Term Loan Agreement. 
 
 Payment of this Note is secured by, among other things, (i) that certain Assignment and 
Pledge Agreement, dated as of ►◄, 2013, among the Borrower, the Lender and ►◄ and (ii) 
any other Collateral Document; and this Note and the holder hereof are entitled to all of the 
benefits and security afforded by the foregoing collateral documents, to which reference is 
hereby made for statement thereof. 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256686.DOCX / } 

 The Borrower promises to pay all reasonable costs and expenses (including reasonable 
attorneys' fees) suffered or incurred by the holder hereof in collecting this Note or enforcing any 
rights in any collateral therefor. The Borrower hereby waives presentment for payment and 
demand. This Note shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State 
of Texas. 
 
 It is expressly provided and stipulated that notwithstanding any provision of this Note or 
any other instrument evidencing or securing the loan evidenced hereby, in no event shall the 
aggregate of all interest paid by the Borrower to the Lender under this Note ever exceed the 
maximum nonusurious rate allowed to be charged or collected under applicable laws of the State 
of Texas and the United States of America (the "Highest Lawful Rate") on the principal balance 
of this Note from time to time advanced and remaining unpaid. In this connection, it is expressly 
stipulated and agreed that it is the intent of the Borrower and the Lender in the execution and 
delivery of this Note to contract in strict compliance with applicable laws. In furtherance  
thereof, none of the terms of this Note or any other instrument evidencing or securing the loan 
evidenced hereby, shall ever be construed to create a contract to pay for the use, forbearance or 
detention of money, at a rate in excess of the Highest Lawful Rate permitted to be charged of the 
Borrower under applicable laws. Borrower or any guarantors, endorsers or other parties now or 
hereafter becoming liable for payment of this Note shall never be liable for interest in excess of 
the Highest Lawful Rate, and the provision of this paragraph and the immediately succeeding 
paragraph shall govern over all other provisions of this Note and any installments evidencing or 
securing the loan evidenced hereby, should such provisions be in apparent conflict herewith. 
 
 
 

►◄a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
 
By:_____________________________________ 
 
By:_____________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

{SIGNATURE PAGE TO THE TERM LOAN NOTE FOR THE 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

REPAYMENT DIRECTION 
 

 Pursuant to the terms of that certain Assignment and Pledge Agreement dated as of ►◄, 
2013 (the "Assignment Agreement") by and among the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation ("TCHFC"), ►◄ ("►◄") and ►◄("►◄") ►◄ hereby directs ►◄ to apply the 
Collateral (as defined in the Assignment Agreement) in the Account (as defined in the 
Assignment Agreement) for repayment of the full principal balance of that certain Promissory 
Note (the "Bank Note") of TCHFC issued to ►◄dated as of ►◄, 2013 in the principal amount 
of $xxxxxxxxxx. 
 
 TCHFC acknowledges and agrees that it will, upon application of the Collateral for 
repayment of  the Bank Note, provide a credit in the same amount to that certain Promissory 
Note (the  TCHFC Note") of ►◄ issued to TCHFC dated as of ►◄, 2013 in the principal 
amount of $xxxxxxxxx. 
 
 By execution of this Repayment Direction, ►◄ and TCHFC hereby agree to the 
following in connection with repayment of the Bank Note and the TCHFC Note on ►◄, 2013 
(the "Repayment Date"): 
 

 1.  ►◄shall apply Collateral in the amount of $xxxxxxx for repayment in 
full of the  principal balance of the Bank Note. ►◄shall waive any interest accruing on 
the Bank Note. 

 
2.  TCHFC shall issue a credit in the amount of $xxxxxxx for repayment in 

full of the TCHFC Note.  TCHFC shall waive any interest accruing on the TCHFC Note. 
 

3.  Pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement (the "TCHFC Agreement") dated 
as of ►◄, 2013 between ►◄ and TCHFC, upon application of the payments described 
above, the TCHFC Agreement and the TCHFC Note shall terminate. 

 
4. Pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement (the "Bank Agreement") dated as of 

►◄, 2013 between TCHFC and ►◄, upon application of the payments described 
above, the Bank Agreement and the Bank Note shall terminate. 

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Playa Del Pueblo, Ltd. and the Travis County Housing 
Finance Corporation have executed this Repayment Direction as of the Repayment Date. 
 
 

►◄, a Texas Limited Partnership, as borrower 
hereunder 

By:  ►◄, a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

By:  ►◄ a Texas non-profit corporation, its sole 
member 

By: __________________________________ 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 

 
      BY:   ___________________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title: 
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257586.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Playa Del Pueblo, Ltd. and the Travis County Housing Finance 
Corporation have executed this Repayment Direction as of the Repayment Date. 
 
 

►◄, a Texas Limited Partnership, as borrower 
hereunder 

By:  ►◄, a Texas limited liability company, its 
general partner 

 

By:  ►◄ a Texas non-profit corporation, its sole 
member 

By: __________________________________ 

 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 

 
      BY:   ___________________________________ 
       Name: 
       Title: 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT 
 

 This Assignment and Pledge Agreement (the "Agreement") is executed by Travis County 
Housing Finance Corporation ("Debtor") and ►◄., a Texas limited partnership ("Owner") this 
►◄th day of ►◄, 201►◄ to secure the payment of that certain ►◄and No/IOO Dollars 
($XXXXXXXX) promissory note (the "Note") of even date herewith executed by Debtor and 
payable to the order of ►◄("Lender"). 
 

ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE 
 

 For value received, Debtor and Owner hereby assign and transfer to Lender, and Debtor 
and Owner hereby give to Lender a security interest in the following account: 
 

Name of Account: ►◄. 
Account Number: ►◄ 
Depository Institution: ►◄ 
Collateral Amount: $►◄ 
 

together with any renewals or substitutions of the above described account. This account will be 
referred to herein as the "Collateral". The Collateral is held with ►◄, ►◄, Texas ►◄. The 
Collateral includes all funds now in the Account listed above, plus all additions of any kind and 
from any source (the "Account"), made at any time before the release of this Agreement in 
writing. 
 
 This Agreement is made to secure the payment of the following described debt, plus all 
extensions, renewals, modifications and substitutions thereof: 
 

$►◄ promissory note (the "Note") of even date herewith 
executed by Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
and payable to the order of ►◄, a copy of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". 
 

 Debtor and Owner hereby agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
 1.  This Agreement will continue in full force and effect until Lender executes a 
written release (a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "B") and Lender shall not be 
required to release this Agreement and return the Collateral to Debtor until the Note and all 
related obligations of Debtor to Lender are paid in full. 
 
 2.  During the term of this Agreement, Owner shall have the right to direct the 
Lender to apply all or a portion of the Collateral from the Account for the sole purpose of 
applying the Collateral to amounts due and owing to the Lender pursuant to the Note. 
 
 3.  No joint owner, beneficiary, surviving spouse or representative of Debtor's or 
Owner's estate shall have any rights in the Collateral in the event of Debtor's or Owner's death or 
dissolution until the Note and all related obligations of Debtor to Lender are paid in full. 



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

 
 4.  Collateral in the amount of $►◄shall be deposited into the Account prior to any 
advances on the Note. 
 
 5.  If the Note is in default according to its terms, the Lender shall have the unilateral 
right to withdraw all or any part of the Collateral and apply the amount so withdrawn toward the 
payment of the Note and all related obligations of Debtor to Lender, even if the withdrawal 
causes a penalty. Lender can exercise this right with notice to Debtor or Owner. 
 
 6.  During an event of default, Debtor and Owner hereby appoint Lender as Debtor's 
and Owner's attorney in fact to exercise the rights granted to Lender herein. 
 
 7.  Debtor and Owner hereby represent and affirm to Lender that no other person or 
entity has any rights in all or any part of the Collateral and further, that no part of the Collateral 
is exempt or protected by law from this Agreement. 
 
 8.  The rights and remedies granted to Lender herein are in addition to any rights 
and/or remedies stated in any other agreements. 
 
 9.  Debtor and Owner shall be personal liable for the warranties and representations 
made respectively by Debtor and Owner in this Agreement. 
 
 10.  Debts secured by this Agreement (whether specifically listed or not) include all 
sums that could possibly be due under the Note. 
 
 11.  Intentionally deleted. 
 
 12.  By signing this Agreement, Debtor and Owner accept the terms of this Agreement 
and acknowledge receipt of a copy of this Agreement. 
 
Effective as of the date first stated above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
[signatures on following pages] 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

 
 
      DEBTOR: 
      TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
      CORPORATION 
 
 
      By: _______________________________ 
      Name: 
      Title: 
 
 
      OWNER: 
 
 
      ►◄., a Texas Limited 
      Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
 

By: ►◄, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄, a Texas non-profit corporation, 
its sole member 
 
By:►◄ 
 

 
 
      ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
 

►◄ 
 
By: __________________________  
Name: Vice President – Lending 
 
 

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02256884.DOCX / } 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

Copy of executed Note 
 



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

CLOSING DIRECTIONS OF  
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION 

 
. 

►◄ 
►◄ 
 
 The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation.,  (the "TCHFC"), has 
borrowed from and promised to pay to the order of ►◄ (the "Lender") the principal sum of 
►◄ ($xxxxxxxxx)) pursuant to the terms of that certain Term Loan Note (the "Note") of the 
Borrower dated as of ►◄, 2013 (the "Closing Date"). The TCHFC hereby directs the Lender to 
allocate the proceeds of the Note as follows: 
 
 (i) $xxxxxxxxxx to the TCHFC on the Closing Date via wire transfer pursuant to the 
following wire instructions: 
 

BANK ►◄ 
BNF =  
RFB =  
OBI =  
Participant Name: 
ABA Number: 
 

 (ii) $xxxxxxxxxx to ►◄ via wire transfer pursuant to the following wire instructions: 
 
   Bank ►◄ 
   ABA Bank Number ►◄ 
   Account Name: ►◄ 
   Account Number ►◄ 
   Reference Number ►◄ 
 
 (iii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender, ►◄ of which shall be attributable to 
the Bank Fees pursuant to the Term Loan Agreement between the TCHFC and the Lender and 
$►◄ of which shall be attributable to Lender underwriting and legal fees.  
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
►◄ 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/20013 

{02258033.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE 
CORPORATION 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title: 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
►◄ 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Name: 
 Title:  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

CLOSING DIRECTIONS OF ►◄ 
 
. 

Travis County Housing Finance Corporation 
Austin, Texas 
 
 The undersigned, ►◄., a Texas limited partnership (the "Borrower"), has borrowed from 
and promised to pay to the order of Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Lender") 
the principal sum of ►◄ ($xxxxxxxxx)) pursuant to the terms of that certain Term Loan Note 
(the "Note") of the Borrower dated as of ►◄, 2013 (the "Closing Date"). The Borrower hereby 
directs the Lender to allocate the proceeds of the Note as follows: 
 
 (i) $xxxxxxxxxx to the Borrower on the Closing Date via wire transfer pursuant to the 
following wire instructions: 
 

BANK ►◄ 
ACCOUNT NAME: ►◄. 
ACCOUNT NUMBER: ►◄ 
ROUTING NUMBER: ►◄ 
ABA WIRE NUMBER: ►◄ 
 

 (ii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender and attributed to the payment of legal 
fees incurred in connection with the Note, payable by the Borrower from proceeds of the Note as 
of the Closing Date. 
 
 (iii) $xxxxxxxxxx shall be retained by the Lender as payment by the Borrower of the 
Lender Fees pursuant to the terms of the Term Loan Agreement. 
 
 
 
  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

►◄., a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By: ►◄, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄Corporatjon, a Texas non-profit 
corporation, its sale member 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE: 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By 
Name:  
Title:  

  



Draft Dated 2/20/2013 

{02257593.DOCX / } 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed these Closing Directions as of the 
Closing Date. 
 
 
 

►◄., a Texas Limited 
Partnership, as Borrower hereunder 
 
By: ►◄, LLC, a Texas 
limited liability company, its general partner 
 
By: ►◄Corporatjon, a Texas non-profit 
corporation, its sale member 
 
By: ____________________________ 
 
  
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 
 
TRAVIS COUNTY HOUSING FINANCE: 
CORPORATION 
 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
Name: ______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 



AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Corporations 
Manager/854-4743 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to approve 
an invoice for external audit services for Fiscal Year 2012 from Atchley & 
Associates, LLP. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743; Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

TRAVIS COUNTY CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
TRAVIS COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION 

TRAVIS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

 

salazad
Typewritten Text
HFDC Item 1











salazad
Typewritten Text
HFDC Item 2







AGENDA REQUEST DEADLINE: All agenda requests and supporting materials must be submitted as a 
pdf to the County Judge's office, agenda@co.travis.tx.us by Tuesdays at 5:00 p.m. for the next week's 
meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 
Meeting Date: February 26, 2013 
 
Prepared By/Phone Number: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Corporations 
Manager/854-4743 
 
Elected/Appointed Official/Dept. Head: Leslie Browder, County 
Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
  
Commissioners Court Sponsor: Samuel T. Biscoe, President  
 
AGENDA LANGUAGE: Consider and take appropriate action to approve 
an invoice for external audit services for Fiscal Year 2012 from Atchley & 
Associates, LLP. 
 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND ATTACHMENTS:  See 
attached backup. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: Staff recommends approval. 
 
 
ISSUES AND OPPORTUNITIES:  None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT AND SOURCE OF FUNDING: None. 
 
 
REQUIRED AUTHORIZATIONS: Karen Thigpen, Assistant Manager/854-
4743; Leslie Browder, County Executive, Planning and Budget/854-9106 
 

Travis County Commissioners Court Agenda Request 
TRAVIS COUNTY HEALTH FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

TRAVIS COUNTY CAPITAL INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
TRAVIS COUNTY CULTURAL EDUCATION FACILITIES FINANCE CORPORATION 

TRAVIS COUNTY DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

 

salazad
Typewritten Text
Corp Item 1










	Item 01
	Item 02
	Item 04
	Item 04
	Item 04 RES Revised

	Item 05
	8001 : 2013 Proclamation Purchasing Month
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2013


	Item 06
	Item 06 Approved Res
	Item 06 Markup
	Item 06 Proposed Revision

	Item 07
	RES Agenda Request Form
	RES Heroes Behind the Badge

	Item 08
	Item 09
	Item 10
	CC Agenda Request for JRI, February 2013
	JRI Grant Flowchart

	Item 11
	8080 : Approve Ct. 44--1243 Comm. By Hand - Interpreter Services
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	44--1243 Comm By Hand Contract Vendor Signed
	Communications in Hand transmittal Nov 2012


	Item 12
	8078 : Renewal 02T00215OJ, Actuarial Services, Mod # 25, Milliman USA Inc,
	Actuarial Services - Executive Summary PAM Modification # 25 for Contract # 02T00215OJ
	Dept Memo Renewal
	Modification Actual Services 02T00215OJ Mod # 25 Final


	Item 13
	8110 : RFS S1210-011-JW Owner Occupied Home Rehab Program Award
	Exec Summary
	Dept Memo


	Item 14
	8113 : IBM HDW/SFW & Maint. Services, contract no.
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	1210-005-SW IBM HDW SFW Equipment Upgrades & Maint & Support Services Evaluation Matrix (aggregate)
	PurchMemo_MarkIII_021913


	Item 15
	8114 : 4400001362 Austin Travis County Integral Care - Child Therapist
	ExecutiveSummaryPAM 2011
	HHS & VS Court Memo
	2013 ATCIC PIR Child Therapist Interlocal Agreement


	Item 16
	Item 17
	Agenda Packet - NEMP proposed changes vs 2-26-13
	Agenda Packet - NEMP proposed changes vs 2-19-13

	Item 19
	Item 20
	Item 21
	Item 22
	Item 23
	Item 24
	Item 25
	Item 26
	Item 27
	Agenda Request_Legislative_022613
	83R TravCo IGR Legislative Stats_022113
	83R Senate Cmte Schedule
	83R House Cmte. Schedule
	MONDAY
	Appropriations
	Elections
	Government Efficiency & Reform
	International Trade & Intergovernmental Affairs
	Investments & Financial Services
	Judiciary & Civil Jurisprudence
	Land & Resource Management
	Pensions
	Technology
	Ways & Means
	Local & Consent Calendars

	TUESDAY
	Natural Resources
	Transportation
	Criminal Jurisprudence
	Environmental Regulation
	Human Services
	Rules & Resolutions
	Business & Industry
	Insurance
	Licensing & Administrative Procedures
	Public Education

	WEDNESDAY
	Agriculture & Livestock
	Public Health
	Special Purpose Districts
	State Affairs
	Urban Affairs
	Corrections
	Culture, Recreation & Tourism
	Energy Resources
	Federalism & Fiscal Responsibility, Select
	Higher Education

	THURSDAY
	Defense & Veterans' Affairs
	Economic & Small Business Development
	General Investigating & Ethics
	Homeland Security & Public Safety
	County Affairs
	Criminal Procedure Reform, Select
	Redistricting


	CMV Enforcement Packet_022113
	CMV enforcement_022113
	Informational Data 02 21 13A

	HB 958 Packet_022113
	IGR Memo_HB 958_022113a
	83R HB00958 FILED_020513
	HB 958 Resolution_DRAFT_022113
	TCDRS_HB 958 Bill Analysis_13Feb13 v3
	AAS - Combs-Pensions OK_120512
	Combs calls for ‘tweaks’ to improve pension oversight, transparency
	No sign that public pension overhaul in the offing at Legislature.


	Res 2013-06 Strongly Opposing the Passage of HB 958 TCDRS Interest Credit  Reduction 7 to 5% 2-14-13

	Medicaid Expansion Memo_2 21 13 (2)
	TravCo Legislative Program_83R_ADOPTED_021213

	Item 28
	Item 28
	CABT

	Item 29
	Item 30
	Item 31
	Item 32
	HFC1 Letter
	HFC1 2013 loan candidates
	Sheet1

	HFC1 PROMISSORY NOTE - form (02257022)
	HFC1 TERM LOAN AGREEMENT -tchfc-  FORM (02257724)
	The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Borrower"), has concurrently herewith borrowed from __________ Bank (the "Lender") the sum of LOAN AMOUNT ($xxxxxxxxxx) (the "Loan"), payable on the Funding Date (as hereinafter defined...

	HFC1 Term Loan Agreement - FORM (02256686)
	HFC1 REPAYMENT DIRECTION - FORM (02257586)
	HFC1 ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT - FORM (02256884)
	HFC1 CLOSING DIRECTIONS  of TCHFC - form (02258033)
	HFC1 CLOSING DIRECTIONS - FORM (02257593)

	Item 33
	Item 34
	Item 35
	Item 36
	Item 41
	Item 42
	Item 43
	Item 44
	Item 46
	Item A1
	Agenda Request_Central Health appointment_022613
	TCHD Managers Roster_022613
	Timeline Proposal_011713

	Item C3
	Item C4
	Item C5
	OTH PCT 2 REPORT Agenda Request Form
	OTH PCT 2 REPORT

	HFC 01
	HFC1 Letter
	HFC1 2013 loan candidates
	Sheet1

	HFC1 PROMISSORY NOTE - form (02257022)
	HFC1 TERM LOAN AGREEMENT -tchfc-  FORM (02257724)
	The undersigned, Travis County Housing Finance Corporation (the "Borrower"), has concurrently herewith borrowed from __________ Bank (the "Lender") the sum of LOAN AMOUNT ($xxxxxxxxxx) (the "Loan"), payable on the Funding Date (as hereinafter defined...

	HFC1 Term Loan Agreement - FORM (02256686)
	HFC1 REPAYMENT DIRECTION - FORM (02257586)
	HFC1 ASSIGNMENT AND PLEDGE AGREEMENT - FORM (02256884)
	HFC1 CLOSING DIRECTIONS  of TCHFC - form (02258033)
	HFC1 CLOSING DIRECTIONS - FORM (02257593)

	HFDC 01
	CORP approve Atchley Associates invoice
	CORP MEMO invoice

	HFDC 02
	CORPS 01
	CORP approve Atchley Associates invoice
	CORP MEMO invoice




